EHENZERBIRAR
China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.
)

(B 121835 Stock Code : 836

%% oye
o »%%\\%{\\o&‘wew 3
&*é ?C\o““‘“\ ¢
\
o <o
0o"
: 9‘_‘@3‘ «© $ |
”%,‘k 0\9 /
\ 3
& J

ANNUAL REPORT

< 202 F &
y

&l




ABOUT CR POWER
B HES

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Limited (the “Company” or “CR
Power”) mainly invests, develops, operates and manages wind farms,
photovoltaic power plants, hydro-electric power plants and other clean
and renewable energy projects and coal-fired power plants in China. Its
business also covers distributed energy, power sales, intelligent energy,
coal mining, and other areas.

As at 31 December 2022, CR Power had 42 coal-fired power plants,
159 wind farms, 38 photovoltaic power plants, 2 hydroelectric power
plants and 5 gas-fired power plants in commercial operations. Its total
attributable operational generation capacity was 52,581MW, with 28.7%
of its capacity located in Central China, 26.9% in Eastern China, 15.5%
in Southern China, 14.7% in Northern China, 5.8% in Northwestern
China, 5.0% in Northeastern China and 3.4% in Southwestern China.
Its attributable operational generation capacity in wind, hydro-electric
and photovoltaic power combined, amounted to 17,004MW, accounting
for approximately 32.3% of its total attributable operational generation
capacity.

CR Power has been selected, for three consecutive years, as a
constituent of the Hang Seng ESG 50 Index and the Hang Seng
Corporate Sustainability Benchmark Index (“HSSUSB”) since 7
September 2020.

CR Power has always adhered to the concept of sustainable
development and integrated the implementation of environmental, social
and governance responsibilities into the Company’s strategies and
operations. The Company has been publishing sustainability reports
for 13 consecutive years, constantly reviews its own performance and
shortcomings, and strives to improve its sustainable development
practices, laying a solid foundation for creating long-term value for the
Company. CR Power’s inclusion into the Hang Seng ESG 50 Index and
HSSUSB for three consecutive years demonstrates its excellence in the
three aspects of environment, social and governance, and reflects the
recognition on the sustainable development efforts of the Company by
the capital markets.
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5-YEAR SUMMARY

HFHE

Basic Earnings per share
attributable to owners
of the Company (HK$)

Turnover (HK$'000)

Profit attributable to owners
of the Company (HK$'000)

Dividend per share (HK$)

Consolidated statement
of financial position
(HK$’000)

Non-current assets

Current assets

Non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Total assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank and other borrowings

Attributable operational
generation capacity (MW)

Eastern China

Central China

Southern China

Northern China

Northwestern China

Northeastern China

Southwestern China

Total

Renewable energy
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2022
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1.46

103,305,097

7,042,478

0.586

232,705,334
48,630,799
99,951,023

82,670,777

82,238,602
283,387,646
7,721,275

138,319,399

0.44

90,414,166

2,137,849

0.295

234,009,787
53,957,565
112,245,011
68,059,460

88,991,769
287,967,352
7,934,211
134,747,702

13,215
13,210
7,834
7,629
1,799
2,632
1,678

47,997

15,441

2020
_Z_%&

1.58

69,550,811

7,582,668

0.631

218,993,912
40,638,025
88,616,713
65,064,932

85,802,768
259,631,937
5,036,484
108,219,038

12,604
11,988
7,471
6,603
910
2,302
1,487

43,365

11,238

2019
—FNE

1.37

67,757,632

6,590,345

0.548

186,166,238
29,569,488
71,358,497
57,661,216

72,923,979
215,735,726
4,907,306
94,136,758

12,582
11,250
7,097
5,363
820
1,952
1,328

40,392

9,420

2018
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0.83

76,940,125

3,950,435

0.328

178,274,093
29,949,074
71,356,447
59,582,109

70,135,314
208,223,167
7,977,153
96,675,137

12,472
10,507
6,819
3,792
721
1,910
1,216

37,437

7,544



5-YEAR SUMMARY
HFHE

TURNOVER NET GENERATION VOLUME OF OPERATING POWER PLANTS
S EEREREEE
(HK$million B&E®E7T) (thousand MWh FJKELB)
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SERVICE AREAS
AR5 &

As at 31 December 2022, the total
operational generation capacity of
the Company was 67,814 MW, and
attributable operational generation
capacity was
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SERVICE AREAS

ARF5 &5

ATTRIBUTABLE

PROVINCE/MUNICIPALITY/ INSTALLED EFFECTIVE INSTALLED
AUTONOMOUS REGION CAPACITY (MW)  EQUITY INTEREST CAPACITY (MW)
4/ HET/BRE POWER PLANTS B/ KB E OkR) BHfEn RRERAE OLR)
Jiangsu Changshu BH 1,950.0 100.0% 1,950.0
LB Changzhou Gas BEMRR 103.0 100.0% 103.0
Guoneng Taicang GEFN 1,200.0 40.0% 480.0

Huaxin =3 660.0 72.0% 475.2

Nanjing Bangiao MRIRE 660.0 79.0% 521.4

Nanjing Chemical Industry Park ~ FR{ELE 670.0 90.0% 603.0

Nanjing Thermal EEY 1,200.0 100.0% 1,200.0

Taizhou Gas ESilbiE) 83.0 100.0% 83.0

Tongshan Ll 2,000.0 59.9% 1,197.2

Xuzhou M 1,280.0 42.7% 545.9

Yangzhou No. 2 wINEZ 1,260.0 45.0% 567.0

Zhenjiang BT 1,540.0 42.5% 654.5

Gaoyou Wind SHEE 53.0 100.0% 53.0

Huai’an Wind EZEE 80.0 100.0% 80.0

Nantong Wind mARE 65.5 100.0% 65.5

Pizhou Wind BHES 87.5 100.0% 87.5

Suining Wind BEERE 37.1 100.0% 371

Yancheng Wind HEiREE 44.0 80.0% 35.2

Yixing Wind HEERE 429 45.0% 19.3

Huai'an Photovoltaic EZSR 10.1 100.0% 10.1

Sugian Photovoltaic BEANK 20.4 100.0% 20.4

Henan Dengfeng BE 1,840.0 75.0% 1,380.0
AEE Gucheng = 600.0 100.0% 600.0
Jiaozuo Longyuan EIERER 1,320.0 100.0% 1,320.0

Shouyangshan BB 1,200.0 85.0% 1,020.0

Anyang Wind ZBAE 250.0 100.0% 250.0

Biyang Wind WERE 238.9 100.0% 238.9

Dingbian Wind TERE 50.0 100.0% 50.0

Fenggiu Wind HERE 70.0 100.0% 70.0

Huaxian Wind BREE 200.0 100.0% 200.0

Linying Wind AR E 100.0 100.0% 100.0

Luohe Wind B EE 30.0 100.0% 30.0

LLushan Wind BURE 28.6 100.0% 28.6

Neihuang Wind NEEE 450.0 100.0% 450.0

Queshan Wind BWLES 60.4 100.0% 60.4

Qixian Wind RERE 34.0 100.0% 34.0

Shangaiu Wind BERE 20.0 100.0% 20.0

Tanghe Wind EARE 363.0 90.0% 326.7

Wugang Wind FHEE 76.0 100.0% 76.0

Xinxian Wind HHEE 22.5 100.0% 22.5

Xinyang Hengming Wind EREERE 14.0 100.0% 14.0

Xinyang Mingjie Wind ERHZEE 20.0 100.0% 20.0

Xinyang Yangming Wind ERERRE 20.0 100.0% 20.0

Xinyang Yaoming Wind Hzd = 30.0 100.0% 30.0

Xinye Wind HERE 90.0 100.0% 90.0

Yanshi Wind EMEE 30.0 100.0% 30.0

Yexian Wind EHEE 60.7 100.0% 60.7

Yucheng Wind EHAE 50.0 100.0% 50.0

Yuanyang Wind REEE 30.0 100.0% 30.0

Zhoukou Wind BORE 20.0 100.0% 20.0

Zhumadian Wind HEERE 18.0 100.0% 18.0

Dengfeng Photovoltaic EEIPInIN 4.0 100.0% 4.0
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SERVICE AREAS

PR 75 & 13
ATTRIBUTABLE
PROVINCE/MUNICIPALITY/ INSTALLED EFFECTIVE INSTALLED
AUTONOMOUS REGION CAPACITY (MW)  EQUITY INTEREST CAPACITY (MW)
4/ BEmh/BARE POWER PLANTS ER RHAE OKR) BHtEn RRERAE OLR)
Guangdong Guangzhou Thermal BMNEAE 600.0 100.0% 600.0
ERE Shenzhen # 2,000.0 100.0% 2,000.0
Liyujiang A BRI A 600.0 60.0% 360.0
Liyujiang B #EIB 1,300.0 100.0% 1,300.0
Zhuhai Gas LERE 102.0 100.0% 102.0
Fogang Wind BEEE 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Huilai Wind BRAE 133.5 100.0% 133.5
Leizhou Wind EMEE 100.0 100.0% 100.0
Lianzhou Wind ENAE 345.0 100.0% 345.0
Lianzhou Wind Phase |l EMREZH 50.0 82.5% 413
Longmen Wind EMEE 81.7 100.0% 81.7
Lufeng Wind HERE 66.0 100.0% 66.0
Qingyuan Fogang Wind BEGHEE 745 82.0% 61.1
Qingyuan Qingxin Wind ARANRAE 110.0 82.0% 90.2
Shantou Chaonan Wind WEHEmEE 145.9 100.0% 145.9
Shantou Haojiang Wind WERIRE 18.0 100.0% 18.0
Shantou Wind WERE 29.3 100.0% 29.3
Xinfeng Wind HERE 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Xinyi Wind EERE 39.0 100.0% 39.0
Xuwen Wind HERE 100.0 100.0% 100.0
Yangjiang Wind BI1RE 89.8 100.0% 89.8
Yangjiang Wind Phase Il BIRE_H 45.5 100.0% 455
Shenzhen Photovoltaic FFER 39 100.0% 39
Yingde Photovoltaic BB 28.0 100.0% 28.0
Zhuhai Photovoltaic HEAR 4.0 100.0% 4.0
Hubei Hubei pipln 600.0 100.0% 600.0
biblE =y Hubei Phase Il WIE—H 2,000.0 100.0% 2,000.0
Xiantao Ak 1,320.0 100.0% 1,320.0
Yichang HE 700.0 100.0% 700.0
Dangyang Wind EREE 37.5 100.0% 37.5
Guangshui Wind EKAE 182.3 100.0% 182.3
Shayang Wind DERE 100.0 100.0% 100.0
Suixian Tianhekou Wind BHXAORE 634.8 100.0% 634.8
Suizhou Fengming Wind BEMNEERE 76.5 100.0% 76.5
Suizhou Wind BEM E B 49.8 100.0% 49.8
Yicheng Wind ERRAE 217.8 100.0% 217.8
Yicheng Lvze Wind HGERE 75.0 85.5% 64.1
Yingcheng Wind EHAE 1000 100.0% 100.0
Zaoyang Bailu Wind EREERE 40.0 70.0% 28.0
Zaoyang Wind ERRE 181.3 100.0% 181.3
Zhongxiang Wind BEHAE 70.0 100.0% 70.0
Hebei Bohai Xinqu ENE 700.0 100.0% 700.0
ALE Cangzhou BN 660.0 95.0% 627.0
Caofeidian e 600.0 51.0% 306.0
Caofeidian Phase Il ERE_H 2,000.0 51.0% 1,020.0
Tangshan Fengrun ELEE 700.0 60.0% 420.0
Yundong B®R 700.0 90.0% 630.0
Chengde Weichang Wind AEERRE 246.0 100.0% 246.0
Fucheng Wind EHAE 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Handan Wind RS 100.0 100.0% 100.0
Linzhang Wind BERE 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Mulan Weichang Wind ABESAE 450.0 100.0% 450.0
Qinhuangdao Wind ZEERE 100.0 100.0% 100.0
Zhangbei Wind RIERE 50.5 100.0% 50.5
Caofeidian Photovoltaic BiRaxR 1.3 95.0% 10.7

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.
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SERVICE AREAS
AR #5 & 12

ATTRIBUTABLE

PROVINCE/MUNICIPALITY/ INSTALLED EFFECTIVE INSTALLED
AUTONOMOUS REGION CAPACITY (MW)  EQUITY INTEREST CAPACITY (MW)
4/ HET/BRE POWER PLANTS B/ KB E OkR) BHfEn RRERAE OLR)
Shandong Heze 2 1,200.0 90.0% 1,080.0
WESE Dezhou Wind ENRE 150.0 100.0% 150.0
Dongying Wind FEAE 1000 100.0% 100.0
Feixian Wind EREE 119.4 100.0% 119.4
Haiyang Wind BREEE 300.0 100.0% 300.0
Heze Wind TERE 100.0 100.0% 100.0
Jiaozhou Wind BNEE 28.4 100.0% 28.4
Jining Wind EERE 495 100.0% 49.5
Jiixian Wind Phase | BRRE—H 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Jixian Wind Phase I BRRE_MN 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Linyi Wind STRAE 86.0 100.0% 86.0
Linyi Wind Phase I BTRE 80.0 100.0% 80.0
Penglai Daliuhang Wind ERANTRE 49.8 100.0% 49.8
Penglai Daxindian Wind BRREERE 49.8 100.0% 49.8
Qingdao Wind BEBAE 134.0 100.0% 134.0
Qingdao Wind Phase | FERE—H 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Qingdao Wind Phase |l EEREZH 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Rizhao Wind HREE 48.6 100.0% 48.6
Weihai Huancui Wind BERERE 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Weihai Wind BEEE 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Wulian Wind Phase | hERE—H 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Wulian Wind Phase I hERE_MH 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Yantai Penglai Wind REEREE 46.6 95.0% 44.3
Yantai Wind HERE 48.0 95.0% 45.6
Zibo Wind HERE 38.0 100.0% 38.0
Zoucheng Wind FHEE 44.0 100.0% 44.0
Inner Mongolia Autonomous Dengkou ®O 600.0 75.0% 450.0
Region Xiinguole BRI E 1,320.0 70.0% 924.0
REEERE Jingneng Xilinguole REH KLY 1,320.0 30.0% 396.0
gneng Alling )
Bayinxile Wind EHRYEAE 198.0 100.0% 198.0
Manzhouli Wind RNERE 495 100.0% 49.5
Manzhouli Wind Phase |l MNEREZH 495 100.0% 49.5
Taipusigi Wind KINFEAE 300.0 100.0% 300.0
Wulanchabu Hongmu Wind SHERAKEE 49.5 100.0% 49.5
Xilinhaote Wind WEREE 200.0 100.0% 200.0
Zhengxiangbaigi Wind FREEAE 225.0 100.0% 225.0
Liaoning Panjin Big 700.0 100.0% 700.0
by Jinzhou Thermal #M 1,320.0 50.0% 660.0
Shenhai Thermal LERE 600.0 54.1% 324.7
Beipiao Wind ITERE 240.1 100.0% 240.1
Fuxin Wind BHEAE 99.0 100.0% 99.0
Fuxin Wind Phase |l BMEEZH 97.5 100.0% 97.5
Jianping Wind EBEYRE 99.0 100.0% 99.0
Jinzhou Wind wINRE 48.0 100.0% 48.0
Linghai Wind EERE 90.0 100.0% 90.0
Guangxi Autonomous Region Hezhou BM 2,000.0 66.0% 1,320.0
EfRRE Beiliu Wind EREE 46.2 100.0% 46.2
Cangwu Wind EERE 50.0 90.0% 450
Hezhou Wind BINEE 80.0 51.0% 40.8
Nanning Wind HEAE 20.0 100.0% 20.0
Rongxian Wind AERE 130.0 100.0% 130.0
Tiandong Wind HERE 100.0 100.0% 100.0
Xiangzhou Wind SMEE 50.0 51.0% 255 Si
Yulin Wind IMEE 84.0 100.0% 84.0 °
Hezhou Photovoltaic BN 136 100.0% 136"
7 Annual Report 2022
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SERVICE AREAS

PR 75 & 13
ATTRIBUTABLE
PROVINCE/MUNICIPALITY/ INSTALLED EFFECTIVE INSTALLED
AUTONOMOUS REGION CAPACITY (MW)  EQUITY INTEREST CAPACITY (MW)
4/ BEmh/BRE POWER PLANTS ER RHAE KR) BYtEn RRERAE OLR)
Zhejiang Cangnan =13} 2,030.0 55.0% 1,116.5
yipik=) Wenzhou Telluride RN R 660.0 40.0% 264.0
Wenzhou Photovoltaic BINFER 12.1 55.0% 6.6
Zhejiang Photovoltaic IR 6.1 100.0% 6.1
Guizhou Guizhou Liuzhi BN 1,320.0 49.0% 646.8
=9)ik=1 Jianhe Wind SRS 182.0 100.0% 182.0
Jinping Wind HRES 35.1 100.0% 35.1
Kaili Wind HERE 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Liping Wind BIRE 339.1 100.0% 339.1
Shanxi Ningwu B 350.0 50.0% 175.0
WEs Datong Guangling Wind AEAEERE 99.0 100.0% 99.0
Datong Wind KERE 198.0 100.0% 198.0
Datong Yanggao Wind NI TS 129.0 100.0% 129.0
Guxian Wind hHEE 19.5 100.0% 19.5
Linfen Wind BARE 114.4 100.0% 114.4
Taiyuan Wind ARRE 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Wuzhai Wind LERE 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Xinrong Wind REE 60.0 100.0% 60.0
Xinzhou Wind TNRE 190.0 100.0% 190.0
Zhongyang Wind TREEE 220.0 100.0% 220.0
Datong Photovoltaic REEAK 20.0 100.0% 20.0
Lanxian Photovoltaic AR 28.1 51.0% 14.3
Xinrong Photovoltaic Ei=Pin TN 45.9 100.0% 45.9
Hunan Lianyuan R 600.0 100.0% 600.0
HEd Linwu Wind PRAS 68.0 100.0% 68.0
Hunan Photovoltaic WEARR 2.0 100.0% 2.0
Anhui Fuyang =1 1,280.0 40.0% 512.0
ZHE Fuyang Phase Il B8 660.0 40.0% 264.0
Dingyuan Wind TERE 25.0 100.0% 25.0
Fengyang Wind BEERE 308 100.0% 30.8
Mengcheng Wind SHEE 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Mingguang Wind Phase | BARE—H 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Suixi Wind HERE 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Huaibei Photovoltaic EILFR 5.8 100.0% 5.8
Huoshan Photovoltaic Btk 16.5 100.0% 16.5
Ningxia Autonomous Region Haiyuan Wind BREAE 710.0 100.0% 710.0
EEHAE Zhongwei City Wind TETMEE 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Haiyuan Photovoltaic BRAR 107.4 100.0% 107.4
Shizuishan City Photovoltaic AR 18.8 100.0% 18.8
Yuanguang Photovoltaic BRHHR 421 100.0% 421
Zhongningxian Photovoltaic REBAAR 4513 100.0% 451.3
Gansu Changle o 2,000.0 34.0% 680.0
HES Guazhou Wind AMEE 301.0 100.0% 301.0
Huanxian Wind RHAE 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Subei Wind FIEE 200.0 60.0% 120.0
Guazhou Photovoltaic AR 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Heilongjiang Fujin Wind BERAE 50.0 100.0% 50.0
BRI Jiamusi Wind EAHAE 435 100.0% 435
Anda Photovoltaic ZEAR 120.0 100.0% 120.0
Tailai Photovoltaic HRAMR 20.0 100.0% 20.0

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.
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SERVICE AREAS

AR #5 & 12

ATTRIBUTABLE
PROVINCE/MUNICIPALITY/ INSTALLED EFFECTIVE INSTALLED
AUTONOMOUS REGION CAPACITY (MW)  EQUITY INTEREST CAPACITY (MW)
4/ HET/BRE POWER PLANTS R RHAE OkR) BHfEn RRERAE OLR)
Shaanxi Baoji Wind ERRE 100.0 100.0% 100.0
mEE Tongguan Wind ERAE 69.4 100.0% 69.4
Yan'an Wind EZEE 100.0 100.0% 100.0
Yunnan Honghe Hydro 45AKE 210.0 70.0% 147.0
ZHY Midu Photovoltaic SRR 20.0 100.0% 20.0
Yiliang Photovoltaic HREXR 2.0 100.0% 2.0
Yimen Photovoltaic 7 PR 4.2 100.0% 4.2
Zhaotong Photovoltaic BEMMK 20.0 100.0% 20.0
Sichuan Yazuihe Hydro BIEKE 260.0 51.0% 132.6
m)ig Yuexi Wind HARE 106.1 100.0% 106.1
Heishui Photovoltaic BRAR 30.0 75.0% 225
Jiangxi De’an Wind BRAE 480 100.0% 480
IFEE Dingnan Wind THAE 70.0 100.0% 70.0
Ganzhou Nankang Wind EMNmRAE 64.0 100.0% 64.0
Ruichang Wind haRE 36.0 100.0% 36.0
Xiajiang Wind BT RE 82.0 100.0% 82.0
Fujian Changting Wind ETEE 46.0 100.0% 46.0
BEE Longyan Wind EERE 48.0 100.0% 48.0
Minging Wind HERE 30.0 100.0% 30.0
Fujian Photovoltaic BEAHK 14.3 70.0% 10.0
Fuzhou Photovoltaic BMSER 8.1 100.0% 8.1
Fuging Photovoltaic ‘ALK 7.0 65.0% 4.6
Beijing Beijing Thermal TREE 150.0 51.0% 76.5
blt] CR Logistics Park Photovoltaic ~ Z B EH A 0.5 51.0% 0.3
Xiexin Photovoltaic mERK 17 51.0% 0.9
Qinghai Dachaidan Wind AEERE 50.0 100.0% 50.0
= Gonghe Wind HEAAE 1000 100.0% 100.0
Delingha Photovoltaic BmRmAR 20.0 100.0% 20.0
Jipin Photovoltaic EEHR 92.4 60.0% 55.4
Tibet Autonomous Region Jiangzi Photovoltaic TR 205 100.0% 20.5
[if=A=p=l
Jilin Nong'an Wind BRZRE 40.0 100.0% 40.0
Eis=)
Hainan Haikou Photovoltaic BOMK 1.1 100.0% 1.1
BEY
Shanghai Shanghai Gas EEMR 2.4 100.0% 2.4
LE®
Chongqing Chongging Wind BERE 62.5 100.0% 62.5
E )
Tianjin Baodi Wind ERAE 30.0 100.0% 30.0
KEM
Hong Kong SAR Huachuang Photovoltaic ERLAR 0.7 100.0% 0.7
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In 2022, under the guidance of the “double carbon” target, China has
further defined the core objectives and development path of a new power
system that is clean and low carbon, and the green transformation of
power industry has been accelerated.

In the past year, the Company has achieved positive results in all kinds
of work around the annual theme of “benchmarking learning, great
development and new breakthrough”, and made new breakthroughs in
the development of the Company.

PERFORMANCE RESULTS

The Company added 3,252MW of grid-connected installed capacity for
renewable energy during the Year. As at the end of 2022, the Company
had total assets of HK$283.39 billion and attributable operational
generation capacity for renewable energy of 17,004MW, accounting
for 32.3%, representing an increase of 0.2 percentage point over the
previous year.

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. 10
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In 2022, the total net generation volume and heat sales volume of the
consolidated power plants of the Company increased by 4.1% and
6.4%, respectively. For the full year, the Company reported turnover of
HK$103.31 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 14.3%. Profit
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to HK$7.04 billion,
while basic earnings per share was HK$1.46. The core profit contribution
from the Company’s renewable energy business amounted to HK$8,645
million.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Clean energy

The Company is fully committed to developing clean energy resources,
taking the national energy planning layout as a guide, promoting
the development and consumption of wind and photovoltaic power
projects in the southeast and central regions, and actively promoting
the development of offshore wind power clusters and the development
of wind and photovoltaic power bases in the northeast, northwest and
north China regions. The Company has strengthened the acquisition
of resources, prioritized the development of resources with good
consumption conditions, and made good medium- and long-term
resource reserves and sequential development. During the Year, we
obtained a total of 16,790 MW of renewable energy construction permits,
including 7,900 MW of base projects and more than 1,500 MW of
offshore wind farms, which was a record high.
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In 2022, the Company actively responded to the new situation of energy
security, continued to optimize the installed capacity structure, and
promoted the clean and high-quality development of coal-fired power
projects. In 2022, six 1,000MW high-quality, large-capacity clean and
efficient thermal power expansion units were approved in Haifeng,
Guangdong, Pugi, Hubei and Wenzhou, Zhejiang; 1,759 MW of clean
coal-fired power capacity installed in Xiantao, Hubei, Fuyang, Anhui and
Ningwu, Shanxi during the year.

Lean operations

In 2022, the Company seized the opportunity of the “Three 100%” coal
policy to expand the coverage of long-term coal contracts, increase the
fulfilment rate of long-term coal contracts, and develop advantageous
suppliers in coal source areas. The Company predicted the trend of
electricity tariffs and coal prices and made strategic arrangements for
different trading products, and achieved an additional value of RMB150
million in the spot power market. The Company actively managed its
equipment and achieved a net generation coal consumption rate of
297.2g/kWh.

Integrated energy services

In 2022, the Company established the Integrated Energy Development
Department to focus on the development of integrated energy business,
further clarifying the integrated energy development strategy. The
Company focuses on towns, parks, factories, buildings, transportation
and other scenarios, providing users with one-stop solutions for
electricity, carbon, hydrogen and energy storage. The Company has
implemented more than 40 integrated energy projects across the
country, solving the needs of customers in various scenarios and
empowering green development.

Energy technology

In 2022, the Company established the Science, Technology and
Digitization Department and continued to increase investment in research
and development to achieve new breakthroughs in technological
innovation. The Company undertook the first national research project
in the energy field, “Key Technology Research on Offshore Floating
Photovoltaic Power Generation”, and jointly undertook the national
key R&D project “Key Technology Application of Wind Turbine Master
Control System” with strategic partners. At the same time, the Company
has made breakthroughs in photovoltaic power storage direct current
hydrogen production and network-based photovoltaic power storage
systems, helping to build a new type of power system based on wind
and solar energy in the future.

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. 12
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Significant projects

In 2022, the Company actively participated in the restructuring of
Chongqing Energy and Shengjing Energy, effectively helping local energy
enterprises to alleviate their difficulties, and transform and upgrade. The
Company exported its advanced management experience, optimized the
regional energy investment layout, and created a benchmark model of
central-local cooperation.

ESG RESPONSIBILITY

The Board and the management attach great importance to ESG, and
continuously improve the Company’s ESG performance in comparison
with international standards and benchmarks. In 2022, CR Power
was awarded No. 2 in the “Central State-owned Enterprises ESG e
Pioneer 50 Index”, No. 1 in the “Central State-owned Enterprises ESG
Governance ® Pioneer 50 Index” and No. 2 in the “Central State-owned
Enterprises ESG Social Value e Pioneer 50 Index” rated by SASAC
among 426 centrally owned listed holding companies taking part in the
rating.
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Eco-friendliness

The Company has actively fulfilled its commitment to address climate
change and continued to increase investment in environmental
protection. We have continued to promote the energy-saving and
environmental protection transformation of coal-fired units. In 2022, CR
Power’s comprehensive energy consumption per RMB10,000 output
value decreasd by 11.36%.

By promoting the revitalization of rural areas, we are developing
renewable energy projects in various parts of China in the modes
of fishery and photovoltaic power complementary, agriculture and
photovoltaic power complementary, and animal husbandry and
photovoltaic power complementary, etc. We have set up a demonstration
area in Chibi, Hubei Province, where photovoltaic power generation,
fishery and aquaculture, mine management, water system management
and other industries are organically unified to create a better green life.

Social responsibility

In 2022, China continued to face tight power supply. The Company has
strived to overcome the pressure of rising fuel prices to ensure energy
supply and provided energy to residential, industrial and commercial

sectors, demonstrating its responsibility through practical actions. The
Company has been actively involved in charity and community welfare,
and its subsidiary enterprises have donated funds to local communities
to prevent pandemics and help students.
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Corporate governance

The Company has taken solid actions to drive the three-year SOE
reform initiatives and consistently enhanced the effectiveness of our
governance system to accelerate the improvement of modern enterprise
system with Chinese characteristics and to fully complete the established
reform tasks. The Company has deepened the structure of the Board,
standardized the authorisation management of the Board in order to
improve the corporate governance structure. The Company has further
improved the market-oriented operation mechanism and fully completed
the contractual management of the tenure system for the members of
the management. We have promoted benchmarking learning initiatives
across the Company to compare ourselves with top-tier companies,
identify shortfalls, and continuously improve our management
capabilities.

OUTLOOK FOR 2023

In the face of the complex and ever-changing global energy situation,
China has steadfastly pushed forward the energy revolution, ensured
energy security, promoted carbon peaking and carbon neutrality. It has
planned and built a new energy system, become self-reliant in energy
technologies, actively participated in addressing climate change and
global governance, and continuously stimulated the energy industry’s
internal dynamics and market vitality.

The Company will focus on the new power system with wind and solar
energy as the mainstay, and seize the important strategic opportunity of
the “14th Five-Year Plan”. The Company will continue to promote low-
carbon energy transformation, make breakthroughs in the three main
businesses of clean power generation, integrated energy and energy
technology. The Company will take practical actions to ensure energy
security, promote the energy revolution, so as to become a world-class
clean energy supplier and integrated energy service provider.

In closing, | would like to express, on behalf of the Board, sincere
appreciation to the shareholders, employees, investors and public for
their long-term trust and support for CR Power. We will continue to
create maximum value for shareholders, shoulder the mission of green
development in the new era, and jointly create a low-carbon and better
life.

Wang Chuandong
Chairman of the Board

22 March 2023
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Mr. Wang Chuandong, aged 59, was appointed as the
Chairman of the Board and a Non-executive Director of the
Company in March 2020. Mr. Wang has been the chairman
of the board of China Resources Gas Group Limited (“CR
Gas”) since June 2012 and a non-executive director since
January 2019. He was first appointed as a director and general
manager of China Resources Gas (Holdings) Limited (‘CR Gas
Holdings”) in February 2007, then appointed as an executive
director and general manager of CR Gas from November
2008. CR Gas is a fellow subsidiary of the Company and its
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEx”). Mr. Wang is currently also
a deputy general manager of China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited (“CRH”). Mr. Wang joined China Resources
Petrochems (Group) Company Limited in 1985 and served as
its director and deputy general manager. He has over 37 years
of corporate management experience in the energy area.

Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Science majoring in
Petroleum Refining from the China University of Petroleum and
a Master of Business Administration (‘MBA”) Degree from the
University of Texas in the United States of America.
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Mr. Shi Baofeng, aged 51, was appointed as as an Executive
Director and the President of the Company in September 2021.
Mr. Shi served as an executive director, president and chairman
of corporate governance committee of CR Gas from November
2018 to September 2021. Mr. Shi joined CRH in 2006 and
CR Gas Holdings in March 2007. He consecutively served as
the assistant general manager and vice president of CR Gas
Holdings and responsible for the operation of South China
Region.

Mr. Shi holds an MBA Degree from Southwest Jiaotong
University, China and a Master’s Degree from China Europe
International Business School. He also holds a Senior Engineer
qualification.
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MR. ZHANG JUNZHENG
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China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Zhang Junzheng, aged 58, was appointed as an Executive
Director and Vice Chairman of the Board in December 2019.
He served as a director of the Health Safety and Environment
Department of CRH from June 2014 to December 2019, and
deputy director from June 2009 to June 2014 of the office of
the board of CRH respectively. Mr. Zhang joined the Company
in 1995, had worked as Deputy Chief Engineer and Deputy
General Manager for China Resources (Xuzhou) Electric Power
Co., Ltd., and served as General Manager of the Assets
Operations Department of the Company from November 2004
to June 20089.

Mr. Zhang is qualified as a Senior Engineer, and holds an MBA
Degree from China Europe International Business School.

REBAELE A +N\BR RIZE-—NE+-REZER/EAF
HITESREFGR IR - RE-ZE—NFERAEZT—NEF
TZREAERERRRERRNZE2MMBE  —TTNEN
BECZE—NME AEAEBERESTEPLEAME KX
—NMNAEFMAERE) BEGNEBENBRATREL
B BREE TR _EENET+-—AE_ETAE AL
ERADEEESHRKEE-

REEHEASRIEMEE  RATRERIBER IHEE
BB

18




MR. LIU GUIXIN
FEMEE

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREERE

Mr. Liu Guixin, aged 59, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director in September 2021, currently serving as a designated
external director of the business unit of CRH. Mr. Liu had
successively served various managerial positions including
the vice president, the regional general manager (Shanxi), the
general manager of the Technology Research and Development
Centre, the chief operating officer, the regional general manager
(Guizhou) and the regional general manager (Guangxi) in China
Resources Cement Holdings Limited (“CR Cement”) from July
2003 to August 2021. CR Cement is a fellow subsidiary of the
Company and its shares are listed on the Main Board of HKEX.

Mr. Liu obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Engineering from
Wuhan University of Technology, China in 1987. He is a Senior
Engineer, and has over 30 years of working experience in the
building materials and cement industry.
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China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Chen Guoyong, aged 61, was appointed as a Non-
executive Director in September 2021, currently serving as a
designated external director of the business unit of CRH. Mr.
Chen was appointed as vice president of CR Gas in March
2012. He serves as regional chief representative (Henan
Region) of CRH and regional general manager (Greater Central
and Western Region) of CR Gas since April 2015, responsible
for operation and management of Greater Central and Western
Region. He concurrently serves as the chairman and general
manager of Zhengzhou China Resources Gas Co., Ltd. He is
currently a member of the Gas Transmission and Distribution
Professional Committee of the China Civil Engineering Society.
He worked for Jining Gas Company from 1984 to 2007 and
served as an assistant engineer of the Design Institute, the
director of the Dispatch Office and an engineer, the deputy
general manager and the general manager. He served as the
general manager of Jining China Resources Gas Co., Ltd. from
2007 to 2011, and a regional general manager (Greater Jinan
Area) of CR Gas and the general manager of Jining China
Resources Gas Co., Ltd. from 2011 to 2015.
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Ms. Elsie Leung Oi-sie, aged 84, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in April 2010. Ms. Leung was the first
Secretary for Justice of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region,
as well as a member of the Executive Council of Hong Kong from July
1997 to October 2005. Ms. Leung was admitted as a solicitor of the
Supreme Court of Hong Kong in 1968. She was a partner of P. H Sin &
Co., a Hong Kong law firm, which amalgamated with the law firm lu, Lai
& Li Solicitors & Notaries in 1993; she was a senior partner with lu, Lai
& Li Solicitors & Notaries from 1993 to 1997. At the end of 2006, she
resumed to practice at lu, Lai & Li Solicitors & Notaries. Ms. Leung was
an independent non-executive director on the board of United Company
RUSAL, international public joint-stock company listed on the Main
Board of HKEx from 30 November 2009 to 24 June 2021 and China
Life Insurance Company Limited which is listed on the HKEx, New York
Stock Exchange (‘NYSE”) and the Shanghai Stock Exchange (‘SSE”)
from 20 July 2016 to 18 July 2022 respectively. Ms. Leung also serves
as an independent non-executive director on the board of Petro China
Company Limited listed on the HKEx, NYSE and SSE from June 2017.

Ms. Leung served as a member of several government boards and
committees, including the Independent Police Complaints Council,

MS. ELSIE LEUNG OI-SIE Equal Opportunities Commission, Social Welfare Advisory Committee
BTt and Inland Revenue Board of Review. Ms. Leung was appointed as a

delegate of the People’s Congress of Guangdong Province in 1989. In
1993, she was appointed as a delegate of the 8th National People’s
Congress and in 1994 as well as a Hong Kong Affairs Advisor. Ms. Leung had been the Deputy Director of the Hong
Kong Basic Law Committee of the Standing Committee of the National People’s Congress of the People’s Republic of
China between 2006 and 2018.

Apart from being a solicitor of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong, Ms. Leung was qualified as a solicitor in England and
Wales and obtained a Master of Law degree from the University of Hong Kong in 1998.

Ms. Leung was appointed a Justice of the Peace in 1982 and was awarded the Grand Bauhinia Medal in 2002.
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Dr. Raymond Ch’ien Kuo Fung, aged 71, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in April 2010. Dr. Ch’ien is a partner
of Asia Pacific Capital (HK) Limited, and the chairman of the College Council
and School Management Committee of St Stephen’s College, Hong Kong.

Dr. Ch'ien served as an independent non-executive director of Swiss Re
Limited and Swiss Re Asia Pte. Ltd. until 13 April 2022. Dr. Ch’ien was the
chairman and an independent non-executive director of Hang Seng Bank
Limited from August 2007 to May 2021, an independent non-executive
director of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited from
November 1997 to November 2020 and an non-executive chairman of MTR
Corporation Limited from July 2003 to December 2015.

In public service, Dr. Ch’ien is an honorary president and past chairman of
the Federation of Hong Kong Industries. From January 2013 to March 2018,
Dr. Ch’ien was a member of the Economic Development Commission of the
Government of the Hong Kong SAR. From January 2008 to January 2018,
Dr. Ch'ien was a member of the Standing Committee of the Tianjin Municipal
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. From
1992 to 1997, Dr. Ch’ien was a member of the Executive Council of Hong
Kong, then under British administration. He was appointed a member of the

Executive Council of the Hong Kong SAR on 1 July 1997 and served until

D,R' RAYMOND June 2002. Dr. Ch'ien was a Hong Kong member of the APEC Business
CH’IEN KUO FUNG Advisory Council from 2004 to 2009. He was chairman of the Hong Kong/
f%%%f@i European Union Business Cooperation Committee from 2005 to January

2012. Dr. Ch'ien was previous chairman of the Advisory Committee on
Corruption of the Independent Commission Against Corruption, the Hong Kong/Japan Business Cooperation Committee, the
Industry and Technology Development Council and the Hong Kong Industrial Technology Centre Corporation Ltd.

Dr. Ch'ien received a Doctoral Degree in Economics from the University of Pennsylvania in 1978 and was a Trustee of the
University from 2006 to 2016. Dr. Ch'ien was appointed a Justice of the Peace in 1993 and a Commander in the Most Excellent
Order of the British Empire in 1994. In 1999, he was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star Medal. In August 2008, Dr. Ch'ien was
conferred the honour of Chevalier de I'Ordre du Mérite Agricole of France.
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Mr. Jack So Chak Kwong, aged 78, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in June 2014. Mr. So assumed
the chairmanship of the Airport Authority Hong Kong in June 2015. Mr. So
began his career with the Hong Kong Government and joined the private
sector in 1978, having held various senior positions in stockbroking,
banking and property development. He served as an executive director
of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council from 1985 to 1992 and its
chairman from 2007 to 2015. He was a chairman and a chief executive of
the MTR Corporation Limited from 1995 to 2003 and a deputy chairman
and a group managing director of PCCW Limited from 2003 to 2007.

Mr. So is also an independent non-executive director of AIA Group
Limited. He was an independent director of HSBC from 2000 to 2007 and
Cathay Pacific Airways Limited from 2002 to 2015.

In March 2023, Mr. So was appointed member of the Chief Executive’s
Council of Advisors. He served as Chairman of the Committee on
Economic Co-operation with Mainland from 2013 to 2015 and also served
as Chairman of the Hong Kong Film Development Council from 2007 to
2013.

MR. JACK SO CHAK KWONG

ﬁj‘ﬁf%ﬁlﬁﬁlﬁﬂi In addition, Mr. So was a member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference from 2008 to 2018 and was an international
business advisor to the Mayor of Beijing.

A Justice of the Peace, Mr. So was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star and Grand Bauhinia Medal by the Hong Kong SAR
Government in 2011 and 2017 respectively. He received an Honorary Doctorate in Social Science from the University of
Hong Kong in 2011.
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Mr. Yang Yuchuan, aged 59, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director in September 2021. Mr. Yang is the
guest professor of Hong Kong Financial Services Institute, the
chief executive and chief macro economist of Prime China
Securities Limited, responsible for the day-to-day management
and operation of the company. He has extensive experience
in the financial industry. Mr. Yang was an executive director of
Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited, a company listed
on the HKEx, a non-executive director of TTG Fintech Limited,
a company listed on The Australian Securities Exchange, an
executive director of Partners Capital Securities Limited and the
chief executive of Sunshine Asset Management (HK) Limited.
Mr. Yang was an independent non-executive director of Huiyin
Holdings Group Limited from December 2018 to June 2020. He
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of CR
Gas in August 2018.

Mr. Yang holds a Bachelor’s Degree from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University, China and an MBA Degree from the University of San
Francisco in the United States of America.

MR. YANG YUCHUAN

BmEINLE BE)I%EE AR R-F-—ENAARSEABIFH

FEE AL AR SN EEREERE EABEER
/mﬁﬂz,m HEFBARER aEZATINEESEN
BB RERMTEELELH B Y IR EHATH
EENERZRERATRTES ENELERERLHAT
TTG Fintech Limited3FITEE BABSARATNNTES
&%tﬁéﬂi(iﬁ?@ﬁﬁﬁ@?ﬁﬂzwﬁ BEER-Z— N\

E+ZR=E TEANBEEERZERERERATBIL
FEHITES- 1&" é:g NENBEZEREBMRAIBILIER
TE=-

*ﬁf‘ﬁihﬁqﬂlt/ RBAREBEBLEBNLEEFR=—EFHAZ2T
==

AN /

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. 24
ERENERERAA



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EFMEHREERRE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

PROFILE 4 | | I
EZ&%I@ ,«F_%_fl\ Mr. Zhou Jianbo, aged 49, is the Senior Vice President of
=1 = B2

the Company. From January to October 2018, he served as
the senior deputy director of the Discipline Inspection and
Supervision Department of CRH and the senior deputy general
manager of China Resources Vanguard Company Limited (“CR
Vanguard”). From August 2015 to January 2018, he was the
deputy director of the Discipline Inspection and Supervision
Department of CRH and also the deputy general manager of
CR Vanguard. Mr. Zhou holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Law from
Jiangnan University.
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MR. HOU YONGJIE
RAxBETE

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

ERENERABRAT

Mr. Hou Yongjie, aged 54, is a Vice President and the General
Manager of the South China Region of the Company. From
May 2016 to August 2017, he was the General Manager of
the Central and Western Region of the Company; from May
2012 to May 2016, he was the General Manager of the the
Thermal Power Division of Henan Branch; from January 2011 to
May 2012, he was the Deputy General Manager of the Henan
Branch; from September 2010 to January 2011, he served as
the Deputy General Manager of Henan Branch and the General
Manager of Dengfeng Project as well as the General Manager
of Luore Project; from September 2009 to September 2010,
he served as the General Manager of Shouyangshan Project
and the General Manager of Luore project; from October 2004
to September 2009, he successively served as the Deputy
General Manager and the General Manager of Luore Project;
from April 2003 to October 2004, he successively served as
the Assistant General Manager of the Production Preparation
Division of Dengfeng Project, the General Manager of the
Production Preparation Division, Head of the Power Generation
Department, and the Assistant Technical Director. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Hou worked at the Gansu Jingyuan
Power Plant.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Mr. Liu Xiusheng, aged 44, is a Vice President of the Company.
From November 2016 to June 2020, he served as an assistant
president of CR Gas, during which, he was also a general
manager of the human resources department and a genera
manager of the party and mass work department of CR Gas;
from September 2012 to November 2016, he successively
served as a general manager of the human resources
department and a general manager of the party and mass work
department of CR Gas; from February 2011 to September
2012, he successively served as a general manager and a
senior manager of the human resources department of CRH;
from July 2006 to February 2011, he was manager in the
Beijing division of the human resources department of CRH. Mr.
Liu holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Harbin Institute of Technology.
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China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Gao Li, aged 49, is the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company. Mr. Gao joined China Resources in 2007 and
has successively worked for China Resources Enterprise
Limited, China Resources Beverage (Holdings) Limited, China
Resources C’estbon Beverage (China) Co., Ltd. and CRH.
Since June 2012, he has successively been the chief financial
officer of China Resources Beverage (Holdings) Limited and the
deputy general manager of the Finance Department of CRH.
Mr. Gao holds a Bachelor's Degree and a Master’s Degree in
Economics from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics,
and is a Certified Public Accountant and an International
Internal Auditor in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).
Prior to joining China Resources, Mr. Gao worked in the
National Audit Office for many years.
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Mr. Bu Xiandou, aged 56, Vice President of the Company.
Mr. Bu served as General Manager of the East China Region
of the Company from May 2016 to January 2021. He had
successively served in various managerial positions including
the General Manager of Construction Department of the
Company, Construction Director and Assistant General
Manager of China Resources New Energy Holdings Co.,
Ltd., and Deputy General Manager of New Energy Division
of the Company from July 2010 to May 2016. And he
successively served as Deputy Director of the Preparatory
Office of Yangzhong Project and Nanjing Bangiao Project of
the Company, General Manager of Nanjing Chemical Industrial
Park Thermal Power Co., Ltd., Deputy General Manager of
China Resources Thermal Power Nanjing Co., Ltd., and Deputy
General Manager of China Resources Power (Dengfeng) Co.,
Ltd. from August 2002 to July 2010. He worked in Xuzhou
Power Plant and China Resources Power (Xuzhou) Co., Ltd.
from August 1989 to August 2002. Mr. Bu holds a Master’s
Degree in Engineering from Southeast University and is a Senior

Engineer.
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Mr. Xi Yong, aged 48, Vice President and General Manager
of the Company. Mr. Xi has served as General Manager of
East China Region of the Company since January 2021.
From April 2016 to January 2021, he served as General
Manager of Southeast China Region of the Company. He had
successively served in various managerial positions including
the Vice President of the Company, Deputy General Manager
of Thermal Power Division of the Company and Chairman
of China Resources Power Henan Shouyangshan Co., Ltd.,
Deputy General Manager and Human Resources Director of
Coal Division of the Company, and Deputy General Manager
of New Energy Division of the Company from March 2012 to
April 2016. He worked in CR Gas from May 2003 to March
2012 and successively served as General Manager of CR
Gas Group (Wuhan) Limited and General Manager of CR Gas
Wuhan Region. Mr. Xi holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Law from
the Renmin University of China.
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Mr. Wang Bo, aged 48, Vice President of the Company and
General Manager of Northern Region of the Company. He
has served as the General Manager of Northern Region of the
Company from January 2021; General Manager of North China
Region of the Company from March 2019 to January 2021;
General Manager of HR Department of the Company from May
2016 to March 2019; successively served as General Manager
of Hebei Branch of Thermal Power Division and General
Manager of Operation Department of Thermal Power Division
of the Company from August 2013 to May 2016; General
Manager of China Resources Thermal Power (Cangzhou)
Co., Ltd. from November 2010 to August 2013; successively
served as Assistant General Manager and Deputy General
Manager of Asset Operation Department of China Resources
Power of the Company, Deputy General Manager of Zhejiang
Wenzhou Telluride Power Generation Co., Ltd., and Assistant
General manager and Deputy General Manager of Construction
Department of the Company from June 2007 to November
2010; successively worked in China Resources Power (Xuzhou)
Co., Ltd. and SDIC Qujing Power Generation Co. Ltd. from July
MR. WANG BO 1995 to June 2007. Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
EE";&%EE Engineering from Xi’an Jiaotong University.
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Mr. Ma Li, aged 50, Vice President and General Manager of
North China Region of the Company. He has served as the
General Manager of North China Region of the Company from
January 2021; General Manager of South China Region of
the Company from May 2016 to January 2021; successively
served as General Manager of Office of the Board of Directors,
Administrative Director of the Company, and General Manager
of South China Branch of Thermal Power Division of the
Company from August 2013 to May 2016; successively served
as Deputy General Manager and General Manager of China
Resources Power (Dengfeng) Co., Ltd., and Deputy General
Manager of Henan Branch of Thermal Power Division of the
Company from September 2010 to August 2013; successively
served as Assistant General Manager and Deputy General
Manager of Henan China Resources Power (Shouyangshan)
Co. Ltd. from March 2004 to September 2010. Before joining
the Company, Mr. Ma worked at Datang Lveyang Power Plant
in Sha’anxi.
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Mr. Lin Niansheng, aged 58, Vice President and General
Manager of Central China Region of the Company. He has
served as the General Manager of Central China Region
of the Company since May 2016. During this period, he
also served as General Manager of Jiangsu Region of
the Company from May 2020 to January 2021; General
Manager of China Resources Power (Yichang) Co., Ltd.
from July 2011 to May 2016; Successively served as
Deputy Representative and Chief Representative of China
Resources Power Beijing Representative Office, Deputy
General Manager of Development Department of the
Company, Chief Representative of China Resources Power
Hubei Representative Office, and Development Director of
combined heat and power generation project of the Company
from October 2007 to July 2011; General Manager of the
Administrative and Human Resources Department of China
Resources Power (Hubei) Co., Ltd. from August 2004 to
October 2007. Before joining the Company, Mr. Lin worked
at Central China Normal University. Mr. Lin holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Education from Central China Normal University.
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Mr. Fan Zhe, aged 46, Vice President of the Company. From
April 2015 to July 2022, he served as the General Manager
of Legal Affairs Department/Legal Compliance Department of
CR Gas; from August 2011 to April 2015, he served as the
Assistant General Manager and Deputy General Manager of
Legal Affairs Department of CR Gas; from January 2010 to
August 2011, he served as the Assistant General Manager
of Investment and Development Department of CR Gas.
Mr. Fan graduated from Nanjing Audit University majoring
in auditing. He holds a bachelor’s degree in Economics, a
Chinese CPA non-practicing membership certificate, a legal
professional qualification certificate and a corporate lawyer
qualification certificate. Prior to joining China Resources, Mr.
Fan was engaged in audit, financial management, investment
development and legal compliance at Towngas Investment Co.,
Ltd.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present the Annual Report
and the audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group principally engages in investing, developing, operating and
managing power plants and coal mine projects in China. The activities of
its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are set out in Notes 53, 23
and 24 to the financial statements, respectively.

GROUP PROFIT

The consolidated statement of profit or loss is set out on page 137
and shows the Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2022.
A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
and the material factors underlying its results and financial position are
provided in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 55 to
87 of this Annual Report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) is set out in the sections headed “5-
Year Summary”, “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis” from pages 2 to 3, pages 10 to 15, and pages 55 to 87

respectively of this Annual Report and other sections of this report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include, but not
limited to, operational risks, policy risks, industry risks, market risks,
business risks and financial risks.

Please refer to the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 10 to 15 of this
Annual Report for a discussion on the operational, policy, market and
business challenges and uncertainties facing the Group; “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 55 to 87 of this Annual Report for a
discussion on foreign exchange rate risk facing the Group; and “Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements” on pages 147 to 346 of this
Annual Report for details of the financial risks facing the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group adheres to environmental sustainability throughout its
business operations. As a responsible corporation, and in line with
the energy and environmental protection strategies of the Chinese
Government, the Group strives to ensure minimal environmental impacts
by committing to conservation of resources, promoting the development
of clean and renewable energy projects and improving on emission
control.

Please refer to the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 10 to 15 of this
Annual Report for a discussion on the Group’s development in promoting
Environmental, Social & Governance (ESG).

More details regarding the Group’s performance by reference to
environmental and social-related key performance indicators and
policies, as well as compliance with relevant laws and regulations which
have a significant impact on the Company, have been provided in the
Sustainable Development Report 2022 which has been published by
the Company pursuant to the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide” as set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and
is available on the Company’s website at www.cr-power.com and the
HKEXx website at www.hkexnews.hk on the same publication date of this
Annual Report.

The Sustainable Development Report 2022 can be accessed by clicking
“Sustainability” on the home page of the Company’s website, then
selecting “Sustainable Development Report 2022” under “Sustainable
Development Report” and viewing it using Adobe® Reader®; or browsing
through the HKEx website. If there is difficulty in gaining access to
the Sustainable Development Report 2022 posted on the Company’s
website and a printed version(s) of the said report may be sent upon
receipt of the shareholder’s request by the Company’s Share Registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at 17M Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Board places emphasis on the Group’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. Updates on
applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the attention of
relevant employees and operation units from time to time. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has complied in all material
respects with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
.-on the operations of the Group, including the Hong Kong Companies
Q@rdinance and the Listing Rules.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

The Group believes that employees are important assets and their
contribution and support are valued at all times. The Group places
importance on the career development of its employees and organised
trainings for employees to facilitate their career development. In order
to promote work-life balance for employees, the Group created a
competitive, yet united and pleasant working environment to encourage
improvement and increased personal value to enhance their sense of
belonging.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Company believes that maintaining good relationships with
stakeholders including customers and suppliers is one of the key
contributors to the Group’s success. The Group has established stable
long-term relationships with a number of customers and suppliers, and
has taken active steps to maintain good cooperative relationships with its
customers and suppliers and to strengthen communication with them.

DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of HK$0.21 per share (2021: HK$0.25 per share)
of the Company (“Share”) with currency option for electing Renminbi
(“RMB”) was paid on 4 November 2022.

The Board resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.376 per Share for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on Thursday, 15 June 2023, subject to the approval of
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
(the “AGM”) to be held on Thursday, 8 June 2023. The proposed
dividend will be paid on Friday, 21 July 2023 following approval at the
AGM of the Company.

The final dividend will be paid in Hong Kong dollars to each shareholder.
However, shareholders may elect to receive the final dividend in Renminbi
in cash.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of the Group
and the Company during the year are set out in Note 17 to the financial
statements.
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SHARES ISSUED

Details of the movement in the Shares issued by the Company during the
year are set out in Note 43 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company amounted to HK$27,561,957,000
as at 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$16,949,959,000). Movements in the
reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 142 to 143 of this
Annual Report and Note 54 to the financial statements, respectively.

BORROWINGS

The total borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2022 amounted
to HK$131,705,574,000 (2021: HK$128,495,939,000). Particulars of
borrowings are set out in Note 39 to the financial statements.

BONDS AND NOTES ISSUED

The Group issued corporate bonds and notes with fixed rates
with face value amounting to RMB3,000,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$3,358,440,000) (2021: RMB7,800,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$9,540,102,000)) as at 31 December 2022, details of which are
set out in Note 39 to the financial statements. Such corporate bonds
and notes were issued in order to meet the Group’s general funding
requirement, including financing of capital expenditure and refinancing of
debts.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately RMB55 million (2021: RMB155 million).

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year of 2022 and as at 22 March
2023 are as follows:

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Chuandong (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Guixin

Mr. Chen Guoyong
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Executive Directors:

Mr. Shi Baofeng
Mr. Zhang Junzheng
Ms. Wang Xiao Bin

(President)

(Vice Chairman)

(Senior Vice President and Company
Secretary, retired on 8 February 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Elsie Leung Oi-sie

Dr. Raymond Ch’ien Kuo Fung
Mr. Jack So Chak Kwong

Mr. Yang Yuchuan

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors had a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not terminable
by the employing company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

Pursuant to Article 120 of the Company’s Articles of Association, every
director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject
to retirement at least once every three years. A retiring director shall be
eligible for re-election. Accordingly, no Directors are required to retire at
the AGM and all current directors remain in office.

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors in regard to their independence to
the Company and considers that each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors is independent to the Company.

As at the date of this report, among the Independent Non-executive
Directors, Ms. Elsie Leung Oi-sie and Dr. Raymond Ch’ien Kuo Fung
have served more than 9 years.

Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this report are set
out on pages 16 to 24 of this Annual Report.

The Executive Directors are entitled to salaries and discretionary
bonuses determined by the Board at its absolute discretion having
regard to the Group’s performance and the prevailing market conditions.
The Independent Non-executive Directors are entitled to director’s
fees authorised by shareholders and approved by the Board (with
recommendation from Remuneration Committee) by reference to the
prevailing market conditions. Details of Directors’ remuneration are
provided under Note 13 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The name of persons who have served on the board of the subsidiaries
of the Company during the year and up to 22 March 2023 is available on
the Company’s website at www.cr-power.com.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Group regards the President, Senior Vice Presidents, Vice Presidents
and Assistant Presidents of the Company as members of the senior
management team.

The emoluments of the members of the senior management team who
are not Executive Directors, by band, are provided in the Corporate
Governance Report on page 121 of this Annual Report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that every Director
shall be indemnified out of the funds of the Company against all liability
incurred by him or her as such Director in defending any proceedings,
whether civil or criminal, in which judgement is given in his or her favour,
or in which he or she is acquitted.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against the Directors of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, none of the Directors had
any interest in a business, apart from the business of the Group, which
competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the Group’s
business, which would require disclosure under rule 8.10 of the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had any interest or short position in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571, Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”)) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”),
or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein:
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(A) The Company

Details of Shares held by the Directors as at 31 December 2022 are
as follows:

Percentage of

Name of Director

Capacity
EENS 15

Number of
issued
ordinary
shares held
BHEERT
EiEREE

Long/short
position

wa %A

the issued
shares of

the Company
HEAF]
BETRE
Bt

Zhang Junzheng Beneficial Owner 700,000 Long 0.015%
SREE BEmBEEA S~
Interest of Spouse 96,000 Long 0.002%
Ao (R 55
Wang Xiao Bin Beneficial Owner 3,664,560 Long 0.076%
F/H BaREAA 59
Raymond Ch’ien Kuo Fung Interest of Spouse 4,000 Long 0.000%
BRE Ao B S~
Jack So Chak Kwong (Note) Interest of Corporate 400,000 Long 0.008%
BRES (5D RNEIET 55

Mt : BB L EFBI00%RIEH ERFTEZS
400,0008% B& 1% ©

Note: Mr. Jack So Chak Kwong, through a 100% controlled entity holds these
400,000 Shares.

(B) CR Gas (B) EHMMR

EMMET R AT AR E (RS
SRBEFEAFAET) BTN T
F+A=+—BHAERNRRI
BT :

CR Gas is an associated corporation of the Company (as defined
under the SFO). Details of shares in CR Gas held by the Directors
as at 31 December 2022 are as follows:

Percentage
of the
issued shares

Number of
issued

Name of Director

Exns

Wang Chuandong
FE#H

Zhang Junzheng
SREE

Capacity
51n

Interest of Spouse

Bt

Beneficial Owner

BEmERAA

41

ordinary
shares held
FEE®T
BiEKREE

800,000

10,000

Long/short
position
wE KA
Long

Fe

Long

5=,

of CR Gas
HERBRR
BETRE

BALE

0.035%

0.000%
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(C) China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited (“CR
Pharmaceutical”)

CR Pharmaceutical is an associated corporation of the Company
(as defined under the SFO). Details of shares in CR Pharmaceutical
held by the Directors as at 31 December 2022 are as follows:

Name of Director

Capacity
BEEus 515

Shi Baofeng Beneficial Owner
P EIE BmBEAA

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT SECURITIES

During the year, neither had, the Company’s holding company nor their
subsidiaries entered into any arrangement to enable the Directors or
the senior management of the Company or their associates to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities of,
the Company or any associated corporation and none of the Directors
and senior management, or their spouse and children under the age of
18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had
exercised any such right during the year.

TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company or its subsidiaries, parent company or fellow subsidiaries were
a party and in which a Director or his or her connected entities had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or during the year.

In addition, there was no contract of significance between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and its controlling shareholder (or any of its
subsidiaries) and there was no contract of significance for the provision
of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by its controlling
shareholder (or any of its subsidiaries) subsisting during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

" Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, no equity-linked agreements
were entered by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of
"“the year.
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of the
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR
Save as disclosed below, as at 31 December 2022, the Directors were PR FXFriREEN R _ T __F+_1
not aware of any other persons (other than a Director or chief executive, =+—H>EET AMBERMEMAL (BES

whose interests are disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Interests  5{EEITE A ERSM  thFIMNEZ R EXE
in Securities” above) who had an interest or short position in the Shares EMFHE L — B DIRE) RALQ S H
or underlying shares of the Company as required, pursuant to Section S IBRARMDEBIEEEH RIS KM $E336
336 of the SFO, to be recorded referred to therein: BRBESRAZEFMMNERI RS

Approximate
percentage of the
issued shares

Number of of the Company
Name of substantial issued ordinary Long/short as at
shareholders Capacity shares held position 31 December 2022
+-R=+—H
HEMBET ERREER1TR
TERFLE EER#E e/ ¥%& BAERLE
CRH (Power) Limited* 1 Beneficial owner 3,027,003,337 Long 62.93%
EHEE (BH) ARAT BalEA A #a
CRH 1 Interest in a controlled corporation 3,027,905,337 Long 62.94%
EHEE R—RZEERNER #a
CRC Bluesky Limited 1 Interest in a controlled corporation 3,027,905,337 Long 62.94%
R—RZEERNER #a
CRC* 1 Interest in a controlled corporation 3,027,905,337 Long 62.94%
EBRM R—RZEERNER #a
CRCL* 1 Interest in a controlled corporation 3,027,905,337 Long 62.94%
HEIEE R—RZEEEN#R #a
Note 1:  CRH (Power) Limited is a 100% subsidiary of CRH, which is a 100% subsidiary ~ Fiz1: #=HEE (BEH) BRABAEHEEN100%
of CRC Bluesky Limited, which is in turn owned as to 100% by CRC, which is W& AT mEHERERCRC Bluesky Limited
in turn held as to 100% by CRCL. Each of CRH, CRCL, CRC and CRC Bluesky BI100% M B A= > TICRC Bluesky Limitedf
Limited is deemed by virtue of Part XV of the SFO to have the same interests in EBHRGOEB100%E s > MEHRMA B
3,027,003,337 Shares as those of CRH (Power) Limited. CRH, through another EHFF100% R - RBSRBEHRME

wholly-owned subsidiary, is interested in 902,000 Shares of the Company. XVESME  EHEE -PHEEF -EERDK
Accordingly, each of CRCL, CRC and CRC Bluesky Limited is deemed by virtue CRC Bluesky Limited& B# R ARAEHER
of Part XV of the SFO to have the same interests in the 902,000 Shares as BT ) BRAEH3,027,003,337RKRM F Y
those of CRH. EREGD EREESAS —RE2ENBLATR

902,00088 & A B B 1D R A 1 % o EIE > a8
HERIAEEPISEXVITM S > PEIZER  EHR G
F2CRC Bluesky Limited& B R &R = HER
72902,0008% B& 1% R I FE R HE % o

* For translation purposes only * MEEH2E
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group conducted certain transactions with
connected persons which constituted connected transactions for the
Group under the Listing Rules. Those connected transactions which are
subject to the reporting requirements under Rule 14A of the Listing Rules
are summarised below.

Connected Transaction

On 25 May 2022, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, Inner
Mongolia Lvneng PE, Inner Mongolia Environment, Guonengtou Inner
Mongolia Power, State Power Investment Inner Mongolia Energy, Datang
Inner Mongolia New Energy, Huadian Inner Mongolia New Energy, Three
Gorges Investment, North United Power, CGN Wind Energy and TCL
Industries Holdings entered into the Partnership Agreement in relation to
the formation of the Partnership Fund. The total committed investment
amount of the parties into the registered capital of the Partnership Fund
is RMB10 billion, among which: (i) Inner Mongolia Lvneng PE shall
contribute RMB10 million; (i) Inner Mongolia Environment shall contribute
RMB990 million; (i) Each of Guonengtou Inner Mongolia Power, State
Power Investment Inner Mongolia Energy, Datang Inner Mongolia New
Energy, Huadian Inner Mongolia New Energy, Three Gorges Investment,
North United Power, CGN Wind Energy, TCL Industries Holdings and the
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company shall contribute RMB1 billion.
Each of the Manager, Inner Mongolia Lvneng PE and Inner Mongolia
Environment is a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules as they are subsidiaries of CRH. As such, under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules, the formation of the Partnership Fund by the entering
into the Partnership Agreement constitutes a connected transaction
of the Company. As the highest applicable percentage ratio in respect
of the transactions contemplated under the Partnership Agreement
exceeds 0.1% but is less than 5%, the transactions contemplated
under the Partnership Agreement are subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements but are exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Company issued a supplemental announcement on 2 June
2022 to further announce that, the establishment of the Partnership
Fund is subject to the following conditions precedent: obtaining the
approval of relevant governing authorities including State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Department and the supervising authority
of financial industry, and the Partnership Fund can only proceed to invest
and operate after the completion of filings with Asset Management
Association of China. As of now, the above conditions precedent have
not been fulfilled.
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Continuing Connected Transactions FERER S

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 24 ZXiR#iFiZA~ A B B FE M IB1T 2 B AR & 1E 1
December 2018 in relation to the entering of the Strategic Cooperation FZFMMN _E— N\NEFE+_F -+ MNHE TN
Agreement between the Company and CR Bank. The Strategic A& -BEEEHEN_ST-_—F+_H4
Cooperation Agreement expired on 31 December 2021. On 24 =+—HE®m R ZE-_—+-HB_+M@M
December 2021, the Company entered into the CR Bank Strategic H > Z&AFEIEFHIETIL T - —F 5
Cooperation Agreement 2021 (“CR Bank Strategic Cooperation $R{TEBEEEHE (T2 - —F 5 HIRTE
Agreement 2021”) with CR Bank, whereby the new annual caps were BER&EEHE) B FFEE LRIBEAER
set in accordance with the Group’s liquidity, business needs and the RURENME « 2B ER K ERHIRITIRHEMWTEL
expected level of services to be provided by CR Bank. Under the CR  FRFF/KEFUBRE - BIE T - —FEHIR
Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement 2021, CR Bank will provide {TEiBEEEiHZ  ERHIRTRIEHENIRTE
deposit services bearing the same interest and on the same terms B IRZIRITEMEME S B FLELITFRAIHE
and conditions as would apply to a similar deposit made by any other BRI R KEREIIER RIELGT B FRAI=X
customer of the bank, which rates was determined with reference to 342 EMEARIBITAGHNEERNREBE
the rates published by the People’s Bank of China. CR Bank provides [ o ZEHET /R IR M E 7 2 BITRT
deposit services bearing the same interest and on the same terms BIEEHNTENERIRT WBEEF ZE
and conditions as would apply to a similar deposit made by any other &% & BGIRRFE & EWERRIBIRTS) 458
customer of the bank, which rates assessed with reference to the MR#F - RIEBIRF WEZTLER  RERTLER
rates published by the People’s Bank of China. CR Bank also provides #%) IR&EERK  HEE0RFREMS
commercial banking services, including credit services (such as RIIRFE - ZEIRFEBIZEEEEGERETE B
commercial loans, bill acceptance and discount services and account MRFEX N ASNEBRITHEHEMEER
receivable factoring services), settlement services, agency services FHEERHNITRFEEZNNENEZE-F
(such as entrustment loan, insurance and custodian services), cash E&HGFEHEE (AFEEMFB) REBHIETHE
management services, financial advisory services, and other financial W _Z - —FEHRTHBESEBEFERR
services as agreed by the parties. These services will be provided on HEEREMNESRMBHELERESSHEE
normal commercial terms and such service fees shall not be higher than 9 8l AR #2018 (HEE1R23.31= 8 ) A
the net discounted fees offered to other preferred customers of CR Bank. A RM10ET BEEM11.788T) c 2
The maximum daily deposit cap, inclusive of interest payable, and the F—A—HEZE_ZE_"F+_H=+—HL
maximum daily cap of financial services and products to be provided Hif> ESSHERENAARK1,008.58
by CR Bank to the Group during the term of the CR Bank Strategic &7t MBER2,227.7EEHET) 12 HEES
Cooperation Agreement 2021 are RMB2 billion (equivalent to HK$2.33 A ARKE212EE T (HER24.78E B
billion) and RMB1 billion (equivalent to HK$1.17 billion) respectively. 7t) - BB ERER ZHEBH N EAATR
For the period between 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022, the T -_—F+_"A-+HHEZBHENAS.
maximum daily deposit amount was approximately RMB1,908.5 million

(equivalent to HK$2,227.7 million), and the commercial loans provided

amounted to RMB21.2 million (equivalent to HK$24.7 million). Details of

the continuing connected transaction are set out in the announcement of

the Company dated 24 December 2021.
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On 28 June 2022, the Company and CRH have entered into a framework
agreement (the “Integrated Energy Projects Framework Agreement”)
in relation to the cooperation on Integrated Energy Projects for a term
from 28 June 2022 to 31 December 2024. The Company will utilize the
rooftops and relevant storage and operation space of CRH Group to
install photovoltaic power station facilities and will supply power and
provide integrated energy services to CRH Group after photovoltaic
power stations were put into operation. The Company will also utilize the
waste steam, heat and pressure to construct power generation projects
to supply power and provide integrated energy services to CRH Group.
The Company will take advantage of its power industry resources to
construct energy storage and cold storage projects to supply power and
provide integrated energy services to CRH Group based on the peak-to-
trough price difference of CRH Group’s power consumption throughout
the whole day and in accordance with its energy consumption needs
and conditions (collectively, “Integrated Energy Projects”). The pricing
policy of Integrated Energy Projects will be based on the market prices
determined by ascertaining the prevailing prices at which the same or
similar type of products or services are provided by or to or between
independent third parties under normal commercial terms in the ordinary
course of business, in each case taking into account the applicable
circumstances, including but not limited to the relevant policies and
regulations of the PRC and provincial power system reformation and
the configuration, costs, profit, resources, experience, quality assurance
requirement and technical solutions of relevant parties. When determining
whether the transaction price for any transaction under the Integrated
Energy Projects Framework Agreement represents market prices, to the
extent reasonably practicable, the business team of CRH Group and
the Company would () compare the power tariffs supplied by/offered
to other independent third party suppliers/customers of the same type
in the vicinity of the relevant power projects, (i) obtain market and
industry data on such power tariffs from time to time through public
available information, and (jii) keep regular contact with other established
customers/suppliers to better understand the market price trends (if
applicable). CRH Group and the Company will review and ensure that
the terms and pricing of the transactions to be conducted under the
Framework Agreement are consistent with those of other independent
third parties. The proposed annual caps for the transactions under the
Framework Agreement for the three financial years ending 31 December
2022, 2023 and 2024 are RMB200 million (equivalent to HK$2,300
million). During the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022,
the above-mentioned Integrated Energy Projects were carried out with
related parties such as China Resources Chemical and Snow Breweries,
with a transaction amount of approximately RMB27.0 million (equivalent
to HK$31.6 million). Details of the continuing connected transactions are
set out in the announcement issued by the Company on 28 June 2022.
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On 9 December 2022, the Company and CRH entered into a framework
agreement (the “Framework Agreement”) in relation to Gas Products,
Labor Outsourcing and IT Services for a term from 9 December 2022
to 31 December 2024. Pursuant to which (i) the Company will purchase
natural gas (“Gas Products”) from CRH Group; (i) CRH Group will provide
outsourcing labor services including drivers, cleaning, chefs, front desk
and security to the Company (“Labor Outsourcing”); (i) CRH Group will
provide information products and services to the Company, including
information system operation and maintenance, network and hardware
services, information optimization services and security software
products (“IT Services”). The pricing policy of the Framework Agreement
will be based on the market prices determined by ascertaining the
prevailing prices at which the same or similar types of products or
services are provided by or to or between independent third parties
under normal commercial terms in the ordinary course of business, in
each case taking into account the applicable circumstances, including
but not limited to the relevant policies and regulations of the PRC and
the quality of services or products of relevant parties. The prices for Gas
Products are determined with reference to the regulations pursuant to the
documents in effect published by the National Development and Reform
Commission (EIXRERMNEZLZEF), the local Development and
Reform Commission where the Gas Products are used and upstream gas
suppliers from time to time subject to adjustments according to the gas
source structure, current market price, transportation costs, production
costs, operation costs, and various coefficients related to the generation
of Gas Products. Subject to any guidance price which may be imposed
by the governmental authorities, the prices for Labor Outsourcing shall
be determined after arm’s length negotiations with reference to (i) the
anticipated operational cost (including, among others, labor costs and
administrative costs) for providing such services, and (i) the prevailing
market rates for similar services in the open market and the historical
charging rates. The prices of the IT Services shall be determined on
arm’s length basis with reference to the open market prices or quotes
from other independent suppliers of similar services and taking into
account the service level, quality of services as well as other terms
such as payment terms and time required for the provision of services.
Such prices shall not be higher than those offered by other independent
third-party suppliers. CRH Group and the Group will review and ensure
that the terms and pricing of the transactions to be conducted under
the Framework Agreement are consistent with those involving other
independent third parties. The respective annual caps for the Gas
Products, Labor Outsourcing and IT Services under the Framework
Agreement for the three financial years ending 31 December 2022, 2023
and 2024 are set out as follows:
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Transaction year

REBEE
Purchase projects 2024
RWER SRCNERE
Gas Products YA M RMB300 milion ~ RMB500 million ~ RMB500 million
AR ¥3ETT AR5 ETT AR ¥5ETT
Labor Outsourcing EHINE RMB200 million RMB300 million RMB300 million
AR¥2(ETT AR¥E3ET AR¥3ET
IT Services BRI R RMB100 milion ~ RMB200 milion ~ RMB200 million
AR¥AET AR#2ET AB#E2E 7T

During the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022, the
Company purchased gas from CR Gas with a transaction amount
of approximately RMB90.0 million (equivalent to HK$104.8 million);
accepted Labor Outsourcing services from CR Mixc with a transaction
amount of approximately RMB41.3 million (equivalent to HK$48.2
million); accepted the IT Services provided by CR Digital with a
transaction amount of approximately RMB53.5 million (equivalent to
HK$62.5 million)). Details of the continuing connected transactions are
set out in the announcement issued by the Company on 9 December
2022.

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that save for
these transactions, other continuing connected transactions of the
Company conducted during the year ended 31 December 2022, were
exempted from shareholders’ approval, annual review and all disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and that the above
continuing connected transactions:

(i) have been entered into in the ordinary and usual course of the
Company’s business;

(i) have been entered into on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) have been entered into on terms that are fair and reasonable for
and in the interest of the shareholders of the Company as a whole,
and in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing
such transactions.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
issued its unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group
on pages 45 to 51 of the Annual Report in accordance with paragraph
" "14A.56 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
. provided by the Company to HKEX.
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Save for the following transactions, none of the related party transactions — B& T~ 7! 38 5 9b » 18 42 BF 55 3% 3= MY 5£ 52 FF & B8
contained in Note 52 to the financial statements falls under the definiton A SZEBR LHREBREN MREESTHZ] 5
of “connected transactions” or “continuing connected transactions”  [FFERFER 5 1808 :

within the meaning of the Listing Rules:

(1)  The two trademark licence agreements dated 17 October (1) HAFNR_ZEZ=F+A+tHHHIHE

2003 entered into between the Company and CRCL and CRH PEZER A EEERT L MIERERE
respectively, under which the Company was granted irrevocable, g B AR BERAAHE - &
royalty free and non-exclusive licences to use certain trademarks MR RIEBRETERS TEE UK
and the rights to sub-license the same to any member of the Group BAEENERAREABDRHFERSE
in consideration of nominal amount of HK$1 each. THEENEFN KEALEREHEEIE
Brte
(2)  Significant transactions with related parties during the year: 2 FHRHEMABINEARS !

Name of related company Relationship Nature of transactions

BB N B B 1% RHME

CRH Intermediate holding  Interest expense paid
company

EHER R A BN EER

Certain subsidiaries of CRH Fellow subsidiaries Supply of direct power

EHEENETHELR EEN =P BEEMHE

Providing retail power agency services
REZEEHAERS

Providing integrated energy services
MRS EIRIRTS

Providing agency service fee
RIERERBE

Software maintenance expense paid
BN 4EERS

Trademark use fee

BREAE

Purchase of consumables
BEHER

Professional fee

EXEH

Purchase of fuel

BB MK

Purchase of materials

EE MK

Rental expense

HERZ

Management fee

EHE

Insurance expense

(a3

49

132,645

1,992
7,164
27,390
239
62,472
5,022
35,671
736
104,784
13,694
154
11,556

603 .
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Name of related company Relationship Nature of transactions
BB N B E 1A RAME

Other expense
HhfEx

Other income

HAMUA

Heat supply income
HERITA

Heat purchase expense

fEFs

Certain subsidiaries and joint ventures  Fellow subsidiaries Providing retail power agency services
of CR Cement
ERNENETIBABNEGERE RRMNEAF RUZEENERE
Sales of by-product
HERIER
Purchase of material
BEMK
Providing integrated energy services
MRS R IRIRTS
Other income
Htg A
Other expense

Hthfi

Certain subsidiaries of China Fellow subsidiaries Rental expense
Resources Land Ltd.

EHEMBRATDNETELE RARMEAE HEEA
Management fee
BEEE
Renovation fee
REE
Other expense
HithfE2
Providing integrated energy services
MRS ERIRES
Providing retail power agency services
RUZEENIERE
Purchase of PPE
BEME -WEKR
Professional fee
BXER
Heat supply income
HEUTA
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1,622

1,922

11,682

7,676

13,505

3,277

2,361

2,066

708

7,976

35,686

58,062

6,966

1,810

8,891

17,233

347

8,901
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Name of related company Relationship Nature of transactions
REAERE R 1% REME
China Resources Energy Service Co.,  Fellow subsidiary Contract environment management fee, 8,011
Ltd. contract energy management fee and
exclusive operation fee
EHERRBERAT EEN N IEPNC ENREEEER NG REEERKRS
China Resources Bank of Zhuhai Fellow subsidiary Interest expense paid 342
Company Limited
KBERBTRAOBRAR EEZPANC] BEAMEER
Interest income 5,447
FEWA
Certain Subsidiaries of China Fellow subsidiaries Management Fee 1,596

Resources Property Management
Co., Ltd.

ERYEEEARATN
HETHWEAR

RRKEAR EEER

(8) Compensation to the Company’s key management forms part of
the “Key Management Compensation” described in note 52(b)
to the Consolidated Financial Statements. These are continuing
connected transactions exempted from the connected transaction
requirements under Rule 14A.76 or 14A.95 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements prescribed
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the continuing
connected transactions entered into by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2022.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers together accounted for
23.27% of the Group’s total purchases during the year. The five largest
suppliers are EEEERIE 2 EE B R/A B (Jinneng Holding Coal Industry
Group Co., Ltd.) (6.06%), LIFEBZIRFRERFEERDBIREAE (Shanxi
LuAn Environmental Energy Dev Co., Ltd.) (5.16%), HIREERERE
FfR/AF (China Coal Energy (Nanjing) Co., Ltd.) (4.87%), BRIE & IE R
$HE B R /A5)(Shaanxi Coal Huazhong Coal Sales Co., Ltd.) (4.46%)
and BB E £ E B INSETRE 5 B R AB](National Energy Sales Group
Cangzhou Energy Trading Co., Ltd.) (2.72%).

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers in aggregate accounted for
53.63% of the Group’s total turnover during the year. The five largest
customers are B4 I#EE/IBRAE (Jiangsu Electric Power Co.,
Ltd.) (17.18%), EI48MIL&AENERAE (Hubei Electric Power Co.,
Ltd.) (11.54%), BEI48A @& E/I/A 8 (Henan Electric Power Company)
(9.93%), BEREBABRSEAT (Guangxi Power Grid Co., Ltd.) (8.14%),
and EIRBHEFR AT EILDE (North China Branch of State Grid
Corporation of China) (6.84%).

At no time during the year did a Director, a close associate of a Director
or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) have any
interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any
listed securities of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2022.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has applied all of the principles of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules and complied with the code provisions as set out in the Code
during the year. The Company also adopted most of the recommended
best practices in the said Code.

The Corporate Governance Practices of the Company is set out in
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 88 to 128 of this Annual
Report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF
LISTED ISSUERS (“MODEL CODE”)

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the
Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2022.

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

The financial statements have been reviewed by the Audit and Risk
Committee. In 2022, four of the five Audit and Risk Committee members
are Independent Non-executive Directors, with the Chairman of the Audit
and Risk Committee having appropriate professional qualifications and
experience in financial matters.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year were audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu. The Company will submit a resolution at the forthcoming AGM
to recommend the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the
independent auditor of the Company.

PricewaterhouseCoopers retired and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was

appointed as an independent auditor of the Company at the 2020 annual
general meeting.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this Annual
Report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board
China Resources Power Holdings Co., Limited

Wang Chuandong
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 22 March 2023

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. 54
ERENERERAA

[RRWFFRE
BEAADIARESHNER  KMESM
MoRAFRTZEBR W0 EHRAFR
T RABDAREBEARFRE ZEFEHFRTL
RARBEEITRN25%

AEEGmD
EHENERBRAS

FE®R
EFETE

BB B =F=R"+"H



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW FOR 2022

Generation Capacity

As at the end of 2022, the Group had operational generation capacity
of 67,814MW and attributable operational generation capacity of
52,5681MW, out of which, the attributable operational generation capacity
of our thermal power plants amounted to 35,577MW or 67.7%. The total
attributable operational generation capacity of wind, photovoltaic and
hydro power projects amounted to 17,004MW or 32.3%, representing an
increase of 0.2 percentage point from the end of 2021.

As at the end of 2022, the Group’s attributable operational generation
capacity of wind power amounted to 15,512MW, with 4,857MW under
construction. Attributable operational generation capacity of photovoltaic
power amounted to 1,212MW, with 5,604MW under construction. During
2022, the attributable generation capacity of newly commissioned wind
power and photovoltaic power projects amounted to 1,1756MW and
387MW, respectively.

New grid-connected generation capacity of wind and photovoltaic power
of the Group during the year totalled 3,252MW.

In 2022, the Group obtained new approvals or filed for approximately
6,670MW of wind power projects and 18,260MW of photovoltaic power
projects, a total of approximately 24,930MW.

During the year, the attributable operational generation capacity of the
newly commissioned thermal power projects of the Group amounted
to 3,021MW, including 2x660MW units in Xiantao Power Plant, Hubei,
100% owned by the Group; a 350MW unit in Ningwu Power Plant,
Shanxi, 50% owned by the Group; a 660MW unit in Fuyang Power Plant
(Phase 1l), Anhui, 40% owned by the Group; and a 102MW gas-fired
distributed project in Zhuhai, 100% owned by the Group. The Group
completed the acquisition of 34% equity interest in the 2x1,000MW
ultra-supercritical coal-fired power generation units of Gansu Changle
Power Plant (HERE4%EM) primarily to deepen cooperation with
local governments and energy companies in order to obtain more local
resources for renewable energy projects. In addition, the Group acquired
40% equity interest in the 2x600MW supercritical coal-fired power units
of Jiangsu Guoneng Taicang Power Plant CIL&# B KB ER) by way
of equivalent swap with the equity in the coal-fired power units previously
held by the Group, as Jiangsu Guoneng Taicang Power Plant has a larger
single-unit capacity and higher efficiency.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEREFwmRDH

Net generation volume

In 2022, there was a year-on-year increase in the power demand in
the country. During the year, the total net generation volume of our
Group’s consolidated power plants amounted to 184,604 GWh, up by
4.1% from 2021. Net generation volume of wind farms and photovoltaic
power stations increased by 10.4% and 17.8%, respectively, while net
generation volume of consolidated thermal power plants increased by
2.6% year-on-year.

The average full-load equivalent utilisation hours of the operational wind
farms throughout the year were 2,398 hours, decrease by 66 hours or
2.7% as compared to 2021, exceeding the national average utilisation
hours of wind power generation units by 177 hours. The average full-load
equivalent utilisation hours of photovoltaic power stations were 1,510
hours, remained the same as 2021, exceeding the national average
utilisation hours for photovoltaic power generation units by 173 hours.
The average full-load equivalent utilization hours of our consolidated
coal-fired power plants was 4,731 hours, an increase of 40 hours or
0.8% as compared to 2021, exceeding the national average utilisation
hours of thermal power units by 352 hours.

In 2022, the net generation volume of our consolidated power plants
that followed market- based pricing accounted for 84.8%. The average
market tariff was 17.7% higher than that of the benchmark on-grid tariff.

Fuel costs

In 2022, the average unit fuel cost of consolidated coal-fired power
plants was RMB339.1 per MWh, representing an increase of 10.9% as
compared to 2021. Average unit cost of standard coal was RMB1,130.4
per tonne, representing an increase of 10.6% as compared to 2021.

Average net generation standard coal consumption rate of consolidated
coal-fired power plants was 297.2g per KWh, representing an increase of
approximately 0.5g or 0.2% from 296.8g per kWh in 2021.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Capital expenditure

In 2022, cash capital expenditure of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$35,108 million, of which HK$26,768 million was used
in the construction of wind and photovoltaic power plants, approximately
HK$5,189 million was used in the construction of thermal power units,
approximately HK$994 million was used in the technological upgrades
of operational coal-fired power units, approximately HK$678 million was
used in the construction of coal mines, and approximately HK$1,479
million was used in the construction of integrated energy and other
projects.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Development of renewable energy

The Group will continue to make every effort to accelerate the
development and construction of wind and photovoltaic power projects.
In the 14th Five-year Plan period, the Group aims to increase its installed
capacity of renewable energy by 40GW. It is expected that the mix of
installed capacity of renewable energy will exceed 50% by the end of the
14th Five-year Plan period (i.e. the end of 2025). To this end, we have
further optimised the organisational structure, mobilising employees and
managers to develop new wind and photovoltaic power projects in our
domestic target markets.

The grid connection target for new wind and photovoltaic power projects
of the Group for 2023 is expected to be 7,000MW.

Carbon emission reduction

The Group has formulated the carbon peak and carbon neutrality action
plans to provide guidance for the path to achieve the targets of carbon
peak and carbon neutrality. The path for the Group to lower its carbon
emissions includes, among others, proactive development of renewable
energy; strict control over new construction of coal-fired power
generation units; reduction of coal consumption through increasing heat
supply, biomass coupling and technological transformations; and active
piloting of carbon capture, utilisation and storage (“CCUS”) technologies.

The Group will actively assist industrial and commercial end-users and
government units to improve energy consumption efficiency, accelerate
the construction of roof-top photovoltaic power projects, help end-
users and the whole society to utilise renewable energy, reduce carbon
emissions and collaborate with end-users to pilot the construction of low
carbon and zero emission projects.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEREFwmRDH

To facilitate the achievement of the carbon emission reduction targets,
the Group explicitly includes carbon emission reduction and renewable
energy development in the performance contracts of the senior
management, and the key performance indicators include, among
others, capacity mix of renewable energy, new grid-connected capacity
of renewable energy, and carbon emission intensity in power generation,
and evaluates actual performance.

Capital expenditure

The cash capital expenditure in 2023 is expected to be approximately
HK$45,000 million, including approximately HK$30,600 million for the
construction of wind and photovoltaic power plants, approximately
HK$7,000 million for the construction of thermal power units (including
coal-fired and gas-fired power units), approximately HK$1,500 million
for the technological upgrades of operating coal-fired power units,
approximately HK$400 million for the construction of coal mines, and
approximately HK$5,500 million for the construction of integrated energy
and other projects.

In 2023, the Group expects to commission an attributable capacity of
approximately 1,544.2MW of thermal power generation units, including
one unit at Shanxi Ningwu Power Plant, one unit at Anhui Fuyang
(Phase ll) Power Plant, Guangdong Yunfu Power Plant, and a gas-fired
distributed project.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B mBR At
OPERATING RESULTS BEXE
Consolidated statement of profit or loss BHEER
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE2022F12A31HIEEE

Turnover

Operating expenses
Fuels
Depreciation and amortisation
Employee benefit expenses
Repairs and maintenance
Consumables
Impairment charges
Tax and surcharges
Others

Total operating expenses

Other income
Other gains and losses

Operating profit

Finance costs

Share of results of associates
Share of results of joint ventures

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Perpetual capital securities holders
Other non-controlling interests

Basic earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company during the year
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2022
S =

—_—=——

HK$’000

FERT

103,305,097

(64,283,171)
(14,429,592)
(6,631,593)
(2,471,245)
(1,300,504)
(1,045,216)
(760,607)

(2,997,806)

(93,919,734)

1,981,567

2,184,149

13,551,079
(3,890,192)
(112,676)

(86,737)

9,461,474

(1,905,574)

7,555,900

7,042,478
420,295
93,127

7,555,900

HK$1.46 & 7T

2021

HK$’000
THET
(RESEVE))
(BE5)

90,414,166

(58,444,438)
(14,619,078)
(6,354,542)
(2,519,440)
(1,356,838)
(432,674)
(671,259)
(2,706,824)

(87,105,093)

2,812,146
(92,079)

6,029,140
(3,759,788)
241,346
(119,282)

2,391,416
(955,001)

1,436,415

2,137,849
462,980
(1,164,414)

1,436,415

HK$0.4478 7T
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREFwmRDH

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive (expense) income:
ltems that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Currency translation differences
Share of other comprehensive income of
investments accounted for using the
equity method
Release to profit or loss in relation to
disposal of subsidiaries
ltems that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
Fair value changes on equity investments at
fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”), net of tax
Remeasurement of defined benefit
pension plan
Transfer of deferred tax liability due to
disposal of FVOCls

Other comprehensive (expense) income for
the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive (expense) income for
the year, net of tax

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Perpetual capital securities holders
Other non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive (expense) income for the
year, net of tax

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

ERENERBRAT

affiE

HZE2022F12A31HLEE

FRFNE

Hth 2w (BHR) WA :

HEEEM DR ERmHIRE

FEREE

BRI EZEREN
Hir & Wan

ENEA S BERE
TR ER AR E St 1B
NAREES BB

Hftrn & Wi ey R E

AREELZSH RE)
EMStERERNI msTE

HREURAABESEEES
%Jr)\ﬁfmn 14& E’J%rﬂé%

FRHMEE (BB WA #RE)

FREE (BE) WALRE RE)

BB
NI Z=DN
KABRBEFFAA
HMIFES

FAEE (BE) WABE RE)

60

mRHEMEERAR

2022

HK$’000

FTERT

7,555,900

(13,116,546)

(655,911)

(2,862)

(13,608,114)

(6,052,214)

(5,895,145)
420,295

(577,364)

(6,052,214)

2021

B —F

—_—

HK$’000
THT
(RESEWE))
(BEF)

1,436,415

4,204,434

101,257

1,627

(13,762)

(27,704)

187,180

4,453,032

5,889,447

6,301,109
462,980
(874,642)

5,889,447



ASSETS
Non-current assets

As at 31 December 2022

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Goodwiill

Mining rights

Exploration and resources rights
Deferred tax assets

Other receivables and prepayments
Interests in associates

Interests in joint ventures

Financial assets at FVOCI

Loans to a FVOCI investee company

Loans to a non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables, other receivables and
prepayments

Loans to an associate

Loans to joint ventures

Loans to a FVOCI investee company

Amounts due from associates

Amounts due from joint ventures

Amounts due from other related companies
Pledged and restricted bank deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

Assets classified as held for sale

Total assets

BE
IERBEE

Consolidated statement of financial position
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191,355,953
6,635,994
621,904
3,836,360
1,075,072
12,533,739
9,050,331
5,997,336

1,118,396

466,255

13,994

232,705,334

4,581,614

35,616,097

189,121

84,102
241,196
47,395
33,533
116,466

7,721,275
48,630,799

2,051,513

283,387,646

2021
=T
HK$'000

FHET
(RESEIEE))
(BE5)

193,546,026
5,679,555
663,659
4,558,859
165,944
1,043,357
12,600,647
8,760,459
5,760,413

1,138,982

91,886

234,009,787

6,748,274

37,785,692
83,904
262,377

372,107
406,333
35,375
176,573
162,819
7,934,211

58,957,565

287,967,352
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves

Share capital

Other reserves

Retained earnings

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company

Perpetual capital securities holders
Other non-controlling interests

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Contract liabilities
Lease liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred income

Retirement and other long-term employee

benefits obligations
Other long-term payables

Current liabilities

Trade payables, other payables and
accruals

Contract liabilities

Lease liabilities

Amounts due to associates

Amounts due to joint ventures

Amounts due to other related companies

Tax liabilities

Borrowings

Liabilities associated with assets classified
as held for sale

. Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

ERENERBRAT

EEk&E

BRKfER
&
Hi R
fREEH]

ARBERE AEEED

KABHESFFHEA
HIFEEH S m

Bt

&R
IERBER
&8
aRE&RE
HE&R
EIERR AR
TEIEUT A
&SRR
Hit R EBB@F A
H REE R

nea’
FE A BRRR ~ HL B A -RIE R
st EH
GR&RE
HEARE
PR & 2R
BNEELERE
B EMBEAERRRIE

&8

HNEARAREEERMNEGR

HmaE
MEDRER

62

22,316,710
10,138,976

49,782,916

82,238,602

10,664,271

7,650,675

100,553,548

93,322,133
873,021
1,048,403
288,864
808,519

807,751

2,802,332

99,951,023

30,247,926
1,233,004
217,924
627,790
576,082
10,840,890
543,720

38,383,441

82,670,777

212,298

182,834,098

283,387,646

(Restated)
(BE5)

22,316,710
21,750,464
44,924,595

88,991,769

10,827,061
7,844,051

107,662,881

105,310,179
858,566
863,241
351,725
973,525

913,356
2,974,419

112,245,011

34,136,474
1,481,794
114,999
772,877
566,022
7,391,714
409,820
23,185,760

68,059,460

180,304,471

287,967,352



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

S ER St
Consolidated statement of cash flows EHIRERE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE2022F12HA31HILLEE

2021
=T
HK$'000

FHET
(RESEIEE))
(BE5)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES R RE
Profit before income tax BRPTIS IR A F 9,461,474 2,391,416
Adjustments for: THEE
Depreciation and amortisation s Bk 3H 14,429,592 14,619,078
Impairment losses R EEK 1,045,216 432,674
Exchange (gains) losses BE R (Y ad) Bk (1,993,762) 431,217
Interest expense FERX 3,890,192 3,759,788
Interest income ) B WA (192,451) (300,601)
Share of results of associates FE{L Bt E (R AR 112,676 (241,346)
Share of results of joint ventures EhaEbEES 86,737 119,282
Dividends income from FVOCI investee MAnEEFEBEEE A
companies HtiGesWaNEsmEE
MR E QB KR EWA (57,727) (106,600)
Gains on disposal of property, plant and HEYZE  BERZENREG
equipment (33,366) (70,697)
Gains on disposal of right-of-use assets HEFREEENRZ (90,987) (131,247)
(Gains) losses on disposal of subsidiaries HENBRAE (W) B8 (32,137) 761
Gains on disposal of a joint venture HEGErERSR - 61,161)
Changes in working capital: SEETEE .
Decrease (increase) in inventories F SR/ (800 1,742,320 (3,727,263)
Increase in trade receivables, other FEUR AR =R ~ A E W IB K
receivables and prepayments FEA FRIEIE A0 (2,557,534) (10,960,705)
Increase in trade payables, other T BR =R ~ A BT RUIB K
payables and accruals FEstE R mM 335,197 4,088,611
(Decrease) increase in retirement and other FEsHR AR EMmEIREES R
long-term employee benefits obligations B S GRizl) 10 (115,424) 12,238
Income tax paid BEIFREHR (1,863,277) (2,284,539)
Net cash flows generated from REEEEENHRERA—
operating activities FEE 24,166,739 7,970,906
63 Annual Report 2022
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INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Dividends received from associates and
joint ventures

Dividends received from FVOCI investee
companies

Interest received
Advanced proceeds from demolition of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries
engaging in coal mining business
Proceeds from disposal of a joint venture
Disposal of a FVOCI investment

Payments for purchase of property, plant
and equipment, mining rights and right-of-
use assets

Capital contributions into associates

Capital contributions into joint ventures

Investment made into FVOCI

Loans to an associate

Loans repayments from an associate

Loans to joint ventures

Loans repayments from joint ventures

Net cash outflow on acquisition of interest in
subsidiaries

Net cash outflow on acquisition of interest in
associates

Cash prepayment on acquisition of equity
investments

Cash prepayment on acquisition of interest in
an associate

Government grants related to assets

Proceeds upon dissolving a subsidiary

Repurchase of Asset-Backed Notes

" Net cash flows used in investing activities

']

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.
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659,759

93,766
9,065

103,994

(32,579,796)
(586,550)
(880,968)

140,533

(1,101)

(723,698)

20,825

(102,916)

(33,847,087)

(Restated)
(BE5)

462,890

101,045
386,412

566,149

166,718

4,850,850
368,546

159,035

(25,688,887)
(78,557)
(357,178)

(71,219)
(18,063)
158,761
(95,320)
61,217

(133,137)

(717,655)

(126,985)
14,697
21,209

(19,969,472)



FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Proceeds from issuance of perpetual capital
securities

Proceeds from issuance of corporate bonds

Redemption of corporate bonds

Redemption of perpetual capital securities

Capital contributions by non-controlling
interests

Capital reduction by non-controlling interests

Advances from an intermediate holding
company

Repayment of advances from an intermediate
holding company

Repayment of advances from associates

Advances from (repayment of advances from)
joint ventures

Repayment of advances from other related
companies

Advances from non-controlling interests of
subsidiaries

Interests on bank loans and advances from
associates and joint ventures paid

Dividends paid to owners of the Company

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests of
subsidiaries

Repayments of lease liabilities

Interest paid to perpetual capital securities
holders

Underwriting fees for issuance of perpetual

capital securities

Net cash flows generated from financing
activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Analysis of the balances of cash and cash
equivalents, represented by:

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
period

Cash and cash equivalents included in
assets classified as held for sale
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62,229,310

(43,383,069)

10,664,624

(5,776,692)

(10,558,855)

509,297
(14,707)

3,571,843

(76,001)
73,807
(112,736)
15,814

(4,387,972)
(1,226,311)

(235,267)
(713,919)

(420,295)

(353)

10,158,518

478,170

7,934,211

(690,764)

7,721,275

342

7,721,617

2021
—E_—F
HK$’'000

FHET
(Restated)
(BE5)

55,673,507
(27,753,140)

1,207,390
(6,042,400)

238,853

1,000,000

(700,000)
(375,156)

(146,532)
(143,646)
5,416

(3,987,665)
(3,154,904)

(482,129)
(149,678)

(462,980)

14,726,936

2,728,370

5,036,484
169,357

7,934,211

7,934,211
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Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values.

Other than additional accounting policies as resulting from application of
amendments to Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”),
the accounting policies and methods of computation used in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022 are the same as those presented in the Group’s annual financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Application of amendments to HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments

to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which are mandatorily effective

for the Group’s annual period beginning on 1 January 2022 for the

preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Covid-19-related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment-

Proceeds before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Except as described below, the application of the amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has no material impact on the Group’s
financial position and performance for the current and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Impacts and accounting policies on application of Amendments to
HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended
Use

Accounting Policies
Property, plant and equipment

The amendments specify that the costs of any item that were produced
while bringing an item of property, plant and equipment to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management (such as samples produced when testing
whether the relevant property, plant and equipment is functioning
properly) and the proceeds from selling such items should be recognised
and measured in the profit or loss in accordance with applicable
standards. The cost of the items are measured in accordance with HKAS
2 Inventories.

Impacts of application of amendments to HKFRSs on the
consolidated financial statements

The effects of the changes in accounting policy as a result of application
of amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use on the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and earnings per share are as follows:

Impact on profit for the year HERNFHNEZE
Increase in turnover [EEZ R
Increase in operating expenses & A AL 0
Decrease in income tax expense T8 & AR
Net increase in profit for the year F R F IS 0% 28

Increase in profit for the year attributable to:

— Owners of the Company —ERREHEEA
— Other non-controlling interests — H IR S R i
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2022
—E-C

QLERY
FAET

2021

HK$’000
TAT

472,021 614,251
(218,787) (64,410)
= 2,535
253,234 552,376
236,892 545,097
16,342 7,279
253,234 552,376
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEw R

2022 2021
o=

—_—=——

HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET TR

Impact on total comprehensive income HEEWAREZEE

Increase in total comprehensive income for the FRFTIENMNEEMALRLERER -

year attributable to:
— Owners of the Company e VNEIEZ Z= DN 178,830 554,779
— Other non-controlling interests — H A IESE Sl 1 = 15,103 7,434

193,933 562,213

Impact on basic earnings per share HEREABIZZE
Basic earnings per share before adjustments  :BZERTE IR E AR A 0.33
Net adjustments arising from change in MEBETBUREEEHNFAE
accounting policy in relation to:
— Amendments to HKAS 16 — 5B G 2R FH165% (B5TA) 0.11
Reported basic earnings per share ERERELRET 0.44
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The effects of the changes in accounting policy as a result of application
of amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use on the consolidated statement of financial position
as at the end of the immediately preceding financial year, i.e. 31

BEEw R

HEREBEHERFE 165 (B5T4) (%~
BB R s s — IR ABEE AR Al B Uz ) B BY
SEBREEYH F—EMBEFER (B12021
F128318) NEHMBRRRZFZEWT !

December 2021, are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets
Trade receivables, other receivables and

ME-BERRE

EEFTSMEE

FEUMERR ~ E At EGRRIE

prepayments TBRIE
Total effects on assets HESENZE

Other reserves H# A
Retained earnings REBF)H

Other non-controlling interests

Total effects on equity

H IRt

HERENRE

69

31 December

2021 31 December
(Originally 2021
stated)  Adjustments (Restated)
20215 20215
12A31H 12A31H
(E5A0) RE (GE)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHBTT FHTT THET
192,953,359 592,667 193,546,026
1,040,784 2,573 1,043,357
37,768,557 17,035 37,785,592
231,762,700 612,275 232,374,975

31 December

2021 31 December
(Originally 2021
stated) Adjustments (GESEIE)]
20215 20214
12A31H 12A31H
(E5170) RE (BE7F)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FHET FHET
21,680,974 69,490 21,750,464
44,389,984 534,611 44,924,595
7,835,877 8,174 7,844,051
73,906,835 612,275 74,519,110
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEw R

Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows

The effects of the changes in accounting policy as a result of application
of amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use on the consolidated statement of cash flows are as
follows:

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net increase in cash from operating activities

RS

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash used in payments for purchase of
property, plant and equipment

REEH

R

Net decrease in cash used in investing activities & & EENIR SR B R/ 28

The Group has not early adopted new and amended
standards that have been issued but are not effective for
the financial year beginning after 1 January 2022

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been
published during the year that are not mandatory for the reporting period
ended 31 December 2022 and have not been early adopted by the
Group. These standards are not expected to have a material impact on
the Group in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable
future transactions.

CHANGES OF ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Upon recent assessment carried out by the management taking into
account past operating experience with the combination of actual usage
of relevant assets and considering market practice by taking reference
from major operators in China’s power industry, the Board approved
the resolution that the estimated useful lives of the wind power and
photovoltaic power generation equipment should be adjusted from 18
years to 20 years without residual value with effect from 1 January 2022.

In the current year, this change in estimated useful lives has resulted in a
decrease in the depreciation charge for the year by HK$674 million, and
an increase in profit for the year by HK$582 million.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Turnover represents revenue received and receivable arising from sales of
electricity and heat, net of value-added tax, during the year.

—F——

— ==

BEREFmROH

EXRERSBER

ERBEIEFAMBES I REAEME WA E
WY EE (N FRIGETRIE) o

HK$'000
TAR
2022

RMB'000
ARBTR
2022
N

e

2021
—EC—fF
(RESEIEG))

(BE5)

(RESEIEE))
(BE5)

Sales of electricity BENHE 95,287,340 83,463,835 81,708,937 69,226,301
Including: Sales of power generated from BiE  NEREEHE
thermal power plants 73,953,560 62,591,759 62,766,313 51,813,068
Sales of power generated IBEEREEHE
from renewable energy 21,333,780 20,872,076 18,942,624 17,413,233
Heat supply HAEMIE 8,017,757 6,950,331 6,842,884 5,759,962
90,414,166 74,986,263

103,305,097

The Group’s turnover for 2022 was HK$103,305 million, representing
an increase of HK$12,891 million or 14.3% from HK$90,414 million
in 2021. In RMB terms, the turnover for 2022 was RMB88,552
million, representing an increase of RMB13,566 million or 18.1% from
RMB74,986 million in 2021. The increase is mainly attributable to (1)
a year-on-year increase of 20.2% in the average on-grid tariff (tax
exclusive) of consolidated coal-fired power plants; (2) a year-on- year
increase of 4.1% in net generation volume of consolidated power plants;
(3) a year-on-year increase of 13.8% in the average price (tax exclusive)
of the sales of heat supply of consolidated power plants; (4) a year-on-
year increase of 6.4% in the sales of heat supply of consolidated power
plants; however, the increase was partially offset by a year-on-year
decrease in the amount presented in Hong Kong dollars arising from the
depreciation of RMB against Hong Kong dollar.

At present, the Group is engaged in two business segments — thermal

power (inclusive of coal-fired power plants and gas-fired power plants)
and renewable energy (inclusive of wind, photovoltaic and hydro power).

71
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEw R

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by MU TFAREFROITE DN EREBR NS REE

business segments: SaX;ign
For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE2022F12831A L EE
Thermal Renewable
power energy Total
NE ABERER it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHT THET THET
Segment revenue DEUA
External sales ShERSH & 81,971,317 21,333,780 108,305,097
Segment (loss) profit o (B8) FE (2,540,676) 10,008,388 7,467,712
Exchange gains bE 2 1,993,762
Profit before income tax FREFZFE A1 9,461,474

(Loss) profit attributable to owners of the RRE R NEL (8518) 71

Company (before non-cash exchange (GEE£EREBEAD)
gains and losses) (3,430,412) 8,479,128 5,048,716
Asset impairment losses BEREBEEXL 848,464 165,834 1,014,298
Core business (loss) profit attributable to RABEB NEIEIZOER
owners of the Company (§548) 778 (2,581,948) 8,644,962 6,063,014
China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. 72
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEw R

HE2021F12A31HLEEE

Thermal Renewable
power energy Total
KE ABERR st
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TET FET
(RENEIED)) (Restated)
(BEF) (B&8%)

HK$'000
TET

(RESEIED))
(BEF)

Segment revenue DEUA

External sales ShEREH & 69,542,090 20,872,076 90,414,166
Segment (loss) profit AEB (B538) FIE (7,159,624) 9,982,257 2,822,633
Exchange losses fERIBA (431,217)
Profit before income tax PRSI BUA) 2,391,416
(Loss) profit attributable to owners of the RAEHER AL (B18)

Company (before non-cash exchange (GEREERBEAD)

gains and losses) (6,348,865) 8,917,931 2,569,066
Asset impairment losses BERERK 406,372 8,421 414,793
Core business (loss) profit attributable to RAB)EB NEIEZOER

owners of the Company (§518) A8 (5,942,493) 8,926,352 2,983,859

Geographical information iz &

Substantially all of the Group’s non-current assets are located in the

PRC, and operations are also substantially carried out in the PRC.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses mainly comprise fuel costs, depreciation and

FEBBABHERDEECRPE &8
T EBRAEET
SRS

SE AT B OEME A TR (R
SRR A T M RME IR S

amortisation, employee benefit expenses, repairs and maintenance,
consumables, impairment losses, tax and surcharges and other
operating expenses. Other operating expenses include office rent,
water charges, utility expenses and other management expenses.
Total operating expenses for 2022 amounted to HK$93,920 million,
representing an increase of HK$6,815 million or 7.8% from HK$87,105
million for 2021.

R R MIIN > LUK B A AR A o ELth 4% % pY
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEw R

Fuel costs increased by HK$5,839 milion or 10.0% from HK$58,444
million for 2021 to HK$64,283 million for 2022, mainly due to (1) an
increase in the unit price of standard coal by 10.6% year-on-year; (2)
an increase in the net generation volume of consolidated coal-fired
power plants by 2.4% year-on-year; and (3) an increase in the heat sales
volume of consolidated power plants by 6.4% year-on-year; however,
the increase was partially offset by a year-on-year decrease in the figures
presented in Hong Kong dollars arising from the depreciation of RMB
against Hong Kong dollar.

Depreciation and amortisation decreased by HK$189 million or 1.3%
from HK$14,619 million for 2021 to HK$14,430 million for 2022, mainly
due to (1) the extension of estimated useful lives of wind power and
photovoltaic power generation equipment resulting in a decrease in
depreciation costs; (2) the depreciation of RMB against Hong Kong
dollar resulting in a year-on-year decrease of the figures presented in
Hong Kong dollar; however, the decrease was partially offset by the
commissioning of a large number of renewable energy projects.

Employee benefit expenses increased by HK$277 million or 4.4% from
HK$6,355 million for 2021 to HK$6,632 million for 2022, mainly due
to the commissioning of a large number of renewable energy projects;
however the increase was partially offset by a year-on-year decrease in
the figures presented in Hong Kong dollar arising from the depreciation of
RMB against Hong Kong dollar.

Repairs and maintenance expenses decreased by HK$48 million or 1.9%
from HK$2,519 million for 2021 to HK$2,471 million for 2022, mainly
due to a year-on-year decrease in the figures presented in Hong Kong
dollar arising from the depreciation of RMB against Hong Kong dollar,
however the decrease was partially offset by the increase in repairs and
maintenance workload brought by the growth of generation capacity.

Consumables decreased by HK$56 million or 4.2% from HK$1,357
million for 2021 to HK$1,301 million for 2022, mainly due to a year-
on-year decrease in the figures presented in Hong Kong dollar arising
from the depreciation of RMB against Hong Kong dollar, however the
decrease was partially offset by the increase in the cost of consumables
due to the rising price of consumables.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Impairment charges increased by HK$612 million or 141.6% from
HK$433 million for 2021 to HK$1,045 million in 2022, mainly due to
(1) an impairment provision of HK$476 million was made for Guizhou
Tianrun Coal Mine; and (2) an impairment provision of HK$189 million
was made for the time value of receivables of Wujianfang Xiyi Coal Mine.

Tax and surcharges increased by HK$90 million or 13.3% from HK$671
million for 2021 to HK$761 million for 2022, mainly due to the increase
in environment tax paid, however the increase was partially offset by a
reduction in value-added tax and a reduction in the amount of urban
maintenance and construction tax and education surcharge payables.

Other operating expenses amounted to HK$2,998 million, representing
an increase of HK$291 million or 10.7% from HK$2,707 million for 2021.
Other operating expenses mainly included other production costs of the
power business such as water charges, utility expenses and electricity
transaction fees amounting to a total of HK$2,497 million, and office
rents, building management fees, professional fees, administrative
charges and other administrative costs amounting to a total of HK$501
million.

Other income

Other income amounted to HK$1,982 million, representing a decrease
of HK$830 million or 29.5% from HK$2,812 million for 2021, which was
mainly attributable to the decreases in the income from by-products,
income from service fees and interest income. Other income for 2022
mainly included, among others, government grant of HK$717 million,
sales of by-products of HK$664 million, income from service fees of
HK$250 million and interest income of HK$192 million.

Other gains and losses

Other gains amounted to HK$2,184 million, comprising exchange
gains of HK$1,994 million and gains on disposal of right-of-use assets
and property, plant and equipment of HK$124 million. Exchange gains
mainly arise from RMB loans obtained by the Company in the Hong
Kong market. Although cash flows are in line with the income from the
business of the Group, however the depreciation of the exchange rate of
RMB against HKD has resulted in book gains in the financial statements
denominated in Hong Kong dollar.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEw R

Operating profit

Operating profit represents profit from subsidiaries before deduction
of finance costs, income tax expenses and non-controlling interests.
Operating profit for 2022 amounted to HK$13,551 million, representing
an increase of HK$7,522 million or 124.8% from HK$6,029 million for
2021. The increase in operating profit was mainly due to (1) a year-
on-year increase in the average on-grid tariff (exclusive of tax) of
consolidated coal-fired power plants; (2) profit contribution from newly
commissioned renewable energy projects; (3) book exchange gains
arisen from the depreciation of the exchange rate of RMB against HKD;
which have offset the effects of (1) an increase in unit fuel cost of the
consolidated coal-fired power plants; and (2) a year-on-year decrease
in the figures presented in HKD arising from the depreciation of RMB
against HKD.

Finance costs

Finance costs for 2022 amounted to HK$3,890 million, representing
an increase of HK$130 million or 3.5% from HK$3,760 million in 2021,
mainly due to (1) an increase in line of credit; (2) commissioning of
power generation units, resulting in an increase in finance costs; which
have offset the effects of (1) the decline in the average interest rate on
borrowings; and (2) a year-on-year decrease in the figures presented in
Hong Kong dollar arising from the depreciation of RMB against Hong
Kong dollar.

Interest on borrowings BEF S

Interest on corporate bonds and notes NEVMEFREEF S
Interest on loans from related parties Ealiiysp=E N
Interest on lease liabilities GiEN=S=R LIS
Others Hiih

Less: Interests capitalised in construction in
progress
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Share of results of associates

Share of results of associates for 2022 was a loss of HK$113 million,
representing a decrease of HK$354 million or 146.7% from a profit of
HK$241 million for 2021, mainly due to (1) a decrease in the profits from
our associates Shanxi Zhonglv and Guangdong Run Innovation Energy
Equity Investment Fund Partnership; and (2) a decrease in share of profits
resulting from the impairment provision of Taohuajiang Nuclear Power
Plant, an associate.

Share of results of joint ventures

Share of results of joint ventures for 2022 was a loss of HK$87 million,
representing a loss reduction of HK$32 million or 27.3% from the loss
of HK$119 million incurred in 2021, as the rise in electricity tariffs of
our joint venture power enterprises has offset the adverse effects of the
increase in fuel costs.

Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses for 2022 amounted to HK$1,906 million,
representing an increase of HK$951 million or 99.5% from HK$955
million for 2021, mainly due to (1) an increase in the profit from
consolidated coal-fired power plants resulting in an increase in income
tax expenses; and (2) the preferential tax benefit period for renewable
energy projects has expired resulting in an increase in income tax
expenses.

Details of the income tax expenses for the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021 are set out below:

Current income tax — PRC Enterprise
Income Tax

Deferred income tax IRILFTSIRIE

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group had
no taxable profit or incurred tax losses in Hong Kong for both years.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been calculated based on the estimated
assessable profits in accordance with the relevant tax rates applicable to
the subsidiaries in the PRC.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Operating profit for the year FRLETHE

after deducting the following items:
Directors’ remuneration

—Fees

—Salaries and bonus

—Pension costs

Wages, salaries and bonus
Pension costs — retirement benefit schemes
Termination benefit costs

Total staff costs

Auditor’s remuneration

Cost of inventories recognised as expenses
Depreciation and amortisation

Impairment charges

And after adding the following items:
Dividend income from FVOCI investee
companies

Government grants

Interest income

Sales of by-products

Exchange gains (losses), net

Gains (losses) on disposal of subsidiaries

Gains on disposal of a joint venture

Gains on disposal of property, plant and
equipment (included in other gains and
losses)

Gains on disposal of right-of-use assets
(included in other gains and losses)

Expenses capitalised in construction in
progress:

Other staff costs

Pension costs

Depreciation and amortisation

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.
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2022
o

—_—<—

HK$’000

FET

2,038
10,168
454

12,660

5,586,739
1,031,001
1,193

6,631,593

13,875
65,583,675
14,429,592

1,045,216

57,727
716,602
192,451
663,687

1,993,762

32,137

282,829
43,630
122,596

2021
—ET—4F
HK$’000
THE7T
(RESEIC))
(BE5)

1,880
18,504
484

20,868

5,307,167
1,015,849
10,658

6,354,542

12,447
59,801,276
14,619,078

432,674

106,600
704,137
300,601
1,198,457
(431,217)
(761)
61,161

70,697

131,247

327,771
51,133
48,574



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Profit attributable to owners of the Company EREHEE AELFIE

As a result of the above, profit attributable to owners of the Company MR EMZE > X AT EE AEEFEH
increased from approximately HK$2,138 million in 2021 to approximately — 2021E#921.38{Z H 018 E=2022F 4970.4218
HK$7,042 million in 2022, representing a year-on-year increase of &7t [BEEIENN229.4% ©

229.4%.

Earnings per share SkET
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the owners AT B AEENERERBFIRELLT
of the Company is based on the following data: BRlEE

2022 2021
—E=—— —=— &

—_<—— —_—

HK$’000 HK$'000
FTART TAET

(RESEIED))
(BE5)

Profit attributable to owners of the Company. AT HEA AEMER]E 7,042,478 2,137,849

Weighted average number of ordinary BT ERNMmEFEE
shares in issue ARV 4, 810,443,740

(RESEIED))
(BE5)

Basic earnings per share
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Final dividend and closure of register of members

The Board has resolved to recommend a final dividend of HK$0.376 per
share for 2022 (2021: HK$0.045 per share).

Dividends distributed during the year: FREDIKNEE !

2022 Interim, paid — HK$0.21 per share
(2021: HK$0.25 per share) 0.2178 7T (20214 :

Fh%0.257% 7T)

2021 Final, paid — HK$0.045 per share
(2020: HK$0.406 per share)

S R30.40678 7T)

Dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting year:
Proposed final dividend for 2022 of
HK$0.376 per share (2021: HK$0.045)
0.045%7T)

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, 8 June 2023
(2023 AGM”), the proposed final dividend will be distributed on Friday,
21 July 2023 to shareholders of the Company whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company at the close of business on
Thursday, 15 June 2023.

The 2022 final dividend will be paid in Hong Kong dollars to each
shareholder. However, shareholders may elect to receive the 2022 final
dividend in Renminbi in cash.

Shareholders may elect to receive the entire 2022 final dividend at the
average benchmark rate of Hong Kong dollars against Renminbi as
published by the People’s Bank of China for the five business days
preceding the date of the 2023 AGM (i.e. 8 June 2023) (including the
date of the 2023 AGM), but not a part thereof, except that HKSCC
Nominees Limited may elect to receive part of its final dividend in
Renminbi. Details of the dividend currency election will be set out in a
circular to be sent to shareholders by the Company in late April 2023 and
the dividend currency election form will be sent to shareholders as soon
as possible after the 2023 AGM.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For determining the entitlement to attend, speak and vote at the 2023
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 5 June 2023 to Thursday, 8 June 2023 (both days inclusive),
during which no share transfer will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend, speak and vote at the 2023 AGM, all share transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 2
June 2023.

For determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2022, the register of members of the Company
will be closed on Thursday, 15 June 2023 and no share transfer will
be registered on that day. To qualify for the proposed final dividend, all
share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later
than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 14 June 2023.

Capital structure management

The Group and the Company manage capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising
the return to shareholders through the optimization of the debt and
equity structures. The Group’s and the Company’s overall strategy remain
consistent as in prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts (including long-
term and short-term bank borrowings, corporate bonds and loans from
related parties), cash and cash equivalents, pledged and restricted bank
deposits and equity attributable to owners of the Company (comprising
issued share capital, reserves and retained earnings).

The Board reviews the capital structure on a periodic basis. As part
of the review, the Board considers the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on the resolution of the
Board, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as
by issuance of new debts or repayment of existing debts.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Liquidity and financial resources, borrowings and charge
of assets

At 31 December 2022, the Group had net current liabilities of HK$34,040
million. The Directors are of the opinion that, taking into account the
current operating and business plan of the Group as well as the banking
facilities available to the Group, the Group has sufficient working capital
to enable it to meet in full its financial obligations as and when they fall
due at least for the coming twelve months from the balance sheet date.
Therefore, the consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis.

The cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2022 denominated
in local currency and foreign currencies amounted to HK$109 million,
RMB6,796 million and US$0.47 million and a small amount of Great
Britain Pounds (“GBP”).

Bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2022 and
2021 are as follows:

e

Secured bank loans BIRRBITEMR
Unsecured bank loans MIRIRIRITERN
Corporate bonds NEIES

Loans from related parties A EG 75 (&R

The bank borrowings were repayable as follows:

Within 1 year —FR

More than 1 year and within 2 years BB — B BiE M &
More than 2 years and within 5 years BB M (BT 8E R F
Over 5 years BidH &

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.
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2022
e

2021

B —F
HK$’000
FET

— T —— —

HK$’000
FTRT

2,150,977 2,936,822
126,196,157 116,019,015
3,358,440 9,640,102
6,613,825 6,251,763
134,747,702

138,319,399
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2022
===

HK$’000
FET

2021
T
HK$'000
TET

36,144,481 17,314,928
18,570,717 31,608,528
26,531,050 20,903,130
47,100,886 49,129,251

118,955,837

128,347,134



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The corporate bonds and notes were repayable as follows:

Within 1 year —F R
More than 1 year and within 2 years

More than 2 years and within 5 years

The above bank and other borrowings are
secured by:
Pledge of assets

TEIRHR
EERR

Note: Certain bank loans were secured by the Group’s buildings, power generating
plants and equipment with carrying value of HK$2,155,051,000 (2021:
HK$2,437,553,000) and HK$419,874,000 (2021: HK$763,302,000) respectively.

Bank and other borrowings as at 31 December 2022 denominated in
local currency and foreign currencies amounted to HK$24,471 million,
RMB100,609 million, GBP129 million and EUR 1.26 million respectively.

As at 31 December 2022, bank and other borrowings amounted to
HK$24,471 million and GBP129 million (2021: HK$26,122 million,
GBP129 million and USD10.3538 million) bore interest at a range from
HIBOR plus 0.55% to HIBOR plus 1.03% per annum, and compound
interest at Sterling Overnight Index Average (SONIA) plus credit-adjusted
spread for the applicable interest period plus 0.89% to 0.98% per
annum. The remaining bank and other borrowings carried interest rates
at a range from 0.1% to 4.55% (2021: 2.35% to 4.90%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2022, the ratio of the Group’s net debt to
shareholders’ equity was 158.7%, and the ratio of total debt to total
capitalisation was 57.9%. In the opinion of the Directors, the Group has
a stable capital structure, which can support its future development plans
and operations.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEw R

In 2022, the Group’s primary sources of funding included proceeds
from borrowings, proceeds from issuance of perpetual capital securities,
advances from an intermediate holding company, dividend income and
net cash flows from operating activities, which amounted to HK$62,229
million, HK$10,665 million, HK$3,572 million, HK$754 million and
HK$24,167 million, respectively. The Group’s funds were primarily used
for the amounts paid for the repayment of bank borrowings, payments
for purchase of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets,
as well as redemption of perpetual capital securities, redemption of
corporate bonds, interest and dividend payments, which amounted to
HK$43,383 million, HK$32,580 million, HK$10,559 million, HK$5,777
million, HK$4,808 million and HK$1,462 million, respectively.

Trade receivables

HER S EWERR

Trade receivables from contracts with
customers

Accounts receivable [E WL BR =R
Notes receivable B E

Less: loss allowance of trade receivables

Trade receivables are generally due within 60 days from the date of
billing.

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables by invoice date
included in trade and other receivables at the end of the reporting period:

0-30 days 0ZE30H
31-60 days 31ZE60H
. Over 60 days 60H L £
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HK$’000

FET

27,908,433 29,414,940
443,265 438,236
28,351,698 29,853,176
(140,399) (45,068)
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=2

HK$’000
TR

2021
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13,396,411
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1,009,613 1,020,802
13,416,958 15,435,963
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Trade payables

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables by invoice date
included in trade and other payables at the end of the reporting period:

0-30days 0ZE30H
31-90 days 31E90H
Over 90 days 90H U E

Average credit term for purchase of goods is 90 days.

Key financial ratios of the Group

MENEEE (%)
ERENLE (f2)
FEENRRED(%)

Current ratio(times)
Quick ratio(times)
Net debt to shareholders’ equity ratio (%)
EBITDA interest coverage (times) ")

balance of current assets at the end of the
year/balance of current liabilities at the end of

Current ratio =

the year
Quick ratio = (balance of current assets at the end of the
year — balance of inventories at the end of the
year)/balance of current liabilities at the end of

the year
Net debt to = (balance of borrowings at the end of the year
shareholders’ — balance of cash and cash equivalents at
equity ratio the end of the year — balance of pledged

cash at the end of the year)/balance of equity
attributable to owners of the Company at the
end of the year

EBITDA interest = (profit before taxation + interest expenses

coverage + depreciation and amortisation)/interest
expenses (including capitalized interest)
Note:
1) Excluding non-cash income and expenses, being loss on disposal of assets,

impairment losses and exchange gains and losses.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Foreign exchange risk

The Group collects substantially all of its revenue in RMB and most of
the Group’s expenses, including expenses incurred in its operations and
capital expenditure, are also denominated in RMB. Dividends receivable
from subsidiaries and associates are collected in RMB, HKD and GBP.

RMB is not a freely convertible currency. Future exchange rates of RMB
could vary significantly from the current or historical exchange rates as
a result of controls that could be imposed by the Chinese government.
The exchange rates may also be affected by economic developments,
political changes and supply and demand. The appreciation or
devaluation of RMB against HKD and United States Dollar (‘USD”) may
have positive or negative impact on the results of operations of the
Group.

The functional currency of major project companies of the Group is RMB,
the revenue and expenses are mainly denominated in RMB, foreign
exchange risk mainly arises from borrowings denominated in HKD.
However, certain entities are located in Hong Kong and their functional
currencies are HKD, their foreign exchange risk mainly arises from
balances denominated in RMB and borrowings denominated in RMB and
GBP.

In addition, given there are different functional currencies within
the Group, there is still foreign exchange risk which arises from the
transactions and balances within the Group even after intragroup
eliminations. The carrying amounts of monetary assets and monetary
liabilities denominated in foreign currency before elimination as at 31
December 2022 are as follows:

Assets BE
UsD x5
RMB AR
HKD BT
GBP %
Liabilities =L
RMB AR
GBP T
UsD X7
EUR BRIT

' The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge its
exposure against changes in exchange rates of the RMB against HKD
* and USD.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Events after the balance sheet date

The Group signed an agreement in December 2022 with Guangdong
Run Innovation Energy Equity Investment Fund Partnership (Limited
Partnership) and Shanghai Orange Xu Enterprise Management
Partnership (L.P.) for the acquisition of 100% of Guangdong Runneng
New Energy Co., Ltd. (“Runneng”) for a cash consideration of
approximately RMB1,440 million. The acquisition was completed in
March and has been accounted for as acquisition of business using the
acquisition method. At the time of the financial statements are authorised
for issue, the Group is undergoing purchase price allocation for the
acquisition of business. Accordingly information about the allocation of
the purchase price to major classes of assets and liabilities, pro forma
information etc., as required by HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” are
not represented.

Details of the acquisition are set out in the Group’s circular dated 29
December 2022. Runneng has the capacity of 440.3 MW of wind energy
and the projects mostly located in central and eastern China which are
rich in wind energy resources. The business combination will improve the
renewable energy capacity of Group.

Subsequent to 31 December 2022, the Group entered a disposal
agreement in respect of dispose of two mining companies to a third
party at the consideration amounting to RMB383 million Out of total
consideration, RMB115 million (equivalent to HK$132 million has been
received as of the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements and the remaining balance will be satisfied in cash when the
disposal is completed.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, no external guarantee was provided by the
Group (31 December 2021: HK$389,491,000).

In addition, there were certain pending litigations and claims against the
Group. After consulting our legal counsels, the Directors are of the view
that the likelihood of any material adverse financial impact on the Group
is remote, and it is not necessary to make further provisions for such
litigations and claims.

Employees
The Group had 22,340 employees as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
21,252 employees).

The Company and its subsidiaries have concluded employment contracts
with all of their employees. The compensation of employees mainly
includes salaries and performance-based bonuses.
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A. CORPORATE PURPOSE, STRATEGY
AND GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) strives to ensure
that the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) meet high standards
of safety, performance and corporate governance.

The Board has ultimate authority over, and oversight of, the Group’s
operations and regards good corporate governance as a critical element
in the drive to improve the Group’s performance and achieve the Group’s
vision of being a world class energy provider and one of the most
admired employers in China.

In 2022, CR Power has adopted all of the principles and complied with
the code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to The Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”).

The following summarizes the Company’s corporate governance
practices and explains the implementation of recommended best
practices.

A.1 Corporate Strategy, Business Model and Culture

The Board is responsible for the optimization of the Company’s
corporate governance, and is ultimately accountable for the
Company’s strategic planning, operating activities and operating
results.

The Board is ultimately responsible for the oversight and review
of management, administration and the overall governance
of CR Power and its strategic direction. The Board plays a
central supporting and supervisory role in CR Power’s corporate
governance structure, provides leadership and guidance to the
Group’s activities, and oversees the execution of the Group’s
business strategies.
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This includes:

>  the protection of shareholders’ interests by seeking to ensure
that CR Power’s strategic direction provides and creates value
for its shareholders;

> establishing goals for management and monitoring the
achievement of those goals;

> authorising policies and overseeing the implementation of
these policies; and

> seeking to ensure that CR Power’s internal control and
reporting procedures are complete, effective and abide by
laws and regulations as well as business ethics.

The Board should ensure that management can effectively
perform its duties. The Board’s policy is to regularly monitor the
effectiveness of management policies and decisions, including the
implementation of strategies.

The Board oversees the implementation and operation of a risk
management system. In addition to fulfilling its obligations to
generate rewards for shareholders who invest their capital in CR
Power, the Board recognises that CR Power has responsibilities to
its customers, employees and suppliers and to the communities in
which CR Power operates.

In carrying out its responsibilities and powers as set out in the
Board Charter, the Board will at all times recognise its ultimate
responsibility to:

»  maintain good corporate governance standards;

> perform duties honestly, fairly and diligently;

> supervise safety, health and environmental issues associated
with the Company’s operations;

»  establish and reinforce a “zero-tolerance” culture against
corruption;

> comply with laws and regulations;
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> avoid conflicts of interest;

> enable the Company to become an excellent corporate
citizen; and

> gain and maintain the social community’s respect for the
Company.

Non-executive Directors should use all reasonable endeavours to
ensure that CR Power’s operations, business and transactions are
conducted in accordance with the law and the highest standards of
propriety.

The Company has set forth matters that require the Board’s
approval in its Board Charter.

During the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the above principles and the Code provisions A.1.1 and A.1.2 as
described below.

A1.1 The board has established the Company’s purpose, values
and strategy, and satisfy itself that these and the the
Company’s culture are aligned. All directors act with integrity,
lead by example, and promote the desired culture. Such
culture instil and continually reinforce across the organization
values of acting lawfully, ethically and responsibly.

A1.2 The “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 10 to 15 of the Annual

Report provides a summary of the Group’s performance and

future prospects on how the Group will preserve value over

the longer term and our strategies for delivering the Group’s
objectives.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties as set out in the Board Charter including determining the
policy for the corporate governance of the Company, and duties
performed by the Board under Code provision A.2.1.

During the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the Code provisions A.2.1 as described below:

A.2.1The Board Charter includes the duties specified in the code
provision. The Board performed the corporate governance
duties set out in the Board Charter including determining
corporate governance policy (if any), etc.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMPOSITION AND
NOMINATION

Board Composition, Succession and Evaluation

The Board’s composition is determined in accordance with the
following principles, the Company’s Articles of Association (the
“Articles”) and relevant governance requirements:

»  the Company should appoint at least three Independent Non-
executive Directors and maintain Independent Non-executive
Directors representing at least one-third of the Board;

»  the role of Chairman and President should be held by
separate persons;

»  the Board should comprise of Directors with an appropriate
range and mix of skills, experience, expertise and diversity;

»  the performance of the Board and its members should be
reviewed regularly and objectively; and

»  all Directors must submit themselves for re-election at regular
intervals and at least every three years.

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of 9 Directors, 3
of whom are Non-executive Directors, 2 are Executive Directors
and 4 are Independent Non-executive Directors. The number
of Independent Non-executive Directors complied with the
requirements of Rule 3.10 and Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The
list of Directors as at the date of this report and their biographies
are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management” Section on
page 16 to page 34 of this Annual Report, and are available on the
Company’s website (www.cr-power.com).
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TEESHRS
Set out below are details of the composition of the Board and its RABREHP - EEZFRETEZEEN
committees as at the date of this report: REFBEUNT !

Committee Membership

ZEEWE
Board Audit and

Designation  Sustainability Risk  Remuneration Nomination
Director EEERA FERE BIZERR i ’%
Wang Chuandong IER NE, C Vv ®
Shi Baofeng Bl E.P
Zhang Junzheng REE E,VC
Liu Guixin =i NE v
Chen Guoyong BES NE v
Elsie Leung Oi-sie RAEH INED v € v
Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung ~ #RE INED v v v v
Jack So Chak Kwong BEN INED © v v
Yang Yuchuan BE INED ®

Note: MI5E -

C:  Chairman C: FE

E: Executive Director E: HiITES

NE:  Non-executive Director NE: JEFITEE

INED: Independent Non-executive Director INED: B IERITES

P: President P: B

VC:  Vice Chairman VC: BIFEE

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with the REBEEE > XAB BISEST L/RE]

above principles and Code provisions B.1.1 and B.1.4 and the HEFAMEXYB.A1&B1.4 UKRBRESR

recommended best practice B.1.5 and B.1.6 as described as 38B.1.5%B.1.6 > #E#LUI T -

follows:

B.1.1 The Independent Non-executive Directors accounted for Bll BIUHITEZSTAMGESTEN
more than one-third of the members of the Board and were EANBBE=2Z2—BAXRABF
expressly identified in all corporate communications that BHEEEHLNARBEMEIIE
disclosed the names of the Directors. BB IFNITEERSH -

B.1.2 The Company posts the names and biographical details of B.1.2 A2 B HR A ik (www.cr-power.com)
the Board members on its website (www.cr-power.com), with HINEFEMENULNERE I
their designations in the Board clearly stated. The Company HHEESM ARBINRB T
also posts on the website of the HKEx an updated list of its EETIEEHRMESELE 15
Directors identifying their roles and functions and whether MHNBERESRBEIIENTE
they are Independent Non-executive Directors. Fo
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During the year, the Board reviewed the implementation
and effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy and took
into account the objectives set out in the policy in reviewing
its Board composition to ensure that it has a balanced
composition of skills and experience in line with the
requirements of the Company’s businesses.

The Board has established mechanisms to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board
and reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of such
mechanism. Taking into account the following channels,
the Board considered that the Company had in place
mechanisms which remain effective to ensure a strong
independent element on the Board:

> A sufficient number of four Independent Non-executive
Directors representing more than one-third of the Board
and all of them continue to devote adequate time
contribution to the Company;

> All Independent Non-executive Directors share their
views and opinions through Board meetings and Board
Committee meetings with heads of core departments
and particular business units would be invited to join
such meetings on Independent Non-executive Directors’
requests;

»  Site visits are arranged for Independent Non-
executive Directors from time to time to enhance
their understanding of the Company’s operations and
development;

» Annual meeting between the Chairman and all
Independent Non-executive Directors without presence
of other Directors providing effective platform for the
Chairman to listen independent views on various issues
concerning the Group; and

> Independent professional advice would be provided to
Directors upon reasonable request to assist them to
perform their duties to the Company.
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China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

B.1.5

B.1.6

Board evaluation is conducted on a regular basis. This
evaluation could be conducted by consulting each Director
regarding the attendance of the Board and Committee
meetings, the director training, Board diversity and
improvements.

In the year under review, none of the Independent Non-
executive Directors held cross-directorships or had significant
links with other Directors through involvements in other
companies. Please refer to page 21 to page 24 of this Annual
Report for each of the Independent Non-executive Directors’
biographies.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Board’s Nomination Committee sets and reviews the criteria for
new Director appointments having regard to the overall composition
of the Board.

The Board seeks to ensure that its membership is such that each
Director:

>

>

is a person of integrity;

has sufficient time available and abilities to perform his or her
role effectively;

brings an independent and questioning mind to his or her role
which enables him or her to exercise sound judgment;

enhances the breadth and depth of skills and knowledge of
the Board as a whole; and

enhances the experience and diversity of the Board as a
whole.
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During the year under review, the Company strictly complied
with the above principles and Code provisions B.2.1 to B.2.4 as
described as follows:

B.2.1

B.2.2

B.2.3

B.2.4

Directors’ attendance of Board meetings and Committee
meetings is set out on pages 107, 106, 118 and 120 of this
Annual Report. Each of the Executive Directors and Non-
executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) ensured that he/she gave sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Company.

The service term of every Director is 3 years. All Directors are
subject to regular retirement and retiring Directors are eligible
for re-election. The staggered structure enables the Board to
change its composition in an orderly manner over time while
maintaining leadership, stability and continuity, and allows
for regular evaluation of the mix of skills and experience, as
required.

As at the date of this report, among the Independent Non-
executive Directors, Dr. Ch’ien Kuo Fung, Raymond and Ms.
Leung Qi-sie, Elsie, have served more than 9 years. Dr. Ch’ien
was re-elected at the 2022 AGM by separate resolution. The
papers to shareholders accompanying the resolution included
the reasons why the Board believes he is still independent
and should be re-elected: This is because as Independent
Non-executive Director with in-depth understanding of
the Company’s operations and business, Dr. Ch’ien has
expressed objective views and given independent guidance to
the Company over the years, and he continues demonstrating
firm commitment to his role. The Board considers that the
long services of Dr. Ch’ien would not affect his exercise of
independent judgment and is satisfied that Dr. Ch’ien has
the required character, integrity and experience to continue
fulfilling the role of an Independent Non-executive Director.

As at the date of this report, two out of the four Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Ch’ien Kuo Fung,
Raymond and Ms. Leung Oi-sie, Elsie, have served more than
9 years.
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B.3 Nomination Committee

B3 RLZEE

The Company has established a Nomination Committee which is
comprised of 4 members, including 3 Independent Non-executive
Directors and Chairman of the Board. In 2022, the Nomination
Committee did not hold any meetings but performed its duties and
responsibilities by passing a written resolution, including inter alia,
review of composition and performance of the Board and the policy
for nomination of Directors and assessment of independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors.

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with the
principles and Code provisions B.3.1 to B.3.4 as described as
follows:

B.3.1 The major responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are to formulate and implement the policy for nominating
candidates for appointment of new directors or for re-election
by shareholders of the Company based on criteria such as
reputation for integrity, accomplishment and experience,
professional and educational background, and potential
time commitments, and to assess the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors. The terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee (which is reviewed regularly
and updated where necessary) have incorporated the specific
duties set out in the Code provision.

In considering the new appointment of Directors, the
Nomination Committee follows the nomination procedures
and the process for nomination of directorship under the
nomination policy and assesses candidates on criteria
such as perspective, integrity, independent mindedness,
experience, skill and ability to commit time and effort to
carry out duties and responsibilities effectively and makes
recommendations to the Board for approval.

B.3.2 The Nomination Committee’s terms of reference are available
on the Company’s website (www.cr-power.com) and the
HKEx website (www.hkexnews.hk).

B.3.3 The Company ensures that the Nomination Committee is
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties.

Where necessary, the Nomination Committee may seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense,
to perform its responsibilities.
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B.3.4 If the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as an

Independent Non-executive Director at the general meeting, it
will set out in the circular to shareholders and/or explanatory
statement accompanying the notice of the relevant general
meeting:

> the process used for identifying the individual and why
the Board believes the individual should be elected
and the reasons why it considers the individual to be
independent;

» if the proposed Independent Non-executive Director
will be holding their seventh (or more) listed company
directorship, why the Board believes the individual
would still be able to devote sufficient time to the board;

»  the perspectives, skills and experience that the
individual can bring to the Board; and

> how the individual contributes to diversity of the Board.

The Company has included the above required information
in a circular dated 12 May 2022 for re-election of Dr. Ch’ien
Kuo Fung, Raymond, Mr. So Chak Kwong, Jack and Mr. Yang
Yuchuan as Independent Non-executive Directors at the 2022
AGM.

The Company has established a nomination policy of Board
members in the Board Charter. Pursuant to the nomination
policy, the Company strives to assure that nomination of
candidates to stand for election as Board members must go
through formal, prudent and transparent procedures. The
Board is required to evaluate the overall composition of the
Board and the skills of members on a regular basis, in order
to prepare succession plans, facilitate smooth handover
and to maintain efficiency at all times. Further details of the
nomination policy are available on the Company’'s website
(www.cr-power.com).
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The Company has established a policy concerning diversity
of Board members which is available on the Company’s
website (www.cr-power.com). The Company strives to
achieve diversity of the Board by endorsing the principle
that the Board should have a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business. The Company welcomes a very diverse population
of people that reflects the range of cultures and background
spanned by its operations. These differences will be taken
into account in determining the optimum composition of
the Board. The Nomination Committee will consider, and
if appropriate, set measurable objectives to implement the
policy and review such objectives to ensure appropriateness
of the objectives and ascertain the progress made towards
achieving those objectives. The Nomination Committee has
reviewed the policy and its implementation to ensure its
continued effectiveness.

When selecting the candidates for Directors, the Nomination
Committee considered the nomination policy and took into
account the diversity aspects (including without limitation,
gender, age, cultural and educational background) as set out
under the board diversity policy. As a result, the Nomination
Committee considered that the appointments of Directors
were appropriate and that there is sufficient diversity
(including gender diversity) at the Board level. Recognising
the importance and benefits of gender diversity, the Board
will continue to take proactive measures to identify suitable
candidates to enhance gender diversity among members of
the Board.

Measurable objectives include (i) at least one third of the
Board shall be independent non-executive Directors; (ii) at
least one Director is female and (jii) at least one Director shall
have obtained accounting or other professional qualifications.
For the year of 2022, all the objectives are fulfilled.

The Group mainly invests, develops, operates and manages
power plants and coal mines. Due to the industrial business
nature, a majority of our workforce is male. Given the situation
of the Company, it may be challenging for the Company to
set a measurable objective for achieving gender diversity
at workforce level. Nevertheless, the Group is mindful to
improve gender diversity in the workforce when recruiting and
selecting key management and other personnel across the
Group’s operations.

Please refer to the Sustainable Development Report 2022 for
details of the existing gender ratios in the workforce of the
Group (including senior management).
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C. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES,
DELEGATION AND BOARD
PROCEEDINGS

Responsibilities of Directors

CA1

The Board plays a central supporting and supervisory role in the
Company’s corporate governance structure, provides leadership
and guidance to the Group’s activities and development and
oversees the work of the management and its execution of the
Company’s business strategies. Given the essential unitary nature
of the Board, Non-executive Directors have the same duties of care
and skill and fiduciary duties as Executive Directors.

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with the
above principle and Code provisions C.1.1 to C.1.8 as described
as follows:

C.1.1

C12

All newly appointed Directors will receive a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on the first occasion of their
appointment in order to ensure that they will have a proper
understanding of the operations and business of the
Company and that they will be fully aware of their personal
responsibilities under statute and common law, the Listing
Rules, applicable legal and other regulatory requirements, and
the Company’s business and governance policies.

Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive
Directors actively participated in Board meetings of the
Company. The Company’s Audit and Risk Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Sustainability Committee comprise a majority of Independent
Non-executive Directors.

The Directors were encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development programs at the Company’s
expense to remain abreast of changes and developments
impacting the business.

The roles of Independent Non-executive Directors also
include providing their independent views to the Board
and management on business proposals and strategies
and supporting the implementation of these strategies.
Independent Non-executive Directors shall take lead in
Board meetings in the event there are conflicts of interest.
They also scrutinise and monitor senior management’s
performance in meeting goals and objectives. During the year,
the Independent Non-executive Directors also examined the
Group’s operations to broaden their knowledge of the Group’s
business.
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C14

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company
confirmed that all Directors have complied with their
obligations regarding dealings in securities of the Company
under the Model Code throughout the year.

The Company has also established written guidelines for
senior management and employees in certain functions in
respect of their dealings in the securities of the Company
for their strict compliance. The Company issued notices to
all Directors, senior management and relevant employees
reminding them to comply with the restriction on dealing
of securities of the Company under the above code and
guidelines 60 days prior to the publication of the annual
results and 30 days prior to the publication of the interim
results.

The Company’s Executive and Non-executive Directors
(including Independent Non-executive Directors) participated
in various continuous professional development programs
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to help
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. Directors are encouraged to participate in
professional training programs and the Company also
organizes and funds such training programs.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Directors
participated in training programs regarding Directors’
responsibilities and duties and examined the Company’s
operations. The Company has received the Directors’ training
records, which are summarised as follows:

Training
on recent

development of Site visits to

the Listing Rules, thermal
corporate

power plants,
governance renewable
and Directors’ power projects or

responsibilities other operations

BRLHHRA - BHERANNDEEEK

Wang Chuandong FEH
Shi Baofeng PEIE
Zhang Junzheng SREEI
Liu Guixin 2 &
Chen Guoyong e

REFF (M)
BRE (M)
BRI (MIaE1)
BEN FEE1~2)
F (FF5E1~3)

Elsie Leung Oi-sie (Note 1)
Raymond Ch’ien Kuo Fung (Note 1)
Jack So Chak Kwong (Note 1)
Yang Yuchuan (Note 1&2)

Wang Xiao Bin (Note 1&3)

Note (1): Due to the closure of borders between Hong Kong and Mainland China
during the year, Ms. Wang and all Independent Non-executive Directors
were unable to leave Hong Kong for site visits to our power plants in
Mainland China.

Note (2): Mr. Yang Yuchuan was appointed as an Authorised Representative with
effect from 8 February 2023.

Note (3): Ms. Wang Xiao Bin ceased to be an Executive Director, the Senior Vice
President, an Authorized Representative and the Company Secretary of
the Company with effect from 8 February 2023.

C.1.5 Directors have disclosed to the Company at the time of their
appointments, and on a periodic basis, the number and
nature of offices held in public companies or organisations
and other significant commitments, with the identity of the
public companies or organisations and an indication of the
time involved. Such disclosures was made annually.
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C.2

C16

C18

Independent Non-executive Directors and other Non-
executive Directors actively participated in Board meetings
and Committee meetings on which they serve. In order
to develop a balanced understanding of the views of
Shareholders, the Executive Directors participated in
roadshows and investor meetings to meet with institutional
investors during the year. As laid out in the attendance
table in C.5.1 on page 107 of this Annual Report, majority
of the Directors attended the 2022 AGM. The Company
sets the date of the AGM at the beginning of a year so all
Directors are encouraged to attend the AGM to enhance
communication with Shareholders. For the Company’s report
on communication with Shareholders, please refer to page
123 to 128 of the Annual Report.

Independent Non-executive Directors and other Non-
executive Directors actively participated in Board meetings
and Committee meetings and made a positive contribution
to the development of the Company’s strategy and policies
through independent, constructive and informed comments.

The Company has arranged corporate liability insurance
coverage in respect of legal actions against its Directors.

The Chairman and the President

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
President has been clearly established and set out in writing. Under
Code provision C.2.1, the role of the Chairman and the President
should be separate to ensure a balance of power and authority.
The Chairman’s primary responsibilities include deciding on the
meeting schedule and agenda, formulating Board policies, ensuring
Board effectiveness, promoting the Company and maintaining the
Company’s corporate governance. The President has delegated
authority from, and is responsible to, the Board for managing the
Group’s business, including the implementation of the strategies
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During the period under review, the Company strictly complied
with the Code principle and Code provisions C.2.1 to C.2.9 as
described below:

C.2.1

C22

C23

The roles of the Chairman and the President of the Company
are separate and are currently assumed by Mr. Wang
Chuandong and Mr. Shi Baofeng, respectively. The division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and the President has
been clearly established and set out in writing.

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for providing
leadership for the Board. The duties are mainly to ensure the
effective operation of the Board, and the establishment of
and compliance with the corporate governance practices and
procedures. The Chairman is also responsible for ensuring
that appropriate procedures are adopted to guarantee
effective communications with shareholders, and that the
shareholders’ opinions are circulated among all Board
members.

The President is responsible for managing the Company’s
business and coordinating overall business operations,
implementing major strategies approved by the Board and
making day-to-day operation decisions.

None of the members of the Board has any connections
(including financial, business, family relationship and other
material/related relationships) with each other (including
between the Chairman and the President).

All Directors were properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings. Any enquiries and requests from the Directors were
followed up and responded to by the management of the
Company in a timely manner.

The Board papers contained sufficient details and Directors
were given reasonable time to review the contents before
the meetings. All Directors who were present at the Board
meetings received adequate information, which must be
accurate, clear, complete and reliable, in a timely manner,
prior to the meetings.
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C24

C25

C.26

C.28

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

ERAWmS

One of the Chairman’s responsibilities is to provide leadership
for the Board. The Chairman ensures that the Board works
effectively and performs its responsibilities, and that all key
and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely
manner. The Chairman, with the help of other Executive
Directors and Company Secretary, is primarily responsible
for drawing up and approving the agenda for each Board
meeting taking into account, where appropriate, any matters
proposed by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda. The
Chairman should delegate this responsibility to a designated
Director or the Company Secretary in the event of his
absence at a board meeting.

The Chairman takes primary responsibility for ensuring
that good corporate governance practices and procedures
are established. The Chairman meets regularly with
Independent Non-executive Directors to discuss, among
others, suggestions and feedback with regard to Board and
corporate governance practices and procedures and areas for
improvement.

The Chairman encourages all Directors to make a full and
active contribution to the Board’s affairs and takes the lead
to ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the
Company. The Chairman also encourages Directors with
different views to voice their concerns, allows sufficient time
for discussion of issues and ensures that Board decisions
fairly reflect Board consensus.

The Chairman, Mr. Wang Chuandong, held a meeting with the
Independent Non-executive Directors without the presence
of other Executive Directors, Non-executive Directors or
management in December 2022.

The Chairman ensures that appropriate steps are taken to

provide effective communication with shareholders and that
their views are communicated to the Board as a whole.

104

ERENERBRAT

C.24

C25

C.26

C.27

C.28

ITENERZ—REEESFG -
TERREFEENEFUET
B W E 5P A B3 K A8 R
FH-IFERHMATEERA
AIMNENHGY TEEEBRES
CEERBENEEREH TERE
(WMBEE) REMEFRENSFE
MAZR - HEIFEEILRFESS

g% AEEEETESHARTW
%%ﬁ%%;o

ITRERIBEERFREYRENDG
FEARAEHRAEF EFEEBIIF
WITEFEREE sm (Hh e
B EREFEREEERERM
BEMEERENEZRNRE-

ITREZBMAAEEEHEZTEER
FHE2ERBERIT EEIEEF
B EBREFETENEGEATR
EHNE  EFETBFAEEREN
EFRELFFINFER LHT
TREBN®ARSEE BRES
EHARERERMEEGHHH

R2022F 128 » E[E EER L E
HBUIERTEST LSRRGS Hith
HITER FRTESJEERBL
BHFEGH

TRERERENEESRERRE
MEE AERRRERBETE
FEEREE-



C.29

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Chairman promotes a culture of openness and debate
by facilitating the effective contribution of Non-executive
Directors and ensures constructive relations between
Executive and Non-executive Directors. During the year,
due to the closure of borders between Hong Kong and
Mainland China, Directors based in Hong Kong were not able
to visit the power plants in mainland China. Instead, local
management teams in various regions were invited to prepare
presentation materials to the Board on recent business
updates and this will continue until the Board can resume
travelling.

C.3 Management functions

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with the
Code Principle and Code provisions C.3.1 to C.3.3 as described
below:

C.3.1

C.3.2

C.3.3

The Board is mainly responsible for formulating and
approving the business strategies, objectives, policies and
plans of the Group, and monitoring the execution of the
Group’s strategies. It is also responsible for overseeing the
operational and financial performance of the Group and
establishing appropriate risk control policies and procedures
in order to ensure that the strategic objectives of the Group
are achieved. In addition, the Board is also responsible for
improving the corporate governance structure and enhancing
communications with shareholders.

The Board delegates its management and administration
functions to management and gives clear directions as to the
powers of management at the same time, in particular, with
respect to the circumstances where management should
report back and obtain prior approval from the Board before
making decisions or entering into any commitments on the
Company’s behalf.

The Board Charter has laid out clearly the role of the Board,
including matters which are reserved for Board approval and
the functions delegated to management. The Board Charter is
reviewed regularly and amended where necessary to take into
account of any changes in law and governance practices as
well as any changes in business operations.

The Company has formal letter of appointment for all

Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their
appointment.
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C.4 Board committees C4 EFERTHEZEY
During the year under review, the Company strictly complied REBEFE > A RBEEESTTH R
with the Code Principle and Code provisions C.4.1 and C.4.2 as BSFANESC.4.1C.4.2 > BEAAN T

described below:

C.41 The Company has established written terms of reference Cal ARBIUEEFARIEETGE
for the Committees (namely, Audit and Risk, Nomination, THWZES PEZHERR IR
Remuneration and Sustainability Committees) of the Board. L HFIRAFEEREZE®) B
Details on the duties and terms of reference of the Board BEHE -EHEETZEZTN
Committees are available on the Company’s website (www.cr- B8 KRB ESE R ARQ B4,
power.com) and the HKEx website (www.hkexnews.hk). (www.cr-power.com) Kz B 22 it 48 ik

(www.hkexnews.hk) & S o

C.4.2 The terms of reference of each Board Committee require Ca2 EEFSLETNRESLELR
it to report back to the Board on its decisions and EEAODESGERATKEZE-
recommendations.

In addition to the Remuneration Committee and Audit and FRAFIHRFI120E R118E R KW
Risk Committee meetings held as mentioned on pages 120 FNEZEENEREEREZE S
and 118 of this Annual Report, the Sustainability Committee R AIRBEEEZEEN
also held one meeting in 2022. The attendance record of 2022F B —AEEAKE
the members of the Sustainability Committee during the year EREZECHNENRNBEEENY
under review is set out as follows: fEsetrEsmT™
Number of
meetings
attended/number
of meetings held Attendance rate
HE
Sustainability Committee Members FAIFEHREEZES T &S BITEERH HER
Jack So Chak Kwong (Chairman) =St () 1/1 100%
Raymond Ch’ien Kuo Fung ERE 1/1 100%
Wang Chuandong F &% 1/1 100%
Liu Guixin 2 &3 1/1 100%
The major responsibilities of the Sustainability Committee AIFEEREZEeN T ERSOIEHEE
include reviewing, and making recommendations to the Board RIRERE-RE 22 - HEEARKA
on, the Company’s policy and performance in relation to the FEZERTANABBERMKRITETIR
environmental protection, health, safety, community relations HkEEEGRMER-

and sustainability issues.
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C.5 Conduct of Board Proceedings and Supply of and CH EETRFERRHUERHEEE
Access to Information H
In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with the REBEFEE > KARBEEETTH R
Code principle and Code provisions C.5.1 to C.5.10, as described BISFAESCC.5.12C.5.10 B al T ¢
as follows:
C.5.1 Pursuant to code provision C.5.1, meetings of the Board C51 BEFECHSMETAKRY  EETE

should be held at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals. During the year of 2022, the Board held a
total of twelve Board meetings.

Each meeting involved the active participation in person of a
majority of Directors entitled to be present.

The former and current Directors’ attendance at the meetings
of the Board and the Annual General Meeting (the “AGM”)
during the year is as follows:

Number
of board
meetings
attended
HFE
EXg8E
R
Non-executive Directors FERITES
Wang Chuandong FEHR 8/12
Liu Guixin =g 12/12
Chen Guoyong (R 2 5 11/12
Executive Directors HITESE
Shi Baofeng P EIE 12/12
Zhang Junzheng REEI 11/12
Wang Xiao Bin (Note 1) FH (MEEE1) 12/12
Independent Non-executive B IERITES
Directors
Elsie Leung Oi-sie REF 12/12
Raymond Ch’ien Kuo Fung R E 4/12
Jack So Chak Kwong BRI 8/12
Yang Yuchuan (Note 2) B E) (H5E2) 19/12

Note (1): Ms. Wang Xiao Bin ceased to be an Executive Director, the Senior
Vice President, an Authorized Representative and the Company
Secretary of the Company with effect from 8 February 2023.

Note (2): Mr. Yang Yuchuan was appointed as an Authorised
Representative with effect from 8 February 2023.
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China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

In 2022, arrangements were in place to ensure that all
Directors were given an opportunity to include matters in the
agenda for regular Board meetings. The Board is supported
by four committees, namely the Audit and Risk Committee,
the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Sustainability Committee to ensure that it is well equipped
to discharge its responsibilities. Each committee has its own
terms of reference which are available on the Company’s
website (www.cr-power.com). The terms of reference of each
committee are updated regularly to take account of changes
in the rules and regulations and governance practices. The
chairperson of respective committees reported to the Board
regularly and made recommendations on matters discussed
when appropriate. Senior management of the Company
may attend committee meetings upon invitation by the
chairpersons of the committees.

In the year under review, notice of at least 14 days was given
of a regular Board meeting, giving all Directors an opportunity
to attend. For all other Board meetings, reasonable
notice was given. The Board aims to set dates of regular
meetings, AGM and site visits at the start of each year, so
that all Directors can make proper arrangements to ensure
attendance of the meetings and visits.

The Company Secretary attended all the Board meetings,
Audit and Risk Committee meetings and Sustainability
Committee meeting in 2022 except for meetings of the
Remuneration Committee where a person (that is not a
member of the senior management) was appointed as
secretary. Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board
Committees were kept by the Company Secretary or duly
appointed personnel and were arranged to be reviewed by
the Directors present at the meetings before they were signed
by the chairperson of the respective meetings. Such minutes
will be made available by the Company for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director when
he/she deems necessary.
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Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board
Committees recorded in detail the matters considered by
the Board or Board Committees and decisions reached
at meeting, including any concerns raised by Directors
or dissenting views expressed. Draft and final versions
of minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board
Committees were sent to all Directors for their comments and
records respectively, within a reasonable time after the Board
or Board committees meetings were held.

The Board Charter sets out the policy that Directors,
especially Non-executive Directors should be provided with
sufficient resources in the furtherance of their duties as Board/
Committees members, including access to independent
professional advice, if necessary, at the Company’s expense.

Physical board meetings, as opposed to written resolutions,
were held to consider matters in which a substantial
shareholder or Director had a conflict of interest in a matter to
be considered by the Board which the Board has determined
to be material. At these physical board meetings, Independent
Non-executive Directors who, and whose close associates,
had no material interest in the transaction were present.
Directors who had a conflict of interest abstained from voting.

In respect of regular Board meetings and Committees
meetings, the Company’s policy is to provide at least a 14-
day notice prior to the meeting setting out the intended
agenda. An agenda and accompanying Board and
Committees papers are delivered in full to all Directors at least
three days before the intended date of a Board meeting or
Committee meeting.

To enable Directors to make decisions based upon the related
data on hand, management is required to provide adequate,
complete and reliable information and provide a briefing
to the Board in respect of the matters and issues under
consideration. The Company supplied Directors with monthly
management reports to keep Board members informed of
the latest development and performance of the Company.
The Board and Directors also have separate and independent
access to the Company’ s senior management.

All Directors are entitled to have access to Board papers
and related materials. Queries from Directors also receive a
prompt and full response.
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C.6 COMPANY SECRETARY C.6 ARMWE

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with the
Code principle and Code provisions C.6.1 to C.6.4.

During the year under review, the role of Company Secretary
was taken on by Ms. Wang Xiao Bin, who was also an Executive
Director and Senior Vice President of the Company and had day-
to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. Her duties as Company
Secretary included ensuring good information flow among the
Directors and that board policy, procedures and all applicable laws,
rules and regulations were followed. She advised the Directors
through the Chairman of the Company and also facilitated induction
and professional development of Directors.

In 2022, Ms. Wang attended at least 15 hours of relevant
professional training which complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

Due to retirement, Ms. Wang has ceased to be an Executive
Director, the Senior Vice President, an Authorized Representative
and the Company Secretary of the Company with effect from
8 February 2023. Following the retirement of Ms. Wang as the
Company Secretary, the Company shall have no Company
Secretary, and will not be able to meet the Rule 3.28 and the
above Code Provisions C.6.1 to C.6.4. In view of this, the
Company will identify a suitable candidate to fill the vacancy of the
Company Secretary as soon as practicable in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules to ensure compliance by the
Company with Rule 3.28 and the above Code Provisions C.6.1 to
C.6.4.
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D. AUDIT, INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK D. &H# - AZpiZHI LA E

MANAGEMENT Ig
D.1 Financial Reporting D.1 M FEER

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and EXETEEHNAEERNKRE B RKAE

comprehensible assessment of the Group’s performance, position SETER - EMESZNEMENTG.

and prospects. It is also the Board’s responsibility to oversee the EEENEEXEEREEBRTET

preparation of the annual accounts which give a true and fair view AEBEAFEEHE - EERREREN

of the Group’s state of affairs, results and cash flows for the year. FERB-

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with the REBEFEE > KARBEEEST LA EE]

above principle and Code provisions D.1.1 to D.1.4 as described as BSFRMEXD.A1EDA 4 BT ¢

follows:

D.1.1 Directors were provided with financial information and the D1l BEEAHFHEBRFEEEBEM
related information of the Group enabling them to make an BIEREAERMEER XIEE
informed assessment before the publication of the interim B UEMIETTE -

results and the annual results, respectively.

D.1.2 To enable Directors to discharge their duties under Rule 3.08 Di2 AMFREZEEAURBELTHRIE
and Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules, senior management .08 MEBISERITTHE  ahE
is required to provide adequate, complete and reliable BEEENEHEEREEBRES
information and provide briefing to the Board in respect of BRERMD TERAIZEL IR
the matters and issues under consideration. The Company HEHR - A NBIEESHEEZIEM
supplied the Board with monthly management reports to BERE UBEEFMEANELR
keep Board members informed of the latest development and EENEMERRKRR

performance of the Group.
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D.2

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

D.1.3 The Directors have acknowledged their responsibility for
overseeing the preparation of financial statements of each
financial period, which gives a true and fair view of the
operating results and financial conditions of the Group
during such period. More information about the external
auditor’'s responsibilities is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 129 to 136 of this Annual Report.
In preparing the financial reports for the year ended 31
December 2022, the Directors have selected appropriate
accounting policies and applied them consistently; made
judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable,
and prepared accounts on a going concern basis. The
Company does not foresee any uncertainties in its ability to
continue as a going concern.

D.1.4 The Directors have acknowledged that it is their responsibilities
to present a balanced, clear and understandable assessment
extend to annual and interim reports, other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules, reports to regulators as well
as other information required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.

The Company has not resolved to announce and publish financial
results on a quarterly basis and has not adopted recommended
best practices D.1.5 and D.1.6.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board has the overall responsibility to maintain appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems for the
Group and to review their effectiveness to safeguard shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets. To this end, risk management
and internal control systems have been established to provide
reasonable assurance against material misstatement or loss, and
to manage or mitigate risks of failure to achieve business and ESG
objectives. The Board oversees the senior management in design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems and the senior management have provided a
confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of these systems for
2022.
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In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with the
above principle and Code provisions D.2.1 to D.2.7 and has taken
into consideration recommended best practices D.2.8 to D.2.9 as
described as follows:

D.2.1 The Company’s target is to establish an efficient and effective
risk management and internal control systems.

The Company emphasizes on professional integrity and high
business ethics. 16,981 managerial officers and staff signed a
declaration on compliance with the code of ethics.

The Company and its subsidiaries provide regular training
to its management and staff. The training sessions not
only cover the technical and operational aspects of our
businesses, but also on business ethics, Listing Rules,
corporate laws and regulations and internal controls.

The Group has an internal audit department which is
responsible for the monitoring of the Group’s internal control.
The internal audit department has unrestricted access and
authority to review the information on the business and
internal control matters of the Group. The Chief Audit Officer
reports to the Audit and Risk Committee, and may directly
report to the Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee
when necessary (where sensitive content is involved). Also,
he administratively reports to the President. The internal
auditors can employ outside resources when necessary.
In 2022, the internal audit department completed internal
audits and follow-up audits on a number of subsidiaries and
branches of the Group, and presented their findings and
recommendations to the Audit and Risk Committee and
senior management of the Company.

During the year, the Board had reviewed the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems (including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions) of the Group. The Board believes that
in order to manage the risk of failure to achieve the Group’s
goals and objectives to the maximum extent, the Group
should improve continuously its risk management and internal
control systems.
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D.2.2

D.2.3

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

In March 2023, the Audit and Risk Committee reviewed the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s internal
audit function, accounting and financial reporting function and
believes that the Group should monitor on an ongoing basis
its total resources in the accounting, internal audit, financial
reporting functions as well as those relating to the Company’s
ESG performance and reporting, and continue to increase
its investment and budgets for staff recruitment, training
programmes and information technology system.

The Board, through the Audit and Risk Committee, reviews
annually the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries, such
review considers:

»  the changes in the nature and extent of significant risks
(including ESG risks) since the last review, and the
Company’s ability to respond to changes in its business
and the external environment;

»  the management’s ongoing monitoring of risks (including
ESG risks) and the internal control system, and the work
of the internal audit function;

»  the communication of the monitoring results to the
Board semi-annually that enables it to assess control
of the Company and the effectiveness of the risk
management;

» any possible significant control failings or weaknesses
that have been identified and the extent to which they
have caused unforeseeable outcomes or contingencies
that had or might have, or may in the future have, a
material impact on the Company’s financial performance
or condition; and

> the effectiveness of the Company’s processes for
financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance.
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D.2.4 In the year under review, the Company complied with the risk
management and internal control Code Provisions D.2.4(a) to
D.2.4(e) as described as follows:

(a)

The Board has delegated to senior management of
the Company the responsibility to design, operate
and monitor its risk management and internal control
systems for identifying and evaluating the risks and
probable exposures faced by the Group. Key risks,
control measures and management actions are
continually identified, reviewed and monitored by the
management. The internal auditor assists and guides
the management in the formulation of risk policies and
processes to effectively identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks. The management has established a risk
identification and management process.

The senior management is accountable to the Board for
providing assurance on managing and monitoring the
risk management and internal control.

The Group’s risk management and internal control
systems provide a systematic and disciplined approach
to risk management process, which are embedded
as an integral part of corporate governance. The
systems help sustain business success, create value
for stakeholders and support the Board in discharging
its corporate governance responsibilities by proactively
identifying, addressing and managing key risks within
the Group.

The Board is accountable for overseeing the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems and for
reviewing its effectiveness, while the management and
other personnel are responsible for implementing and
maintaining a robust system of internal controls that
covers governance, compliance, risk management,
financial as well as operational controls to safeguard the
Group’s assets and stakeholders’ interests. The systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives and can only
provide reasonable, and not absolute assurance against
material misstatements or loss.
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(d) All findings and recommendations on internal
control deficiencies for each audit engagement are
communicated to senior management who are required
to establish remedial plans to correct those internal
control deficiencies within a reasonable time period.
Post-audit reviews are performed regularly to monitor
those agreed action plans and to ensure that corrective
measures of previously identified internal control
deficiencies have been implemented as intended and on
a timely basis. Significant deficiencies of individual audit
engagement are reported to and reviewed by the Audit
and Risk Committee.

() The Company has adopted a policy for certain
relevant employees who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished inside information in relation to the
Company or its shares, for instance financial results
of the Company. Relevant employees are required to
acknowledge their understanding of this policy and
the list of relevant employees is updated at regular
intervals. The Group has management controls in
place to ensure that potential inside information can
be promptly identified, assessed and escalated for the
attention of the Board to decide the need for disclosure.
Furthermore, the Company ensures that dissemination
of inside information strictly complies with the standards
and disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules.

D.2.5 The Company has an internal audit function in place.

D.2.6 The Company has established a whistleblowing policy and
system by which employees and others who deal with the
Group can raise concerns, in confidence, about possible
improprieties in any matter related to the Group. The contents
of the whistleblowing policy are available on the Company’s
website (www.cr-power.com).
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D.2.7 The Company has established policies and compliance
management system that promote and support anti-
corruption laws and regulations.

In the annual assessment of the effectiveness and adequacy of
the risk management and internal control systems, the Company
has taken into consideration the recommended best practices
contained in D.2.8 and D.2.9.

The Company considers the risk management and internal control
systems are effective and adequate.

Audit and Risk Committee

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with the
Code Principle and Code provisions D.3.1 to D.3.7 as described as
follows:

D.3.1 Full minutes of the Audit and Risk Committee meetings were
kept by a duly appointed secretary of the meeting. Draft and
final version of minutes of the Audit and Risk Committee
meetings were sent to all committee members for their
comments and records within a reasonable time after the
meeting.

D.3.2 The Company’s Audit and Risk Committee comprises

four Independent Non-executive Directors and one Non-

executive Director, with Chairman of the Committee, who is
an Independent Non-executive Director, having the requisite
qualification, knowledge and experience. A former partner of
the Company’s existing auditor shall be prohibited from acting
as a member of the Audit and Risk Committee for a period

of two years from the date of the person ceasing to be a

partner of the firm; or to have any financial interest in the firm,

whichever is later.
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D.3.3 The main duties of the Audit and Risk Committee include the
following:

> to investigate any activity within its terms of reference
with full access to all books, records, facilities and
personnel. It is authorised to seek information it requires
from any employee and all employees are required to
co-operate with any request made by the Audit and Risk
Committee;

» 1o secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant
experience and expertise and to obtain independent
legal or other professional advice if it considers
necessary to carry out its duties; and

> to be primarily responsible for making recommendation
to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and to raise any questions of its resignation or
dismissal.

The attendance record of the members of the Audit and Risk
Committee during the year under review is set out as follows:

D33 BEZAEKREZEEENTIERSE
ErRE:

> THRESENBERERA
RE R RERET KL
AEEMES - EREOEM
EEFHBEHNERER
2REEABELEARE
BEMNERMEZEE;

> WNRBAFTE JERHGHERR
KBRERNIIAALEH
o BERBILE RN HME
FERCLBETERE R

> IEBEBENZE -ENERE
RERINEZEMEOESTS
REER MEIEBZEEM
WEBMERFH BMHE
BHES RBIR HERRE

EZARBREZEGNEREBRFEARRN
HESCEESMT ¢

Audit and Risk Committee Members BiZHEHREEERE

Yang Yuchuan (Chairman) BEN (EFE)
Elsie Leung Oi-sie 2B
Jack So Chak Kwong BRZE
Raymond Ch’ien Kuo Fung HRE
Chen Guoyong ek B 55

The terms of reference of the Audit and Risk Committee have
incorporated all the duties set out in the Code provision and
are reviewed regularly and enhanced where necessary.
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For the period from 1 January 2022 to the date of this report,
the Audit and Risk Committee has performed its duties,
including reviewing the Group’s interim and annual results, risk
management and internal control systems, the internal control
report prepared by the Company’s internal audit department
and the statement relating to risk management and internal
control systems as set out in this report. The Audit and Risk
Committee also met with the external auditor without the
presence of Executive Directors and senior management.
In March 2023, the Audit and Risk Committee reviewed the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022, including the major accounting issues raised
by the external auditor.

The terms of reference of the Audit and Risk Committee are
available on the Company’s website (www.cr-power.com) and
the HKEx website (www.hkexnews.hk).

In 2022, there was no disagreement between the Board
and the Audit and Risk Committee on the selection and
appointment of the external auditor. The Audit and Risk
Committee is mandated to monitor the independence of
the external auditor to ensure true objectivity in the financial
statements. Prior to the commencement of the audit of
the Group’s 2022 accounts, the Audit and Risk Committee
received written confirmation from the external auditor on its
independence and objectivity. The external auditor is refrained
from engaging in non-audit services except for limited tax-
related services or specific approved items. The Audit and
Risk Committee reviewed the external auditor’s statutory audit
scope and non-audit services and approved its fees.

Audit services Z AR 7%
Non-audit services IEIZBAR TS
Total 4Bst
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E.
E.1

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

D.3.6 The Audit and Risk Committee was provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties in 2022.

D.3.7 The terms of reference of the Audit and Risk Committee have
incorporated all the duties contained in the Code provision.

REMUNERATION

The Level and Make-up of Remuneration and
Disclosure

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the Code Principle and Code provisions E.1.1 to E.1.5 and the
recommended best practices E.1.6 to E.1.9 except for E.1.8 as
described as follows:

The Board has established Remuneration Committee and its
primary functions are to evaluate the performance of the Directors
and senior management, approve the terms of Executive Directors’
service contracts and make recommendations on the remuneration
packages, and to evaluate and make recommendations on
employee benefit arrangements. All two members of the
Remuneration Committee are Independent Non-executive
Directors.

In 2022, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings to,
among other things, review and determine the policy for the
remuneration of the Executive Directors, assess the performance
of the Executive Directors, and make recommendation to the
Board on the remuneration packages of all Executive Directors and
senior management. The attendance record of the members of the
Remuneration Committee during the year under review is set out as
follows:

Remuneration Committee Members #HMZESEEEHS
Elsie Leung Oi-sie (Chairman) REF (EFE)
Raymond Ch’ien Kuo Fung mRE

E.1.1 The Remuneration Committee may consult the Chairman,
the President or any independent third party about the
remuneration level of other Executive Directors. The Company
has a policy that the Remuneration Committee may seek
professional advice from independent third parties if it thinks
necessary at the expense of the Company.
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TEER/RS
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee E12 siMEZE e EHE (THAERE
(which is reviewed and updated regularly) have incorporated B H) EAAST AR ST E S E
the specific duties set out in the code provision of the Code. HE-FNEZEEF T ERMTRE
Code provision E.1.2(c)(ii) was adopted by the Remuneration XE.1.2(c)(ii) ©
Committee.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are E13 FiNZEENHEHESTHN K
set out on the Company’s website (www.cr-power.com) and A B #8UL(www. cr-power.com) Kz B
the HKEx website (www.hkexnews.hk). 22 Fff 48k (www.hkexnews.hk) o
The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient E14 TNEZECSEREERUETH
resources to discharge its duties. The Remuneration BE-FWNEZEETEERAVE
Committee may seek professional advice from independent HRBIE=FASREXER &
third parties if it thinks necessary at the expense of the BHRARBRE UEBEEBEER
Company in order to enable it to properly discharge its duties THEREF-
and responsibilities.
The Directors’ remuneration policy is set out in the “Report E15 ESHMBERHNAFREISE
of the Directors” on page 35 to 54 of this Annual Report. The EAENTEEZEREI N - FEE
emoluments of the members of the senior management team HRTEENSREEEBEREDN

(excluding Executive Directors) are within the following bands: MEMEEENT

Number of individuals

AE

2022 2021
—E-C B

Emolument bands #bNEEE

HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 078752 1,000,00078 75
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 75 £2,000,0007 75
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 775 22,500,00078 75
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7 75 £3,000,0007 75
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7 75 2 3,500,00078 75
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7 75 £4,000,0007 75
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7 752 4,500,00078 75

HK$4,500,001 to above HK$5,000,000 4,500,0017 75 £5,000,0007 75 4 £ 3
Note: Mt -
0] one of the senior management was job re-allocated after the financial (i) —LEREBABRVEREERCSHAERF
year.

(ii) one of the senior management retired after the financial year. (ii) — e REEBAEBRMREERERIKC

The Board has no disagreement with the Remuneration E16 EEEEERHATEERSARE

Committee on remuneration or compensation arrangements BAEBHE S/ EZHE S m A

with regards to Executive Directors and senior management. FNEE g EERER Dl
121 Annual Report 2022
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E18

E19

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

ERAWmS

A significant proportion of Executive Directors’ remuneration
is structured so as to link rewards to corporate and
individual performance. The Company sets its strategic and
performance targets on an annual and three-year rolling
forward basis. Based on the Company’s overall performance
targets, the Company assigns responsibilities and sets
performance benchmarks and evaluation methods for each
Executive Director, members of the senior management
team and other managerial staff. The total remuneration
of Executive Directors and senior management comprises
three key components, namely basic salary, annual bonus
and the Tenure Incentive Plan. The actual performance
of the Company and each Executive Director and senior
management team members’ own performance against
performance targets determine the component paid under
the annual bonus and the Tenure Incentive Plan. Please refer
to Note 13 under the section “Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements” in this Annual Report on page 234 to
237 for details on Directors’ remuneration.

The remuneration policy of the Company aims to attract,
motivate and retain talents in order to stimulate the organic
growth for the Company’s continuous development, and
the salary levels are regularly reviewed and determined
with reference to those in similar industries and regional
markets. The Company will determine the annual bonus
based on the Company’s results and the assessment of
individual performance. A Tenure Incentive Plan has also
been established for key positions of the Company, which
promotes long-term value creation through the mingled
annual evaluation and 3-year performance assessment.
The Company provides benefit packages and defined
contributions to its employees in accordance with the laws
and regulations of the relevant country and region.

The Company has not adopted the recommended best
practice to disclose details of any remuneration paid to
members of senior management (other than Executive
Directors) on an individual and named basis in the
Annual Report. Having disclosed Directors’ remuneration,
remuneration of the five highest paid individuals and
emoluments of senior management team by bands, the
Company believes that disclosure of individual senior
management’s remuneration does not benefit shareholders.
The majority of shareholders are concerned with the total
amount of remuneration, rather than on an individual basis.

No equity-based remuneration (e.g. share options or grants)
with performance-related elements was granted to the
Independent Non-executive Directors by the Company so as
to maintain their objectivity and independence when making
decisions.
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SHAREHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

Effective Communication

The Company has adopted shareholders communication policy
which is available on the Company’s website (www.cr-power.
com). In accordance with the policy, the Board shall maintain
an on-going dialogue with shareholders and the investment
community. Information shall be communicated to shareholders
and the investment community mainly through the Company’s
financial reports (interim and annual reports), AGMs and other
general meetings that may be convened, as well as by making
available all the disclosures submitted to HKEx and its corporate
communications and other corporate publications on the
Company’s website. The Company strives to ensure that the
shareholders and potential investors are provided with ready, equal
and timely access to balanced and understandable information
about the Company. Having considered the multiple channels of
communication in place, the Board is satisfied that the shareholders
communication policy has been properly implemented during 2022
and is effective.

An investor relations team has been designated to maintain
purposeful dialogue and ongoing relationships with investors and
analysts. We strive to provide quality information to shareholders as
well of our many stakeholders regarding the latest developments
of the Company whilst ensuring that material information is equally
and simultaneously provided and accessible to all interested
parties.

The Company consistently pays close attention to investor
relations activities and always believes that maintaining effective
communications with shareholders and provision of timely and
accurate information are critical in creating shareholder value.

The Company enhances communication with shareholders through

various investor relations activities. Details of major investor
relations activities in 2022 are set out below.
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In 2022, there were over 300 requests for company visits and
teleconferences from different investors. Together with investor
conferences and roadshows through virtual or audio meetings,
we communicated with approximately more than 3,000 fund
managers and analysts. During the meetings with investors, we
explained the development and trend of the power industry and
updated investors on our operational conditions, strategic planning
and future outlook. We also placed great emphasis on listening to
investors’ feedback, concerns and expectations so we can relay
the messages from investors to our management team.

Through emails or designated telephone lines, we also provide
shareholders and potential investors with a channel to obtain the
latest information of the Company and have their queries answered
in a timely manner. We announce our net generation volume figures
on a monthly basis on our Company’s website (www.cr-power.com)
as well as through announcements on the HKEx website (www.
hkexnews.hk).

The Board always welcomes shareholders’ views and input.
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board by addressing them to the Investor Relations Department
of the Company by letter, telephone, fax or email. Details of the
contact information can be found on page 348 of this Annual
Report.

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with the
Code Principle and Code provision F.1.1 as described below but
did not adopt recommended best practice F.1.2:

F1.1 The Company adopts a general dividend policy that aims to
provide shareholders out of the Group’s profit attributable to
shareholders in any financial year, subject to the criteria set
out below.

Such declaration and payment of dividends shall remain to
be determined at the discretion of the Board and subject to
all applicable requirements under the Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Articles.
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In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take
into account, inter alia:

> the Group actual and expected financial performance;

> shareholders’ interests;

> retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company;

»  the capital structure of the Company;

> the Company’s capital expenditure and future expansion
plans;

> statutory and regulatory restrictions;
> general business conditions and strategies;

> general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Group’s business and other internal or external factors
that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Company; and

> other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Board may propose the payment of dividends, if any, with
respect to the Company’s shares on a per share basis.

In addition to cash, dividends may be distributed in the form
of shares subject to and in accordance with the procedures
set out in the Articles.

Except for interim dividend, any dividends declared by the
Company must be approved by an ordinary resolution of
shareholders at the general meeting and must not exceed the
amount recommended by the Board.

The Company will continually review its dividend policy

and reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to
update, improve and/or modify its dividend policy at any time.
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F.2 Shareholders Meetings

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with the
Code Principle and Code provisions F.2.1 to F.2.3 as described
below:

F2.1 In respect of each substantial issue at a general meeting, a
separate resolution was proposed by the chairman of the
meeting, including the re-election of individual Directors.
The poll voting results of the meetings are available on the
Company’s website (www.cr-power.com) and the HKEx
website (www.hkexnews.hk).

Matters resolved at the 2022 AGM

> Received the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021 together with the Reports of
the Directors and the Independent Auditor

>  Approved payment of the final dividend of HK$0.045 per
share for the year ended 31 December 2021

»  Re-elected Mr. Wang Chuandong, Mr. Shi Baofeng, Mr.
Zhang Junzheng, Mr. Liu Guixin, Mr. Chen Guoyong, Dr.
Ch’ien Kuo Fung, Raymond, Mr. So Chak Kwong, Jack
and Mr. Yang Yuchuan as Directors, and authorised
the Board of Directors to fix the remuneration of the
Directors for the year ended 31 December 2022

> Re-appointed Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as Auditor
of the Company and authorised the Board to fix the
Auditor’s remuneration

»  Granted a general mandate to the Board for the share
repurchase of a number not exceeding 10% of the total
number of the Company’s issued shares as at the date
of 2022 AGM

»  Granted a general mandate to the Directors to issue
new shares of the Company not exceeding 20% of the
total number of the Company'’s issued shares as at the
date of 2022 AGM

»  Approved to extend the general mandate granted to
the Directors to issue new shares of the Company
by addition thereto of the shares repurchased by the
Company

»  Approved the proposed amendments to the Articles of
Association of the Company.
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The general meeting provides the ideal venue for the
interchange of ideas between the Board, the management
and shareholders. We therefore encourage shareholders to
attend our AGM to discuss matters of business substance
with the Board and management and to give us valuable
advice and feedback on both operational and governance
matters. At the 2022 AGM, there were a total of 5 individual
shareholders, authorised representatives of corporate
shareholders as well as proxies (including the chairman
of meeting) participated and the number of shares voted
represented 75.26% of the total number of the Company’s
issued shares.

As laid out in the attendance table in C.5.1 on page 107 of
this Annual Report, a majority of Directors attended the 2022
AGM. The Directors and senior management of the Company
took the opportunity to communicate with the shareholders
present, and answered their queries with respect to the
Company’s operations and industries. A representative of
the external auditor attended the 2022 AGM to answer
shareholders’ questions about the conduct of the audit and
the preparation and content of the auditor’s report (if any).

The Company, the Board and management highly value
the opinions and requirements of our shareholders. The
Company communicates with shareholders through various
channels including publication of Interim and Annual Reports,
Sustainable Development Reports, circulars, press releases
and announcements of the latest business developments,
operational results, major financing plans and other
developments of the Company on its corporate website
(www.cr-power.com) and the HKEx website (www.hkexnews.
hk) (where applicable) in a timely manner.

The chairman of the meeting explained the detailed
procedures for conducting a poll at the 2022 AGM and
answered questions arising therefrom (if any).

Convening Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to section 566 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong), members of the Company representing
at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the members having
a right to vote at general meetings may request the Directors to
call a general meeting. The request must state the general nature
of business to be dealt with at the meeting and may include the
text of a resolution that may properly be moved and is intended
to be moved at the meeting. The request may consist of several
documents in like form and may be sent to the Company in hard
copy form or in electronic form and must be authenticated by the
person(s) making it.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings by
Shareholders

Pursuant to section 615 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the members of the Company
may request the Company to give to members of the Company
entitled to receive notice of the annual general meeting, notice of a
resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved
at that meeting. The request may be sent to the Company in hard
copy form (by depositing at the registered office of the Company
for the attention of the Board) or in electronic form (by email: crp-
ir@crc.com.hk) and must identify the resolution of which notice is
to be given, authenticated by the person or persons making it and
received by the Company not later than 6 weeks before the annual
general meeting to which the requests relate; or if later, the time at
which notice is given of that meeting.

The Company will give notice of a resolution if it has received the
requests from (a) members representing at least 2.5% of the total
voting rights of all the members who have a right to vote on the
resolution at the annual general meeting to which the requests
relate; or (b) at least 50 members who have a relevant right to vote.

To further enhance the corporate governance of the Company, to
bring the Articles in line with the latest amendments to the relevant
Listing Rules and relevant regulations, to provide flexibility to the
Company in relation to the conduct of general meetings and for
house-keeping purposes, a special resolution was proposed at the
AGM for the amendments to the Articles and was approved by the
shareholders on 7 June 2022. For further details, please refer to the
circular of the Company dated 12 May 2022.

Procedure for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election
as Director

The procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as Director are available on the website of the Company (www.cr-
power.com).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Deloitte

To The Members of
China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Resources Power Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 137
to 346, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ERVRER S CHE S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

Impairment assessment of goodwill and property, plant and equipment
with material impairment indicators

We identified the impairment assessment of goodwill and property,
plant and equipment with material impairment indicators as a key
audit matter because of the significant degree of judgment made by
management of the Group in determining the value in use (“VIU”) of
these assets.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying value of goodwill, net of
accumulated impairment losses, amounted to HK$621,904,000.
Goodwill is subject to an annual impairment assessment and as
explained in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements,
goodwill is allocated to the cash-generating units (“CGUs”) of
the Company’s subsidiaries within two segments, thermal power
and renewable energy, in the People’s Republic of China, for the
purpose of impairment assessment.

Besides, as disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, out of the total property, plant and equipment
amounted to HK$191,355,953,000 as at 31 December 2022,
management of the Group identified assets with a net book value
of HK$12,350,256,000 of certain thermal power generating plants
and renewable power generating plants with impairment indicators.
Management of the Group performed impairment assessment in
relation to such assets and each thermal power generating plant or
renewable power generating plant is determined as a CGU.

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The impairment assessment was performed by management of the
Group involving the use of VIU model that estimates the recoverable
amount of each CGU. The VIU model involves significant judgement
in determining the assumptions used in the calculations as further
detailed in notes 5(b), 5(c), 17 and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements. The VIU is determined based on the cash flow
projection for the corresponding CGUs discounted to its present
value and requires the use of key assumptions include:

° generation volumes of the power plants;
° electricity prices;

° forecast period;

° coal prices; and

° discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and risks specific to the CGUs.

The VIU was higher than the carrying value for CGU to which
goodwill was allocated and no impairment charge was recognised
against goodwill nor for property, plant and equipment with
impairment indicators for the year.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of goodwill and

property, plant and equipment with impairment indicators included:

° Understanding and evaluating the Group’s methodology and
assumptions used in determination of VIU of the CGUs;

° Evaluating the reliability of the cash flow projections prepared by
management in prior year, on a sample basis, by comparing them
to the actual results in the current year and understanding the
causes of any significant variances;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ERVRER S CHE S

Assessing the reasonableness of the management’s key
assumptions used in the impairment assessments with supporting
documents on a sample basis as follows:

- Assessing the generation volumes of power plants by
comparing them with the generation capacity approved by the
government and historical generation volume;

- Comparing the electricity prices to the latest selling price and
industry forecast;

- Comparing the coal prices to the industry forecast of the coal
market; and

- Comparing the expected operation period of power plants to
the forecast period of each CGU;

Involving our internal valuation experts to evaluate the
appropriateness of the methodology and reasonableness of
discount rates by benchmarking the discount rate against
comparable entities on a sample basis; and

Performing sensitivity analysis on the key inputs, including
generation volume of power plants, electricity prices, coal prices
and discount rates, to evaluate if any further impairment charges
of goodwill and property, plant and equipment with impairment
indicators is required to be made by the management.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ERVRER S CHE S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent HEARBIUIZHEMARENEABESBAR

auditor’s report is Zhu Chen. KEX Lo

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu =g e BAEMRA AT
Certified Public Accountants HEGETED

Hong Kong 55

22 March 2023 TEC=F=H-+_H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
B EmR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HE_ T _H+_A=+—HIEE

Turnover B 6 103,305,097 90,414,166
Operating expenses KE R
Fuels JAREH (64,283,171) (58,444,438)
Depreciation and amortisation e BN (14,429,592) (14,619,078)
Employee benefit expenses EBERMNEZ 7 (6,631,593) (6,354,542)
Repairs and maintenance HEE RN 4EE (2,471,245) (2,519,440)
Consumables ik (1,300,504) (1,356,838)
Impairment charges VEAEE=ES (1,045,216) (432,674)
Tax and surcharges & K M0 (760,607) (671,259)
Others HAth (2,997,806) (2,706,824)
Total operating expenses RIS R 2N (93,919,734) (87,105,093)
Other income HAMUWA 8 1,981,567 2,812,146
Other gains and losses Hihi8m 9 2,184,149 (92,079)
Operating profit REFHE 13,551,079 6,029,140
Finance costs B ER 10 (3,890,192) (3,759,788)
Share of results of associates FE(L B E DR 23 (112,676) 241,346
Share of results of joint ventures BEEEREEE 24 (86,737) (119,282)
Profit before income tax FRPFISIRATFIE 11 9,461,474 2,391,416
Income tax expense FTi8MR &R 12 (1,905,574) (955,001)
Profit for the year FRFHE 7,555,900 1,436,415
Profit for the year attributable to: FAFHEER :
Owners of the Company KABEB A 7,042,478 2,137,849
Perpetual capital securities holders KABRBHFFEA 45 420,295 462,980
Other non-controlling interests HIEEGI R =S 93,127 (1,164,414)
Basic earnings per share attributable to EZXEREBMNAAT
owners of the Company during the BEAZEREF
year 16 HK$1.46 HK$0.44
137 Annual Report 2022

2021
—E_—F
HK$’'000

FHET
(Restated)
(BE5)

FiR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SHIRERAMEEINAR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z__F+A=-+—HILFE

2021
—ET—F
HK$’000

FHET
(RES )
(BE5)

Profit for the year FRFHE 7,555,900 1,436,415

Other comprehensive (expense) income  Hth 2 & (F548) Yt A
Items that may be reclassified subsequently H & B] §EE #7748 F 18 7 A9 B H
to profit or loss:

Currency translation differences fERZE%E (13,116,546) 4,204,434
Share of other comprehensive AL IRENRE R A X E
income of investments accounted KRENHME S W E
for using the equity method (555,911) 101,257
Release to profit or loss in relation to EEM B A B S0 Em
disposal of subsidiaries (2,862) 1,627
Items that will not be reclassified FEE A 7 B E R m I E H
to profit or loss
Fair value changes on equity UAnEBESTEEE AEME
investments at fair value through HNENERKREADEBED)
other comprehensive income (R#&)
(“FVOCI”), net of tax (13,762)
Remeasurement of defined benefit BNt EXRTERAZ mTE
pension plan (27,704)
Transfer of deferred tax liability AREUAREBESIEEEHE A
due to disposal of FVOCIs HA4R & W & Y & Al 25 2 T e 3
HIEEIRIEEE 187,180
Other comprehensive (expense) income FREMZME (58 KA (R#%)
for the year, net of tax (13,608,114) 4,453,032
Total comprehensive (expense) income FRZ@E (E518) WA 4%E R%&)
for the year, net of tax (6,052,214) 5,889,447
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BHHABARR

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Goodwill
Mining rights
Exploration and resources rights
Deferred tax assets
Other receivables and prepayments
Interests in associates
Interests in joint ventures
Financial assets at FVOCI

Loans to a FVOCI investee company

Loans to a non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary

Current assets
Inventories
Trade receivables, other receivables and
prepayments
Loans to an associate
Loans to joint ventures
Loans to a FVOCI investee company

Amounts due from associates

Amounts due from joint ventures

Amounts due from other related
companies

Pledged and restricted bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets classified as held for sale

Total assets

BE
FRBEE
L EN =S g
EREEE
BE
REERE
BEIR#NERRE
EIERE E
HAMEWRIE R B TRIA
REE RN ED
REghEER
UAnBESEBEH
AHMERE R A= B
BE
AU EESEBEE
st A B AR & Uz AU
REABEM
) P 8 2 =] FFHE
REEM

MEBEE

=8

FE U AR TR ~ EL IR
IR R IR TRIE

EESE =N

MEEEEEM

AURREESEBES
ST AH MR & W B4R
RERNBEWM

FEUS B 2RI

Bl EEEERIEA

PR H th R = 2 B RUIE

BRI R ZREIRITER
RERFEEFEY

RAEREREE
HMEE
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17
18
19
20
21
22
26
23
24

25

25

31

27

28
23
24

25
29
30

31

32
33

14

Qe

191,355,953
6,635,994
621,904
3,836,360
1,075,072
12,533,739
9,050,331
5,997,336

1,118,396

466,255

13,994

232,705,334

4,581,614

35,616,097

189,121

84,102
241,196
47,395

33,533
116,466

7,721,275

48,630,799

2,051,513

283,387,646

AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

2021
—E_—F
HK$’'000

FHET
(Restated)
(BE5)

193,546,026
5,679,555
663,659
4,558,859
165,944
1,043,357
12,600,647
8,760,459
5,760,413

1,138,982

91,886

234,009,787

6,748,274

37,785,692
83,904
262,377

372,107
406,333
35,375

176,573
152,819
7,934,211

53,957,565

287,967,352
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BHAFIRRR

AT 31 DECEMBER 2022
RIZ2_-_F+"HB=+—H

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Share capital
Other reserves
Retained earnings

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company

Perpetual capital securities holders

Other non-controlling interests

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Contract liabilities
Lease liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred income
Retirement and other long-term
employee benefits obligations
Other long-term payables

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.
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43
44

45

39
35
40
22
41

42

28(b)

22,316,710
10,138,976

49,782,916

82,238,602
10,664,271

7,650,675

100,553,548

93,322,133
873,021
1,048,403
288,864
808,519

807,751

2,802,332

99,951,023

(Restated)
(BE5)

22,316,710
21,750,464
44,924,595

88,991,769
10,827,061
7,844,051

107,662,881

105,310,179
858,566
863,241
351,725
973,525

913,356
2,974,419

112,245,011



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BHMFIRRR

AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

N

2021
—E_—F
HK$’'000

FHET
(Restated)
(BE5)

Current liabilities mENBaE
Trade payables, other payables and & BR AR~ H AR
accruals B ESTER 34 30,247,926 34,136,474
Contract liabilities =E=EE 35 1,233,004 1,481,794
Lease liabilities HEEaE 40 217,924 114,999
Amounts due to associates JE (< B (> 2ERRIE 36 627,790 772,877
Amounts due to joint ventures FEG &= ¥R 37 576,082 566,022
Amounts due to other related companies ~ FEft EL{RIE A T FIA 38 10,840,890 7,391,714
Tax liabilities GER=NE 543,720 409,820
Borrowings 55 39 38,383,441 23,185,760
82,670,777 68,059,460
Liabilities associated with assets HBFERFESEMEBANEGRE
classified as held for sale 14 212,298 -
Total liabilities meEE 182,834,098 180,304,471
Total equity and liabilities HEREKRAE 287,967,352

The consolidated financial statements on pages 137 to 346 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March
2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

SHI BAOFENG WANG CHUANDONG
SEHEIE EER
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
2 E
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AHRERER

2022
—E-CE
HK$’000 HK$’'000

FTHERT FHET
(RENEE))
(BE5)

Operating activities REES
Profit before income tax PRATTS R AT 9,461,474 2,391,416
Adjustments for: HE
Depreciation and amortisation e B B 14,429,592 14,619,078
Impairment losses REEK 1,045,216 432,674
Exchange (gains) losses ER (W) B8 (1,993,762) 431,217
Interest expense FEREX 3,890,192 3,759,788
Interest income FEWA (192,451) (300,601)
Share of results of associates LB EhEER 112,676 (241,346)
Share of results of joint ventures G hEES 86,737 119,282
Dividends income from FVOCI investee companies R EEGFEEEEHFTA
Hitiz el aNemE
ENHKRE
REIRE A (57,727 (106,600)
Gains on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME - BREMZE
U (33,366) (70,697)
Gains on disposal of right-of-use assets HEFRREENNE (90,987) (131,247)
(Gains) losses on disposal of subsidiaries HENBAE (am) B8 (32,137 761
Gains on disposal of a joint venture HEGE P E WG - (61,161)
Operating cash flows before movement SEESEIFN
in working capital BEH SR 26,625,457 20,842,564
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERD (1gm) 1,742,320 (3,727,263)
Increase in trade receivables, other receivables FEWER R ~ E thFE UK
and prepayments FIE R AN FRIBE (2,557,534) (10,960,705)
Increase in trade payables, other FE T BR AR~ E e
payables and accruals MIBRE &R 335,197 4,088,611
(Decrease) increase in retirement and other long-term B RAREMERES
employee benefits obligations BAIFEST R A
G20 1B (115,424) 12,238
Cash generated from operations REFEELENRE 26,030,016 10,255,445
Income tax paid BERFER (1,863,277) (2,284,539)
Net cash from operating activities RETHELNEEFE 24,166,739 7,970,906
China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. 1 44
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AHRERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

2022
—E-C#E
HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHERT FHET
(RENEE))
(BE5)

Investing activities KREES
Dividends received from associates and joint ventures BUWBELERAELERE 659,759 462,890
Dividends received from FVOCI investee companies BBMUARBESER
SEEAAMES
R SR E ENH
RERENRE 101,045
Interest received Bl E 386,412
Advanced proceeds from demolition of property, plant and B ENE  BEKR&REN
equipment and right-of-use assets BRAEEENMERIE 566,149
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment and ~ HEYE BERHZEHN
right-of-use assets FREEENMBRIE 103,994 166,718
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries engaging in coal HENEERFARESRN
mining business NGRSO 4,850,850
Proceeds from disposal of a joint venture HEGEREMEHNIE 368,546
Disposal of a FVOCI investment HEURAABEFER
SEEAALMES
WaEnE 159,035
Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment, BEVE BEKRRE HERE
mining rights and right-of-use assets KERREENTIE (32,579,796) (25,688,887)
Capital contributions into associates mEEtELFE (586,550) (78,557)
Capital contributions into joint ventures AREREEE (880,968) (357,178)
Investment made into FVOCI mAUAREBESER
SEHAHMEGS
KRN EREENKE (71,219)
Loans to an associate miEtEER (18,063)
Loans repayments from an associate BErEERER 158,761
Loans to joint ventures dREREER (95,320)
Loans repayments from joint ventures BEPEEEER 140,533 61,217
Net cash outflow on acquisition of interest in subsidiaries WM B AR arRE
HEER (1,101) (133,137)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of interest in an associate HNEKE RaNRE
T FEE - (717,655)
Cash prepayment on acquisition of equity investments RS #aKENMATNREE (723,698) =
Cash prepayment on acquisition of interest in an associate REBE N ERBENN
RE - (126,985)
Government grants related to assets B E R VT RG 20,825 14,697
Proceeds upon dissolving a subsidiary BERENBABREERA - 21,209
Repurchase of Asset-Backed Notes CEEESRHEE (102,916) -
Net cash used in investing activities REEHEENHREFE (33,847,087) (19,969,472)
145 Annual Report 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BHEZRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

Financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Proceeds from issuance of perpetual capital securities

Proceeds from issuance of corporate bonds
Redemption of corporate bonds
Redemption of perpetual capital securities
Capital contributions by non-controlling interests
Capital reduction by non-controlling interests
Advances from an intermediate holding company
Repayment of advance from an intermediate
holding company
Repayment of advances from associates
Advances from (repayment of advances from) joint ventures

Repayment of advances to other related companies
Advances from non-controlling interests of subsidiaries
Interests on bank loans and advances from

associates and joint ventures paid
Dividends paid to owners of the Company
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests of subsidiaries

Repayment of lease liabilities
Interest paid to perpetual capital securities holders
Underwriting fees for issuance of perpetual capital securities

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents,
represented by
- cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period
- cash and cash equivalents included in assets classified
as held for sale

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

ERENERBRAT

MEEE
EEPRSRIE
EERTEE
BITXAELES
FRSRUR
BT ABMESFHAEMIEA
E{CINCIEEE S
BBEIKABAE T
FRERE RS E
FRERIME A E
FPREIERA BB
BERBERAT R

EEHREEEIN
BERERR
(BEGERERN)
BEH MR AT 2R
Bt 8 A B) IR AR R 2 EAR
ENERAERBEE
NSIE-E S
BIRNEREEREARS
BAIH B R B IFIER
RENRS
BEHEAR
B XKABRZSHE
S KABRE
LITHRIHE

MEFHELENREIFE

RERREEEMBMPE
FNRERFELZEY
EXEHNTE

RERREEEMERD N

-HRBERREEEY
-DEAFAEREEEN
RERBEFEY
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2022
—E-CE
HK$’000

FERT

62,229,310

(43,383,069)

10,664,624

(5,776,692)

(10,558,855

509,297
(14,707)
3,571,843

(76,001)

73,807
(112,736)
15,814

(4,387,972)
(1,226,311)

(235,267)
(713,919)
(420,295)

(353)

10,158,518

478,170
7,934,211

(690,764)

7,721,275

342

7,721,617

HK$'000
FHET
(RENEE))
(BE5)

55,673,507
(27,753,140)

1,207,390
(6,042,400)

238,853

1,000,000

(700,000)
(375,156)

(146,532)
(143,646)
5,416

(3,987,665)
(3,154,904)

(482,129)
(149,678)
(462,980)

14,726,936

2,728,370
5,036,484
169,357

7,934,211

7,934,211



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

GENERAL

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Limited (the “Company”) is
a public company incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The intermediate holding company of the Company is
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited (“CRH”), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The directors regard the ultimate
holding company of the Company to be China Resources Company
Limited (“CRCL”), a company registered in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the construction and operation of power stations.

The address of the registered office of the Company is Rooms
2001-2002, 20th Floor, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of the
Company. The directors of the Company consider that HK$ is the
appropriate presentation currency since the Company is a public
company with the shares listed on the Stock Exchange where most
of its investors are located.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 2. [EREABMFERGED

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

ERENERBRAT

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period beginning
on 1 January 2022 for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment —

Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendment to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts —

Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2018-2020

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (conTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

2.1

2.2

Impacts and changes in accounting policies on
application of Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments update a reference in HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations so that it refers to the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting 2018 issued in June 2018 (the
“Conceptual Framework”) instead of Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
(replaced by the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2010 issued in October 2010), add a requirement
that, for transactions and events within the scope of HKAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, an acquirer applies HKAS 37
or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead of the Conceptual Framework
to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business
combination and add an explicit statement that an acquirer
does not recognise contingent assets acquired in a business
combination.

The Group applies the amendments to business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after 1 January 2022.
The application of the amendments in the current year
has had no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Impacts on application of Amendment to HKFRS 16
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June
2021

The Group has applied the Amendment to HKFRS 16
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June
2021 retrospectively for the first time in the current year.
The amendment extends the availability of the practical
expedient in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS
16") by one year so that the practical expedient applies to
rent concessions for which any reduction in lease payments
affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June
2022, provided the other conditions for applying the practical
expedient are met.

The application of this amendment has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance for
the current and prior years.
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2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (conTiNUED)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

2.3 Impacts and accounting policies on application of
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
- Proceeds before Intended Use

2.3.1 Accounting policies

Property, plant and equipment

The amendments specify that the costs of any item
that were produced while bringing an item of property,
plant and equipment to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management (such as samples
produced when testing whether the relevant property,
plant and equipment is functioning properly) and the
proceeds from selling such items should be recognised
and measured in the profit or loss in accordance
with applicable standards. The cost of the items are
measured in accordance with HKAS 2 Inventories.

2.3.2 Transition and summary of effects

The Group has applied the new accounting policy
retrospectively to property, plant and equipment made
available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest
period presented, 1 January 2021. The details of the
impacts on each financial statement line item and
earnings per share arising from the application of the
amendments are set out under “Impacts of application
of amendments to HKFRSs on the consolidated financial
statements” in Note 2.6. Comparative figures have been
restated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (conTiNUED)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

2.4 Impacts and accounting policies on application of
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

2.4.1 Accounting policies
Provisions
Onerous contracts

The amendments specify that, when an entity assesses
whether a contract is onerous in accordance with HKAS
37, the unavoidable costs under a contract should
reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract,
which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any
compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil it.
Costs of fulfilling the contract include incremental costs
and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to
fulfilling contracts (e.g. an allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment
used in fulfilling the contract).

2.4.2 Transition and summary of effects
The Group has applied the amendments to contracts for

which the Group has not yet fulfilled all its obligations as
at the date of initial application, 1 January 2022.

The application of the amendments has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial position and
performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (conTiNUED)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

2.5 Impacts on application of Amendments to HKFRSs
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

The Group has applied the annual improvements which make

amendments to the following standards:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies that for the purpose of assessing
whether modification of terms of original financial liability
constitutes substantial modification under the “10 per cent”
test, a borrower includes only fees paid or received between
the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received

by either the borrower or the lender on the other’s behalf.

HKFRS 16 Leases

The amendment to lllustrative Example 13 accompanying
HKFRS 16 removes from the example the illustration of
reimbursement relating to leasehold improvements by the

lessor in order to remove any potential confusion.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (conTiNUED)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

2.6 Impacts of application of amendments to HKFRSs on the
consolidated financial statements

The effects of the changes in accounting policy as a
result of application of amendments to HKAS 16 Property,
Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use
on the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and earnings per share, are as
follows:

B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

FEAREARFHRS 2
(FEAMFEIRESEN)
BYEET S wm)

MAEEERE £ RN EESFEIR
HEIMETER @)

2.6 ERAEEHMBIREERIETES
EHHBHREZEE

HERAEBGHERF165E (BE]
) (WE-BERREBE-RARE
RRATBIWNE ) BT S HRE
FHEHEBEGZRMEMEZERA
UkESkREMNHZENT

2022 2021
—E-C BT —F

HK$’000 HK$’000

Impact on profit for the year B F R 7 &
Increase in turnover =X
Increase in operating expenses AR Bl AN I N
Decrease in income tax expense Fri8 i & AR
Net increase in profit for the year FERF)EIE N FEEE
Increase in profit for the year FERPTIG A EEE B
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company - UNCIEZZ=DN
— Non-controlling interests —HMIEEE S

Impact on total comprehensive income ¥12 EXA #8582 & 2

Increase in total comprehensive income R PTG N2 EU A A28 R E 7Y

for the year attributable to:

— Owners of the Company e VNEIEZ= DN
- Non-controlling interests —H i IEZES s
153

FTET TATT

472,021 614,251
(218,787) (64,410)
- 2,535
253,234 552,376
236,892 545,097
16,342 7,279
253,234 562,376
178,830 554,779
15,103 7,434
193,933 562,213
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (conTiNUED)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

2.6 Impacts of application of amendments to HKFRSs on the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

Impact on basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share before
adjustments

Net adjustments arising from change in FL & s ERE E (FH A FRE ¢

accounting policy in relation to:
— Amendments to HKAS 16

(CHES)
Reported basic earnings per share 2R ERERRR]
China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. 1 54
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 2. [EREABMFERGED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING (FEAMBREEN)
e
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (conTiNUED) BYEET S wm)
Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily REEERE £ RN EBMEIR
effective for the current year (Continued) HEANEFTZ @
2.6 Impacts of application of amendments to HKFRSs on the 2.6 [EFEEHBREEANETES
consolidated financial statements (Continued) S REREE 2 (B
The effects of the changes in accounting policy as a result RERE B YT ERFE165E (BF]
of application of amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant K) (- -BEMRZE-RARE
and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use on the FRaT IR e ) BRI & 5T BUR &
consolidated statement of financial position as at the end of B F—EMBEER (BI20214
the immediately preceding financial year, i.e. 31 December 128310) NEHMBERRIETZE
2021, are as follows: 20
31 December 31 December
2021 2021
(Originally
stated) Adjustments (RESEWE))
20214 20214
12831H 12831H
(E%A0) HEE (BE5)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TET TAET
Property, plant and equipment )% i = K % & 192,953,359 592,667 193,546,026
Deferred tax assets RIEFTISINE E 1,040,784 2,573 1,043,357
Trade receivables, [ ST B R ~ ELAth B USURR
other receivables and PSS ENNEY QL
prepayments 37,768,557 17,035 37,785,592
Total effects on assets HEEENTE 231,762,700 612,275 282,374,975
Other non-controlling interests  EL{th JE#E Il 14 #E 2 7,835,877 8,174 7,844,061
Retained earnings REFHE 44,389,984 534,611 44,924,595
Other reserves HAthf#E % 21,680,974 69,490 21,750,464
Total effects on equity HEEGHNEE 73,906,835 612,275 74,519,110
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 2. EREAMBEHRSEN

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING (FEAMBRSEN)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (conTinueD) BMEET A @

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily MEEERE £ RN EBMEIR
effective for the current year (Continued) HEAEFTE @

2.6 Impacts of application of amendments to HKFRSs on the 26 EREEBHBHRSEETES

consolidated financial statements (Continued)

The effects of the changes in accounting policy as a result
of application of amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant
and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use on the
consolidated statement of financial position as at the
beginning of the comparative period i.e. 1 January 2021, are
as follows:

1 January
2021
(Originally
stated)
20214

181H

(731)

HK$’000

T

Property, plant and equipment )% = K% & 180,816,825

Other non-controlling interests  ELfth JE 2= Il 14 7 2% 9,320,463
Other reserves HhfEE 16,906,139
Retained earnings R EEFHE 46,579,919

Total effects on equity HEERNEE 72,806,521
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HEREAGHERF165E (BE]
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FRRAIBIWE ) BB G S ERE
BN ERAARKE (B12021F18
1H) NEHRERERZEZEN
B

1 January
2021

Adjustments (RESEIEE)
20214
181H

FHEE (B&E7F)
HK$’000 HK$’000
TAET THT
50,062 180,866,887

740 9,321,203
2,662 16,908,801
46,660 46,626,579

50,062 72,856,583



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (conTiNUED)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows

The effects of the changes in accounting policy as a result of
application of amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use on the consolidated
statement of cash flows, are as follows:

B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

2. MAEEMEREER
(fé;}%ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬂm
BIEET 2 @

WA R E MM EF R MR
SEAEFT AR @
HEHEERERNEE
RERSHBEHERNE16% (B5T4A)
(M BERBHE-BARTEBRA
M) BN BB E NS HIE
EHERZEEMT

2022
e =

— T ——

2021
— T
HK$'000
TAT

HK$’000
FTHET

OPERATING ACTIVITIES KEED
Increase in profit before income tax PS4 A1 A B 12 10 253,234 549,841
Increase in depreciation and amortisation T &5 Kz ## 5 1% /i 29,770 21,493
Net increase in cash from operating KEEHELNIREFIENZE

activities 283,004 571,334
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REIEE
Cash used in payments for purchases of BEEYIZE - BEKZREFMEN

property, plant and equipment BE (283,004) (571,334)
Net decrease in cash used in investing KEEHREFREE

activities (283,004) (571,334)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 2. [EREABMFERGED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING (FEAMBRSEN)
= =
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (conTiNUED) BUMEETZS @)
New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet B M E R R ERBET REE
effective IEBMBHREER
The Group has not early applied the following new and AEBEEKRIERZRMA T EZEMERER
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet AW R EBIEBMEREE
effective: 8] :
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts' EEUBRE =TSk
R E175E
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets ERUBRE REBHAREPEY
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and R 51057 K aEtEBANE
its Associate or Joint Venture? HA G ER] EHEFIE?
0857 (1B5T )
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback® EREUBREER EROERN
165 (85T 4A) THESRE
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current EHR AR BEIEARBIAIER
or Non-current and related B19E (1BET ) B BRESESH
amendments to Hong Kong WEET A (ZF
Interpretation 5 (2020)° —ZF)8
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants® HRAGTEL e I
F19E (BET ) =L
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies' HEGEEL] B RIS
and HKFRS Practice E1RREE
Statement 2 MRS ER
BERRER2R
CHEN
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates' BRG] BithsTNER
B8 (BETA)
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and BEGHER RE-QZEENEE
Liabilities arising from a Single 125k (BETA) KREEEENIEE
Transaction’ M
L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. L RIE2EZ=_F—A—HBRZ2EBRENF
EHBER -
e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined. z AT BMRZ BB FEREES -
! ’ I & RIZ2ZMFE—A—BHRZ2EBRENF
e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. & HARS A 4 0
Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below, BT X FTil S B IR S ER ] &
the directors of the Company anticipate that the application of BABET RN RABEETER > FEFB AN
all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material BEEHMME] REIEFTE BT R ELER
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable RAEENERIAEHEHVFRRE
future. REAFE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (conTiNUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition exemption
of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets in paragraphs 15
and 24 of HKAS 12 Income Taxes so that it no longer applies to
transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences.

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, for
leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable
to the lease liabilities, for transactions in which provisions for
decommissioning and restoration are recognised with the
corresponding amounts recognised as part of the cost of the
related assets, the Group applies HKAS 12 requirements to the
relevant assets and liabilities separately. Temporary differences
on initial recognition of the relevant assets and liabilities are not
recognised due to application of the initial recognition exemption.

In addition, the Group will recognise a deferred tax asset (to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised) and
a deferred tax liability for all deductible and taxable temporary
differences associated with the provisions for decommissioning and
restoration and the corresponding amounts recognised as part of
the cost of the related assets.

The amendments are effective for the Group’s annual reporting
periods beginning on 1 January 2023. As at 31 December
2022, the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities which are subject to the amendments amounted to
HK$313,568,000 and HK$1,266,327,000, respectively. The Group
is still in the process of assessing the full impact of the application
of the amendments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (conTiNUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (the “2020 Amendments”) and
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments”)

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least
twelve months from reporting date for classification of liabilities as
current or non-current, which:

o clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option of
the counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer of the
entity’s own equity instruments, these terms do not affect
its classification as current or non-current only if the entity
recognises the option separately as an equity instrument
applying HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

o specify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-
current should be based on rights that are in existence at
the end of the reporting period. Specifically, the amendments
clarify that the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle the liability
within 12 months.

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date which are conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the requirements introduced by the 2020 Amendments
have been modified by the 2022 Amendments. The 2022
Amendments specify that only covenants with which an entity
is required to comply with on or before the end of the reporting
period affect the entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting date. Covenants which are
required to comply with only after the reporting period do not affect
whether that right exists at the end of the reporting period.

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the disclosure
requirements about information that enables users of financial
statements to understand the risk that the liabilities could become
repayable within twelve months after the reporting period, if the
entity classify liabilities arising from loan arrangements as non-
current when the entity’s right to defer settlement of those liabilities
is subject to the entity complying with covenants within twelve

months after the reporting period.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (conTiNUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (the “2020 Amendments”) and
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments”) (Continued)

The 2022 Amendments also defer the effective date of applying
the 2020 Amendments to annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2024. The 2022 Amendments, together with
the 2020 Amendments, are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024, with early application
permitted. If an entity applies the 2020 amendments for an earlier
period after the issue of the 2022 Amendments, the entity should
also apply the 2022 Amendments for that period.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31 December
2022, the application of the 2020 and 2022 Amendments will not
result in reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.

CHANGES OF ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES

Upon recent assessment carried out by the management taking
into account past operating experience with the combination of
actual usage of relevant assets and considering market practice by
taking reference from major operators in China’s power industry, the
Board approved the resolution that the estimated useful lives of the
wind power and photovoltaic power generation equipment should
be adjusted from 18 years to 20 years without residual value with
effect from 1 January 2022.

In the current year period, this change in estimated useful lives
has resulted in a decrease in the depreciation charge for the year
by HK$673,926,000, and an increase in profit for the year by
HK$582,400,000.

161

B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

FEREBMFERSE
(FEAMFEIRESEN)
BYEET S wm)

B M AR R EMBI T REE
SIEAMBHREEDN @

BEEHERF1 (15377F) BEF L
BB HIF B R E B FEREESLHIE
T (CE-FF) ((ZTE-FFE
5T7y) REE G ERF15E (1E5TZ)
M Z2EE B R E ((ZFEZ—FE
5771) (%)

TR TFESIATNE R R FER]
ANEMHREEE T _NF—F—
HRZBRENEERESM-— i::
FEIAERN T _TFETEAH
_EE—H—EjZé%%%Egﬁ%
AR BTAFFRAEA - HERN
BT FEIABMBENRERIER
TECREETA AZRBERIERZ
S22 e — = ) N

REAEER S _F+A=+—
HRREEER BA-Z T FE5]
AR B ZFEI A EENAER
NEREEHIE-

GRS

EEEBRBEATEERR SEETE
EERERBER T2E0EBNTE
TEBEENTHEERHELEON KF
Ax%%?tt& B2022F1H1HERE
SR EBRFBENTBERERI8
Eﬁ%%zofﬁ’ﬁtwﬁfﬁo

REEE > st FEREHESER
REEIES HIR/D673,926,0008 7T
Fe 7 5 s A 12 0582,400,00078 7T ©

Annual Report 2022
FIR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. For
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange.

At 31 December 2022, the Group had net current liabilities
of approximately HK$34,039,978,000 (excluding assets
classified as held for sale and liabilities associated with assets
classified as held for sale). In addition, there were outstanding
capital commitments amounting to HK$18,607,414,000 (Note
50). The directors of the Company are of the opinion that,
taking into account the current operation of the Group as well
as the banking facilities (Note 39) available to the Group, the
Group has sufficient working capital to enable it to meet in
full its financial obligations as and when they fall due in the
coming twelve months from the date of statement of financial
position. Therefore, these consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

4. REUSHABHRROEE
REXEHABE®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies

4.2 EXRGETHER

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16 “Leases”, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to
be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition
the results of the valuation technique equals the transaction
price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTtinueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved

when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. 164

ERENERBRAT

4. REUSHABHRROEE
REXGHHR@

4.2 ERGEEE @

L5 B RETS > AABE
HEOAE—R E_MRAE=
B ILZRI A RBEELBAY
EN TR R AR
ApFEHBOEEEEM Bt
mF

s F—HMBMABEEZERR
StERMERERTS LA
BEENBREFSHNRE CRE

AR ;

s EIBREAMBIERE &
AFfEaszRELSN ATE
BEUERREBREENAR
ZENMEEE 8 AR ;
Jisd

. ECRBARBIEZRBAK
BRTHEREENAEN
H TG o

EHEE
EHMBRREEEAATDREE
ARRENBABMEGEREZ
MBERR - WERREMATE
18> RI1R R BV 21l

s HWKRENHEAED;

. MBERLEHFETEE
RERARLHEERN ; &

s HANTEEBAOUEEHRE
WZBEST°

HESFEMBERLER Lt =T8T
RlITRZ—ENZEEE  RIEE
EeEtERREMNRKRES -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of a
subsidiary is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of a subsidiary to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant a subsidiary
upon liquidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTtinueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing a subsidiary

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not
result in the Group losing control over the a subsidiary are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the a subsidiary, including re-attribution of
relevant reserves between the Group and the non-controlling
interests according to the Group’s and the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests
(if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”) or, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets which
includes an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
acquired processes are considered substantive if they are
critical to the ability to continue producing outputs, including
an organised workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge,
or experience to perform the related processes or they
significantly contribute to the ability to continue producing
outputs and are considered unique or scarce or cannot be
replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability
to continue producing outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses, other than business combination
under common control are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

For business combinations in which the acquisition date is on
or after 1 January 2022, the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of an asset and
a liability in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 issued in June 2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”)
except for transactions and events within the scope of HKAS
37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21, in which the Group applies HKAS 37
or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead of the Conceptual Framework
to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business
combination. Contingent assets are not recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4. REUSHABHRROEE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL REXGHHR@

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTtinueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 4.2 EREEEK @

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 at
the acquisition date (see the accounting policy below);

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard; and

° lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases for
which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of
the lease when compared with market terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’'s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at
its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes
in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise
from additional information obtained during the “measurement
period” (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition
date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTtinueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a
liability is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting
dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
and measured under HKFRS 9 would be accounted for on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had disposed
directly of the previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted retrospectively during the
measurement period, and additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or group of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest level
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes and not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit (or group of cash-generating units).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTtinueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of
the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-generating
units, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of an operation within the cash-
generating unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group of
cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed of is
measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation
(or the cash-generating unit) disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-generating
units) retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate and a joint venture is described below.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

4. REUSHABHRROEE
REXEHABE®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

4.2 BERGEEE @

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures used
for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate or joint venture exceeds
the Group’s interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTtinueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to
any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

4. REUSHABHRROEE
REXEHABE®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

4.2 BERGEEE @

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate or joint
venture and the retained interest is a financial asset within
the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded
as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference between
the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture and
the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing of the relevant interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate or
joint venture on the same basis as would be required if that
associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate
or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of
the relevant associate or joint venture.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTtinueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised
in the consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related
to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
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4. REUSHABHRROEE
REXEHABE®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

4.2 BERGEEE @

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTtinueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on input method, which is
to recognise revenue on the basis of the Group’s efforts
or inputs to the satisfaction of a performance obligation
relative to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of
that performance obligation, that best depict the Group’s
performance in transferring control of goods or services.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purpose (other than construction in
progress as described below). Property, plant and equipment
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Construction work in progress comprises infrastructure
construction of new power plants, technical improvement
projects of existing power plants and coal mines being
constructed, is carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly attributable
to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Sale proceeds of items that are produced while bringing an
item of property, plant and equipment to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management (such as samples produced
when testing whether the asset is functioning properly), and
the related costs of producing those items are recognised in
the profit or loss. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-
of-use assets” in the consolidated statement of financial
position. When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided interest
in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets (other than construction in progress) less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual value
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTtinueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Mining rights

Mining rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses, and are amortised using the unit
of production method based on the proved and probable
mineral reserves.

Exploration and resources rights

Exploration and resources rights are recognised at cost
on initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition,
exploration and resources rights are stated at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Exploration and
resources rights include the cost of exploration rights and
the expenditures incurred in the search for mineral resources
as well as the determination of the technical feasibility and
commercial viability of extracting those resources. When
the technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting
mineral resources become demonstrable and relevant mining
rights certificate is obtained, previously recognised exploration
and resources rights are reclassified as mining rights. These
assets are assessed for impairment before reclassifications.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, mining rights and exploration and resources
rights

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, mining rights and exploration and resources
rights to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

4. REUSHABHRROEE
REXEHABE®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

4.2 BERGEEE @

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, mining rights and exploration and resources
rights (Continued)

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, mining rights and exploration and
resources rights are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of
the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTtinueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, mining rights and exploration and resources
rights (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months or less),
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
a known amount of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents
are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments rather than for investment or other
purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management. Such
overdrafts are presented as short-term borrowings in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Bank balances for which use by the Group is subject to
third party contractual restrictions are included as part of
cash unless the restrictions result in a bank balance no
longer meeting the definition of cash. Contractual restrictions
affecting use of bank balances are disclosed in note 32.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTtinueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories include fuel oil for power generation, coal,
materials for repairs and maintenance and spare parts, and
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs
of inventories are determined on a weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all costs necessary to make sale. Costs
necessary to make the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components, including contract for acquisition
of ownership interest of a property which includes both
leasehold land and non-lease building components, unless
such allocation cannot be made reliably.

Non-lease components are separated from lease component
and are accounted for by applying other applicable standards.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of land and buildings and photovoltaic facilities
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It
also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

4. REUSHABHRROEE
REXGHHR@

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTtinueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

4.2 ERGEEE @

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is

reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTtinueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-
of-use assets. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated. When a fair value gain or loss on a non-
monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is also recognised in profit or
loss. When a fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
that period, in which case the exchange rates at the date of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to

non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are

reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(i.e. partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements
that do not result in the Group losing significant influence
or joint control), the proportionate share of the accumulated

exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTtinueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
before 1 January 2005 is treated as non-monetary foreign
currency items of the acquirer and reported using the
historical cost prevailing at the date of acquisition.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the
related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included
in the general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation
rate on general borrowings. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss
on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other income”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTtinueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of
providing benefits is determined using the projected unit
credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at
the end of each annual reporting period. In determining the
present value of the Group’s defined benefit obligations and
the related current service cost and, where applicable, past
service cost, the Group attributes benefit to periods of service
under the plan’s benefit formula. However, if an employee’s
service in later years will lead to a materially higher level of
benefit than earlier years, the Group attributes the benefit on a
straight-line basis from:

(@) the date when service by the employee first leads to
benefits under the plan (whether or not the benefits are
conditional on further service) until

(b) the date when further service by the employee will lead
to no material amount of further benefits under the plan,
other than from further salary increases.

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the
effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and
the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected
immediately in the consolidated statement of financial position
with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement
recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected
immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period
of a plan amendment or curtailment and a gain or loss on
settlement is recognised when settlement occurs. When
determining past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement,
an entity shall remeasure the net defined benefit liability or
asset using the current fair value of plan assets and current
actuarial assumptions, reflecting the benefits offered under
the plan and the plan assets before and after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement, without considering
the effect of asset ceiling (i.e. the present value of any
economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the
plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan).

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at
the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability
or asset. However, if the Group remeasures the net defined
benefit liability or asset before plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement, the Group determines net interest for the
remainder of the annual reporting period after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement using the benefits
offered under the plan and the plan assets after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement and the discount rate
used to remeasure such net defined benefit liability or asset,
taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit
liability or asset during the period resulting from contributions
or benefit payments.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

° service cost (including current service cost, past service
cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and
settlements);

° net interest expense or income; and

L/ remeasurement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTtinueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

4. RUSHUBRRVEE

REXGHHR@

4.2 ERGEEE @

Employee benefits (Continued)

Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position represents the
actual deficit or surplus in the Group’s defined benefit plans.
Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the
present value of any economic benefits available in the form
of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions
to the plans.

Discretionary contributions made by employees or third
parties reduce service cost upon payment of these
contributions to the plan.

When the formal terms of the plans specify that there will be
contributions from employees or third parties, the accounting
depends on whether the contributions are linked to service,
as follows:

° If the contributions are not linked to services (for
example contributions are required to reduce a deficit
arising from losses on plan assets or from actuarial
losses), they are reflected in the remeasurement of the
net defined benefit liability or asset.

° If contributions are linked to services, they reduce
service costs. For the amount of contribution that is
dependent on the number of years of service, the entity
reduces service cost by attributing the contributions to
periods of service using the attribution method required
by HKAS 19 paragraph 70 for the gross benefits. For
the amount of contribution that is independent of the
number of years of service, the entity reduces service
cost in the period in which the related service is
rendered.

Termination benefits

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier
of when the Group entity can no longer withdraw the offer
of the termination benefit and when it recognises any related
restructuring costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group
in respect of services provided by employees up to the
reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts
resulting from service cost, interest and remeasurements are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that another
HKFRS requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an
asset.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTtinueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in a subsidiary and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 “Income Taxes” requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial
recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised due to application of the initial
recognition exemption. Temporary differences arising from
subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of
lease liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject
to initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date of
remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTtinueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Without group relief

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

With group relief

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either:

(@) the same taxable entity; or

(b) different taxable entities which intend either to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,
in each future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value
of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

Provisions for the Group’s restoration, rehabilitation and
environmental expenses are based on estimates of required
expenditure at the mines in accordance with PRC rules and
regulations. Provisions are measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTtinueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

REXEHABE®

4.2 BERGEEE @

4. GUSHUBHRRVEE

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”):

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss, except that at initial recognition of
a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

4. REUSHABHRROEE
REXGHHR@

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTtinueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

4.2 ERGEEE @

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of
the reporting period following the determination that the asset
is no longer credit impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the capital reserve; and are not
subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or
loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of
the equity investments, and will be transferred to retained
earnings.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other income” line item in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets including
trade and other receivables, loan to/amounts due from
related parties (including associates, joint ventures, a FVOCI
investee company, non-controlling shareholders and other
related parties), pledged and restricted bank deposits, bank
balances, and financial guarantee contracts which are subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessments are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
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4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTtinueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

4. RUSHUBRRVEE

REXGHHR@

4.2 ERGEEE @

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTtinueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment
is considered to be the date of initial recognition for the
purposes of assessing impairment. In assessing whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition of financial guarantee contracts,
the Group considers the changes in the risk that the
specified debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTtinueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider; or

it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data and forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTtinueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is required
to make payments only in the event of a default by the
debtor in accordance with the terms of the instrument
that is guaranteed. Accordingly, the ECL is the present
value of the expected payments to reimburse the holder
for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that the
Group expects to receive from the holder, the debtor or
any other party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which the
effective interest rate cannot be determined, the Group
will apply a discount rate that reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks
that are specific to the cash flows but only if, and to the
extent that, the risks are taken into account by adjusting
the discount rate instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls
being discounted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

Except for financial guarantee contract, the Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a
loss allowance account.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTtinueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at
FVOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the capital reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss but is
transferred to retained earnings.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Perpetual instruments, which include no contractual obligation
for the Group to deliver cash or other financial assets or the
Group has the sole discretion to defer payment of distribution
and redemption of principal amount indefinitely are classified
as equity instruments. The dividends for the perpetual capital
securities are accounted for as profit distribution.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
amounts due to associates, amounts due to joint ventures,
amounts due to other related parties and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payments when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contract liabilities
are measured initially at their fair values. It is subsequently
measured at the higher of:

° the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and

° the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee
period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTtinueD)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows as a result of interest rate benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows of a financial asset or financial liability to which the
amortised cost measurement applies as a result of interest
rate benchmark reform, the Group applies the practical
expedient to account for these changes by updating the
effective interest rate, such change in effective interest rate
normally has no significant effect on the carrying amount of
the relevant financial asset or financial liability.

A change in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows is required by interest rate benchmark reform if and only
if, both these conditions are met:

° the change is necessary as a direct consequence of
interest rate benchmark reform; and

° the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows
is economically equivalent to the previous basis (i.e. the
basis immediately preceding the change).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 5.

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 4, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumption about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have made in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Trade receivables in respect of tariff premium of renewable
energy plants

The Group recognised trade receivables arising from tariff premium
of renewable energy plants, pursuant to Caidian [2012] No. 102
Notice PIBLREREBWMMEIEEEEYEITHIE and Caidian
[2020] No. 4 Notice RANMEEIFKAIBEREREBRRERENS
FER and No. 5 Notice MBI R % BN EZEHKERBE
RENZE I BERREENNMESEIENE) BB (collectively
referred to “Measures”) jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance, the
National Development and Reform Commission and the National
Energy Administration, a set of new standardised procedures
for the settlement of the aforementioned renewable energy tariff
premium has come into force since then and approvals on a project
by project basis are required before the allocation of funds to local
grid companies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 5. EAX®:

“EHF+RA=+—HLFE

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (conTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Trade receivables in respect of tariff premium of renewable
energy plants (Continued)

Relevant tariff premium were recognised only to the extent that
it is highly probable that such an inclusion would not result in a
significant revenue reversal in the future on the basis that all of the
Group’s operating renewable energy plants had been qualified for,
and had met, all the requirements and conditions as required based
on the prevailing nationwide government policies on renewable
energy plants, and taking into account renewable power plants
currently in operation had met the requirements and conditions as
stipulated in the above Measures for the entitlement of the tariff
subsidy when the electricity was delivered on grid, and also the
requirements and conditions for the entitlement of the tariff subsidy
under the Measures.

As at 31 December 2022, some of the Group’s related projects
have been approved for the tariff premium of renewable energy and
certain projects are in the process of applying for the approval. The
tariff premium receivables are settled in accordance with prevailing
government policies and prevalent payment trends of the Ministry
of Finance. There is no due date for settlement. The management
is of the opinion that the approvals will be obtained in due course
and these trade receivables from tariff premium are fully recoverable
considering there were no prior bad debt experiences with the
grid companies and such tariff premium is funded by the PRC
government.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 5. T A®i#I6R{LstAER
BAEIZENEERE@®

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (conTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The estimate of depreciable lives of property, plant and
equipment, especially power generating plant and equipment
and mining structures, was made by the directors of the
Company with reference to the following: (1) the historical
usage of the assets; (2) their expected physical wear and
tear; (3) results of recent durability assessment performed; (4)
technical or commercial obsolescence arising from changes
or improvements in production of similar fixed assets; and (5)
the changes in market demand for, or legal or comparable
limits imposed on, the use of such fixed assets. When the
useful lives differ from the original estimated useful lives,
management will adjust the estimated useful lives accordingly.

The current estimated useful lives are stated in Note 17.
It is possible that the estimates made based on existing
experience are different to the actual outcomes within next
financial period and could cause a material adjustment to
the depreciation and carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 5. EAX®:

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

7R B (i 5t A BA

BIRIZERNEERE @

UNCERTAINTY (conTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b) Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment

(c)

In determining whether a property, plant and equipment is
impaired or the event previously causing the impairment
no longer exists, management has to exercise judgement,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred
that may affect the asset value or such event affecting
the asset value has not been in existence; (2) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset or derecognition; and
(3) the appropriate key assumptions, including generation
volumes of the power plants, electricity prices, coal prices,
output volumes for the coal mines under construction and
discount rates that reflect current market assessments of
the time value of money and risks specific to the CGUs,
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using
an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected by
management to determine the level of impairment, including
the discount rate or the growth rate assumptions in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect net present value used
in the impairment test.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill
has been allocated, which is the higher of the value in
use or fair value less costs of disposal. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit (or a
group of cash-generating units) and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, or change in facts and
circumstances which results in downward revision of future
cash flows or upward revision of discount rate, a material
impairment loss or further impairment loss may arise.

The details of the assumptions used by management and the
sensitivity analysis are disclosed in Note 19.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 5.
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (conTiNUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(d) Income taxation

As at 31 December 2022, no deferred tax assets (2021:
nil) in relation to unused tax losses has been recognised in
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised on the tax losses of
HK$22,466,925,000 (2021: HK$24,907,472,000) either due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams or because it
is not probable that unused tax losses will be available for
utilisation before their expiry. The realisability of the deferred
tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future taxable
profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in the
future.

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 6.
INFORMATION

Turnover represents revenue arising from (i) sales of electricity, and
(i) heat supply and related service by thermal power plants during
the year. The group is currently engaged in two business areas —
thermal power (inclusive of coal-fired and gas-fired power plants)
and renewable energy (inclusive of wind farms, hydro-electric
projects and photovoltaic power generation).

B IIHE ()

Sales of electricity (i)

— Sales of power generated from —NERBEHE
thermal power plants
— Sales of power generated from — A BERERESHE

renewable energy

Heat supply related (by thermal power AEMLFE (A BB AR EE 20) (ii)

plants) (ii)

— Heat supply —EASE(LAE

— Heat supply pipeline maintenance —HBE R E S BAEERTS
service
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AR IEGEERANELERIE

EE(CZ—F 8 XNEEH
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1B EWAT A B BEBN AR B SR AR
TEE51822,466,925,0008 75 (Z=
Z—4F 1 24,907,472,000 7T) B
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2022
==

— T ——

2021
—B-—f
HK$’000
TFHET
(RESEIEE))
(BE5)

HK$’000

FET

73,953,560 62,591,759

21,333,780 20,872,076

7,896,175 6,824,865

121,582 125,466
90,414,166 .

103,305,097
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 6. BXEERPHPER @

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

ERENERBRAT

INFORMATION (conTiNuED)

For sales of electricity and heat supply, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when electricity and heat is generated and transferred
to the power grid owned by the respective regional or provincial
grid companies or the customers, respectively. For heat supply
pipeline maintenance service, revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
makers (“CODM”). The CODM mainly include executive directors
and members of senior management of the Company. For the
purpose of resources allocation and performance assessment,
the CODM review operating results and financial information on
a group company by company basis. Each such group company
is identified as an operating segment. When the group company
operates in similar business model with similar target group of
customers, the group’s operating segments are aggregated.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments under HKFRS 8
“Operating Segments” are as follows:

(i) Renewable energy represents sales of electricity,
development, construction, management and operation of
wind farms, hydro-electric projects and photovoltaic power
generation (“renewable energy”).

(i)  Thermal power represents sales of electricity, provision of
related services, development, construction, management
and operation of coal-fired and gas-fired power plants
(“thermal power”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 6. EXRFRIEBEN @
INFORMATION (conTiNuED)
Transaction price allocated to the remaining NEFEREHNNRGBNET
performance obligation for contracts with customers MR 3B
The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance RNZE_—_F#R_ZE-_—F+2"H
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December —t+—HARETRGEANEETHNZZE
2022 and 2021, and the expected timing of recognising revenue M (REM I D REM) MR =D
are as follows: TEHARFREIU T -

2022 2021
s B —F

Heat supply Heat supply

FAREHAE HAE e

HK$’000 HK$’000

FAT FAET

Within one year 1,233,004 1,481,794

More than one year BiE—F 873,021 858,566
2,106,025 2,340,360
All sales of electricity are for periods of one year or less. As FREENHEAABE—FHUT -HI
permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these EBMBREELE165EFMAT > D
unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed. FTZERERNGNNZZEERFTTH
Zo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 6.
INFORMATION (conTiNuED)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by

SEBRTHEN @

SEE R A

R R r 2|0 88 0B A LB WD
REEDH

operating segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BHE

Thermal
power

AT

HK$’000
FET

SEGMENT REVENUE 73 BB UL #
External sales SNEREH & 81,971,317
Timing of revenue recognition o 220 Wi 2 B B
— at a point in time —RNE B 81,849,735
— over time — Mg IRF R FE 53 121,582
81,971,317
Segment (Losses) profit 2EB (E518) A (2,540,676)
Exchange gains, net bE %2 7% I i
Profit before income tax FRET1S 2 A0 A8

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.
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e

Renewable

energy

A BEETR

HK$’000
FET

21,333,780

21,333,780

21,333,780

10,008,388

F+ZA=+—HLEEFE

Total
i

HK$’000

F&ET

103,305,097

103,183,515
121,582

103,305,097

7,467,712

1,993,762

9,461,474



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 6. EXERSIBEH @
INFORMATION (conTiNuED)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) DENE R EE @
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BHE_Z-_—S+°HA=+—HIEE
Thermal Renewable
power energy Tota
NE A B AR 4 st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET TAET
(RESIEIE)] (Restated) (REREVET))
GEX) (BEF) (B&E5)
SEGMENT REVENUE pan: il &
External sales SMNERSH & 69,542,090 20,872,076 90,414,166
Timing of revenue recognition S0 U 23 BY BRF 5
— at a point in time —RNE B 69,416,624 20,872,076 90,288,700
— over time — BE IRF R FE 33 125,466 - 125,466
69,542,090 20,872,076 90,414,166
Segment (losses) profit oE (E518) FH (7,159,624) 9,982,257 2,822,633
Exchange losses, net bE R 7FE R (431,217)
Profit before income tax FRPTS IR BIA] 2,391,416
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as KE DB G 5t R B sH4PT IO A
the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 4. EEEEHBERER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 6. EXRFRTEBEN @
INFORMATION (conTiNuED)
Segment assets and liabilities PHEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by UTAEBIZRDPHEPNEAEREE
operating and reportable segment: V4= EPakiigh

2022 2021
== %
HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET THE7T
(Restated)
(B&5)

Segment assets DHEE
— Thermal power —NE 121,678,713 137,732,305
— Renewable energy — o BEER 161,708,933 150,235,047
Total segment assets and BARNBEERGHEE
consolidated assets 283,387,646 287,967,352
Segment liabilities pan= 3=V
— Thermal power —NE 98,626,120 97,411,485
— Renewable energy — A BAEER 84,207,978 82,892,986
Total segment liabilities and consolidated #2HQ I EEREHERE
liabilities 182,834,098 180,304,471
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and MERDBRBERN DI ZEBOEER
allocating resources among segments, all assets and liabilities are M FMEBEEENBERASFESRRE
allocated to operating segments in the current year. EENE o
China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. 224
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 6. EXERIHBEH @
INFORMATION (conTINUED)
Other segment information Hth EpE*
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE_TE__F+_A=+—HLEFE

Thermal Renewable
power energy Total

KE BERR #E 5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FTRET FTAET

Amounts included in the BIEESHAER

measure of segment DEEESTEN

profit and segment assets: Er I
Additions to non-current ERBEEN

assets () REMRE() 6,826,228 28,665,813 35,492,041
Depreciation and amortisation HrEE Ko i 8K 7,925,147 6,504,445 14,429,592
Impairment charges PERER=ES 871,718 173,498 1,045,216
Net gains (losses) on disposal HEVE -BEXR

of property, plant RENWE (B518) F

and equipment EE) 42,303 (8,937) 33,366
Share of results of associates FELEE S (181,500) 68,824 (112,676)
Share of results of Eiha S hExEA

joint ventures (242,822) 156,085 (86,737)
Finance costs M58 1,671,468 2,218,724 3,890,192
Interest income FIE WA 115,545 76,906 192,451
Amounts regularly provided to EHEEREEREKE

CODM but not included in the REERBEETDE

measure of segment profit: FEHEDN

FEE .
Income tax expense Frig# & B 620,022 1,285,552 1,905,574
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (conTiNuED)

Other segment information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Amounts included in the
measure of segment
profit and segment assets:
Additions to non-current
assets (i)
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment charges
Net gains (losses) on disposal
of property, plant
and equipment

Share of results of associates

Share of results of joint ventures

Finance costs

Interest income

Amounts regularly provided to
CODM but not included in the
measure of segment profit:

Income tax expense

(i) Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets and financial instruments.

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.
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FERBDEEN
AEMEE()

e s sy

EAIEEEES

HEYE BERRE
Wak (B518) 28

FEGHHE B

BEEEREER

MHBER

B WA

TR EEEEARARE
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6. SEEBERDHEN @

Hih D EER @
HE_Z-_—H+-A=+—RIEE

Thermal
power
KB

HK$’000

TETT
(Restated)
(BEF)

6,965,734
8,122,742
424,282

72,434

(367,129)
(252,532)
1,133,472
247,630

12,643

Renewable
energy
AIBEAEER
HK$’'000
T
(RESEUE))
(BEF)

20,959,786
6,496,336
8,392

(1,737)

608,475
133,250
2,626,316
52,971

942,358

Total
“ast
HK$’'000
FHET
(REREVE))
(B&5)

27,925,520
14,619,078
432,674

70,697

241,346
(119,282)

3,759,788
300,601

965,001

FRBEETEREERNBEERERM
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (conTiNuED)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are principally located in the PRC. The
Group’s revenue from external customers are mainly attributed to
customers located in the PRC. The Group’s non-current assets
excluding deferred tax assets and financial instruments, which
amounted to HK$230,031,617,000 as at 31 December 2022
(2021: HK$231,735,562,000 (restated)) are located in the PRC.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of each corresponding year contributing
over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as follows:

Customer A (Note)
Customer B (Note)

ZRA (55)
% FB (M)

Note: Revenue from both the thermal power and renewable energy segments.

*

The amount was less than 10% of the total sales of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

7. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Wages, salaries and bonus TE - FEeRIEA
Social insurance expenses and retirement
benefit schemes (Note 42 (i) & (ii)

Termination benefit costs (Note 42 (iii))

(P EE42() R (i)

Expenses capitalised in construction in
progress:

Other staff costs HME T A
Pension costs FIESY NN
227
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HE R E A RRRERN TS

RIEZERMER (5E42(ii))

RERIENESENER :

B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

SEBRTHEN @

i E

AEBNEBETEMNPE KAEBFT
BREIFLNNE FEEREMUNH
EHNER RIE-__F+-F=1+—
B> AEENERHEE FSEELEF
SREEKREMTA) 230,081,617,000
BT (T —4F:231,735,562,0005 7T
(BEH)) Ui AHE-

ERTEXRNEN

REEEFEERFEERHEERR
10%HE PRI T ¢

2022

g

2021

HK$’000
TR

HK$’000
THET
(RESEWE))
(B&5)

12,913,775
N/A* 738 A

17,745,438
11,916,680

i REKBREBEERS BN

: BEEORARERE_S-—4
t-R=t+—BLEEEHEEN
10%-°

ESEFIRAZ

2022 2021
—E-C B —F

HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAET

5,598,945 5,327,551
1,031,455 1,016,333
1,193 10,658
6,631,593 6,354,542

282,829 327,771
43,630 51,133
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

7. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

(CONTINUED)
() Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include one (2021: three) director(s)
whose emoluments are disclosed in the analysis shown in
Note 13. The emoluments paid to the remaining four (2021:
two) individuals during the year are as follows.

Salaries and other benefits e REMER
Bonus TE4L
Post-employment benefits BB 2R

Emoluments of these four (2021: two) individuals other than
directors are within the following bands:

Emolument bands e M 26 [
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 TE
4,000,00078 7T
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 TE
4,500,0007 75
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 TE
5,000,0007% 75
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001t E
5,500,0007& 7T
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 T E
6,000,0007 75
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F W) ALBEREI T -

2022
—EZZ

HK$’000
FET

2021

— 5= —

— e

HK$'000
TAET

5,740 3,158
9,186 7,417
758 382
15,684 10,957
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. OTHER INCOME 8.

Sales of scrap materials and HEEN&EIER
by-product
Government grants (Note)

KB (EE)

Interest income A E WA
Service income RIS E WA
Dividend income from FVOCI KEUARBEGFTZBEES
investee companies s AE AR & W B9
RENT KB A
Others Hith
Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group received grants from certain
PRC governmental departments to compensate high operating costs amounting
to HK$90,399,000 (2021: HK$60,383,000). Those conditions attached with these
grants have been met before receipt of the grants and, therefore, the Group
recognised the grants as income upon receipt.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group did not receive grants from
the PRC government (2021: HK$39,664,000), which were to encourage certain
PRC subsidiaries to close down the coal mines as a result of the China’s supply-
side reform.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group received grants of
HK$135,100,000 (2021: HK$297,942,000), from the PRC government, for
encouraging certain PRC subsidiaries to increase supply of electricity, and grants
for encouraging the development of environmental friendly electricity generation of
HK$429,891,000 (2021: HK$246,964,000). Those conditions attached to these
grants have been met before receipt of the grants and are not related to assets,
therefore, the Group recognised the grants as income upon receipt.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, government grants relating to
assets that are credited to other income amounted to HK$61,212,000 (2021:
HK$59,184,000) (Note 41).
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H it A

2022
e =

— T ——

2021

B —F
HK$’000
FET

HK$’000
FTAET

663,687 1,198,457
716,602 704,137
192,451 300,601
249,687 430,127
57,727 106,600
101,413 77,224
2,812,146

1,981,567

Mk -

HE_Z-__H#+_A=+—RALEE - x&EH
Y ) & F o B BUAT 30 P9 2 1 8 58 Ak A1 0 M
BV RL 0 £%E7390,399,0008 T (ZE = —
£ 160,383,000/ 7T) ° % E MBI IREER
YR B R IE AT B A > UL AEE R U R R
B BUA °

RBE_E2-__F+-_BA=+—HBLEE &
EEARWEPEBFERNEE (T2 —F
39,664,000 7T) > AR EEE THENB AT
ZEhERARIN BRI IR

RBE_E__F#+-A=+—HLEEE =&
£E B U 3 A BB AT 82 AR AY 4 B 135,100,0008 7T

(T —4F 1 297,942,000 7T) W AR EEE
T Y B A B B9 i EE B 1 0 DA R B B B B 1R
1R ETE B #R5429,891,0008 75 (Z B - —4F !
246,964,000 7T)  ZE MBI E4FER U
BREREEZERBREEER AL ~EE
R UEREFRE SR BN B UR A ©

RBE_E-__F+"A=+—HLEE A
Hahg AR E ERR BT B 261,212,000/ 7T
(ZZZ—% : 59,184,000 7T) (MizEa1) o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. Hith}g=

2022 2021
—E-C B —F

HK$’000 HK$'000
FTART THET

Exchange gains (losses), net PERF U (B518) 1,993,762 (431,217)
Gains on disposal of property, HEYE BEKRRKREDN
plant and equipment W= 33,366 70,697
Gains on disposal of right-of-use assets HEFREEEN N D 90,987 131,247
Gains (losses) on disposal of subsidiaries HENBRABNKE (B18) 32,137 (761)
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HESEhEN KT - 61,161
Bargain purchase gain arose WeEE M B A Bl E YR B
from acquisition of BEWE (Mizt46)
subsidiaries (Note 46) - 44,813
Other HAh 33,897 31,981
2,184,149 (92,079)
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. U5 EH

2022
—g°C

HK$’000

FTET

Interests on borrowings BEFR 4,357,490 3,937,288

Interests on corporate bonds NEESREEF R
and notes 190,109 403,410
Interests on loans from related parties EaliiyaN=E il 132,545 51,377
Interests on lease liabilities HE&EHNR 25,298 25,895
Others HAth 92,370 58,940
4,797,812 4,476,910
Less: Interests capitalised in construction B RERIREEAREN
in progress (Note 17) FE (F5E17) (907,620) (717,122)
3,890,192 3,759,788
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on funds FAEERCHWEERSNTENRAERES
borrowed specifically for the purpose of obtaining qualifying assets REEMEESAELREBELEG 1
and on the general borrowing pool which are calculated by applying BEFHEARCAMEINR (ZE-—
an average capitalisation rate of 3.91% (2021: 3.87%) per annum F:3.87%) st EEEREEELXNRE
to expenditures incurred on qualifying assets. Xo
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BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

11. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 11. BRERER BT

2022 2021
—=—— —E-—F

—_<—— —_—< —

HK$’000 HK$’'000

TFHT FHET
(RESEIEE))
(BE5)

Profit before income tax has been arrived &P 1553 814 ;E 2305

at after charging: T5&IE !
Auditor’s remuneration Z B MM = 13,875 12,447
Cost of inventories recognised GFERARR A H

as expenses 65,583,675 59,801,276
Depreciation and amortisation HTE R iH 14,429,592 14,619,078
Expenses capitalised in REZIENERECNER !

construction in progress:

Depreciation and amortisation HTEE Ko i iH 122,596 48,574

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FRIGIREH

2022 2021
—EZC —E- %
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT TET
(RESEIEE))

(BE5)

Current taxation: EHIRIE ¢
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax — R EFRSHR
(“EIT”) & Withholding tax (TR ERER) RFENR 2,076,220 1,177,209
Deferred taxation credit (Note 22) IRIETR B (fY5E22) (170,646) (222,208)
Total 4EZE 1,905,574 955,001
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the AEERMEEEARSALREFD
Group had no taxable profit in Hong Kong or incurred tax losses for BRI BREESER RUEMRSEF
both years. SRIELHER-
PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been calculated based on the E T ZEPTSIR BRI E A 5 P = M E
estimated assessable profits in accordance with the relevant tax NEHEBRE R G ERERF)E
rates applicable to certain subsidiaries in the PRC. Ho
231 Annual Report 2022

FiR
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (conTiNUED) 12. FRIiSIRER @

Pursuant to CaiShui [2012] No. 10 Notice on the Execution of the
Catalogue of Public Infrastructure Projects Entitled for Preferential
Tax Treatment, certain wind power projects of the Group, which
were set up after 1 January 2008, are entitled to a tax holiday of a
three-year full exemption, followed by a three-year 50% exemption
of enterprise income tax, commencing from their first turnover-
making year.

Pursuant to CaiShui [2020] No. 23 Notice on Tax Policy Issues
concerning Further Implementing the Western China Development
Strategy, certain group companies located in the western regions
of the PRC, are entitled to a tax holiday of a two-year full PRC
enterprise income tax exemption, followed by a three-year 50%
exemption commencing from their first year of reporting turnover
and can enjoy a preferential income tax rate of 15% after the tax
holiday.

In addition, certain of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are entitled
to certain tax credit (“Tax Credit”) against their assessable EIT,
which is calculated as 10% of the current year’s purchases and use
of specific environmental friendly, water and energy-saving, safety-
enhanced equipment in the Group’s electricity generation business.
The portion of Tax Credit that has not been utilised in the current
period can be carried forward for future tax credit over a period of
not more than five years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (conTiNUED)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before income tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss
as follows:

B P15 752 A7) 8
IR E25%

Profit before income tax

Calculated at a tax rate of 25%
(2021: 25%)

Tax exemptions and concessions
rates granted to PRC subsidiaries 1

Other tax credit HMRIBEE

Income not subject to tax BIEMIREIU A

Expenses not deductible for tax ENCIEE =0
purposes

Unrecognised deductible temporary SRHESR BT 3 R B A= 2R
differences

Unrecognised tax losses RIEBRIER 18

Utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax losses and =RE
temporary differences

Withholding tax on the earnings remitted

Withholding tax on the earnings

ELREF AR

anticipated to be remitted B FENR
by certain subsidiaries
Income tax expense for the year FAMEMRER

Tax rate of 25% (2021: 25%) is adopted for the taxation
reconciliation as such tax rate is applicable to most of the Group’s
operations in the PRC for the year.

The tax (charge) credit relating to other comprehensive income is as
follows:

2022
ZECCF
Before tax  Tax charge
A REXH
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET

MARBESER
BE T AEMES
WEHBNAAEE
EE) 60,773

Fair value changes
of FVOCI
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12. FiiiRER @

REFE PISREREGHEBEDRN
PRETISIAI A EEARIDT ¢

2022

—— —

—_— ——

HK$’000

HK$’000
FHETT
(RESEE)]
(BE7)

2,391,416

FET

9,461,474

2,365,369 597,854
(1,268,833) (1,491,863)
(253) (1,475)
(209,665) (309,008)
131,126 435,703
266,797 44,715
887,623 1,802,958
(536,636) (135,128)
219,938 -
50,108 11,245
965,001

1,905,574

RIBHERIEA25% (B - —4F 1 25%)
MEAE RRAFENEAEERBKILDH
BB ERAZME-

BRAHMG S WmARIE (S2H) e
T

2021
BT —F
Tax charge After tax
RIELH R
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FTET

After tax Before tax
& Rl
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT TAET

(18,130) 4,368 (13,762)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND 13. EZ -HEHITERES
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS i &

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments EEKREFERNITEMNS
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 December BE_ S __F#+-HA=+—HLtHF
2022 is set out below: B EEENMES8IIWT

Salaries and Pension
Fees bonus costs Total

ik #r & RICAL P37 NS S
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FERT FERT FET

Non-executive directors: FEHITES
Wang Chuandong FEH
Chen Guoyong (ii) I [ 5 (i)
Liu Guixin (il 2185 37 i)
Executive directors: HMITESE !
Shi Baofeng (iv) S E £ (iv)
Zhang Junzheng TRE
Wang Xiao Bin FW
Independent non-executive BWIUIEMITESE !
directors:
Ch’ien Kuo Fung, Raymond R E
Leung Oi-sie, Elsie REH
So Chak Kwong, Jack BREN
Yang Yuchuan (v) B EII(v)
China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. 234
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND 13. EX -HEHNITERES

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (conTINUED) Al <& @
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Continued) EEREENITENE @
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 December BHE_ZE-_—HF+-"HB=+—HLIt#F
2021 is set out below: B ZEEENNEHIAT
Salaries and Pension
Fees bonus costs Total
BE HE R4 RIRAA WBEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FAET
Non-executive directors: JEHITEE ©
Wang Chuandong FER - - - -
Chen Guoyong [R5 - 18 - 18
Chen Ying (vi) %R JEE (vi) = = = =
Wang Yan (vii) = = (vii) = = = =
Liu Guixin (iii) 25 # (i) = = = —
Executive directors: HITES !
Shi Baofeng al=3 - 453 50 503
Tang Yong (viii) & &5 (viii) — 7,003 162 7,165
Zhang Junzheng RE I - 5,805 194 5,999
Wang Xiao Bin F/H - 5,225 78 5,303

Independent non-executive  BILIFHITES :

directors:
Ch’ien Kuo Fung, ERE

Raymond 470 - - 470
Leung Oi-sie, Elsie REF 470 - - 470
Ma Chiu-Cheung, 5 IRHE(X)

Andrew (ix) 332 - - 332
So Chak Kwong, Jack BREN 470 - - 470
Yang Yuchuan (v) B EII(V) 138 = = 138

1,880 18,504 484 20,868
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China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.
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13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (conTinuED)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Continued)

(i) Remuneration to a director is generally an emolument paid or payable in
respect of that person’s services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries undertakings.

(ii) Mr. Chen Guoyong was appointed as a Non-executive Director on 15
September 2021.

(i) Mr. Liu Guixin was appointed as a Non-executive Director on 15 September
2021.

(iv) Mr. Shi Baofeng was appointed as an Executive Director on 30 September
2021.

V) Mr. Yang Yuchuan was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director on 15 September 2021.

(Vi) Mr. Chen Ying resigned as a Non-executive Director on 15 September
2021.

(vi)  Mr. Wang Yan resigned as a Non-executive Director on 15 September
2021.

(vii) ~ Mr. Tang Yong resigned as an Executive Director on 30 September 2021.

(ix) Mr. Ma Chiu-Cheung, Andrew resigned as an Independent Non-executive
Director on 15 September 2021.

During the year, no remuneration has been paid by the Group to
the directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of
office.

Certain executive directors who did not receive emoluments during
the reporting periods, also held positions in the shareholders of the
Company and their subsidiaries (“Shareholder’s Entities”) and the
emoluments were borne by the respective Shareholder’s Entities for
the services rendered for the Shareholder’s Entities. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, it is not practicable to allocate
their remunerations to the Group. No directors have waived any
remuneration during the year.

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

Other than those disclosed above, none of the directors received
or will receive any retirement benefits or termination benefits during
the year (2021: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (conTiNuED)

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company did not
pay consideration to any third parties for making available directors’
services (2021: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

As at 31 December 2022, there are no loans, quasi-loans and
other dealing arrangements in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such directors (2021: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Company’s business to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2021: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z__HF+_RA=+—HLEFE

14. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE/LIABILITIES
ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the directors of the
Company resolved to dispose of two mining companies in Guizhou
Province, PRC (“Mines”) which was included in thermal power
segment. The disposal agreement with an interested party has
subsequently been signed in February 2023. The assets and
liabilities attributable to the Mines, which are expected to be sold
within twelve months, have been classified as assets held for sale
and are presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position (see below). The net proceeds of disposal are
expected to be approximate to the net carrying amount of the
relevant assets and liabilities.

The major classes of assets and liabilities of the Mines as at 31
December 2022, which have been presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position, are as follows:

L EN S

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets FREEE
Mining rights PRUERE
Exploration and resources rights B R ERE
Prepayments FAfIFIE
Other receivables H A g IR IE

Total assets classified as held for sale

Liabilities associated with assets classified as
held for sale
— represented by trade and other payables

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.
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4. FEFEEE AKES
FEGFEEEMAANGR

BHE_Z__F+HA=+—HLEF
ErARBEERAZEEMRFEAEM
BMRBEEAT (MBEE) ' EZMEA
EIBRNANEDES - A B ARV E
BEEEERNR S =G _R%5]-&
Rt ZEEARHENELUEGEER
BEENEAREREEE LREH
HMHERAKX (BT REBEY - HE
FREMIE S ERANAMEEREEN
IREVEEMRE-

RIBEZ"HF+"A=+—H ' EBR®&
HUBRAKRTEBI BB LEER
BENEESHENWMT

31/12/2022
e Ty

o o e e

+—-HA=+—H

HK$’000
FTHET
1,477,028
60,799
325,877
151,887
31,195
4,727

2,051,513

EEERENER

212,298



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

15. DIVIDENDS

Dividend recognised as distribution
during the year:

Final dividend for 2021 of HK$0.045
(2021: for 2020 of HK$0.406) per
share on 4,810,444,000 (2021:
4,810,444,000) shares

Interim dividend for 2022 of HK$0.21
(2021: 2021 of HK$0.25) per
share on 4,810,444,000 (2021:
4,810,444,000) shares

Dividend proposed after the end of
the reporting year:
Proposed final dividend for 2022 of
HK$0.376 (2021: HK$0.045) per
share (Note)

15. I 2

2022 2021

—E-C B —F

HK$’000
FTAET

HK$’'000
THET
FANEBRDIKBIRE :

B %t4,810,444,0008%

(Z=E=—4 : 4,810,444,0008%)
BB —F
ARHER B & R0.04578 7T

TEI - IEIEFER

0.4063 7T)

B %t4,810,444,0008%

(=B —F:
4,810,444,0008%)
BMENZTEZ2F
ARG B ERR0.218 7T
(EBZ—%:

—E - —F5K0.2587T)

216,470 1,958,040

1,010,193 1,202,609

1,226,663 3,155,649

REFERBRTIRMKE !

KB _FRABRE
FRZ0.37678 T (CE - —4F
0.045%87t) (Mi5E)

1,808,727

216,470

Note: A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 of
HK$0.376 per share, amounting to a total dividend of HK$1,808,727,000
is to be proposed at the annual general meeting on 8 June 2023. The

W BE_SE_"_F+-_A=+—HBLFE
FIAREREAER0.3768 T RELER
1,808,727,000B TN Z T =% XH

consolidated financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

NENBRFBAEARE LEEER S HH
BRI IRZETIER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. SR ERT
Basic Bk
Basic earnings per share from continuing and discontinued REFERERE ERENSTRELR
operations is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners MR AR RNBHEA NEEFIEBRUER
of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary EETEEARNNETHESE (X288
shares in issue during the year excluding ordinary shares purchased BUREEERMDINEBRIRIN STE-

by the Company and held as treasury shares.

2021

(RESEIEE))
(BE5)

Profit attributable to owners of the KABHEE ANREBFELCENREMN
Company from continuing FH (FEm)
operations (HK$’000) 7,042,478 2,137,849
Weighted average number of BETEERNMET D
ordinary shares in issue (F5)
(thousands) 4,810,444 4,810,444
No diluted earnings per share for both 2022 and 2021 were EEIE’\\T__’—{EZZE&_’E:—EIE%T%E
presented as there were no potential ordinary shares in issue for é’*ﬁ/ EER AR E-"FK
both 2022 and 2021. = _—EI 27| SREERN
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ME - -TREREE

Motor
Power vehicles,
generating furniture,
plant and Mining fixtures  Construction
Buildings equipment structures and others in progress Total

BF #BRLRMAE RERE  SERE HRIRE st
RERALM

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TER TER TER TR TER

At 1 January 2021 R-%-—-%—-F—H

(originally stated) (E510)

Cost %N 45,663,619 187,389,420 380,304 2,463,625 38,983,982 274,880,950
Impairment HfE (210,132) (227,164) (306,674) (35,941)  (1,536,057)  (2,314,968)
Accumulated depreciation  RiH7E (17,565,368)  (72,564,058) (74,630)  (1,545,101) - (91,749,157)
Net book amount BRI % B (25150

(originally stated) 27,888,119 114,598,198 - 882,583 37,447,925 180,816,825
Change in accounting ERe-El(if

policy (Note 2.6) 2.6) - 50,062 - - - 50,062
Net book amount REFE (BEF)

(restated) 27,888,119 114,648,260 - 882,583 37,447,925 180,866,887
Year ended HE-Z--&

31 December 2021 +-B=+-H

(restated) LLEE (BEF)

Opening net book amount  EANEREF(E (BE7)

(restated) 27,888,119 114,648,260 - 882,583 37,447,925 180,866,887
Exchange adjustments fE A% 821,491 3,756,104 - 25,469 692,169 5,295,233
Additions (restated) e (BE7) 344,290 3,574,926 - 452,695 18,010,946 22,382,857
Transfer B 1,655,867 29,564,253 - 34,999 (31,255,119 -
Disposals HeE (53) (478,303) - (8.991) (35,247) (522,594)
Impairment HE (45,578) (105,415) - (727) (27,635) (179,355)
Depreciation charge hERS (BE)

(restated) (1,987.485)  (12,029,932) - (279,585) - (14,297,002)
Closing net book amount EXEREF{E (BE7)

(restated) 28,676,661 138,929,893 - 1,106,443 24,833,039 193,546,026
At 31 December 2021  RIZZ—F

(restated) +-B=+-H

(BE7))
Cost (restated) A (BE7) 48,937,844 225,664,408 380,304 2,801,944 26,421,060 304,295,560
Impairment e (227,257) (221,939) (305,674) (4,135)  (1588,021)  (2,347,026)
Accumulated depreciation  E3t#7E (2E731)

(restated) (20,033,936)  (86,512,576) (74,630)  (1,781,366) -~ (108,402,508)
Net book amount IRE3E (EE5)

(restated) 28,676,661 138,929,893 - 1,106,443 24,833,039 193,546,026
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. % - R E B8 1F @

(CONTINUED)

Motor

Power vehicles,

generating furniture,
plant and Mining fixtures  Construction

Buildings equipment structures and others in progress Total

BF LEBRRME FREE SERA. TRIR L H
KERHM

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

TER TEn TER TER TERT TER

HE_Z-CE

Year ended

31 December 2022 +-B=+—-H
LLEFE
Opening net book amount ~ E#NEREFE (B E31)

(restated) 28,676,651 138,929,893 1,106,443 24,833,039 193,546,026
Exchange adjustments ~ ERBEX (2,400,139)  (11,652,520) (89,820)  (2,100,753)  (16,243,232)
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEKBAT - - (36) - (36)
Additions HE 162,895 675,971 65,709 29,507,686 30,412,261
Transfer g 2,705,274 14,146,223 128,231  (16,595,169) 384,559
Disposals HE (32,899) (145,222) (23,859) (231,438) (433,418)
Impairment R{E (6,300) (68,852) (493) (547,573) (623,218)
Depreciation charge TERS (2,236,551)  (11,697,117) (276,293) (14,209,961)
Reclassified as held for ~ E¥NEAEE

sale HEEE (18,889) (8,800) (1,448,662)  (1,477,028)

Closing net book amount ERERE B {E

At 31 December 2022  MZE-Z

+=A=+-H

Cost A 47,512,138 220,973,356 2,651,307 34,403,116 305,543,743
Impairment HE (217,595) (599,751) (2,885) (6,911) (985,986)  (1,813,128)
Accumulated depreciation  RFHTE (20,444,501)  (90,194,029) (1,735,191) (112,374,662)
Net book amount IREFE 33,417,130 191,355,953

The above items of property, plant and equipment other than TMTEBRTRUIINNYE BB RERE

construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis BER T A EREHRNEREREN

over the following useful lives: E

Buildings 18 — 45 years

1B 18ZE 454

Power generating plant and equipment 15 - 20 years

BB E 156205

Mining structures 5 - 20 years

RUEZR1E 5Z206F

Motor vehicles, furniture, fixtures and others 3 - 10 years

AE R R E R HAM 3FE104

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. 24 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs
amounting to HK$907,620,000 (2021: HK$717,122,000) (Note 10)
on qualifying assets.

Depreciation charges of HK$14,162,846,000 and HK$47,115,000
(2021: HK$14,267,406,000 and HK$29,596,000) has been
recorded in operating expenses or capitalised in “construction in
progress”, respectively.

As at 31 December 2022, total net book value of property,
plant and equipment pledged as collateral for the Group’s
bank borrowings amounted to HK$2,574,925,000 (2021:
HK$3,200,855,000) (Note 39).

As at 31 December 2022, the ownership certificates of certain
buildings (“Building Ownership Certificates”) of the Group with an
aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$758,427,000 (2021:
HK$1,968,348,000) had not been obtained by the Group. After
consultation made with the Company’s legal counsel, the directors
of the Company consider that there is no legal restriction for the
Group to apply for and obtain the Building Ownership Certificates
and it should not lead to any significant adverse impact on the
operations of the Group.

Additional information on property, plant and
equipment

As at 31 December 2022, management identified property, plant
and equipment of certain thermal power generating plants and
renewable energy power generating plants with impairment
indicators at net book value amounted to HK$12,350,256,000
(2021: HK$15,025,952,000). As at 31 December 2022, the
recoverable amount of property plant and equipment has been
determined based on a value in use calculation, using cash flow
projections covering a period of operating period with a pre-
tax discount rate ranging from 7.12% to 13.22% (2021: 7.2% to
11.3%). Based on the result of the assessment, management of the
Group determined that the recoverable amount of the CGUs are
higher than the carrying amount and no impairment is recognised
to those power projects with impairment indicators for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).

243

B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

17. ¥ -BERSEE®

RER FEBBREREEREERE
B 72907,620,0008 ¢ (Z T - —4F :
717,122,000 75) (BFzE£10)

FrERMX14,162,846,0008 T &
47,115,000 (Z & - — &
14,267,406,00078 7t 52 29,596,0007 7T)
DRIARPREEHEZ RERTRZ.

RIE-__F+"_HA=+—H EH%A
z&%%fﬁm@‘ﬁﬁ#ﬁﬁﬁ%% & = K

REREARF(E52,574,925,00078 7T
(_ L~ —4F : 3,200,855,000% 70) (FfY
5£39) ©

WZE-__H#+”"B=+—H XK
EENAESAERETEFNMR
BRE (MEFmafsE)) REEE
#7758,427,0008 7 (&S - —&F !
1,968,348,000/70)) c RAREEEE
HANBEAEEMNE RARNEERHA

e ﬂ%%ﬁﬁﬁ%aﬁﬂ?ﬁfﬁﬁfé
Rl BAgHAEBNKESHIM
%kxﬂ%%ﬂo

BERYE -BREKRRENEEINE
¥
RIEZZTHF+ZA=+—8 > BIEE
FABETFANNEERK A B4 ERE
BEHNYE BERIXBBERENR
HERE FEA12,350,256,0008 7T (Z
T —4 :15,025,952,000% 7T) o it
TECCFE+ZRA=+—H ME B
ERZENT KD CEZTHEERE
BET MEBBELLREEEHBEN
REREFEARARAMIBERT 12%5F
183.22% (ZEZ—F 17.2%%11.3%) i
BEH - ERFEER AEEEEE
BETRsELSBEUNTKREISES PR
mHE BEE_E-__F+-B=+—
HEEEMERZEBREDRRNESD
BHEHEIRE (CEZ—F 1) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z__HF+_RA=+—HLEFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Additional information on property, plant and
equipment (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, impairment charges
amounting to HK$462,315,000 (2021: nil) were recognised on the
mining structures under construction included in the property, plant
and equipment for the year. The recoverable amount has been
determined based on fair value less costs of disposal.

As at 31 December 2022, impairment charges amounting to
HK$160,903,000 (2021: HK$179,355,000) were related to certain
individual assets planned to be disposed, retired or obsolete to
follow the change in technology and regulating environment.

The movement on the provision for impairment of property, plant
and equipment of the Group by segment is as follows:

Thermal power
segment
BEOH

2022

—— —
—i =

HK$’000
TET

At 1 January nm—HA—H 1,972,816
Exchange differences bE 2 E R 145,632
Provision of impairment TREREE 560,691
Disposals/written-off/ HE MiE, EMmNiES

reclassified as assets HEREEE

held for sales (1,244,349)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 1,434,790

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.
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17. E - BERSEE @

BERME -BERZENEEINE
SNE)
BE_Z-__F+-"B=+—HI
EE - RERRFADE - BEK
RENEEFRBEERERIBAERK
462,315,000 (ZE-_—F | |) ©
AIRESE IR A ABEREERARE

Eo
RIZEZZF+ZHA=+—H"R1E
185160,903,000 7T (T2~ —4F :

179 355, ooo%n) ?%PJBAa‘-Eszzﬁ“*

?1!%']%%%%5 8

AEBRIZ DML DY E BB MG
MEREESHIMT -

R

Renewable energy
segment
BB 4 REIR Y &R
2022 2021
—__ B —fF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET

2021

_= —_EE
HK$’000
THTT

1,954,756 374,210 360,212
49,369 29,105 10,018
170,963 62,527 8,392
(202,272) (87,504) (4,412)
1,972,816 374,210

378,338



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

18. (FIEEE

Power

generating
plant and

Motor
vehicles

Buildings

Total
st
HK$’000
TAT

and others
AERELM
HK$’000
THT

equipment
RERRRE
HK$’000
FER

BF
HK$'000
TR

296,269 6,635,994

294,770 583,980 429 5,679,555

101,118

340,820

Leasehold
land
e
HK$'000
TAT
COST R
As at 31 December 2022 KZEZZ
+ZB=+-H
Carrying amounts REE 6,322,426
As at 31 December 2021 RIEZ—&
+ZB=+—-H
Carrying amounts REE 4,800,376
For the year ended HE_Z-C
31 December 2022 +ZB=+—HLEEE
Depreciation charge ERS 205,590
For the year ended HEZZ--F
31 December 2021 +ZB=+—HLEE
Depreciation charge TERZ 214,998

Expense relating to short-term and
low-value leases

Total cash outflow for leases

Additions to right-of-use assets

HIEAREEBERE
BRI

SRR R AEER
ERREERE

245

123,007 31,943

Year ended

31.12.2022
HE-—T-=

==

+=A=+—H

IEFE
HK$’000
FTET

938 370,976

Year ended
31.12.2021
HE-ZT_—F
+=ZB=+—H
IEFE
HK$’'000

TET

54,465 11,712
768,384 149,678
2,141,733 1,184,849
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (conTINUED) 18. (FRHIEEE @

As at 31 December 2022, land use right certificates (“Land
Certificates”) of certain parcels of land of the Group with
an aggregate carrying value of HK$57,999,000 (2021:
HK$112,990,000) had not been obtained. After consultation made
with the Company’s legal counsel, the directors consider that there
is no legal restriction for the Group to apply for and obtain the Land
Certificates and it should not lead to any significant adverse impact
on the operations of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, amortisation of
HK$265,339,000 (2021: HK$351,998,000) and HK$75,481,000
(2021: HK$18,978,000) has been recorded in operating expenses
or capitalised in construction in progress, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, HK$60,799,000 was
reclassified as assets held for sale (Note 14).

The Group leases various buildings, power generating plant and
equipment, land use rights, motor vehicles, furniture, fixtures,
equipment and others. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods of 1 to 27 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a
wide range of different terms and conditions. Leased assets other
than leasehold land may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for buildings
and motor vehicles. As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2021, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of
short-term leases to which the short-term lease expense disclosed
above.

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. 246
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N —F+_B=+—HB '&&EE
B RERE T IR Tt ERESE (T
#5E) o BREAR(E 557,999,000 ¢ (=
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BE_ S __F+_-_HA=+—HLEHE
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RERSTRERIR-

BE_S__F#+_HA=+—HLtHE
Z 60,799,000 8 Tt B EEM D EATF
BEFEEE M:H14) o

rEEEBRTRAFEERZRY EEMMK
RE-LtERE - SE-EBKAEE
RERAM - HESHNEBER/IE2TE
BIEEHR

HERRIZENREGE  H R—7T|
FAEMER G - FHE L HMUINNEE
EEF TR FEMBERR -

AEBTEHRMEF RINE L@ IE
E-RTE"HF+ZRB=+—HKZ
T —F+"A=+—H EHHEEAR
BHEXIREEHEERNEHRES
HERE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

19. GOODWILL 10. &

The movements in the carrying amount of goodwill during the year HENEIERAFENESWT -
are as follows:

HK$’000
FTAET

COST D%
At 1 January 2021 RZE2Z—F—H—H 2,713,027
Exchange adjustments bE R AE 2 19,111
At 31 December 2021 RZE2EZ—F+"HA=+—H 2,732,138
Exchange adjustments PE AR (47,782)
At 31 December 2022 R-E-_—_F+"“H=+—H 2,684,356
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSSES RitRERE
At 1 January 2021 R-ZE-_—%—H—H 1,967,673
Impairment charge EAEE=ES 98,774
Exchange adjustments bE 2 aE 2L 2,082
At 31 December 2021 R-E—_—*%+"H=+—H 2,068,479
Exchange adjustments bE 0 AA 2L (6,027)
At 31 December 2022 R-E-_—_&+=-HB=+—H 2,062,452
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 December 2022 BRZEZ—&+"H=+—H 621,904
At 31 December 2021 R-E_—&F+"F=+—H 663,659
247 Annual Report 2022
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

19. GOODWILL (conTinuED) 19. B8 @
Impairment tests for goodwill SRR
Goodwill is allocated to the CGUs of the Company’s subsidiaries [ERE v /NS NS ETRE N E R =X N0 L )
within two segments, thermal power and renewable energy, in BRABIMEDE (M NEERATBLERE
different provinces in the PRC. The carrying amounts of major B ANIREEEEM - DEEEERIRE
goodwill allocated to individual CGUs are as follows: EEBMNFEEEREENT

1 January Exchange 31 December
2022 Impairment adjustments 2022

8- —®_C
—B—H HiE ER#AZ +-A=t+-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FERT FERT FERT

Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-ZT_-Z

+ZB=+-H
HFE
Thermal power segment KAEERE
- China Resources (Jiangsu) —ZBEN (1&)
Investment Co., Ltd. REERAHT 230,525 (19,600) 210,925
- Xuzhou Huaxin Power —HMNESHE
Generation Co., Ltd. BRAT 101,876 (13,761) 88,115
- Other companies —HAR 320,810 (8,394) 312,416
653,211 (41,755) 611,456
Renewable energy segment ABERERD 10,448 - 10,448
Total st 663,659 (41,755) 621,904
China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. 248
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BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

19. GOODWILL (conTinuED) 10. € @
Impairment tests for goodwill (Continued) 2R E Rl (@)
1 January Exchange 31 December
2021 Impairment adjustments 2021
B & —E-—F
—HB—H RiE EBR#EE +-B=1+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAx FTAx TER
Year ended HE_Z--F
31 December 2021 +ZB=+-H
LFE
Thermal power segment KNEERE
- Shenyang China Resources —BREBAERR
Heating Co., Ltd. (“Shenyang NE) (TERET
Heating Company’) YN=il)) 98,774 (98,774) - -
- China Resources (Jiangsu) —E=BEH (18)
Investment Co., Ltd. REBRAT 222,159 - 8,366 230,525
- Xuzhou Huaxin Power —HNESEE
Generation Co., Ltd. BRAT 96,001 - 5,875 101,876
— Other companies —HAR 317,972 - 2,838 320,810
734,906 (98,774) 17,079 653,211
Renewable energy segment ABERERD 10,448 - - 10,448
Total st 745,354 (98,774) 17,079 663,659
In addition to goodwill above, property, plant and equipment, right- FLREFEMS bR LEMmEEN  YE
of-use assets that generate cash flows together with the related BEARE EEFRERENERES
goodwill are also included in the respective CGUs for the purpose EEREMBETHAZSBENREESE
of impairment assessment. Bfie
249 Annual Report 2022
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BE

B F+ZR=+—HILFE

19. GOODWILL (conTINUED)

Impairment tests for goodwill (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group performed impairment test for
goodwill based on pre-tax cash flow projection covering a period
of operation period of each of the CGUs. The key assumptions for
the value in use calculations are generation volumes of thermal and
renewable power plants, coal price, forecast period and discount
rates. The first year cash flow projection was on the basis of the
most recent financial budgets approved by management, and the
2 to 5 years cash flow projection derived from the most recent
financial budgets approved by management, while the forecast
beyond 5 years is compiled by extrapolating the projection based
on the financial budget, assuming no sales growth. The sales
growth rates for the first 5 years projection, mainly contributed
by the generation volume and electricity prices of the power
plants. The generation volume of the power plants are ranging
from -4% to 1% (2021: —-10% to 5%) for thermal power segment
and ranging from 0% to 6% (2021: -10% to 25%) for renewable
energy segment, which are based on industry growth forecasts
and respective corporate’s historical performance. The growth rate
of electricity prices of the power plants are ranging from -8% to
0% (2021: =15% to 19%) for thermal power segment and staying
at 0% (2021: 0 % to 14%) for renewable energy segment, which
are based on industry growth forecasts and government policy.
Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates ranging
from 7.2% to 13% (2021: 8.9% to 13.5%) that reflect current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGUs. Management believes that any reasonable
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the carrying
amounts of each of the CGUs to exceed its recoverable amount.
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20. MINING RIGHTS

20. {RHEHE

2022

=2

HK$’000
FTHET

HK$’000
TR

At 1 January n—A—H

Cost BN 5,386,946 5,231,531

Impairment BE (612,452) (558,983)
Accumulated amortisation Eg s (215,635) (207,907)
Opening net book amount FVERERE 4,558,859 4,464,641

Exchange adjustments bl 2 S B (381,646) 94,218
Impairment A (13,570) -
Amortisation charge iHE (1,406) -
Transfer to assets held for sale BEREEGAGEEE (325,877) -
Closing net book amount FERREFE 3,836,360 4,558,859
At 31 December R+=ZHBA=+—H

Cost 7S 4,591,299 5,386,946
Impairment A (558,149) (612,452)
Accumulated amortisation REt#H (196,790) (215,635)
Net book amount EREFE 4,558,859

3,836,360

Amortisation is provided to write off the cost of the mining rights B IRBEENERRENEEER
using the unit of production method based on the proved and EEEAE T U UM EERIERE R
probable reserves of the coal mines. Ko

FER BERE KRR ENREBEREDRE
13,570,000 B (T2 -_—F 1 #) &
BRENMDBERBEREEE-

Impairment of HK$13,570,000 (2021: nil) was recognised on mining
rights yet to commence production, which was subsequently
reclassified to assets held for sale, for the year.
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21. EXPLORATION AND RESOURCES 21. EiRE R
RIGHTS
HK$’000
FAET
At 1 January 2021 N B —F—H—H 161,205
Exchange adjustments R 4,739
At 31 December 2021 RIBZ—F+Z"H=+—H 165,944
Transfer to assets held for sale ERERERESE (151,887)
Exchange adjustments e R (14,057)
At 31 December 2022 RZE__F+ZH=+—H -
22. DEFERRED TAXATION 22, IRIEFRIE
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are as IRIERIBE E MIRIER B8 BN 2Tl
follows: S G

(RESEIEE))
(BE5)

Deferred tax assets IR IEE B 1,075,072 1,043,357
Deferred tax liabilities FEIERIBEE (288,864) (351,725)

Deferred tax assets — net R T E E R A8 786,208 691,632

The gross movement on the deferred income tax is as follows: FEIEFTISIRAR B RVARE BN W T ©

2022 2021
g

HK$°000 HK$’000

THET FHET

(RESEWEG))

(B&5)

At 1 January n—BA—H 691,632 252,627

Exchange adjustments fE DR (60,878) 25,249
Credited to profit or loss (Note 12) Ri8mERET A (EE12) 170,646 222,208
Disposal of FVOCI BEEUARBESTE8EEHT AR
MR E RGNS/ EE 187,180
(Charged) credited to other REMIFS R GFABR) 5t A
comprehensive income (15,192) 4,368
At 31 December ®+=ZHB=+—H 786,208 691,632
China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. 25 2
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BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

22. DEFERRED TAXATION (conTiNuED)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year,
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within
the same tax jurisdictions, are as follows:

22, JRIEFRTE a
UTAERNBLEFRESREER A BNE
g BN RE-REEEEEANE
BRIESN -

Fair value
changes
of FVOCI
NAREBE
Retirement  Impairment HERZH
Accrued benefit and  Government sTAHA
expenses  obligations provision grant  EREMER Others Total
EiRx BEERAER AEREE HRRE AREEE Rt s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn Tin TiEn TR AT TiEn
(Note (i)
Deferred tax assets EREREEE (FE3()
As at 1 January 2021 RZE_-%-B-H

(originally stated) (&3 233,231 11,437 BT6T6 21412 2101 316202 904909
Change in accounting policy HEHEF (H526)

(Note 2.6) - - - - - 2,578 2,573
Exchange adjustments ERHE 6,824 33 1990 7,083 39 16,746 33,915
Credited to profit or loss RERERIA 32,730 3,542 226 75,358 - 4,469 116,325
Credited to other comprehensive  FE i A& A

income - - - - 11,301 - 11,301
As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ-£+ZB=1-H

(restated) (BE5)

Exchange adjustments ERAZ (25,953) (950) (5,731) (30,290) (1,074) (19,082) (83,080)
Credited (charged) to REERIRETA ()

oroft ot loss (8,489) (4626) 100977
Credlted to other comprehensive R E R B IEST A

income
As at 31 December 2022 RZBZ"E+ZA=+-A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

22. DEFERRED TAXATION (conTINuED)

22, iRIEMIA @)

Fair value
Fair value Fairvalue  changes of
of prepaid  of property, FVOCI
Difference lease  plantand NAABE
of  payments  equipment FEEZ
depreciation B MR BE  HARM
life  BEAN  RRGEH KekE
WEEHEE  QABE 0 AAEE AREEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Tim TR Tin TR
Deferred tax liabilties BLHEEME
As at 1 January 2021 KZE--F-R-B (78,017) (39,935) (42,29) (289,194)
Exchange adjustments EREE (2.574) - - (10211)
Credited to profit or loss RERERHA 42,613 1322 12577 -
Charged to other REMEEREIIR
comprehensive income - - - (6,933)
Disposal e - - - 187,180
Asat31 December 2021 ~ WIEZ-£
+ZA=+-H (37,978) (38,613) (9721)  (119,158)
Exchange adjustments ERER 2,146 =
Credited to proft or loss RERRHA 35,832 12,578
Charged to other REME ARG
comprehensive income (23,220)
As at 31 December 2022 RZEZZE
+ZR=+-H
Notes:
(i) Others represent mainly deductible tax losses and depreciation differences

(i

(i)

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

including those as a result upon application of amendments to HKFRS 16.

Pursuant to certain regulations of the mining industry in the PRC, the Group
is required to transfer an amount to a specific reserve and such fund is
not available for distribution to shareholders. Such amounts are deductible
for tax purposes when they set aside but are expensed for accounting
purposes only when they are utilised. Therefore, deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for such temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to the extent
that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits is
probable. As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not recognise deferred
tax assets in respect of tax losses amounting to HK$22,466,925,000
(2021: HK$24,907,472,000) and deductible temporary differences
amounting to HK$6,388,145,000 (2021: HK$5,320,959,000). Included in
unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2022 are losses of approximately
HK$21,350,530,000 (2021: HK$23,850,622,000) that will expire within 5
years from the year of origination, in or before 2027 (2021: 2026).

254

ERENERBRAT

Dist

ributable

profits of PRC
subsidiaries,
associates
and joint
ventures
e
WEAR

k

BEtz
RELE
MRk
HIE
HKS$'000
TR

(68,276)

9,285

(48.991)

11,481

(i)

Accrued
interest
Mining income
fund fest Others Total
FEEE  FSKA 2t it
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T#En TiEm T#En
(Note (ii)
(g
(229 (86,936) (67,397) (652,282)
1] (2,556) 6,682 (8,666)
- - 37,513 108,310
- - - (6,933)
- - - 187,180
(236) (89,492) (13,202) (877,391)

22,202
69,669

(23,220)

Hit T ZaErRIIRNBHEERITEE
2> BERAEEVBREERF1695EM
EHE

RIEPERIETT RS TREER K&
EASRE-SREERERRFB BZFE
TAEDIKT IR o ZRERL 8 BB BI 40
R BEEHRAKIIX AL HZEY
R = RERIELEIRRE R

FERBEE ECMRMIBEGEEE T URE
FoWEUEBRBGEANIERB KRR
HEFRENERBEAR N _Z -
E+ZA=+—RH WEAEBLERS
#22,466,925,0008 TTHMFHEE B (=
T —4F : 24,907,472,000% 70) K&
6,388,145,00078 oI AR E BFF £ 28 (Z
T~ —4F : 5,320,959,00078 7T) HESRIEIE
MEEE R _S-_—_F#+-/B=+—
B ABBREGEECESREEN
EERFAREARRZE_+t&E (T
T—FE TR IAE) Az B NE
$84921,350,530,0008 5 (ZE - —£ !
23,850,622,0005 7T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_ZT__HF+_RA=+—HLEFE

22. DEFERRED TAXATION (conTINUED) 22, IEIEFRTE @)

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends RIBABRTGEMSREZ BT N\EF
declared in respect of profits earned by subsidiaries in the PRC with — B —Bi#e> st E A S BEBF
effect from 1 January 2008 onwards. BRI S BSMTEINGR o

During the year end 31 December 2022, due to short-term BHE_Z__F+ZHA=+—HLEF
fluctuation in the bank loan interest rate, RMB4,000,000,000 B BHRIRTEMRMENEEE F
dividends was paid by the PRC subsidiary primarily for the purpose ] fft 8§ A B] 32 19 A R #54,000,000,000
of loan repayment, withholding tax of HK$219,938,000 was THRE T EREFEREN FRE
recognised during the year.The directors of the Company consider SRFEI0#2219,938,0008 e A AT E
that the Group, under normal circumstance, has sufficient funds %m?\% FEBBERT  XEEKBEI
in overseas companies and therefore the earnings retained by NEVBEERRES FHILFENEA
the subsidiaries in the PRC are expected to be reinvested in the BRENBABHARTERRAKREBR
foreseeable future. Other than an immaterial amount of distributable BoRTHENBLAERENLER
profits of HK$272,410,000 retained by PRC subsidiaries for which DEHEF272,410,0008 5 W ZF
deferred tax liability of HK$50,108,000 was recognized as at 31 T+ A=+ HMIERIRER
December 2022 (2021: HK$11,245,000), no deferred tax liabilities 1B & 1550,108,0008 Tt (ZE - —&F:
has been recognised in respect of the remaining distributable profits 11,245,000/ 75) 9h > EPIMTJ%@ﬂﬁfi
HK$35,597,996,000 (2021: HK$34,595,827,000) earned by PRC EENFE_E__F(CE_—F.
subsidiaries for the years from 2008 to 2022 (2021: 2008 to 2021). ZENFEZZ T —F) BEWERTH

DECEF)35, 597 996,000t (ZE - —
£F 1 34,595,827,0007 7 i HEFE SRR AL

MEEE-
23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND 23. ﬁ*ﬂ%‘“’*% B4 &5 R ) B
LOANS TO AN ASSOCIATE EEEEM
Interests in associates MREE T EES
HK$’000
TAET
At 1 January 2021 BR-—E-_—%—HF—H 8,203,530
Addition arising from loss of control in a subsidiary AL EMBRBNEGEMAE 9,601
Acquisition of interest in an associate BEMEtEER 797,394
Capital contributions to associates mErETE 78,557
Transfer to a joint venture BRE—HaEtE (52,052)
Share of profits FEALF 241,346
Dividends e (599,700)
Impairment charges EAEE=ES (154,137)
Share of other comprehensive income FE(L E 2 mEmU A 57,790
Share of other equity movement of associates DS ENEMEREE) (6,809)
Exchange adjustments bE R EAEE 184,933
At 31 December 2021 R-B_—#+"HA=+—H 8,760,459
Acquisition of interest in an associate (Note 25(a)) ERIS B & (b2 (MI5E25(a)) 1,246,537
Capital contributions to associates EHECEITE 586,550
Share of losses FE(h 518 (112,676)
Dividends e (511,522)
Share of other comprehensive expense and capital FELEMEERE RE R EE
reserve (190,923) g
Exchange adjustments bE 0 aA 2L (728,094) |

At 31 December 2022 R-E-_—_F+"“H=+—H 9,050,331
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND

23. I HE R = K R B

LOANS TO AN ASSOCIATE (conTinueDp)

Interests in associates (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the principal
associates of the Group, all being accounted for using equity

method, were as follows:

Name of associate

WEtkeR

China Resources (Xuzhou)

Place of
incorporation

and
operation
ARHILE
e

Issued and fully paid share capital/

registered capital and paid-up capital

BETHRERA/ EREFRARES

2022

B

—_—

Registered and

2021

_EC-F

Registered and

BrhESH@
REETENER @
RN_E__F#+_-_/A=+—HE_E
T E+ A+ B AEETEH
¥ ORARSERE MT

Percentage of equity interest held
P RRRER 2L
2022 2022 2021

mt Jalel Sl it S s

—_—

Principal activities

IEEH

Directly
=t

- QOperation of a

EM Directly

Electric Power Co., Ltd. A paid-up capital paid-up capital power station
BNEBENARAT RMBB63,110,000 RMBB863,110,000 SEEL
HMRERER kG RER
AR 863,110,007 AR %863,110,00070
Funeng Guizhou PRC Registered and Registered and 49 - Operation of a
Power Corporation A paid-up capital paid-up capital power station
Bk BN REERAT RMB1,300,000,000 RMB1,300,000,000 SEEI
SMRERERARE  ERRAREAARE
1,300,000,00070 1,300,000,00070
Jingneng (Xilinguole) Power PRC Registered and Registered and - 30 Operation of a
Corporation A paid-up capital paid-up capital power station
Rk (SR8 REBRAR RMB1,916,000,000 RMB1,916,000,000 SEEL
SMRERERARE  ERRAREAARE
1,916,000,00070 1,916,000,00070
Fuyang China Resources PRC Registered and Registered and - 40 Qperation of a
Power Co., Ltd. A paid-up capital paid-up capital power station
EREEENARAT RMB1,738,400,000 RMB1,263,625,000 SEEL
SMRERERARE  ERRAREAARE
1,738,400,00070 1,263,625,00070
Hunan Taohuajiang Nuclear PRC Registered and Registered and - 25 Operation of a
Power Co., Ltd. A paid-up capital paid-up capital power station
B IRERRAT RMB1,149,227,000 RMB1,149,227,000 SEEL
ik R
HREFARK HRERARE

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

ERENERBRAT

1,149,227,0007%

1,149,227,0007%
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23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND
LOANS TO AN ASSOCIATE (conTiNuED)

Interests in associates (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the principal
associates of the Group, all being accounted for using equity

method, were as follows: (Continued)

Name of associate

HEtkeR

Jiangsu Zhenjiang Power
Generation Co., Lid.
IHATEEERAR

Yangzhou No. 2 Power
Generation Co, Ltd
NE_EEAREAAT

Shanxi Zhonglv China
Resources Gompany Ltd

WATEERERAT

Henan Yonghua Energy Co. Ltd.
ABXEEFERAR

Gansu Changle Power Generation
Co., Ltd
HEERELYBEREANT

Place of

incorporation

and

operation
AR
L

e

PRC
e

PRC
e

PRC
e

PRC
e

Issued and fully paid share capital/

registered capital and paid-up capital

BEMERS /3

2022

—F——

—_—

Registered and
paid-up capital
RMB1,482,200,000
HHRERERARYE
1,482,200,0007

Registered and
paid-up capital
RMB1,692,000,000
HHRERERARYE
1,692,000,00070

Registered and
paid-up capital
RMB1,641,750,000
HMRERERARYE
1,641,750,0007

Registered and
paid-up capital
RMB300,000,000
HRERER
AR %300,000,0007

Registered capital
RMB2,680,000,000
Paid-up capital
RMB1,965,280,000
HHERARK
2,680,000,0007
HRERARK
1,985,280,00075

REFRARER

2021

ZEC-F

Registered and
paid-up capital
RMB1,482,200,000
AMRERERARE
1,482,200,00070

Registered and
paid-up capital
RMB1,692,000,000
AMRERERARE
1,692,000,00070

Registered and
paid-up capital
RMB1,641,750,000
AMRERERARE
1,641,750,00070

Registered and
paid-up capital
RMB300,000,000
ERIE LS
AR %300,000,00070

Registered capital
RMB2,680,000,000
Paid-up capital
RMB1,362,428,000
AHERARE
2,680,000,0007
HRERARE
1,362,428,0007%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

23. FABHE 1 RO RERS R A0 Bgh
SrESH@
REECENED @
W_E-__F#+_-_/A=+—HBHE_E
T+ A+ B AEETEH
0¥ ORARRSERE MT @

Principal activities

TEER

Percentage of equity interest held
P RRRER 2Lt
2022 2022 2021

—F——

—_—

Zg_C
Directly
=t i : i

- 425

Indirectly Indirectly

QOperation of a
power station
EERIL

45 - Operation of a
power station
EERI

- 20 Operation of
power station

ELy

- 49 Coal production and
marketing

BREEREH

- 34 Operation of a
power station
EE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND
LOANS TO AN ASSOCIATE (conTinueDp)

Interests in associates (Continued)

23. I HE R = K R B

BrhESH@
REETENER @

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the principal RN_E__F#+_-_/A=+—HE_E
associates of the Group, all being accounted for using equity —_—F+ZBR=4+—H AEETEH

method, were as follows: (Continued)

Place of
incorporation

and

operation
Name of associate BT

WEtkeR EEE

Guoneng Taicang Power Co., Ltd ~ PRC
BEREEERRAT ]

Guangdong Runchuang New PRC
Energy Equity Investment Fund 5l
Partnership (imited partnership)

ERBEMERREREES
aBtE EREY)

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

ERENERBRAT

Issued and fully paid share capital/

registered capital and paid-up capital

BETHRERA/ EREFRARES

2022

B

—_—

Registered capital
RMB2,000,000,000
Paid-up capital
RMB2,000,000,000
&R

AEH
2,000,000,00070
HRER

AEH
2,000,000,00070

Registered capital
RMB3,000,000,000
Paid-up capital
RMB1,635,000,000
&R

N
3,000,000,00070
HRER

N
1,635,000,0007%

2021

_EC-F

NA
R

Registered capital
RMB3,000,000,000
Paid-up capital
RMB1,635,000,000
EA=ES

AEE
3,000,000,0007
HREL

AEE
1,635,000,0007%
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BhE (ORARIERE T (@

Percentage of equity interest held Principal activities
FENRER L IERH
2022 2022 2021

o B e “E-—

S S “3-F
Directly EM Directly
=t [

- 40 - - Operation of a
power station
EERIL

- 12.40  Equity investment
RigkE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND
LOANS TO AN ASSOCIATE (conTiNuED)

Interests in associates (Continued)

The above table lists the principle associates of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected
the results of the year or formed a substantial portion of the net
assets of the Group. To give details of other associates would, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of
excessive length

All above associates are limited liability companies.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group provided guarantees
amounting to HK$389,491,000 to secure bank loans of its
associates. At 31 December 2022, nil guarantee was provided by
the group. Note 48 provides for details about the credit risk arising
from the financial guarantees.

Summarised financial information for immaterial associates

According to the assessment of directors of the Company, as at
31 December 2022 and 2021, no individual associate is material to
the Group’s profit before tax, therefore, no information on individual
associate is disclosed.

Set out below are the summarised financial information for the
immaterial associates which are accounted for using the equity
method.

The Group’s share of (expense) income
The Group’s share of other
comprehensive (expense) income

AEBBGEEM
2H (B8 WA

The Group’s share of total comprehensive ZEBELGEE (B518) UK A 4248

(expense) income

259

AEEEMNG (BER) WA

B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

23. i HE A = R R B

SrESH@
REETENER @

FABEEFRR LRI EEBRETE
BECXCHAERFEXEREER
EYURNAERFEEZIEH D K
ABEER R VHAEMBELENE
HEERERBR TR

FREMETCEORARETAT-

RIE_—F+H=1+—HB F&H
IR {74 $389,491,0007 7T AU R LUE
REMEATNBTER - N_E_—
F+ZA=+—H AEBELEELE
RoMsE48F M BIERELANEER

2
oo O
S

TEABELENHHEEHTE

REARBDESENIEH RIE -

2+ "H=+—H #HEE
BB P EHAEBMNRRAAEMS
BEEZ > EIb WEHEERBE G2
BE K o

&y e A m A AR N E RS
TEENPHERRE -

2022
—E-

HK$’000
FHET
(112,676)

(190,923) 57,790

(303,599) 299,136
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND
LOANS TO AN ASSOCIATE (conTinueDp)

Loans to an associate

Current: BNER :
Loans SN

As at 31 December 2021, loans to an associate are denominated
in RMB, unsecured and interest free, the carrying amounts
approximate the fair values due to short-term nature of the loans to
an associate.

As at 31 December 2022, full expected credit loss was made
against the carrying amount of loans amounting to RMB68,600,000
(equivalent to HK$80,369,000), as a result of the investee
terminated its power plant construction during the year.

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. 260
EBHENERARAT

23. I HE R = K R B

BrhESH@
S EER

A _E_—FF+ZRB=1+—H rai=
TPEERUARKHE ABRIEHERE
EFCHEEENEREAABE T
HREHE A ERNEAEEMmN-
RIE-__F+"B=+—H > HR¥H
BREARERNKRIEESERERL B
FEBEEFHE2BEREBEEBEEAR
#%68,600,0007T (tHE L 80,369,000
JT) ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

HE T "+ "HA=1+—HIFE
24. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND 24. R&E¥NESRASY
LOANS TO JOINT VENTURES B¥EEM
Interests in joint ventures REEhENER

HK$’000

F#ET

At 1 January 2021 W-ZE-—%—HF—H 5,778,918
Capital contributions to joint ventures meEtFEIE 357,178
Transfer from an associate By —EHEhE 52,052
Disposal () HE() (307,385)
Share of losses FE{LE518 (119,282)
Dividends (i) A2 £ (106,795)
Share of other comprehensive income FE{L E fth 2 U A 43,467
Exchange adjustments bE 2 3A 2L 62,260
At 31 December 2021 R_E_—+”"HA=+—H 5,760,413
Capital contributions to joint ventures AEeEtFEITE 880,968
Share of losses FE(h 518 (86,737)
Dividends e (20,852)

Share of other comprehensive expense
and capital reserve
Exchange adjustments

EEEMEEmESIREREE
(387,124)

BE R R (149,332)

At 31 December 2022 W2 —_F+"H=+—H

5,997,336

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group HE_E_-_—HF+°"H=+—H

disposed of interest in a joint venture, Fujian Huian Quanhui
Power Generation Co., Ltd., to an independent third
party for cash proceeds of RMB302,580,000 (equivalent
to HK$368,546,000). The Group recognised a gain of
HK$61,161,000 in profit or loss in relation to the transaction
in the year ended 31 December 2021.

i. During the year ended 31 December 2022, dividends of nil
(2021: GBP9,000,000 (equivalent to HK$96,710,000)) was
declared and paid by Summit Plus (as defined below), from its
capital reserve.

261

FEFE AERHERGEDLE
BEEZRERERRECELT
NEDFTEBILE=FH REME
HIEA AR #302,580,0007T (18
E11368,546,000/87T) - BE_ZE
T—F+"BA=+—HIEFE K
EEMZXEZNIERNER KRG
61,161,000 7T

BHE_ZE-_—_H#+°-8= + EI
IFEE > Summit Plus (&

) jtﬁmﬂiézt:ﬁ%{ﬁﬁﬁ*i)ﬁ&ﬂ&
FERE (&= —4 : 9,000,000%
% (ﬁmﬁé%,ﬁo,ooo%m)) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

24.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND  24. RS E ¥R RAE
LOANS TO JOINT VENTURES (conTiNuED) ErEET@
Interests in joint ventures (Continued) REETXENER @®
As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the principal RN_E__F#+_-_/A=+—HE_E
joint ventures of the Group, all of which were accounted for using _—F+ZRA=+—H ' AEBFES
equity method, were as follows: S (IRARREAR TEWT

Place of
incorporation Issued and fully paid
and share capital/

operation registered capital and paid-up capital Percentage of equity interest held Principal activities

SmAT BETMRERY/ EREFRARES i EHNRER AL TEER

Name of joint venture RiEEHhH 2022 2021 2022 2022
RELELE —E°C B_-F —E°C —g°C

Directly [T
=t i

Investment holding

REER

Resources J Energy Investment Share capital Share capital
Limited (‘Resources J') notea) &% US$266,599,544 1S$266,599,544
BRERRERRATR (THE) §2#266,599, 5443 7T 17266,509 544 %7

(Fizka)
China Resources Power Orient Co.,  HK Share capital Share capital - 66  Investment holding
Limited (‘Orient’) (note a) &% 1S$265,311,808 US$265,311,808 RERR
ERENRAERAT (F7)) 265,311,808 7 [ EvGRIMKIESH
(Htta)
China Resources Power (Hezhou) ~ PRC Registered Registered - 66 Operation of a power
Co., Limited (‘CR Hezhou') H and paid-up and paid-up station
(note a) capital capital EEE
EBEN BN ERAT RMB1,724,000,000 RMB1,724,000,000
(M) () ARERES HRAEER
AE1,724,000,0007 [NEERAZNNN
Summit Plus International Limited UK Share capital Share capital - 40 Operation of a
(*Summit Plus”) (note b) fte] GBP580,000,000 (GBP580,000,000 power station
Summit Plus International Limited! 1 580,000,000 JR5580,000,0004 HE

(T Summit Plus 1) (Kftb)

- 50 Operation of a
power station

China Resources Power (Jinzhou) ~ PRC Registered Registered
Co., Limited (note b) HE and paid-up and paid-up
ERE7 @) BRAT () capital capital
RMB1,314,922,500 RMB1,314,922,500

ARESRES kERER

AEHS1,314922,5007 ENEEIRIEX 2RI

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. 26 2
EBHENERARAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

24.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND 24. RSt ¥MNESRAEY
LOANS TO JOINT VENTURES (conTINUED) ShEEIT @
Interests in joint ventures (Continued) REETXENER @®

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the principal ==
joint ventures of the Group, all of which were accounted for using

F+ZRA=+—BEZ®
T—HE+ZR=t—B xEEIRAE

equity method, were as follows: (Continued) T2 ORBERZEIAR TEWT @

Place of
incorporation
and

operation

iR

Name of joint venture RiEEHhH

AELRYRE

China Resources Power (Ningwu) ~ PRC
Co. LTD (note b) e
ERE7 (E1) ERAT (W)

Zhejiang Runhai New Energy Co. ~ PRC
Limited (note b) i
HLEERERERAT (o)

China Resources Finance New PRC
Energy (Dongying) Co., Limited 5
(note b)

ERMENER (R8) ARAT
(Bzko)

Issued and fully paid
share capital/

registered capital and paid-up capital Percentage of equity interest held

BETHRERA/ AREFRARES FEHNRER AL

2022 2022 2022

~E-- P ~E-- ~E--

Directly Indirectly
=t i

Registered capital Registered capital
RMB1,047,000,000 RMB,047,000,000
Paid-up capital Paid-up capital
RMB756,000,000 RMBT56,000,000
&S &R

AE% ARE
1,047,000,0007 1,047,000,00070
BRES HREL

AEH AEE
756,000,007 756,000,007

Registered capital Registered capital
RMB3,000,000,000 RMB3,000,000,000
Paid-up capital Paid-up capital
RMB660,000,000 RMB296,000,000
&S &R

AEE AEE
3,000,000,00070 3,000,000,0007c
BRES HRER

AEH AEE
660,000,0007 296,000,007

Registered capital Registered capital
RMB1,258,200,000 RMB650,000,000
Paid-up capital Paid-up capital
RMB893,000,000 RMB375,000,000
AfEs g

N N
1,258,200,0007% 650,000,007
Hiegs HREL

AE® AEH
893,000,0007c 375,000,0007C
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2021
3

Directly

Ef

Principal activities

TEER

Indirectly

i

Electricity and heat
production and supply
industry
BNRAELENR
e

40 Science and
technology extension
and application
services
NEREMEENR
RS

55 Electricity and heat
production and supply
industry
ENRAKLENR
i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

24. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND
LOANS TO JOINT VENTURES (conTiNUED)

Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the principal
joint ventures of the Group, all of which were accounted for using

equity method, were as follows: (Continued)

Place of
incorporation
and

operation

iR

Name of joint venture RiEEHhH

AELRRRE

Gansu Jiusteel China Resources PRC
New Energy (Subel) Co., Limited 1
(note b)

HEEREDE
()

B BRAR

Tianjin Zhonghai China Resources  PRC

Shipping Co. Limited (note b) | RMB768,000,000 RMB768,000,000
KEDEEENEERAR Registered capital Registered capital
(Hrskn) RMB768,000,000 RMB768,000,000
&S &R
AEE AEH
768,000,0007 768,000,007
BRER HRER
AEH AEE
768,000,007 768,000,007
Notes: MIsE -
(@) The Group holds 66% of the interests of Resources J. As certain key (@)
financial and operating matters should be approved unanimously by the
board members appointed by both the Group and the other shareholder
of Resources J, the directors of the Company consider that Resources J is
jointly controlled by the Group and the third party. Orient and CR Hezhou
are 100% directly and indirectly held by Resources J, respectively.
(b) The directors of the Company consider that investee companies are jointly (b)

Issued and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital and paid-up capital

BETMRERY/ EREFRARES

2022 202

-F—-

—_—

Registered capital
RMB192,612,000
Paid-up capital
RMB183,000,000
&S

AE%
192,612,000
BRER

AEH
183,000,007

Registered capital

Registered capital
RMB192,612,000
Paid-up capital
RMB105,000,000
&R
AEH
192,612,0007
HEEL
AEE
105,000,00070

Registered capital

4. RNAERENEmRAS
BrESH@
REETXENER @®

Percentage of equity interest held

i EHNRER AL

RZIEZ_&E+-R=+—H~KZ=-ZF
TFt A=+ —RB AEEIESE
¥ 9B

DEANIR) T2OT (8

Principal activities

TEER

2022 2022 2021

-F—-

Directly
=t

controlled by the Group as the key financial and operating matters should
be approved unanimously by the board members appointed by both the

Group and the other shareholder of respective investee companies.

All the entities above are limited liability companies.

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.
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Directly

Electricity and heat
production and supply
industry
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e
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production and supply
industry
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND
LOANS TO JOINT VENTURES (conTiNUED)

Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

24,

According to the assessment of directors of the Company, as at 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2021, no individual joint venture
is material to the Group, therefore, no information on individual joint
venture is disclosed.

Set out below are the summarised financial information for the
immaterial joint ventures which are accounted for using the equity
method.

The Group’s share of loss AEBELEE
The Group’s share of other

comprehensive (expense) income

AEEBGEEEMZAER

The Group’s share of total
comprehensive expense

Loans to joint ventures

BPER -
mEEhEEM

Current:
Loans to joint ventures

As at 31 December 2022, loans to joint ventures are denominated
in RMB, unsecured and bearing interest rates of 4.35% (2021:
4.35%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, due to short-

term nature of the loans to joint ventures, the carrying amounts
approximate the fair values.

265

FAEBRGEEMEE G WA

B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_ZT__HF+_RA=+—HLEFE

IGEEFIREERAS

SrESH@
NEETENEDS @

BRBEERBDEFHFG KT
TIA=+—BRIEZ—F+TRH
=t+—B uEENEGECENTEER
BEX HIL TEKEENGERZE
BB}

&= — —

ey

TF &I RBRDEARNIFERS
EENMBERRE-

PN
=

2022
—=— —

—_— ——

HK$’000
FET

(86,737) (119,282)
(387,124) 43,467
(473,861) (75,815)

MEEEEEN
2022
ot oot

HK$’000
FTRT

2021

B —F
HK$’'000
FHET

189,121 262,377

ATE T —FE+A=+—H ' B&
u:%ﬁmb()\ﬁ’ﬁgaﬂﬁ‘?ﬁﬁ&ﬁ&&ﬂ
F4.35% (CEZ—F 1 4.35%) 5t E

RIBEZ_HE+-RA=+—H~kZ=
T—Ft+ZR=+—HB B8Rk é%ﬁ
FNERBREAMEHE HARBENS
REIREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 25. LA EEtE B EEE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE AHRMGRSWK=ENEME
INCOME/LOANS TO A FVOCI INVESTEE E/ /MU EESER
COMPANY S8t AHthiz S W=

WG EABER
FVOCI UrsBEFEEE8E AHM
FEWE
FVOCI represent equity investments in unlisted limited liability RABEFEEEH T AREMEE N E
entities registered in the PRC which are not held for trading. IERFPESSENIFLTERETEREDN
These are strategic investments and the Group considers this RERE TIFFIFEE-BMERS
classification to be more relevant. Movement of FVOCI is disclosed FRKE AERRABHE2EFTAR
in Note 48c. BrolAAEETTEBEE T AEME

G U m BV ENFE Y 5E48CHRER

2022 2021

—E-C B —F

HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET TET

Company A 601,574 591,015
Company B UN=I1|=] 195,477 205,689
Company C ‘AEIC 91,369 111,097
Company D ‘AEID 10,843 24,559
Others Hith 219,133 206,622
1,118,396 1,138,982

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, FVOCI are all denominated in RIE-Z _FR_E-—F+2"A1

RMB. —t+—H URAAEBEFEAEEA

Hintr s W m U ARESHE -

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. 266
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME/LOANS TO A FVOCI INVESTEE

CcO

MPANY (conTiNuED)

FVOCI (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

On 11 May 2021, the Group entered into sales and purchase agreements to
dispose of its entire equity interest in Taicang Gangxiexin Power Company
Limited (“Taicang Gangxiexin”), which was accounted for as FVOCI, to
an independent third party at a consideration of RMB1,065,710,000, in
exchange of an 40% equity interest in Guoneng Taicang Power Company
Limited (Guoneng Taicang), an associate valued at RMB1,064,007,000
and a cash consideration of RMB1,703,000. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the disposal of Taicang Gangxiexin was completed
and the cash consideration of RMB1,703,000 was received. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, the acquisition of Guoneng Taicang
was completed, and the amount of RMB1,064,007,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,246,537,000) was reclassified from prepayments for acquisition of an
associate to interests in associates.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, a cumulative gain on disposal
of HK$748,720,000 previously accumulated in capital reserve has been
transferred to retained earnings, and related deferred tax liability has
been transferred out and debited to other comprehensive income of
HK$187,180,000.

In July 2021, the Group derecognised FVOCI, Jiangsu Shangdian Jiawang
Power Generation Company Limited (Jiangsu Shangdian Jiawang) which
was liquidated. A cumulative loss on liquidation of HK$14,686,000
previously accumulated in capital reserve has been transferred to retained
earnings.
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B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

25. U st(EEsE B 285t
ARMESWENERMS
E/UAAREEAER
a5t AH MRS
WIRE QB AR @

UasEEstE B2t ARt

4= A
g =]

P EE -

(@)

Wz @)

R_E - —FHA+—H > AERFTIL
BEWE UHEENR AR EBHEEE
BRAB (TKAEBHE) E=E (HEA
RAUAAEESEREF T AH M
GlE) FBIE=ZA " REAARE
1,065,710,0007T » MG B B & 1 2 B AE
AXEBRBEERQE (BAEXE BEA
AR #1,064,007,00070) BI40%B& # »
B EAARE1,703,000c BHE_Z
-+ _B=Z+—HLEEE BR
REEXEERE TKIREREA
R #1,703,000c  BE_E_"F+_
B=+—HBLEE > BERKEERE

B £ % AR ¥1,064,007,0007Tc FEER
1,246,537,000%8 7T) B B UK iR %78
TREEHDEERHECENES-

HE_E-—F+-_A=+—HIEE"
RARNESHETRINHE Rt &
748,720,000t EEBEREF B M
HREEREABEEHE T B MRS
e 7% 30 187,180,000 7T ©

MRIEBEZ—F+tH > AERBHEIEE
TEENUAABESEAEHT AR
iz E R B I EEETRTARA
B CI&LEEET)) LrRNEAFET
Rt HEE R 51E51814,686,00078 7T B
BEREGAE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME/LOANS TO A FVOCI INVESTEE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Loans to a FVOCI investee company

Non-current
Current ik}

As at 31 December 2022, loans to a FVOCI investee company, are
unsecured, denominated in RMB, bearing interest rate published by
the People’s Bank of China. The loans are repayable by instalment
throughout to 2024 (2021: 2024).

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the carrying amounts of loans
to a FVOCI investee company classified as current assets are
approximate to their fair values, due to the short-term nature. For
the portion of loans to a FVOCI investee company classified as
non-current assets, the fair values are also not significantly different
from their carrying amounts.

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. 268
EHEHNERBRAT

25. L AREEStE B &85t

ARMRSE MRS
E/TMUAanEEHNER
GBI AH iR Sy
HWIRE AT ER @

MU AAEE B S8 AR
i & WA AR A T B R

2022 2021

—E-C ==

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAET
466,255 91,886
84,102 372,107

550,357 463,993

RIBZZHF+ZA=+—H8 \AMUA
REBEFEBEH T ARMGRSRERN
WRBRBDERDEET > UARKES
B BPEARBITAMPIAKR -
ZEERAR S INFHE S HER
(ZEZ—F:”F-[@F) -

RIBZ_FRZIBZ-—F+ZA
=+t—H BERBESAME Ao ER
RBEENUAREEFEBEHFTA
HMiz o Wm R E AR EMBER
HENSRAAAEE MRADERIE
RBEENUARBESEEESH A
HMGESWRENRKREATDBDER
Mms ' AnBEAHKEETEAREBE
Ro



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

26. OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

PREPAYMENTS

Input value-added-tax (“VAT”) to be

2022
S ——

— T ——

HK$’000
FTET

i s Bl 2 TR IR (B AR

26. H{thFE U R IR B PR {1 7R 1H

2021

ZB 5
HK$'000
TAET

recovered (MEEHR) 4,057,084 4,612,511
Prepayments for acquisition of property, UWEEYI% k= R& B
plant and equipment ERERNES O] 7,163,394 5,765,307
Prepayments for acquisition of equity I BE IS R I BRI TR Y R IE
investments (Notes a, b) (Ffz*a> b) 716,497 1,301,376
Refundable deposit for acquisition of R ERIEE B] R Ol #2
mining rights (Note 28(b)) (MFs£28(b)) 596,444 910,731
Others HA 320 10,722
12,533,739 12,600,647

Notes: MIsE -

() In November 2022, the Group entered into an agreement for acquisition of () AR CFE+—PB o REERIKES
38.25% equity interest of Chongging Nengyuan Power Company Limited at EAERE B RATIMN38.25%M#ET L
consideration of HK$369,428,000, the acquisition has not completed as of % > 1B 54369,428,0008 T  EE_&
31 December 2022. _HE+ZA=t+T—H WBEEHRT

o
(b)  In August 2022, the Group entered into an agreement for acquiring 40% (o) AR ZFNA AEBET N EER R

entity interest of Shenyang Shengjing Energy Development Group Co., Ltd
to at a consideration of HK$347,069,000, the acquisition has not completed
as of 31 December 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

27.INVENTORIES

Coal W 5
Spare parts and consumables BEREEHNHESR
Fuel oil and others AT R EL A

The impairment charges related to inventories amounting to
HK$32,184,000 (2021: HK$628,000) has been recorded in
operating expenses. The movement on the provision for impairment
of inventories of the Group is as follows:

At 1 January w—B—H

Exchange adjustments PE 2 S 28

Impairment charge to profit or loss R 1B m AR I0BRAVRE

Reverse #[o]

At 31 December BW+=ZB=+—H
China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. 2 70

ERENERBRAT

27. 78

2022 2021
—E-C —EC—F

HK$’000 HK$'000
FTART TET

3,909,226 6,011,786
622,078 678,979
50,310 57,509
4,581,614 6,748,274

7 #32,184,0008 T (ZE - —% :
628,000/87) NWERMEENREERLE
REEZHAR  AEBEEFEERREE
BEHWMT

2022 2021
—E-C == —4F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FH&T FABT
10,368 10,440

(753) 281

32,184 628
(1,216) (981)

40,583 10,368



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

28. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

28. FEURARTR « H{th FEULTRIA
BRFa{trRIA

2022
—Em— =

—_—=——

HK$’000

THET
(RESEWE))
(B&5)

RER R B KRR

Trade receivables from contracts with
customers

— Accounts receivable —FEURERR 27,908,433 29,414,940
— Notes receivable —EWEE 443,265 438,236
28,351,698 29,853,176
Less: loss allowance of B AR TUR B ZE
trade receivables (140,399) (45,068)
Trade receivables - net FEURBR TR B 28,211,299 29,808,108
Input VAT to be recovered and & Uit [B] 2E TE I (B 7R K
prepayment for income tax FTi8 MR Fa I8 2,572,430 3,837,202
Prepayments for coal and fuel Y& SR S MRS TR FUIE 3,079,016 2,403,764
Dividends receivable from EREMARNERE
other companies 25,144 64,548
Consideration receivable for the MHE LEREREEE
Disposal of Shanxi Coal FEU LB (fizta)
Mining Assets (Note a) 77,642 84,985
Refundable deposit for acquisition U HE EREERE RV BT AR [O]
of mining rights (Note b) & (ko) 152,994 111,546
Others (Note d) HAth (FyzEd) 1,725,446 1,744,188
7,632,672 8,246,233
Less: loss allowance of B B EUGERIE R (B
other receivables (227,874) (268,749)
35,616,097 37,785,592
Notes: L
(8)  The Group disposed of certain subsidiaries engaging in coal mining @ BE_EFT-N\EF_A=+—HIFE
business during the year ended 31 December 2018 (“Disposal of Shanxi i’g%ﬁ%fiﬁ$ﬁi5{§¥ﬁ5’]§fm%§
Coal Mining Assets”). The remaining balance amounting to HK$77,642,000 ] (I—EE' %_'JJ ﬁﬁﬁi%%ﬁ ° I _3:_:
(2021: HK$84,985,000) as at 31 December 2022 was the interest E(fﬁ—_ﬁfi,‘gﬂ%ﬁ%&%‘%ﬁ%ﬁ%
receivable accrued related to the consideration. BERREL FEHWH f E'\; -s
271 Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

28. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

28. FEURBR TR « EL{thFEUSFRIE
BRIE(THRIE @

(CONTINUED)
Notes: (Continued) MIEE © (&)
(b)  In January 2008 and December 2011, the Group entered into agreements (o) N _EENEFE—BKRZEFE——H+ZAH>

with a local government authority in the PRC to acquire the mining
right of a coal mine located in Inner Mongolia at a consideration of
RMB5,782,130,000 (equivalents to HK$6,599,087,000). Due to the local
government’s policy change on resources pricing and the redefinition
of resources scope, the Group entered into a supplemental agreement
with the local government in November 2019, revising the consideration
to RMB5,504,590,000 (equivalents to HK$6,145,049,000). As at 31
December 2019, deposit amounting to RMB1,166,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,301,664,000) which is refundable was paid by the Group. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group made certain additional
payments and completed the acquisition of the mining right pursuant to
the supplemental agreement dated November 2019. As at 31 December
2022, management of the Group assessed that the refundable deposit
was expected to be paid in installments over a longer period of time and
recorded an expected credit loss of HK$188,679,000 on the refundable
deposit, the refundable deposit expected to be settled within one year is
presented under current assets whilst the balance expected to be settled
beyond twelve months is presented under non-currents assets — “other
receivables and prepayments”.

(c) For the mining rights as mentioned above, the remaining consideration (c)

of RMB4,338,590,000 (equivalent to HK$4,843,385,000 will be paid by
instalment during the validity period of the mining right starting from 2021 to
2049. As at date of acquisition, the fair value of the consideration payable
of RMB4,338,590,000 was determined based on the present value of the
payment schedule discounted at 4.9% per annum. As at 31 December
2022, the amount due for settlement beyond 12 months, amounting to
approximately RMB2,098,883,000, equivalent to HK$2,349,657,000 (2021:
RMB2,135,225,000, equivalent to HK$2,611,572,000), was presented
under “other long-term payables”.

(d) Others mainly represent the customs deposits for coal import, other (d)
receivables regarding the daily business activities of the Group.

Mainly of the trade and other receivables are denominated in RMB.

7 £ [ B2 PR ) 3 5 B AT A RE 5T 32 17 5%
AR EARS5,782,130,0007c (FHE
6,599,087,0007 7t) WM AR HH—
FEIE R AT AE o R M S BT H B IRE
BRRNAEREMZEERBE K&
BR - NE+—BRETIHRRH
= W RERE R ARS5,504,590,000
7t (FBER6,145,049,0008 7T) - R =
—hWE+ZB=+—H xEBEXT
AR A% £ AR %1,166,000,0007T (B E
$£1,301,664,000587T) cBE_T T F
+ZA=+—HILEE AEBREH
A-E—NE+—ANBERBERIELS
TFHEIMBEERRNERBERE - R T
TIE+ZA=+—H FTEETEET
& A REREEHE P RERBRDH
S WL AR EIR SR TBHAE 8518
188,679,000 70 FEETHRE N —FENAE B
BEERRIREN RS EELY) > MiEst12
BRBELEBENHRBERIERBEE- TH
I FE U R IE R FE (T B B AR o

iR FREB AR K4,338,590,0007t (HHE
1%4,843,385,0007% ) B E T - —4F
EIEMAFREBEERNHAANDHE
T-RWBEEE BERENAAEES
AR ¥4,338,590,0007T J5 1R 1% {3 71 BF RS
KNBERESEIINBEREB/H R T
—HF+ZA=+—8B 12 BELH
I EEH A R #52,008,883,0007t (FHE 7
2,349,657,000%7T) (Z2-—F . AR
2,135,225,0007¢ (HHE §22,611,572,0007%8
70)) RTEMRHERIE T2

HithF2HEEREONNBMRESRE
RSB B EF AN EMBITRIE.

R BB 73 FE U BR AR B ELfth FE W R IR 9 DA

RI&stE
The ageing analysis of trade and notes receivables based on 22 2 HHAEI 0 09 FE UL BR 7R R FE U = 4
invoice date is as follows: BEREC DTN T -

0-30 days 0ZE30H
31-60 days 31Z260H
Over 60 days 60 L £
China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. 2 7 2

ERENERBRAT

2022
o=

—_—=——

2021

HK$’000

HK$’000
THETT
(RESEIEE))
(B&5)

13,396,411

FHET

13,925,127

1,009,613 1,020,802
13,416,958 15,435,963
29,853,176

28,351,698



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2022, included in trade receivables was an
amount of HK$286,622,000 (2021: HK$218,411,000) which is due
from fellow subsidiary or associates and is aged within one year.

The Group’s trade debtors are mainly the local grid companies
arising from sale of thermal power and renewable energy electricity.
The Group generally grants about 60 days’ credit period to
customers from the end of the month in which the sales is made,
except for the tariff premium for renewable energy projects. The
collection of such tariff premium is subject to the allocation of funds
by relevant government authorities to local grid companies, which
consequently takes a relatively longer time for settlement.

In December 2020 and July 2021, the Group entered into
contracts (“Transfer Contract”) with China Resources Shenguotou
Trust Co., Ltd. (“CR Trust”), a fellow subsidiary and pursuant
to which the Group has agreed to entrust CR Trust with the
accounts receivables of renewable energy segment amounting
to RMB1,453,262,000 (equivalents to HK$1,726,708,000)
and RMB2,005,349,000 (equivalents to HK$2,410,048,000),
respectively, for the purpose of issuance of debt financing
instruments backed by the cash flow generated from the
accounts receivables. Management of the Group assessed that,
through the contract with CR Trust, the Group has transferred
all the contractual rights to receive the cash flows and therefore
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the accounts receivables to the investors. The Group derecognised
the related trade receivables of RMB2,005,349,000 (equivalents
to HK$2,410,048,000) during the year ended 31 December
2021, upon completion of transfer. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Group redeemed related trade receivables
of RMB92,352,000 (equivalents to HK$103,386,000) pursuant to
redemption option prescribed in the Transfer Contract, the fair value
of the redemption clause at 31 December 2021 was insignificant.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

28. FEURARTR « H{th FEULTRIA

B FE(TFRIA @)

RIE-__F+"A=+—H> EWE
FEE—ZRKERNBADZ#ME R
5 FRIE286,622,0008 70 (ZE _—4F
218,411,00087T) * MRlie A —F A °

REEBWRBBEERTIERRNEMER
NEINBRABEEREE AEEBE
BHRTELNOBNRRE (BEHE
BiERFERE) (AIBLEEREENEE
FREBRAN) o BB AL RV Bl B 1R FAHRED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

28. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)

Pursuant to Caidian [2012] No.102 Notice on the Interim Measures
for Administration of Subsidy Funds for Tariff Premium of
Renewable Energy{AIBE£fEREEBNMNMEEEEIEEITHNL)
jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance, the National Development
and Reform Commission and the National Energy Administration
in March 2012, standardised procedures for the settlement of
the tariff premium came into force in 2012 and approvals for
the inclusion in a national register of qualified renewable energy
projects (“Register Inclusion Approval”) on a project by project
basis are required before the allocation of funds to the local grid
companies.

As at 31 December 2022, certain operating projects of the Group
have obtained such Register Inclusion Approval for the tariff
premium and certain projects are in the process of applying. The
ageing analysis of trade receivables over 60 days excluding those
tariff premium receivables is as follows:

Over 60 days BiE60H

Movements on the provision for loss allowance of trade receivables
of the Group are as follows:

At 1 January ®—HB—H

Impairment losses on trade receivables  FEURBR BB RIS

Written off b=t

Exchange adjustments bE 2 S 2R

At 31 December ®+ZHA=+—H
China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. 2 74
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28. FEURBR TR « EL{thFEUSFRIE
BRIE(THRIE @

REVHEB BREBNLEZEER
BERERBNR_Z—_—F=AHRE T
WA BEEREEMNMEHESEE
BiTH0E) BEA (B 2[2012]11025%) »
BEMMNEENR _S—_FRER%E
ERANT BEEERSHETABRR
BERABLERERERERH (HAE
seftE) BRARMNEEWMNA SN

EEMBHENF-

RIE-__F+-"A=+—H &~&H
AETESEEENSEEBRENEAET
i e EEMBHBEE RN AFNG
B oz EBBE60H BRI (Rt R B
B NERE DT ¢

2022 2021

—E-C B —F

HK$’000
FET
649,839

HK$'000
THET
608,514

75 B PR WK AR MR (B 2 £ B A B 2 Bh i
T

2022
—E-C

HK$’000
FAET

45,068 75,095
110,893 696
(10,789) (32,137)
(4,773) 1,414
140,399 45,068



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2022, the management had assessed the
ECL of trade receivables in respect of connection-to-grid projects
of renewable energy plants with a gross carrying amount of
HK$100,579,000. Management considered the entire balance is
credit impaired and full impairment loss was recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Movements on the provision for loss allowance of other receivables
of the Group are as follows:

At 1 January n®—HA—H

Reversal of provision for R (B ZE B A 5 ]
loss allowance

Written off s

Exchange adjustments PERHEE

At 31 December R+—EBE=+—H

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables. Note 48 provides for details
about the calculation of the allowance.

Information about the expected credit loss of trade receivables,
other receivables and the Group’s exposure to credit risk can be
found in Note 48.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying value of each class of receivables mentioned above. The
Group does not hold any collateral as security.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the fair values of trade and

other receivables approximate their carrying amounts due to the
short-term nature.
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28. FEURBR TR « EL{thFEUSFhIE
BRIE(THIE @

RIE-__F+-_A=+—H B1EE
ERtERE48%84100,579,0007 75 Y 7]
BAEEREERHHEB TEEWARR
NEAEEHRE - EEERAS 2348
BREEEERE TREE_S__
+ B =1+ —HIEFERIEERES
g

AEBAEMBYRIEREREFERENE
E2) I

2022
e =

_— ——

HK$’000
FERT

268,749 266,385
(3,697) (546)
(27,626) (369)
(9,552) 3,279
227,874 268,749

AEBFEBEEBMBRS ELFIREG
EEstEBREERE URAMARI
ARANE A 2 BATRHR R (B 2 £ o MY 5E485F
MEGNSESE-

BREEWERT  HthE R IE R A EE
EERRNTEIHERIBAEMEREHEMN
Fi5E48 0

RESBHMENNRAREERRES L
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RETMRAREREE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

29. AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES 20, FEULE i EFIE

2022 2021

—E-=

HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TAT

Dividends receivable from associates FEU B = (2R B 240,371 404,824
Others HAth 825 1,509
241,196 406,333
After the management assesses on the historical credit loss REEEHBTFEEBERCRETH
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the associates, Ao MBS X ERE  BRELK
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the AR KRR E BN ERTAR T AR
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of RARDTER T EL FAERE > WSt
future conditions, no loss allowance was provided. IR BEERE -
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the fair values approximate N E_ _FRERE_—F+_"A4H
their carrying amounts due to the short-term nature. —+t—H BHRBREAME AnEE
HNEREHIR@E
‘n:A =
30. AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINT 30. B S EEENIE

VENTURES

2022 2021

—EZC

HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TAT

Current: BPAR :
Dividend receivable from a joint venture ~ FEUR& & RS 10,986 6,938
Interests receivable from joint ventures Bl &G ERENR 9,490 4,769
Others Hh 26,919 23,668
47,395 35,875
After the management assesses on the historical credit loss REEEBHBEBTEEBERLCRETH
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the joint B UMEELERERRZ EBLH
ventures, general economic conditions and an assessment of both AR R B i R & B BRRY BRI AR S R
the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast RARDTFBRN T EEHABES > WAt
of future conditions, no loss allowance was provided. R BEERE-
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the fair values approximate W2 _FRZZ2-_—F+°A
their carrying amounts due to the short-term nature. —t+—H BERBREIPANE AaEE
HWERHEERME B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. LOAN TO A NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY/
AMOUNTS DUE FROM OTHER
RELATED COMPANIES

Loan to a non-controlling shareholder

MIFER AR R ER

Loan to a non-controlling shareholder

As at 31 December 2022, a loan to a non-controlling shareholder is
unsecured, denominated in RMB, with an interest rate of 4.9% per
annum. The loan to a non-controlling shareholder is for the non-
current portion, for which the fair value is not significantly different
from its carry amount.

Amounts due from other related companies

Non-trading related: JEEZ ZHHRE -

Amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders

Amount due from a fellow subsidiary

Amounts due from a FVOCI investee
company

NSIE/R|

The amounts due from other related parties of the Group are
unsecured, denominated in RMB, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the fair values of the amounts

due from other related parties approximate their carrying amounts
due to the short-term nature.
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31. R B AR IFERZ AR R

g% EIEHMEEAR
IR

mEIFERIRRER
2022 2021

—— —

—_—<—

HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHT TAET
13,994 -

RIE--HF+"R=+—H mkE
RERRERERT UARESE U
4.9%HFERRGE - xMIFERRRE
M IERNERE D EA R ERAREEER
WHENREERESR

P& U EL {th B 2 2 B 7R 1H

2022 2021
=2

HK$’000 HK$’000
FH7 FHT

26,235
30,726

119,612

176,573

FE W s £ B ELAth R B 5 ARIB S IR AR
MARBSE -RERARERKE
/ZEO

RIB-_—H&R-EB-_—-—+"H1
=t+t—H BARBEAME BRHEM
BT RENAABENSNHEHERE
B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

32. PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED BANK 32. B R Z RHIIRITIERR
DEPOSITS
As at 31 December 2022, deposits amounting to HK$27,147,000 R_E__F#+_-_B=+—H'%
(2021: HK$86,100,000) had been pledged to secure bank #27,147,000Bc (ZE - —F :
acceptance bills. Deposits amounting to HK$89,319,000 (2021: 86,100,000/ 75) HEMKLSIEAE > UL
HK$66,719,000) were restricted for environmental protection and ERIBITR R EHR - 289,319,000 7T
industry transformation compliance purpose with the approval of —E T —4 166,719,000 7T) BIER
certain governments. BETHHEWBRIEIR IR RERE
xHEASHEENZAe
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the pledged and restricted N B _ER_E-_—F+_AH
bank deposits are all denominated in RMB and the fair values —+—H BEBEZERFRTERS
approximate their carrying amounts. HUARESE 2AABEAZRERE
[EIEER
33. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3. WERREEFEY

2022

g
HK$’000
FTET

Cash at bank and on hand RITKRFHEIFE 7,721,275 7,934,211

The cash and cash equivalents of the Group are denominated in AEENRERIRSEEMUNTEE
the following currencies: FHE -

2022 2021

—E-C —E £

HK$’000 HK$’000

THT TAT

RMB 7,608,291 7,823,226
HK Dollars BT 109,297 106,227
US Dollars ET 3,664 3,791
Others HAh 23 967

7,721,275 7,934,211

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. 2 78
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES

AND ACCRUALS

Trade payables
Other payables

FEASBRAX
H &R

Ageing analysis of trade payables by invoice date is as follows:

0 to 30 days
31 to 90 days
Over 90 days

0%30H
31%E90H
90H MU £

The average credit term for purchase is 90 days.

Other payables include:

Payables in respect of purchase of
property, plant and equipment

Accrued wages

Other tax payables

Compensation for demolition

Interests payable

Retirement and other long-term
employee benefits obligations
(Note 42 (jii)

Others

ERBEYE -BEREE
BRI TRIB

fEsti &

HhpES 18

FBEE

FEIF] R

EBARKREMEIRE TEMKE
(B £ 42(ii) )

HAth

279

B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

34. FE{FARTR - HAth B (I TRIA

RSt &R

2022 2021

—— — S

—_— =

— T ——

HK$’000
FET

HK$'000
TAET

8,205,383 11,193,484
22,042,543 22,942,990
34,136,474

30,247,926

REZ QS DB RMBIRE DU
T

2022 2021
-

HK$’000

FTET

5,654,223

HK$'000
TAET
5,168,345

941,476 2,879,972
1,609,684 3,145,167
11,193,484

8,205,383

BENTHEEHRSB0E
HMEARIEEE !

2022 2021
g BT —F

HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET TAET

15,976,260 17,358,026
2,640,449 2,293,318
1,359,015 1,283,953

529,489 566,149
300,373 393,607
49,916 59,735
1,187,041 988,202

22,042,543

22,942,900
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

34. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES
AND ACCRUALS (conTiNUED)

Other payables are unsecured, interest-free, repayable on demand
and mainly denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the fair values of trade and
other payables of the Group approximate their carrying amounts
due to the short-term nature.

35. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Non-current
Current TREN

As at 1 January 2021, contract liabilities amounted to
HK$2,141,930,000.

The current potion of contract liabilities is from heat supplies
customers which is usually transferred into revenue within one year.

36. AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES

As at 31 December 2022, deposits amounting to HK$627,192,000
(2021: HK$771,241,000) which are market-rate-interest bearing,
and the remaining carrying amounts due to associates are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The amounts
due to associates are mainly denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the fair values approximate
their carrying amounts due to the short-term nature.

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. 280
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34.

35.

36.

FEfTBRER « HAthFE(FFRIB
RETER @

HEMRESERF - RERARE
KREEZE TEEZUARESE

N _B__ERZEB_—+°AH
=t+t—H BARBREAME AEHME
IR R EMENRIEN AR BENS
PREIREE

GHaE

2022 2021

=2

HK$’000 HK$’000
FTRET TAET
873,021 858,566
1,233,004 1,481,794

2,106,025 2,340,360

A _E_—F—H—HB &NEEA
2,141,930,0007& 75 ©

GREENERMBIRBHERTR > —
AR —F A

FE(S kS SR FRIA

A _E__HF#+_HA=+—H"#&
£627,192,0008 T (ZE - —F
771,241,0005870) HHIBHIZEFE M
ENHME DG TREEAEIRE &
ERBERERFEE -BAHELER
BFEUARET|E

N _B__FRZEB_—F+°AH
=t+—H BERBREAME AnEE
MERHIREE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. AMOUNTS DUE TO JOINT VENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, deposits amounting to HK$346,826,000
(2021: HK$445,623,000) which are market-rate-interest bearing,
and the remaining carrying amounts due to joint ventures
are unsecured, interest-free, repayable on demand and are
denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the fair values approximate
their carrying amounts due to the short-term nature.

38. AMOUNTS DUE TO OTHER RELATED
COMPANIES

Loan from an intermediate holding
company (Note a)

Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries

Amount due to an intermediate holding
company (Note b)

(FtsEa)
PR IR R R R RIR

(FfysEDb)

Notes:

() The loans from China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited (“CRH”), an
intermediate holding company, amounting to HK$6,613,825,000 (2021:
HK$6,251,763,000) as at 31 December 2022 is unsecured, bearing an
interest rate based on benchmark lending rate of HIBOR rate and repayable
within a year.

(b) As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the balance are unsecured, interest-
free and without a fixed repayment term. They are mainly denominated in
RMB and HKS.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the fair values of amounts due
to other related companies approximate their carrying amounts due
to the short-term nature.
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37. Bt &R EMIA

R_E__F#+_RBR=+—8#%
£346,826,0008 T (ZE - —&F
445,623,000/ 7T) HMIBFHEFE M
BTEMEECERTDEAERRE &
ERBREXRREETUARES|E-

R_BE__FR-_F”-_—%+°AH

=t+t—H -BARBREHAME AnEE
MERHIREE-

38. FE (T H{thBAE A B FRIE

2022

2021
2=

HK$’000
FAET

HK$’000
TAET

6,613,825 6,251,763
647,766 829,989
16,903 26,373
3,562,396 283,589
7,391,714

10,840,890

(@ RIEBE-_—_F#+-B=+—H'KE+MH
ZERABDER (&R SRAE (MEHE
E)) BE6,613,825,0008 T (T2 = —
£ 1 6,251,763,0007T) B EIRKIF K E
REBRTEEREEEERFENA
Kt BRBNR—FEREER-

EERHA -ZEFRBATEZUARE KRBT
FlfE-

RIBZ_FR-ZFZ-—F+ZA
=+—H BRBEAME BAHEM
FEBEABMEBENAABEAOFNERE
Be
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

39. BORROWINGS 39. 85

2022

—E-=

HK$’000
FTHET

2021

HK$’000
TR

Non-current JEEPEA
Bank loans RITER
— Secured —BigH 1,991,250 2,536,024
— Unsecured —HEAE R 90,211,403 99,104,885
Corporate bonds and notes NEEHREE 1,119,480 3,669,270
93,322,133 105,310,179
Current B EA
Bank loans RITER
— Secured —HBigH 159,727 400,798
— Unsecured —EIgE 35,984,754 16,914,130
Corporate bonds and notes NEESFMREE 2,238,960 5,870,832
38,383,441 23,185,760
Total borrowings EE %A 131,705,574 128,495,939
The bank loans of the Group were secured by: AEBPIRITERUTHIER (EETF .

2022
=2

HK$’000
FTAT

Buildings and equipment (Note 17) BFREE (EE17) 2,574,925

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. 28 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. BORROWINGS (conTINUED)

The bank borrowings were repayable as follows:

Within 1 year —F R
More than 1 year and within 2 years
More than 2 years and within 5 years

Over 5 years BB HFE

The corporate bonds and notes were repayable as follows:

Within 1 year —FRN
More than 1 year and within 2 years
More than 2 years and within 5 years

As at 31 December 2022, the fair values of bank loans approximate
their carrying amounts. The fair values are based on cash flows
discounted using a rate based on benchmark lending rate of the
People’s Bank of China or LIBOR rate.

The fair values of the corporate bonds at 31 December 2022 were
HK$3,358,440,000 (2021: HK$9,540,102,000). The fair value
measurement with a principal amount of RMB3,000,000,000 (2021:
RMB7,800,000,000) corporate bonds are categorised within level
1 of the fair value hierarchy as they are listed on Shanghai Stock
Exchange and Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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30. B8 @

IRTTEERN THEEE !

2022
e Ty

—_—<——

HK$’000
FTRT

36,144,481 17,314,928
18,570,717 31,608,528
26,531,050 20,903,130
47,100,886 49,129,251

118,955,837

128,347,134

NEMESREFZUN THBEE

2022
=2

HK$’000
FTHT

2,238,960 5,870,832
- 2,446,180
1,119,480 1,223,090
9,540,102

3,358,440

N _E T _F+"A=+—H RTE

EREEATREARBITEEGRFIX
HRAEEFSMRNRERESE -

NEESHR _BE-__F+-B=+—H
A A E1EA3,358,440,0008 T (Z &
——%:9,540,102,0007T) c mE A A
R #3,000,000,0007c (ZZZ—4F : A
EE #£7,800,000,0007T) M ABEHMNA
REESAENBALABEBRNGE —
HoRAABBABESLR EBEES
A B FESRZZFR Eme

Annual Report 2022
FIR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

39. BORROWINGS (conTiNUED) 3.8 ®@

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the EENREEUNN TEREYE
following currencies:

2022

—EZC

HK$’000
FAET
RMB 112,629,844 107,155,242

HK Dollar BT 17,857,428 19,894,265
GBP i 1,207,797 1,354,005
EUR B 10,505 11,699

US Dollar ET - 80,728

131,705,574 128,495,939

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had the following undrawn R _E - —F+-_A=+—H &x&EH
borrowing facilities: REANEREEWT .

2022
—E-_
HK$’000
FHT
Expiring within one year —FENE A 131,877,001 96,042,443
Expiring beyond one year —FE&EIH 107,251,569 67,336,040

239,128,570 163,378,483

During the year ended 31 December 2022, bank borrowings carry BE_E__F+_A=+—HLEHE
average interest rate at 3.23% (2021: 3.38%) per annum. B iR{TTEBUFHFFEIZE (T2
——% :3.388) stR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. BORROWINGS (conTINUED)

Notes:

(@

In March 2019, CR Power Investment issued corporate bonds
with a principal amount of RMB3,000,000,000 (2022: equivalent to
HK$3,358,440,000; 2021: equivalent to HK$3,669,270,000), bearing an
interest rate of 3.65% per annum. The Bonds | were listed in Shanghai
Stock Exchange and had been redeemed in March 2022 (“Bonds I”).

In August 2019, CR Power Investment issued corporate bonds
with a principal amount of RMB1,800,000,000 (2022: equivalent to
HK$2,015,064,000; 2021: equivalent to HK$2,201,562,000), bearing an
interest rate of 3.40% per annum. The Bonds Il were listed in Shanghai
Stock Exchange and had been redeemed in August 2022 (“Bonds II").

The September 2020, CR Power Investment issued corporate bonds
with a principal amount of RMB2,000,000,000 (2022: equivalent to
HK$2,238,960,000; 2021: equivalent to HK$2,446,180,000), bearing an
interest rate of 3.19% per annum. The Bonds Il were listed in Shenzhen
Stock Exchange and will mature in September 2023 (“Bonds [lI"), which has
been recognized into corporate bonds matured within one year.

In May 2021, CR Power Investment issued corporate bonds with a principal
amount of RMB1,000,000,000 (2022: equivalent to HK$1,119,480,000;
2021: equivalent to HK$1,223,090,000), bearing an interest rate of 3.6%
per annum. The Bonds IV were listed in Shenzhen Stock Exchange and will
mature in May 2026 (“Bonds IV”).

40. LEASE LIABILITIES

Lease liabilities payable:

Less: Amount due for settlement with 12

Amount due for settlement after 12

Within 1 year —FR
Within a period of more than 1 year
and within 2 years

Within a period of more than 2 years BB E

FEAE BRI RRIR

months shown under current liabilities

FEAE BRI RRIR

months shown under non-current
liabilities

During 2022, the weighted average incremental borrowing rates
applied to lease liabilities range from 3.25% to 4.41%.
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30. B8 @

G

(@

A TE-NFE=F > EEENRELRTK
£ 3EA AR 13,000,000,0007t (Z -
E*ﬁ%ﬁﬁés,358,44o,ooo%ﬁ R
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40. HEGE

&

B R REEaETNENR12EE R

RIERFEETEIR12EBB &

A—

2022

2021
—E-C BT —4F

HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET TAET

217,924 114,999
86,041 69,079
962,362 794,162
1,266,327 978,240

(217,924) (114,999)
863,241

1,048,403

B _FoBRAREEaENmE

Tigi

BERFENFI25%F4.41%5°

Annual Report 2022
FIR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

41. DEFERRED INCOME

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

ERENERBRAT

Deferred income represents subsidies granted by certain PRC
governmental departments related to assets. Those grants will
release to retained earnings during the useful life of the related
assets on straight line basis.

As at 31 December 2022, government grants of HK$61,212,000
(2021: HK$59,184,000) was amortized to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss (Note 8).

42. RETIREMENT AND OTHER LONG-TERM

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS

The Group has various retirement benefit schemes, including
PRC retirement benefit scheme and Hong Kong retirement benefit
schemes, and termination benefit schemes as following:

() Retirement benefit scheme - PRC

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of
state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by
the respective local government in the PRC. The Group is
required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs
to the schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to these schemes is to make the specified
contributions.

In 2019, the Group set up a defined contribution retirement
scheme for all qualified employees (“Corporate Annuity Plan”).
They usually need to service over one year in the Group
to be qualified. The Group contribute 5% of the salary of
participating employee to the scheme each year.

(ii) Retirement benefit scheme - Hong Kong

The Group operates various defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all Hong Kong employees.
The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund. The amount
of contributions is based on a specified percentage of the
basic salary of employees and any forfeited contributions
in respect of unvested benefits of staff leavers are used to
reduce the Group’s contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. RETIREMENT AND OTHER LONG-TERM
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS

(CONTINUED)

(iii) Termination benefit

(a)

For certain selected employees of China Resources
Power Hunan Liyujiang Co., Ltd., Shenyang Power
Company, and Hunan China Resources Coal Mining
Company Limited employed by the vendors of the
businesses as at respective acquisition dates (the
“Pre-acquisition Employees”), the Group has offered
early retirement packages to those who met certain
specified criteria and accepted voluntary redundancy.
Such arrangement required specific approval granted
by management of the Group. The Group is obliged
to pay such termination benefits to those early retired
employees (i.e. retired before their statutory retirement
age), who had been working for more than 30 years
or in accordance with the respective entities’ early
retirement policy. These early retired employees are
entitled to certain monthly benefits up to their statutory
retirement age.

These obligations were provided for by the Group at the
present value of the total expected benefit payments.
Where the obligation does not fall due within twelve
months, the obligation payable has been discounted
using a pre-tax rate that reflects management’s current
market assessment of the time value of money and
risk specific to the obligation (the discount rate was
determined with reference to market yields at the
balance sheet date on treasury bonds in the PRC).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BHE—

T HF+ZA=+—BHILFE

42. RETIREMENT AND OTHER LONG-TERM
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS

(CONTINUED)

(iii) Termination benefit (Continued)

(b)

In 2021, certain coal mining entities closed down coal
mines and offered a termination benefit package to
their employees. These obligations were provided for
by the Group at the present value of the total expected
benefit payments. Where the obligation does not fall
due within twelve months, the obligation payable has
been discounted using a pre-tax rate that reflects
management’s current market assessment of the time
value of money and risk specific to the obligation (the
discount rate was determined with reference to market
yields at the statement of financial position date on
treasury bonds in the PRC).

(iv) Defined benefit plan

The Group sponsors a funded defined benefit plan for
qualifying employees of its subsidiaries in PRC. Under the
plan, the employees are entitled to post-retirement yearly
instalments. The plan in PRC exposes the Group to actuarial
risks such as interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

The risk relating to benefits to be paid to the dependents of
plan members (widow and orphan benefits) is re-insured by
an external insurance company.

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. RETIREMENT AND OTHER LONG-TERM
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS

(CONTINUED)
(iv) Defined benefit plan (Continued)

No other post-retirement benefits are provided to these
employees.

The most recent valuation of the present value of the defined
benefit obligation were carried out at 3 March 2023 by
Haichuan Wu, who is a member of Fellow of the Society of
Actuaries, Towers Watson in PRC (FSA, MAAA, FCAA, CERA).
The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the
related current service cost and past service cost, were
measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the
actuarial valuations were as follows:

BEIRE
R

Discount rates

Annual withdrawal rate

Annual increase rate of
transitional pension benefit

Annual increase rate of
supplemental medical benefits

BT RERE N EE

Mortality rates are one of the actuarial assumptions. Current
and previous year mortality rates are taken from China Life
Insurance Mortality Table (2010-2013) — CL5/CL6.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

42. RETIREMENT AND OTHER LONG-TERM 42. fEstiRtA R HitREA{ES

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS

(CONTINUED)
(iv)

(iv) Defined benefit plan (Continued)

Amounts recognised in comprehensive income in respect of
the defined benefit plan are as follows:

Service cost: RIS AR AN

Current service cost IR AR TS A A

Past service cost and loss from BERBE ARG EEE
settlements

Net interest expense MERZIEE

Defined benefit cost recognized in profit ZsHA RS i 48 %5 FE SR A
or loss for the current period ‘“*%mﬁizﬁ

There is no relevant defined benefit asset in the group’s
defined benefit plan. The current service cost and the net
interest expense for the year are included in the employee
benefits expenses in profit or loss. The remeasurement of the
net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive
income.

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

42. RETIREMENT AND OTHER LONG-TERM 42. fEzxtiRtA R HitREA{ES

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS BFRE @
(CONTINUED)
(iv) Defined benefit plan (Continued) (iv) REZIHTE @

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit
obligations in the current year were as follows:

Opening defined benefit obligation FYRERmEE

Benefits paid during the year FREZ @A

Defined benefit cost recognized in RIBm BRI E = @l
profit or loss

Defined benefit cost recognized in REMEEKmERIEE
other comprehensive income A AN

Exchange adjustment PE 52 SR 28

Closing defined benefit plan obligation ERFBES & st8IE(E

Defined Benefit Plan Obligation (“DBO”) sensitivity analysis on
key assumptions:

0.25% Increase in discount rate BEIEE FF70.25%

0.25% decrease in discount rate AL IR Z R [£0.25%

China Life Insurance Mortality FEASREELR S
Table (2010-2013) CE2—ZFEZ—=
— CL5/CL6 Up 1 Year F) —CL5/CLGRI#E—F

China Life Insurance Mortality A F R ZEL R L
Table (2010-2013) —EEZFEFT—=
— CL5/CL6 Down 1 Year ) —CL5/CL6%B B —F

1% increase in annual increase BEUEESEHFEIERE
rate of transitional pension benefits EFA1%

1% decrease in annual increase BEMEESENFEER
rate of transitional pension benefits TF&E1%

1% increase in annual increase BREEEMNFEBRE EH1%
rate of supplemental medical benefits

1% decrease in annual increase HREBEEMNFEBRETE1%

rate of supplemental medical benefits
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KEER
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2022
—E-=
HK$’000
FH&T
716,537
(29,793)

9,880

(21,624)

(59,888)

615,112

HERRROREZH

BREDH

EXmBETRENES

2021

HK$’000
FHET
699,923
(33,267)

22,177

27,704

Change in DBO

AN o L T
RESHE

2022
o=

—_— ——

HK$’000
FTAET
(18,077)
19,086

(25,745)

25,621

2,592

(2,190)

52,933

(42,743)

340

2021

— 5= —

=

HK$’000
FHET
(27,146)
28,699

(35,638)

35,454

2,975

(2,467)

68,251

(54,721)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

43. SHARE CAPITAL 43. g7

Share
capital

g s

Number
of shares
H & E

HK$’000
FTAET

B BRTRAR

\ZE=—£—F—H-
—E-—F+-A=+-BR
2 _HF+ZRB=+—H

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021
and 31 December 2022

4,810,444,000 22,316,710

44. Hith (&

HEEARSOBMEEHINT ¢

44. OTHER RESERVES

Nature of the component in other reserves are set out as below:

—REFEEFEURPENERE

(@) General reserve comprises statutory surplus reserves, (a)

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

enterprise expansion funds and reserve funds of a subsidiary
in the PRC. Pursuant to the provisions of their respective
Articles of Association, certain of the Company’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC shall make appropriation from their
profit after tax to the general reserves. The general reserves
shall be used for making up losses and capitalization into
capital of the respective subsidiaries.

Special reserve of the Group represent the difference between
the nominal amount of the share capital issued by the
Company and the nominal amount of the share capital of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group reorganisation for
the purpose of the preparation of the listing of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44. OTHER RESERVES (conTiNuED)

The movement of the capital reserve is as follows:

B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

44, Hith{#E @

BERREESHNT

2022

—— —
My ——

HK$’000
FTRT

Opening balance at 1 January R—B—BF4&8R 720,527 1,308,648
Currency translation differences b 2 = ER - 19,477
Fair value change on equity investments UAREBESTEHEESEA
at FVOCI, net of tax HttiraWamNERKRE
ARBEEZE RE) (37,449)
Remeasurement of defined benefit pension  E# st SR ER KD 7 =12
plan (16,835)
Transfer of deferred tax liability due to AEEULANEESEEED
disposal of FVOCls FAEMER S W mE N
FIERIEEE 187,180
Change in ownership interests in a subsidiary £ 4k K HIER ISR T
without losing control NEH B ABINFI A EER 118,895 =
Share of other equity movement of FEEREREARNKEN
investments accounted for using the equity ~ EfthiE s S8R 58
method (18,460) (5,781)
Appropriation in respect of power plant safety B Z 2 EEB SRR 558
and production funds, net 54,982 (679)
Transfer of capital reserve upon disposal of a =& MUA A EET =B EH)
FVOCI equity investment FFAEMGE RGN EEE
EERE ARG (734,034)
Redemption of the perpetual capital BRI KEEARTES
securities 268,206 -
Closing balance at 31 December R+ZB=+—HEREH 1,180,242 720,527

During the year ended 31 December 2022, HK$54,982,000 had
been appropriated (2021: HK$679,000) has been utilized for
expenditures in respect of qualified assets for improvement of the
mining facilities and power plant, and enhancement of industrial
safety measures, and therefore the corresponding amount was
transferred from the retained earnings to capital reserve (2021:
released from capital reserve to retained earnings upon utilization).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

45. PERPETUAL CAPITAL SECURITIES

HOLDERS

In December 2019, China Resources Power Investment Company
Limited (“CR Power Investment”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, issued two batches of perpetual medium-
term notes amounting to RMB5,000,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$5,581,750,000), which had been redeemed entirely in
December 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, CR Power
Investment issued two tranches of perpetual corporate bonds
amounting to RMB2,500,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,920,561,000) and RMB2,000,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,336,449,000) in October 2020 and December
2020, which had been redeemed in October and December 2022,
respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, CR Power
Investment issued four batches of perpetual corporate bonds
amounting to RMB2,700,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,022,596,000), RMB3,000,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$3,358,440,000), RMB2,000,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$2,238,960,000) and RMB1,800,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,015,064,000).

Key terms and conditions relating to the above equity instruments
are as follows:

° The principal on the bonds has no fixed term for repayment
and CR Power Investment has the option to call. If CR Power
Investment does not exercise the call option, the bonds will
survive;

o The bonds offer no redemption option to the investors so that
investors cannot require CR Power Investment to redeem
their bonds anytime;

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. 294
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45. PERPETUAL CAPITAL SECURITIES
HOLDERS (conTiNUED)

CR Power Investment has the option to defer interest
payment, except in the event of mandatory interest payments,
so that at each interest payment date, CR Power Investment
may choose to defer the interest payment to the next
payment date for the current period as well as all interests
and accreted interests already deferred according to the
related terms, without any limitation with respect to the
number of deferrals. Mandatory interest payment events are
limited to dividend distributions to ordinary equity holders and
reductions of registered capital;

The priority over repayment of these bonds is subordinated to
CR Power Investment’s general debts;

The bonds carries initial coupon rates of 2.72% to 3.93%.
If the issuer chooses not to redeem the perpetual notes,
the coupon rate will be adjusted to the current benchmark
interest rate plus initial spread of 300 basis points every 2-3
years starting from the 3rd or 4th interest-bearing year.

The perpetual corporate bonds issued by CR Power Investment
are classified as equity instruments, and recognised under equity
in the consolidated statement of financial position. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, the Group paid interests on
perpetual corporate bonds amounting HK$420,295,000 (2021:
HK$462,980,000). As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, there was
no interest on perpetual corporate bonds that had been approved
but not yet paid.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z__HF+_RA=+—HLEFE

46. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 46. LB B A B
(i) On 28 April 2021, the Group acquired an 60% interest () H-ZzZZ—E5NMBE-+N\B &&
in Qinghai Jipin which is principally engaged in operating EmBLIFE=FKRESESEE (H
photovoltaic power plants, from an independent third FEREEENARES L) B960%
party at a consideration of RMB122,146,000 (equivalent @ EAARE122,146,0007T
to HK$146,622,000). Qinghai Jipin was acquired with the (B E5146,622,00058 7T) ° Ui
objective of expanding renewable energy business in the EBREEZENAEARNRFEHN
PRC. The acquisition has been accounted for as acquisition B4 ERER ZWEBSFERU
of business using the acquisition method. A ANBRTEUREZETS o
Consideration transferred: BHEERE:
HK$’000
FAET
Cash e 146,622
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of REBANBEREEERSE
acquisition were as follows: TaEWT
At date of
acquisition
KUk S B A
HK$’000
TAET
Property, plant and equipment L EN YL 675,234
Right-of-use assets ERESE 21,408
Trade and other receivables FEE WA BR R e EL fth FE W 7k 18 270,916
Amount due from a non-controlling JFE Ut JE 422 R A% BR SR 1B
shareholder 53,771
Bank balances and cash IRITHERRIRE 13,243
Trade and other payables FEAT AR FR S Lt FE (S =R I8 (187,928)
Bank borrowings RITHEE (527,958)
318,686
The fair value of trade and other receivables at the date FE L B 0 Re L 8 W 3k IB 7S Wi B
of acquisition amounted to HK$270,916,000. The gross HEAR A R EEA270,916,00074
contractual amounts of those trade and other receivables o RN ZE B WEEI
acquired amounted to HK$270,916,000 at the date of RAREMEWRIEN & 4EEE
acquisition. The best estimate at acquisition date of the #270,916,0007 7 ° EALBZ@%EIHH
contractual cash flows not expected to be collected is nil. HEREBEIKEENRESREN

BEGHBD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

46. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 46. W BB HI B 2 5] @
(CONTINUED)
(Continued) i @
Gain from a bargain purchase arising on acquisition: WHEPTE L RBREE W ¢
HK$’000
FHT
Consideration transferred BEEAEB 146,622
Plus: non-controlling interests 0 IEERE R 151,003
Less: net assets acquired B BEWEEERE (318,686)
Gain from a bargain purchase EERE WS (21,061)
The non-controlling interest (40%) in Qinghai Jipin recognised RUEBREINE 8EENIE
at the acquisition date was measured by reference to the EREmDAON)HBEIFIERER
fair value of the non-controlling interest and amounted to A EEFTE4151,003,0007%8
HK$151,003,000. The fair value was estimated by applying TToARBETEBERWAKS
income approach. o
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEESENRES ML TR
HK$’000
FHET
Consideration paid in cash DIREZMIRE 146,622
Less: bank balances and B BREEIRTT AR AIRE
cash acquired (13,243)
133,379
Bargain purchase gain amounting to HK$21,061,000 on KEEBEENZEBBENRS
acquisition of Qinghai Jipin is recognised in profit or loss 21,061,0008 N & HEBERRD
within the other gains and losses in the consolidated Hithl i BB AR mEsT o

statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

46. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

(i)

(ii)

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

ERENERBRAT

(Continued)
Impacts of acquisition on the results of the Group

Included in the profit for the ended 31 December 2021,
profit amounting of HK$28,050,000 was attributable to the
business operation from Qinghai Jipin. Revenue for the last
year includes HK$82,851,000 which was generated from
Qinghai Jipin.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2021,
revenue for the last year of the Group would have been
HK$89,844,727,000, and profit for the last year of the Group
would have been HK$901,959,000. The pro forma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the Group
that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2021, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.

On 30 December 2021, the Group acquired an 100% interest
in Mengcheng Guoyuan which is principally engaged in the
operating wind power plants, from an independent third
party at a consideration of RMB1,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,223,000). Mengcheng Guoyuan was acquired with
the objective of expanding renewable energy business in the
PRC. The acquisition has been accounted for as acquisition
of business using the acquisition method.

Consideration transferred:

46. ILEBMIEB 27 @

(i)

(ii)

(%)
W H K EEE R E

BE_E_—F+°"A=+—H
IEFER ,F'WHZ%IJ 5F328 050 ooo
Ble E—FEWEm ﬁ%ﬁ@£§F
4 1982,851,00038 7T ©

WRBENR _E-_—F5—HF—H
ERCAEENLEFEREES
89,844,727,0008 75 AN EH
B _EFEF R A901,959,00078
JTo ﬁééﬂﬁ{,\ﬂﬁﬂﬂaﬁﬁix
REAEEBN WG EEETT
ﬁ%auﬁzﬁﬁ\_v_—ﬁ B—H
ERERNBERTEERERSE T
BETBARKRES

N _E_—F+_RB=+H'&&E
EaBiIE= A RESHER (H
TEREEERNDBLER) MW
EpHEE 0 N E %A AR 11,000,0007T
(1B E 71,223,000 7T) WS
MEREZBENAEARFE A
BEERER WBEERIE
EANERPEUR BT o

BERMAE

HK$’000
TR

Cash Be
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

(i)

(Continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition were as follows:

Cash BE
Trade and other receivables
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Trade and other payables

Lease liabilities

L ER Y4
EREEE

HEAR

The fair value of trade receivables at the date of acquisition
amounted to HK$80,621,000. The gross contractual
amounts of those trade receivables acquired amounted to
HK$80,621,000 at the date of acquisition. The best estimate
at acquisition date of the contractual cash flows not expected
to be collected is nil.

Gain from a bargain purchase arising on acquisition:

TP s B 0 e EL A FE W AR I

FEAY BR R R EL A FE A "R IR

B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

46. ILEBMIEB 27 @

(%)

REEBHNEREEERER
BERWT

(i)

At date of
acquisition

NG EASE

HK$’000
FET
243
80,621
180,541
308,464
(220,195)
(824,699)

24,975

FEWERZRIEHBRN A AEBE
#80,621,00078 7T  FA UK B H # >
ZECWEEWRR N S EEE
#380,621,00078 7T o FR W iE H BR %
FEHEAIREENRERENR
FEhstASo

WEREPTEEZRERE W

HK$’000
FET

1,223
(24,975)

Consideration transferred BEERE
Less: net assets acquired B BEWEEEERE
Gain from a bargain purchase ZEEE WA

299

(23,752)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

46. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

(i)

(Continued)

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:

46. ILEBMIEB 27 @

(%)
WEEERIRE MHIPER

HK$’000
FET

Consideration paid in cash DRSS I RE
Less: bank balances and

cash acquired

Bargain purchase gain amounting to HK$23,752,000 on
acquisition of Mengcheng Guoyuan is recognised in profit
or loss within the other gains and losses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2021.

Impacts of acquisition on the results of the Group

The acquisition date of Mengcheng Guoyuan is close to
December 31, and the acquisition date to the end of the year
has little impact on revenue and profit.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2021,
revenue for the last year of the Group would have been
HK$89,873,922,000, and profit for the last year of the Group
would have been HK$907,815,000. The pro forma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the Group
that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2021, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results. The consideration was fully settled
during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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1,101

(243)

858

BE_ZE”_—H+ZA=+—H
EEE WESHERENZEEE
W %£23,752,0008 & HER
RWEMK S REBIEANNER

~
5]
e ©

B K EEE R E

SHMEURBEE A REEA+ A
=+—H MEEEHREFEHK
m A ENREEEM -

WhEBER _E2_—5—HF—H
TR AEBRNEEEREEA
89,873,922,0008 75 I A~ EH
B EFEFEEA907,815,000%8
Lo BEERMEMMRBARE LR
REAEBNNA R EEELET
ERWER_E_—5—HF—H
ERRBER TREEERSSE T
ERBRHRKELZ - HE_T
F+ZA=+—HIEEE  {EE

e =E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

(iii) During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
acquired a number of subsidiaries at a cash consideration of
RMB1 (equivalent to approximately HK$1.22) for each. The
acquired entities do not meet the definition of “Business” in
accordance with HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” and
the Group regarded the acquisition as acquiring assets and
liabilities through acquisition of subsidiaries. The consideration
was fully settled during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of
acquisition:

Ningxia
Zhongning
Shidai

New Energy
Co., LTD

(Zhongning Shidai)
SEYEH

R LT AE iR
BR2R
(PERR)
HK$'000

THT

Property, plant and equipment EN G 5
Trade and other payables R R E M FIE ()
Net assets BEFE -

301
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46. ILEBMIEB 27 @

(i) B=E—_B-_—F+_B=+—
BIEEE ZEBWE S B
BAT SENEREENREAA
Rt FHERHN1.2287T) °
RIFE BB RS 2R FE35%
£ aH, BEREEELR
RETEB I NES BXAEE
BERKERAZAWENS
NEESEEREAEBE-HEZ
T HF+-_BA=1+—HL%=E
B REBEEEHGEE

1S W i E HA R Uk B8 B9 B & R B K
EHNaE:

Ningxia
ETTED] Ningxia
New Energy Yuanguang
Technology New Energy
Development Technology
Co., LTD Development
(Ningxia ~ Co. LTD (Ningxia

Haiguang) Yuanguang)
EEBRHIER EERK
RRE  HERRMER
BRAR BRAT Total
(EE 8K (ZERX) ozt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TiEn TR
1,958 62,705 64,668
(1,958) (62,705) (64,668)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BHE—

T HF+ZA=+—BHILFE

47. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

The Group’s objectives in managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure in order to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors its capital based on gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated
as total borrowings and loans from related parties less cash and
cash equivalents, and pledged and restricted bank deposits.

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2022 was as follows:

Total borrowings (Note 39) feE#8%8 (f15£39)

Loan from an intermediate holding

company (Note 38) (Ft£38)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B IRERIEEEEY
(Note 33) (M$5E33)

Pledged and restricted bank

deposits (Note 32) (ft5E32)
Net debt B35
Total equity AR
Gearing ratio BEEABMRLEX

The directors of the Company consider the Group’s gearing ratio
has been maintained at a comfortable level.
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47.

RE—FEREERABTNER

BRI R 2 BRBIIRIT 7R

BEFEREE

FERBEAEESEREAEENTE
EERES PR HEIHRKREEM
MEERERHEDE  EFEBLENELX
R URBEEAN A -

PHEFNBERESER AEENEH
BN TRENREEE BREER
TRE - BITHRILEEELURDE
o

rERRBEAERIERERHEER-
ZLL R ERPER B DT E B
BPRREERBERREAELDNEN
MRERIAEFEYHED IR RZ RS
RITFERGTRE -

TR F+_R=+t—HWEE&
(LRSI

2022
e =

_— ——

2021

= —_E
HK$’'000
FHET
(RESEVEE))
(BE5)

128,495,939

HK$’000

FET

131,705,574

6,613,825 6,251,763
(7,721,275) (7,934,211)
(116,466) (152,819)
ROPESIGEEN 126,660,672
LRI 107,662,881
130% 118%
RABEERA AEENEEABL

RGEFFRIBRKF



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conTiNuED)

Loan covenants

Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities, the Group is
required to comply with the following financial covenants:

° The consolidated tangible net worth shall not be less than
HK$18 billion; and

° The ratio of consolidated adjusted EBITDA as defined in
respective facilities to interest expense in respect of each
relevant period shall not be less than 3:1.

The Group has complied with these covenants throughout the
reporting period.

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

48a. Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at FVOCI

Financial liabilities ERIAE
Amortised cost 55 Al A<
303

A RS REE
NAR A RO 2D
AR A W S REE

B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

47. BEFXEASEIE @

CeEE
RIFETEBERERR 2EHBET
BUT f #53256

s GHAWEEFEFSFSEI180E
BT K

o EEREABMNESHEAZEBITDA
(FERMEATE) SBF EMZM
EEZEARBEMNE 10

AEEREERSEEA—ERTEES
2o

48. R T H
48a. &R T B4R

2022
—EZC

HK$’000
FTERT

2021

HK$’000
THET

50,180,880 41,043,176
1,118,396 1,138,982
167,726,020

172,746,844
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTiNuED)

48b.Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, fair value
interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on

the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central Group treasury
department under policies approved by the board of
directors. The department identifies, evaluates and hedges
financial risks in close co-operation with the Group’s operating

units.

Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The majority of the Group’s operations are in the
PRC and transactions are mainly denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”) which is the functional currency of
the respective group entities. Foreign exchange risk
mainly arises from certain cash and cash equivalents
and borrowings which are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars (HK$). However, the Company and certain
subsidiaries are located in Hong Kong and their
functional currency is HKS$, the foreign exchange risk
for them mainly arises from balances denominated in
RMB and borrowings denominated in RMB and GBP.
During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
the Group did not enter into any forward exchange

contracts or currency swap contracts.

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTiNuED) 48. EM T H w
48b.Financial risk management objectives and 48b. ERLE MG EE EIEREBUR

policies (Continued) (48)

Market risk (Continued) 45 A B ()

() Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (i) SPERBSR (&)
RMB is not a freely convertible currency. Future ARBITIFERHRKRERE -
exchange rates of RMB could vary significantly from FAERARBEEDSERFH
the current or historical exchange rates as a result BN EME G meERTHE
of controls that could be imposed by the Chinese FHEXEEARER-EBX
government. The exchange rates may also be affected TR ] RE AR 35 B ~ BUA
by economic developments, political changes and ERHREAGRTEE-

supply and demand.

In addition, given there are different functional currencies o BERAEBRNEFEETR
within the Group, there are still foreign exchange FERINEE I WA A E
risk which arises from the transactions and balances N R 7 a8 o
within the Group even though they are eliminated. The MEEEEENINERR -
carrying amounts of the foreign currencies denominated RS H EHEA LLINES)
monetary assets and monetary liabilities before ENEBEEREEEE (R
elimination (excluding the amounts denominated in HK$ B UBTHETIENE
or US$, of which the functional currency is US$ or HK$) T B TTINE S EE) PIEREE
at the reporting date are as follows: W

2022 2021

—E-C B —F

HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET THET

Assets BE

us$ ETT 3,533 3,567

RVMB AR 16,621,769 14,445,349

HKS HIT 136 193

GBP L 23 967

Liabilities afE

RMB AR 33,864,270 10,371,803

GBP o 1,207,797 1,354,005

UusbD E7T - 80,728

EUR 5/ 10,505 11,699
The Group is primarily exposed to changes in RMB/HK$ AEEFEEHARERE
and GBP/HK$ exchange rates. The sensitivity of profit TTREETBITEREEHDN
or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly Alp-iBmEEREIHIK
from non-functional currency denominated financial REXTERBUENEEES |
instruments. WEENESMT A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTiNuED) 48. R TH @
48b.Financial risk management objectives and 48b. ERLE MG EIE B REUR
policies (Continued) (48)
Market risk (Continued) 5 b (48)
() Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (i) SMERE (&)

Impact on Impact on other components
post tax profit of equity
HEREIENTE HEMEZARBINTE

2022 2021 2022 2021

e = —F——

. — — T ——

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TAR TaET TERT TERT

RMB/HKS ARBRBTER

exchange rate

- increase by 10% — EF10% (2,294,338) (764,139) 1,334,867 1,426,206

— decrease by 10% — T EK10% 2,294,338 764,139 (1,334,867) (1,426,2006)

GBP/HK$ B R B TER

exchange rate

- increase by 10% — EFA10% (90,583) (101,478) -

— decrease by 10% — T %10% 90,583 101,478 -
The Group’s exposure to other foreign exchange AEBEHEMEZREEAE
movements is not material. This sensitivity has been HRERIAEK - BREABE
determined assuming that the change in foreign EhBRERBRRERE M
exchange rates had occurred at the statement of HIREXEHMEE

financial position date.

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (i) HERERQAAEEFER
i3
The Group’s interest rate risk arises borrowings. AEBNHXRBRRE
Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to BE-BYEHETHEERMER
cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed EEEmEREAENER
rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. BoREEMEETHNEE
FAEEREBEAABENE
JE=r
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTiNuED)

48b.Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, except for
HK$106,872,377,000 (2021: HK$126,029,278,000) of
long-term borrowings and HK$6,613,825,000 (2021:
HK$6,251,763,000) of loan from an intermediate holding
company whose interests were charged at floating
rates, interests on all remaining borrowings and loans
from related parties were charged at fixed rates.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for borrowings
at floating rates which are not hedged with hedging
instruments. The analysis is prepared by assuming
the financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
period were outstanding for the whole year.

At 31 December 2022, if interest rates on borrowings at
that date had been 10 basis point higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
or net assets as of 31 December 2022 would have been
approximately HK$85,115,000 (2021: HK$99,211,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
expenses on floating rate borrowings.
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48. TR T H @)
48b. A EIEHEREBE

(€))

15 i (48)

(ii)

HERERAABENER
Bﬁi (ﬁﬁ)

RZE__FE+-HA=+—
B BREIBNEFEDN
EHEE106,872,377,000
B (Z T Z —F .
126,029,278,0007% 75) K 3K
BE—EHhEERABINE
76,613,825,0008 ¢ (Z &
——% :6,251,763,000% 7T)
SNoFMBRTRIABERK
BRI AN EREREEF

Z5E o

UTHREDRDIZTRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTiNuED)

48b.Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(iii)

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

ERENERBRAT

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to pledged bank deposits (see note 32), fixed-
rate bank borrowings (see note 39 for details of these
borrowings) and lease liabilities (see note 40 for details).
The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances (see note
33 for details), variable-rate bank borrowings (see note
39 for details). The Group cash flow interest rate risk
is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of interest
rates on bank balances and HIBOR arising from the
Group’s Hong Kong dollar denominated borrowings.
The Group aims at keeping borrowings at variable
rates. The Group manages its interest rate exposures
by assessing the potential impact arising from any
interest rate movements based on interest rate level and
outlook. The management will review the proportion of
borrowings in fixed and floating rates and ensure they
are within reasonable range.

A fundamental reform of major interest rate benchmarks
is being undertaken globally, including the replacement
of some interbank offered rates (“IBORs”) with
alternative nearly risk-free rates. Details of the impacts
on the Group’s risk management strategy arising from
the interest rate benchmark reform and the progress
towards implementation of alternative benchmark
interest rates are set out under “interest rate benchmark
reform” in this note.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTiNuED)

48b.Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to bank
deposits, trade and other receivables, loans to related
companies and amounts due from related companies.
The maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as at
31 December 2022 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

(i) Risk management

Credit risk for the Group is concentrated on a limited
number of power grid companies, associates and
joint ventures. However, management of the Group,
having considered the financial background and good
creditability of the power grid and related companies,
and operating prospects of associates and joint
ventures, believes that there is no significant credit risk.

Bank deposits are mainly placed with state-owned
financial institutions and reputable banks which are all
high-credit-quality financial institutions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTiNuED)

48b.Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

ERENERBRAT

Risk management (Continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the aggregate amount
of outstanding financial guarantees issued to banks
in respect of bank facilities granted to an associate
that the Group could be required to pay amounted to
HK$389,491,000 as at 31 December 2021, of which nil
of the outstanding financial guarantees has been utilised
by the associate. No financial guarantee was provided
by the group to any entities as at 31 December 2022.

The fair value of these financial guarantee, as at the
dates of initial recognition, were considered insignificant.
At the end of the reporting period, the management
has performed impairment assessment, and concluded
that there has been no significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition of the financial guarantee
contracts. Accordingly, the loss allowance for financial
guarantee contracts issued by the Group is measured
at an amount equal to 12m ECL. No loss allowance
was recognised in the profit or loss because the
management considered the related parties are of
strong financial strength and the related loss allowance
are immaterial to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTiNuED)

48b.Financial risk management objectives and

48. EM T H w
48b. =R E G EIE B RBIR

policies (Continued) (48)
Credit risk (Continued) EERE (&)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (i) TMEERE

The Group has three types of financial assets that are
subject to the expected credit loss model as following:

Trade receivables JE Ut BR =X
Other receivables (including HnEWIE (81
consideration receivable for L E LR IENE

FEUS OB ~ Wi SRR AR RY
FERERE - BEERE
R EAh)

the Disposal of Shanxi Coal
refundable deposit for
acquisition of mining rights,
dividends receivable and
others)

Loans to/amounts due from
related parties (including
associates, joint ventures,
FVOCI investee companies,
non-controlling shareholders
and other related parties)

MRS (BEBERE
BELE -DUAAEE
stEHEZFE ARM
REWEAIRREART
FEFE R R BR Ko HL At eI Bt 75 )
B e BB 5 TR0

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to
the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables from
initial recognition. The Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade receivables
balances individually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTiNuED)

48b.Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

For trade receivables in related to sales of electricity, the
debtors are local grid companies and the management
considered the impairment on the trade receivables
generated from sales of electricity are insignificant to the
Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the trade
receivables in relation to the connection-to-grid projects
of the renewable energy plants were fully impaired as a
result of change in state policy observed during the year.

The Group assesses the impairment for its customers
in relation to its heat supply individually by considering
the debtors’ historical default rates and forward-looking
information that is reasonable, supportable and available
without undue costs or effort. As at 31 December 2022,
the expected losses rate of these non-credit impaired
customers in relation to the operation of heat supply is
minimal, given there is no history of significant defaults
from customer and insignificant impact from forward-
looking estimations. The assessed ECL for non-credit
impaired customers is insignificant to the Group. Loss
allowance of HK$140,399,000 (2021: HK$45,068,000)
was provided on credit-impaired balance as at 31
December 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTiNuED)

48b.Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)
The loss allowances for trade receivables as at 31

December reconcile to the opening loss allowances as
follows:

At 1 January ®—B—H

Increase in loss allowance FARRIERERN
recognised in profit or loss B ZE I 0
during the year

Receivables written off during FEE A B
the year as uncollectible Yt [o] FE W R 1B

Exchange adjustments DRSS

At 31 December n+=ZB=+—H

Trade receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include,
amongst others, the failure of a debtor to make
contractual payments.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented
as net impairment losses within operating profit.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against the same line item.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTiNuED)

48b.Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
loans to/amounts due from related parties (including
associates, joint ventures, a FVOCI investee company,
immediate holding company, fellow subsidiaries and
non-controlling shareholders) and other receivables
(excluding receivables from related parties).

In determining the ECL for other receivables, the
Group has made periodic individual assessment
on the recoverability of other receivables, based on
historical settlement records, past experience, and
also forward-looking information, as appropriate, for
example, the Group has considered the consistently
low historical default rate in connection with payments,
and concluded the credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding other receivables other than those credit-
impaired other receivable is insignificant.

In determining the ECL for loans to/amounts due from
related parties, the Group has assessed the financial
position of related parties as well as the economic
outlook of the industry in which the related parties
operate, and concluded that there has been no
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
The ECL on loans to/amounts due from related parties
are considered to be insignificant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTiNuED) 48. R T H @
48b.Financial risk management objectives and 48b. ERLE MG EE EIEREBUR
policies (Continued) (48)
Credit risk (Continued) EERE (&)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) E=MEERE @
Other financial assets at amortised cost (Continued) B K EE M E
BE (18)
The loss allowance for credit-impaired other financial R+ZB=+—HEBEER
assets at amortised cost as at 31 December reconciles BENZEEN AT ENEM
to the opening loss allowance as follows: TRUE E R EZE B YR
BEBHERWOT :
Loans to/
amounts
due from Other
related parties receivables
ikt Hith
8%/ RE FEWTRIE szt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TAT
At at1 January 2021 K-E-—£-F-H - 266,385 266,385
Decrease in the allowance recognised FRR B R &R
in profit or loss during the year - (546) (546)
Receivables written off during FAaE R ATk [l gy
the year as uncollectible W FIE - (369) (369)
Exchange adjustments ERAE - 3,279 3,279
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—f+"HA=+—H - 268,749 268,749
Increase (decrease) in the allowance FAREGERN
recognised in profit or loss BELm A
during the year 80,369 (3,697) 76,672
Receivables written off during FRMEE AU R
the year as uncollectible fEWzIE - (27,626) (27,626)
Exchange adjustments ERAE (3,572) (9,552) (13,124)
At 31 December 2022 RZEBZZ&+-A=+-A 76,797 227,874 304,671
315 Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTiNuED)

48. EM T H w

48b.Financial risk management objectives and 48b. & fit /5 b B IR B AR B B R
policies (Continued) (48)
Credit risk (Continued) EEmEE (&)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (il =mBERE®

Net impairment losses on financial assets
recognised in profit or loss

During the year, the following impairment losses
(reversal of impairment losses) were recognised in profit
or loss in relation to impaired financial assets:

Impairment losses on trade & U BR FUR (B 18 5%
receivables

Impairment losses on

M,/ R E thERE S &R

loans to/amounts due from SIBERERX
other related parties
Reversal of impairment losses on HihspEERE
other financial assets Ei=EE
Impairment losses on TRIEEREEL

financial assets

Liquidity risk

The Group operates a central treasury function at
corporate level that surplus cash of operating entities
within the Group is gathered in a pool. The cash balance
is then advanced to entities within the Group with cash
needs. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements and its compliance
with borrowing covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions in order
to meet the liquidity requirements of the Group in both
short and long terms.

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

ERENERBRAT 316

B 18 ot 0B 58 B9 2 i B R 18
RKFE

FR-RERETRMEER
BT RERSK (RlE
BREME) :

2022

2021
B —F

HK$’000
FTHET

HK$’000
TAET

110,893 696
80,369 =
(3,697) (546)
187,565 150
FEEL AL
AEBAEABEBERE SR

B AEERKEER
NEGFRTERRES M-
ZRRELEFRBNATERSE
ERNAERNER A&
ERRATCHEERERRE
RS ESERRERZ
NN ERIFR uﬁﬁAﬁ
FENRTHERBTIES
RUILBERF T AGERE
Mime A EREBHRRAN
MEESE X °©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTiNuED)

48b.Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

As stated in Note 4, the Group had net current liabilities
of $34,039,978,000 (excluded assets classified as held
for sale and liabilities associated with assets classified
as held for sale) and outstanding capital commitments of
HK$18,607,414,000 at 31 December 2022, which exposed
the Group to liquidity risk. In order to mitigate the liquidity
risk, the Group had obtained sufficient short and long-term
bank facilities at the end of the reporting period. In addition,
the management will undertake close monitoring process to
control the timing of the expected cash outflows associated
with the construction of new power plants and the purchase
of power generation equipment or other new investments. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s liquidity risk has been significantly reduced and they
are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet its financial
obligations in full as and when they fall due for the coming
twelve months from 31 December 2022.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on
the agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up
based on undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities,
computed on the earliest date when the Group would be
required to settle them. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest are computed
at floating rates, the undiscounted amount is derived from
interest rate at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTiNUED) 48. TR T H
48b.Financial risk management objectives and 48b. ERLE MG EIE B REUR
policies (Continued) (48)
Liquidity risk (Continued) BB L A ()

Weighted Total
average On Less than 1-5 Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate demand 1year years Syears  cash flows amount

i BEX *RE

HilE fE  Jr-8  -ERf RENL  REKE L]
HKS000  HKSO0D  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000
TRn TEn TRn TEn TR TEn

At 31 December 2022 RIFIZE
+2B=1+-A
Non-derivative financial liabilities FiitemaR
Non-interest bearing Ri8 2,128,721 8,505,756 1,026,976 3849176 36,505,635 34,427,445
Fived interest rate EyilES 11,033,187 6,902,745 9496620 27432552 24,833,197
Variable interest rate eE kS 35,383,583 43,130,808 49,093,781 127,808,167 113,486,202
Lease iabilties HE5E
At 31 December 2021 RIB_-F
+2B=1+-A
Non-derivative financial liabilities Fit2HaR
Non-interest bearing A8 NA 21391228 11,587,001 - - 978319 32978319
Fived interest rate i 343 - 1,892,352 635,521 16,738 2,544,611 2,466,660
Variable interest rate el 322 - 8076935 57,195,081 50553672 135,805,888 132,281,041
21391228 41556378 57,830,802 50570410  171,348818 167,726,020
Lease liabilties g6k 446 - 120,496 75,841 957,244 1,153,581 978,240
Financial quarantee contracts HEERRY 389,491 - - - 389,491 389,491
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group did not have RNIE - FER_E_—F+_
any derivative financial instruments. B=+—B > A&EFLEEAITE
TRIT A
China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. 31 8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTiNuED)

48c. Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair

value, by valuation method. The different levels have been

defined as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or

indirectly (that is, derived from prices)

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs)

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 December
2022:

Level 1
FE—R

HK$’000
FTAERT

Assets BE

FVOCI URnEBEE
BEEA
Hiiz & W s

319

B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

48. TR T H @)
48c. A EEEET

TERAMULEERAANEBETS
RNEMI A -BHEENFTEFR

mr

F—H —ARNEEHEER
ERTIHRE RE
)

BTHR —REEE GER %
B (BIsRBER) 7]
BREENEENE
AB®E (E—REEN
WBFRIN

BF=MHR —WIFRRBEAREDE
ENEENEENE
BEARE BIFH
BB ARR

TRENAEFENR ZZZZ
+_B=+—HBEAABET=2
HNEemEEREE

Level 3
B=4
HK$’000
THET

Level 2
BH
HK$’000
T#ET

1,118,396

1,118,396
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTiNuED)

48c. Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets and

liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 December

2021:

Level 1

B

HK$’000
FET

BE
UrnEEE
Eﬁ@?k
HiiR &

FVOCI

There were no transfers among level 1, level 2 and level 3

during the year.

(@) Financial instruments in level 1 and level 2

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the
Group held no such financial assets.

(b) Level 3 instruments

Level 3 instruments mainly included equity investments
at FVOCI in unlisted equity securities. As these
investments are not traded in an active market, their fair
values have been determined using direct comparison
approach and cost approach.

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.
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Level 3 Total
B=4R e
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET F#ET

Level 2
B
HK$’000
F#ET

- 1,138,982 1,138,982
RER F—B F_MERFE=R
Z FE G SR g o

(a F—REF_RZTHIA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTiNuED)

48c. Fair value estimation (Continued)

(b) Level 3 instruments (Continued)

The movement of level 3 instruments for the year ended

31 December 2022 is as follows:

At 1 January

Exchange adjustments

Gains (losses) recognised in other
comprehensive income (expense)

Additions

Disposals

At 31 December

Fair value of certain FVOCI has been determined using
estimated direct comparison approach with significant
unobservable input including price-to-book ratio, which
is 0.77 (2021: 0.77), and estimated exit price. Fair
value of other FVOCI have been determined using cost

approach.

48d.Interest rate benchmark reform

Several of the Group’s LIBOR bank loans will be subject to
the interest rate benchmark reform. The Group is closely
monitoring the market and managing the transition to new
benchmark interest rates, including announcements made by

the relevant IBOR regulators.

B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

48. TR T H @)
48c. AR EBEMGET @

(b) E=HRTAH @
HEE_S__—_&F£#+_-A82
—+—HLEFE F=Z4HhT
EMEENT

2022
Ty

—_—<—_—

HK$’000
FTHET

®—B—H 1,138,982 2,383,337
bE R AEEE (81,359) 368
REMZEmWA %)

RN (B518) 60,773 (18,130)
RE - 73,931
HE - (1,300,524)
»+=ZB=+—H 1,118,396 1,138,982

ETUAABESEREZE
FAEMGEREZ ARE
BNEREEBILBRIEAE
E HBAFRATEHRHAY
BEEMmEEXA0.77 (22
“—%10.77) XTEHEY
B-HMMUARBESER
FEFAHMGESREZA
REEDERRAEEEE

48d. F|RBELE

FEBNHEMBABTRAERE
RITERMR M EEERENF
E-AERERYERDHZILERE
BEEMEENZNIER  BEE
FIRTTRXNREREEMEE D
ESYN=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTiNuED)

48d.Interest rate benchmark reform (Continued)

LIBOR

As at 31 December 2022, all LIBOR settings have been either
ceased to be provided by any administrator or no longer be
representative.

HIBOR

While the Hong Kong Dollar Overnight Index Average
(‘HONIA”) has been identified as an alternative to HIBOR,
there is no plan to discontinue HIBOR. The multi-rate
approach has been adopted in Hong Kong, whereby HIBOR
and HONIA will co-exist.

Risks arising from the interest rate benchmark
reform

The following are the key risks for the Group arising from
the transition:

Interest rate related risks

For contracts which have not been transitioned to
the relevant alternative benchmark rates and without
detailed fallback clauses, if the bilateral negotiations
with the Group’s counterparties are not successfully
concluded before the cessation of LIBOR and HIBOR,
there are significant uncertainties with regard to
the interest rate that would apply. This gives rise to
additional interest rate risk that was not anticipated
when the contracts were entered into.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTiNuED)

48d.Interest rate benchmark reform (Continued)

HIBOR (Continued)

(i)

Risks arising from the interest rate benchmark
reform (Continued)

Interest rate related risks (Continued)

There are fundamental differences between IBORs and
the various alternative benchmark rates. IBORs are
forward looking term rates published for a period (e.g. 3
months) at the beginning of that period and include an
inter-bank credit spread, whereas alternative benchmark
rates are typically risk-free overnight rates published
at the end of the overnight period with no embedded
credit spread. These differences will result in additional
uncertainty regarding floating rate interest payments.

Litigation risk

If no agreement is reached to implement the interest
rate benchmark reform on contracts which have not
been transitioned to the relevant alternative benchmark
rates (e.g. arising from differing interpretation of existing
fallback terms), there is a risk of prolonged disputes with
counterparties which could give rise to additional legal
and other costs. The Group is working closely with all
counterparties to avoid this from occurring.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

49. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 40. MEESHEENBEHIR

ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

TERFMAEERERETHNEEE
 URRERFRTEH -MELH
FTEENERNREBETREFRR WK
REERERNAERGHESRER
hOEARMEETHMSHEERE

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from
financing activities.

.

Amounts
dueto
fellow
subsidiaries
Loan and an
from an intermediate Amounts
intermediate Amounts Amounts holding dueto other
holding Lease dueto dueto company  non-controlling Interests Dividend long:-term
company Borrowings liabilities associates joint venture companies interest payable payable payable
EfiRA Fft
*e-f HERAR WERR
HERR Efikg Efiag ERER FERER EffRE
PEIEES f&& 5] ] LY A il EfiRE Efiza &t
HK$ 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
i it 47 i i 4 47 i i i
As at 1 January 2021 RZB-5-A-A 5,951,763 102,267,275 1,075,210 1,116,631 683,231 267,185 239,068 450914 - - 12050217
Cash flows it 300,000 23,085,357 (149,678) (375,156) (146,53) (143,646) {478,713 (3.987,665) (3,154,904) - 14,951,063
Diidend declred BEIRS - = - - - - 1,004 564 - 3154904 - 4,159.468
Inerest acorued st = - - - - - - 3,930,858 - - 3,930,358
Foreign exchange adjustments EfEE - 3,143.307 11,166 32402 29323 186,422 63,070 - - - 346,690
Other non-cash movements Al ResE - - 4154 - - - - - - - 41,542
As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ-£+2B=1-H 6,251,763 126,495,939 978,240 112811 566,022 309,961 829,989 393,607 - - 136,098,398
Cash flows Eyit 18,846,241 (713919) (76,001) 13807 3,199,107 (219.453) (4,387972) (1,226,311) 16,865,602
Dividend declared BEkE = - - - - - 1,206311 1,206,311
Interest accrued Bl - - - - - 4204738 4204738
Foreign exchange adjustments Enge (15,636,606) (89,792 (69,086) (63,747) (29797) (15,816,952)
Other non-cash movements AfiReEy 1,091,798 67,007 1,260,887
As at 31 December 2022 RZBZZE+2R=1-B

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

50. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 50. B KT
Capital expenditure contracted but not yet provided for at the end RERERREFTNEEREENERRH
of the reporting period is as follows: W

2021

BT —F

HK$’000
TR

Capital expenditure in respect of the BRAWETSENEARSE
acquisition of
— property, plant and equipment —NE BB R 18,510,729 14,024,401
- right-of-use assets —ERREE 96,685 -
18,607,414 14,024,401
=
51. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 51. XAG&R
In addition, there were certain pending litigations and claims against sy BE_E-_“F+ "B =+—
the Group as of 31 December 2022. After consulting the legal B BHHEAEENE FTRRFARRER
counsels, the directors are of the view that the likelihood of any BoRRZEEBZBHEB  EFRVAN
further material financial impact to the Group is remote, therefore, EEZIEME—TERPBFLENT
no further provisions have been made in light of such litigations and BEMEAR A R > 6 E— P R F R
claims. AR REER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

52. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a) The Group entered into two trademark licence agreements
dated 17 October 2003 with CRCL and CRH, respectively,
under which the Group was granted irrevocable, royalty free
and non-exclusive licences to use certain trade marks and the
rights to sub-license the same to any member of the Group in
consideration of a nominal amount of HK$1 each.

(a)

(b)

Key management compensation

(b)

Key management includes directors (executive and non-
executive) and senior management. The compensation paid
or payable to key management for employee services is
shown below:

Salaries and other short-term employee  #rs & E 45 R S EF|

benefits

Post-employment benefits BER BB A
Amortised cost EEH A
China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. 3 26

ERENERBRAT

52. PR K E

rEBR _ZE=-F+A+tH
DR PR E R R EEERIL
WIREIRET R ek I AEE
ERAOHE REFMRRIFEHR
ARAERETHR UkBEER
WEAKEATDDHBHERET
BRNEN AERREZEEE
18T

TEEE A SR
TEEBABOEES WITRIE
BT RBRERE - ESRS
B REA = EEE A BB R
MTFR -

2022 2021

e —=—_

— e

— T —— —

HK$’000
FTHET

HK$'000
TET

42,959 43,205
2,115 1,603
45,074 44,708



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

52. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 52. FAE G B w
(CONTINUED)
(c) Material related party transactions (c) EXRAMBARS
In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated REHTBRERAMTOHES
financial statements, the following transactions were carried SO M ERNEBE S ETT TR
out with related parties during the year: R
2022 2021
k- e “ET—F
Name of related company Relationship Nature of transactions HK$’000 HK$'000
MEATLE R RAE THET FTET
CRH Intermediate Interest expense paid (Note 10) 132,545 51,377
holding company
EHEE HEER AR BAFSER (EH10)
Certain subsidiaries of CRH Fellow subsidiaries Supply of direct power 1,992 1,863
EHEENETHEAR BEN YA ERMEE
Providing retail power agency 7,164 76
services (Note)
RESEENRERE ()
Providing integrated energy services 27,390 12,058
RS AERIRY
Providing agency service fee 239 75
REAEREE
Software maintenance expense paid 62,472 20,865
BARHAEERS
Trademark use fee 5,922 4,045
BRERE
Purchase of consumables 35,671 29,417
BEHER
Professional fee 736 7,803
BXEM
Purchase of fuel 104,784 27,962
FEEME
Purchase of material 13,694 10,446
FEEME
Rental expense 154 10,735
HERE
Management fee 11,556 6,047
EEE
Insurance expense 603 43
RREZ
Other expense 9,103 17,110
Hitf
Other income 1,622 -
Htte A
Heat Supply income 1,922 -
AU
Heat purchase expense 11,582 - .
BEART Y
327 Annual Report 2022

FiR
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B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

52. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 52. Rl A B @

(CONTINUED)

() EXMBMERZ @

(c) Material related party transactions (Continued)

2022 2021

ZEIZfE E”-F

Name of related company Relationship Nature of transactions HK$’000 HK$'000
MERELE itk RHMLE TET TET

Certain subsidiaries and joint
ventures of CR Cement

ERNKENETIEASE
Meghx

Certain subsidiaries of China
Resources Land Ltd.

EHEMBRAFH
HETIHBEAE

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

ERENERBRAT

Fellow Subsidiaries

EEE NS

Fellow Subsidiaries

EEE NS

Providing retail power agency
services (Note)

REHEZEENAERE (1)

Providing maintenance service

AR

Sales of by-product

HERAER

Purchase of material

BEME

Providing integrated energy
services

RS AR

Other Income

HAA

Other expense

Hitfi sz
Providing maintenance service
AR RS

Rental expense

HEEH

Transportation fee

RiEE

Management fee

ERE

Renovation fee

KEE

Other expense

Hitfi

Providing integrated energy
services

RS AR

Providing retail power agency
services (Note)

RUZEEHREBRE (H:D)

Purchase of PPE

BENE -BERRE

Professional fee

BXEH

Heat supply income

HEUA

328
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

52. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 52, FAEtH I E @

(CONTINUED)

(c) Material related party transactions (Continued) (c) EXRBARS @

2022 2021
—ECCF B

Name of related company Relationship Nature of transactions HK$’000 HK$'000
- YNGIRT itk RHMHE TET FTET
China Resources Energy Service Fellow subsidiary Contract environment 8,011
Co., Ltd. management fee, contract
energy management fee and
exclusive operation fee

EHERREBRAE EEN YA BRREEEER KR
ERERARETLEER
China Resources Bank of Zhuhai Fellow subsidiary Interest expense paid 1,380
Company Limited
KEERRTROBREAS EE YA BAREER
Interest income 3,114
HEWA
Certain Subsidiaries of China Fellow subsidiary Management Fee 6,126
Resources Property Management
Co., Ltd.
EHNEEEFTRATN EEN YA BEEEH
AETHERE
Providing retail power agency 10
services (note)
RHUZEEHREBRE (e
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B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

52. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 52. Rl A B @

(CONTINUED)

(c) Material related party transactions (Continued) (c) EXRBAERS @

2022 2021
ZEIZfE E”-F

Name of related company Relationship Nature of transactions HK$’000 HK$'000
MERELE itk RHMLE TET TET

Certain associates of the Group Associate Sales of electricity 231,735 122,338

AEEMETHERE HEhz HEBT)
Sales of coal 3,046,535 3,009,567
HE MK
Sales of heat 127,444 120,067
HEHAE
Purchase of coal 29,926 296
FBEER
Energy management fee 1,344 1,298
EREEER
Providing agency service fee 15,617 31,066
REAEREE
Providing maintenance service 161,525 112,158
AR RS
Service income 4,185 3,944
ARFE LA
Rental income 167 172
RN
Rental expense 32
HEEM
Interest expense paid 16,034
BAREER
Other Income 1
HAA
Providing integrated energy services 44,660
RS AR
Purchase substitute quantity 230
RESAE

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. 3 30
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

52. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 52. FAE G B w
(CONTINUED)
(c) Material related party transactions (Continued) (c) EXRBARS @
2022 2021
ZEIZFE E”-F
Name of related company Relationship Nature of transactions HK$’000 HK$'000
- YNGIRT Rk XHUE THET FAET
Certain joint ventures of the Group  Joint venture Sales of coal 169,040 100,015
FEENETaERE aElE HHE R %
Sales of materials 383,210 1,060,107
HEMEL
Sales of heat 96,764 112,055
HEHAE
Sales of by-products 14,358 4,972
HERER
Providing agency service fee 49,999 55,216
REREREE
Providing maintenance service 2,638 1,844
RIAEERT
Providing integrated energy services 13,008 36,553
RIS ERRS
Purchase of coal 782,540 651,310
AR5
Management expense paid 27,534 14,587
BNERER
Maintenance expenses 99,652 116,438
HEER
Interest expense paid 10,742 10,691
BAFEER
Interest income 12,495 9,492
FEWA
Service Income 978 21,118
R WA
Rental income 108 -
GEEALON
Heat supply costs 25,633 6,217
HEER P 2
Other Income 856 76
HtteA
Certain non-controlling Non-controlling Interest income -
shareholders of the Group shareholder
AEENETIERER BB R FEWA
Note: The amounts disclosed are commissions charged to these entities by Wek . PR EeEARNERRZESE
the Group for the provision of agency services for bidding/acquiring REEZEAMME (i) F5
electricity supply from the national open market (the “Market”). The B,/ ERHEENNERBENEE-
total trading volume of electricity that the Group bid/acquired on AERE_ S _FAZEERE
behalf of these entities over the Market is 5.5 billion kWh (2021: 62.1 MIEPREEREENERT -
billion kWh) in 2022. The power plants operated by the Group also EBEAHBETRAR(CEZ—F
contributed electricity to the Market through the national electricity 621ETRE) - AEBFIEEER
grid of China. g?@¢@m%%ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%
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B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

52. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(CONTINUED)

(d) Transactions/balances with other state-controlled

entities

As at 31 December 2022, included in cash and cash
equivalents was an amount of HK$35,977,962 (2021:
HK$2,231,755,032) which is deposited in China Resources
Bank of Zhuhai Co., Ltd, a fellow subsidiary of the Group,
with interest rates ranging from 0.25% to 1.725% (2021:
0.3% to 1.725%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2022, bank borrowings amounting
HK$23,700,071 (2021: HK$28,131,070) was drawn from
China Resources Bank of Zhuhai Co., Ltd, a fellow subsidiary
of the Group, with interest rates of 4.90% per annum.

The Group operates in an economic environment currently
predominated by entities directly or indirectly owned or
controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by the
Chinese government (“state-controlled entities”). In addition,
the Group itself is part of a larger group of companies
under CRCL, ultimate holding company of the Company,
which is controlled by the PRC government. Apart from the
transactions with the parent company and its subsidiaries
which have been disclosed in other notes to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group also conducts business with
other state-controlled entities during the ordinary course of its
business.

The Group operates power plants in the PRC and sells
significant volumes of its electricity to the power grid
companies which are state-controlled entities in the PRC. The
Group also purchases/sells significant amounts of coal from/
to certain state-controlled entities. Furthermore, the Group
has certain borrowings and deposits with certain banks which
are state-controlled entities in its ordinary course of business.
The Group has also entered into various transactions,
including other operating expenses with other state-controlled
entities which individually and collectively were insignificant
during the year.
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B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

53. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL 53. " AR X ENI B ATIBYEE

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 1]
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December RIZEZZHF+"A=+—HNFEEKN
2022: BATESWT

Name of subsidiary

WEARME

Place of
incorporation
and operation
and form of

legal entity
SRR
«(M\jﬂlgﬁu&
ERERER

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered

capital and
paid-up capital
BRITHRRE/
AMEERR
BREX

Percentage of
equity interest held (%)
FrsAERRET 2L

Directly
B

Indirectly
i

Principal
activities

TEEH

China Resources Power PRC, Registered capital 100 - Investment holding
Investment Co., Ltd. Wholly Foreign RMB18,220,000,000
Owned Enterprise Paid-up capital
RMB17,720,000,000

EHENREARAR

Shenzhen Shenshan Special

e
SEBELE

PRC,

(21: Registered and
paid-up capital
RMB15,800,000,000)
ERII=N

AR #18,220,000,0007T
HEEX

AR #17,720,000,0007%
C—F  ZMEERER
AR #15,800,000,0007T)

Registered capital

100

REER

Operation of

Cooperation Zone China Wholly Foreign RMB3,800,000,000 a power station
Resources Power Co., Ltd Owned Enterprise (21: Registered capital
RMB2,095,000,000)

Paid-up capital
RMB1,589,280,000

FFFIFEEEEREN FE AfER HEBI
BRAF NERELE AR #3,800,000,0007%
(C—F FHEKX
AR #2,095,000,0007T)
HEREAR

AK1,589,280,0007T

333

Annual Report 2022
FIR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

53. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

Name of subsidiary
(il NGIR T

China Resources Power

(Tangshan Caofeidian) Co., Ltd.

EREN (BLELH BRAT

China Resources Power Dengfeng
Co., Ltd.

ERBNEHARAT

China Resources Power
Hubei Co., Ltd.

EHEMIARAR

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

ERENERBRAT

Place of
incorporation
and operation
and form of
legal entity
R
RSB AR
AREREY

PRC,
Sino-Foreign
Equity Joint
Venture

FE RS

BfEEERER

PRC,
Sino-Foreign
Equity Joint
Venture

B Fgh
BIFEERE

PRC,
Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise

hE S
BELE

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered

capital and
paid-up capital
BETHRERE/
HMERR
BEER

Registered capital
RMBS3,571,340,000
Paid-up capital
RMB2,400,779,800
(21: Paid-up capital
RMB2,320,779,800)
AfER
AE13,571,340,0007T
BEER

AR #2,400,779,8007C
C—F BEEX
AE12,320,779,8007T)

Registered and
paid-up capital
RMB1,760,000,000

HMRBERER
AR 1,760,000,0007T

Registered capital
RMB4,010,600,000
Paid-up capital
RMB3,190,000,000

(21: Registered

and paid-up capital
RMB2,690,000,000)
SfER
A&#4,010,600,0007%
BEER
AE%3,190,000,0007%
C—F  ZMEEEER
AR #2,690,000,0007T)

334
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Percentage of
equity interest held (%)
FFERNRERDL

Directly
Ef

Indirectly
R

51

75

100

53. ZRE) F E BB 8%

Principal
activities

TEEH

Operation of
a power station

Operation of
a power station

Operation of
a power station

BEEHL



53. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

Name of subsidiary
[N R T

China Resources Power
(Tongshan) Co., Ltd.

FLERENARAR

China Resources New Energy
(NeiHuang) Co., Ltd.

ERFMER (MR BRAF

China Resources New Energy
(Suixian Tianhekou) Wind
Power Limited

ERMER BRXAD) A
BRAR

Place of
incorporation
and operation
and form of
legal entity

EE A
RSB AR
EREREY

PRC,

Limited Liability
Company
HE> BRAT

PRC,
Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise

] ShE
BEEX

PRC,
Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise

hE S
BELE

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered

capital and
paid-up capital
BETHERE/
HERK
BEER

Registered and

paid-up capital
RMB1,500,000,000
AfMRAEER

A K %1,500,000,0007T

Registered capital
RMB950,670,000
Paid-up capital
RMB890,378,270
(21: Paid-up capital
RMB810,378,270)
AEfER

A 1950,670,0007T
BEER

AR 1890,378,2707T
C—F BEEX
AR 1810,378,2707T )

Registered capital
RMB1,487,310,800
Paid-up capital
RMB1,434,467,152
(21: Registered capital
RMB1,407,310,800
Paid-up capital
RMB1,384,467,152)

HMEAR

AR 11,487,310,80070
HEER

AR 81,434,467, 1527C
(C—F . FHEKX
AR #1,407,310,8007%
HREAR

AR 11,384,467,1527T)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

53. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

Name of subsidiary
(il NGIR T

China Resources Power
(Jiaozuo) Co., Ltd.

EREN (B BRAF

China Resources Power
(Wenzhou) Co., Ltd.

GEM) BRRAT

China Resources Power (Heze)
Co., Ltd.

EHES (@3 ARAR

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

ERENERBRAT

Place of
incorporation
and operation
and form of
legal entity
R
RSB AR
AREREY

PRC,
Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise

] 5hE
BEEX

PRC,
Sino-Foreign
Equity Joint Venture

FRE RS
afEEERE

PRC,
Sino-Foreign
Equity Joint
Venture
I Fgh

AfFEERE

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered

capital and
paid-up capital
BETHRERE/
HMERR
BEER

Registered capital
RMB1,375,000,000

(21: Registered capital
RMB1,254,000,000)
Paid-up capital
RMB1,074,999,504
AER
AE#1,375,000,0007%
C—F  FHEX
AE#1,254,000,0007T
HEER

AR #1,074,999,5047T)

Registered capital
RMB2,000,000,000
Paid-up capital
RMB1,667,972,355
AfER

A #2,000,000,0007%
BEER
AE1,667,972,3557C

Registered and
paid-up capital
RMB931,250,000

EMEERER
AR #931,250,0007%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

53. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

Name of subsidiary
[N R T

China Resources Power
(Bohaixinqu) Co., Ltd.

EHEN (BEHE) BERAT

Sichuan China Resources

Yazui River Hydro Power

Development Co., Ltd.

M) ZEEBE K EREARAT

China Resources Power
(Panijin) Co., Ltd.

EHEN (@R BRAT

Place of
incorporation
and operation
and form of
legal entity

EE A
RSB AR
EREREY

PRC,
Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise

e 5hE
BEEX

PRC,

Sino-Foreign

Equity Joint Venture
FRE] ) AR

BEEERER

PRC,
Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise

] 5hE
BEEX

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered

capital and
paid-up capital
BETHERE/
HERK
BEER

Registered capital
RMB840,000,000
Paid-up capital
RMB819,605,540

(21: Paid-up capital
RMB619,605,540)
AEfER

A 1840,000,0007T
BEER

AR 1819,605,5407T
C—F BEEX
AR #619,605,5407T)

Registered and
paid-up capital
RMB473,750,000
HEfRBEER

A "473,750,0007%

Registered and

paid-up capital
RMB1,076,000,000

(21: Registered

and paid-up capital
RMB776,000,000)
AfREEER

A 1,076,000,0007%
C—F  FMEEHEER
AE¥776,000,0007T)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

53. ZRE) F E BB 8%

15 @

53. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

Name of subsidiary
(il NGIR T

Place of
incorporation
and operation
and form of
legal entity
R
RSB AR
AREREY

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered

capital and
paid-up capital
BETHRERE/
HMERR
BEER

Percentage of
equity interest held (%)
FERNRERDL
Directly Indirectly

EH# A

Principal
activities

TEEH

China Resources Power PRC, Registered and - 100  Operation of
(Changshu) Co., Ltd. Wholly Foreign paid-up capital a power station
Owned Enterprise US$173,520,000
EBEN (B BRRA > ShE AfRARER EEB
BELE 178,520,000% 7
China Resources Power PRC, Registered and - 100  Operation of
Hunan Co., Ltd. Wholly Foreign paid-up capital a power station
Owned Enterprise RMB1,361,000,000
EBENABEERAT > ShE AfRARER EEBL
BEhE A K #1,361,000,00075
China Resources Power Henan PRC, Registered and - 85  Operation of
Shouyangshan Co., Ltd. Sino-Foreign paid-up capital a power station
Equity Joint RMB1,237,500,000
Venture
ARERENERLERAR FRE] ) FRgh ZRHEER HEEB
BIFEERE AE#1,237,500,0007T
Jiangsu Nanre Power PRC, Registered and - 100  Operation of
Generation Co., Ltd. Limited Liability paid-up capital a power station
Company RMB1,430,000,000

IFBAEEERETAT

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

ERENERBRAT

hE> BRAR

(21: Registered

and paid-up capital
RMB1,030,000,000)
HEHRER
AE#1,430,000,0007%
C—F  FMEEEER
AR #1,030,000,0007T)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
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53. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

Name of subsidiary
[N R T

Nanjing Chemical Industry Park
Thermoelectricity Co., Ltd.

ERIEBEIXEREERAT

Guangzhou China Resources

Thermal Co., Ltd.

BMNEBRAEERAT

China Resources Wind Power

(Haiyuan) Co., Ltd.

EHRE (B8R ARAR

Place of
incorporation
and operation
and form of
legal entity

EE A
RSB AR
EREREY

PRC,
Sino-Foreign
Equity Joint
Venture

FRE] ) AR

BEEERER

PRC,
Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise

] 5hE
BEEX

PRC,
Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise

] 5hE
BEEX

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered

capital and
paid-up capital
BETHERE/
HERK
BEER

Registered and
paid-up capital
US$127,580,252

ZfRHEER
127,580,252% 70

Registered and

paid-up capital
RMB1,400,000,000

(21: Registered

and paid-up capital
RMB1,100,000,000)
AfRAEER

A 1,400,000,0007%
C—F  FMEHEER
AE%1,100,000,0007T)

Registered capital
RMB1,610,340,000
Paid-up capital
RMB1,463,891,853
(21: Registered capital
RMB1,422,240,000
Paid-up capital
RMB1,327,621,853)

HMELR

AR #1,610,340,0007%
HMEER

AR 1,463,891,8537C
(C—F FHEKX
AR #1,422,240,00075
HREX

AR #1327 621,8537T)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

53. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

Name of subsidiary
(il NGIR T

China Resources Power
(Xilinguole) Coal Mining
Co., Ltd.

EREN BGNSY) RXBRAF

China Resources Power (Yichang)
Co., Ltd.

EREN (BB BRAT

China Resources Power Tangshan
Fengrun Co., Ltd.

EHENRULEHERAT

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

ERENERBRAT

Place of
incorporation
and operation
and form of
legal entity
R
RSB AR
AREREY

PRC,
Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise

R ShE
BEEXE

PRC,
Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise

FRE ShE
BEEE

PRC,
Sino-Foreign
Equity Joint
Venture

i > b

afEEERXR

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered

capital and
paid-up capital
BETHRERE/
HMERR
BEER

Registered and

paid-up capital
RMB1,730,267,500

(21: Paid-up capital
RMB1,375,000,000)
ZMRHEER

AR #1,730,267,5007C
C—F BEEX

AR #1,375,000,0007T)

Registered and

paid-up capital
RMB969,000,000

(21: Registered

and paid-up capital
RMB769,000,000)
ZRBEER

A& %969,000,0007T
C—F  ZMEEHEER
AR #769,000,0007T)

Registered capital
RMB690,135,000
Paid-up capital
RMB674,574,250
AfER
AE#690,135,0007T
BEER

AR 674,574,2507T
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53. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

Name of subsidiary
[N R T

China Resources Power Zhejiang
Co., Ltd.

EHESN (D) BRAA

China Resources Power
(XiLinGuoLe) Co., Ltd.

EREN By BRAT

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered

capital and
paid-up capital
BETHERE/
HERK
BEER

Place of
incorporation
and operation
and form of
legal entity

EE A
RSB AR
EREREY

PRC, Registered capital
Limited Liability RMB210,000,000 (21:

company Registered capital
RMB100,000,000)

Paid-up capital

RMB100,000,000

B BIRAT AEfER
A 1210,000,0007c

C—F#fEX

A #100,000,0007T

BEER

AE#100,000,0007%)

PRC, Registered capital
Sino-Foreign RMB2,065,000,000
Equity Joint Paid-up capital
Venture RMB1,909,333,300
B Ao EfER
BIFEERE AE2,065,000,0007T
BEER

AR #1,909,333,3007T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

53. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL 53. X AT X EN B AT AIEE

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

The above table lists the principal subsidiaries of the Group which
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected/
will affect the operation of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
result in particulars of excessive length.

Some of the subsidiaries’ English names represent managements’
translation of the Chinese names as they have not adopted formal
English names.

The principal subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC are all limited
liability companies.

Significant restrictions

As at 31 December 2022, cash and bank deposits of
HK$6,742,627,000 (2021: HK$7,930,234,000) are held in mainland
China and are subject to PRC exchange control regulations. These
exchange control regulations provide for restrictions on exporting
capital from the country, other than through cash dividend
approved by the shareholders’ meeting in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations.

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. 342
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REMEAT-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

54. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 54. X AT FEE R

COMPANY
AT MFBRAR

Statement of financial position of the Company

ASSETS

BE

Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - -BENRE 9,727 17,504
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 21,474 6,237
Investments in subsidiaries N NEANCIE L 81,463,289 25,915,392
Investments in associates REE S ENER 2,337,776 2,337,776
Investments in joint ventures ReEbtENER 1,270,108 1,270,108
Deferred tax assets RIERRIEE E 5,100 2,546
FVOCI UAnBEtEEEE
sTAEMAR S U 195,477 205,689
Other receivables HAuhEWzria - 5,284
85,302,951 29,760,536
Current assets MEEE
Trade receivables, other receivables & R BR 3R ~ E A FE U IB R
and prepayments TR R I 71,808 97,704
Amounts due from associates JFE S B e 1 2E FRIE - 849
Amount due from joint ventures e & & R ZENIE 670 —
Amounts due from subsidiaries and UM B AR R EMEEE AR
other related companies I8 26,678,485 58,569,823
Cash and cash equivalents P& REEEEY 1,071,671 129,538
27,822,634 58,797,914
Total assets WEE 113,125,585 88,558,450
343 Annual Report 2022
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B F R R M EE
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54. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 54. " AT EE @

COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Statement of financial position of the Company
(Continued)

AT IR AR @

2022

—— —
—_—

HK$’000
FTAET

2021
— =

— =

HK$'000
TET

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEkaE
Equity attributable to owners of the ~ZAxA S ¥R A EIEERE
Company
Share capital f& s 22,316,710 22,316,710
Other reserves HAh % Note (a) 83,687 82,307
FI5E (2)
Retained earnings fREEHH Note (a) 27,561,957 16,949,959
I EE ()
Total equity ERE TS 49,962,354 39,348,976
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities FErRBEaE
Borrowings == 5,904,390 31,121,268
Lease liabilities HEaRE 13,726 =
5,918,116 31,121,268
Current liabilities V=R
Trade payables, other payables FE{TBRE TR ~ ELfth B =IB
and accruals MEStE B 188,586 117,107
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETIY B A B K
and other H B A B FI8
related companies 34,372,174 17,459,732
Current income tax liabilities BNERFT SR B E 310 5,354
Borrowings BE 22,676,620 500,000
Lease liabilities HEEE 7,425 6,013
57,245,115 18,088,206
Total liabilities HWEE 63,163,231 49,209,474
Total equity and liabilities HETEREE 113,125,585 88,558,450

The statement of financial position of the Company was approved
by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2023 and was signed on its

behalf:

\! DIRECTOR
B%

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

ERENERBRAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

54. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 54. X AFINMBER @
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Statement of financial position of the Company AT HERRR @
(Continued)
Note (a): Reserve movement of the Company Mizt(@): FLFTFEEE
Retained Other
earnings reserves
REFHE H %
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
At 1 January 2021 HZZ2Z—f—H—H 18,952,516 82,307
Profit for the year FRFHE 1,153,092 -
Dividends declared to owners of BIRNARBEHEE AKRE
the Company (3,155,649) -
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—H+ZH=+—H 16,949,959
Profit for the year FRFE 11,838,661
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHRBAE -
Dividends declared to owners of BIRAEARBEEARE
the Company (1,226,663)
At 31 December 2022 BWZE2EZ-&#+ZHA=+—H 27,561,957
345 Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F R R M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-/A=t+—HILEE

55. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET
DATE

0

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

ERENERBRAT

The Group signed an agreement in December 2022 with
Guangdong Run Innovation Energy Equity Investment Fund
Partnership (Limited Partnership) and Dongguan Run Orange
Equity Investment Partnership (L.P.) for the acquisition
of 100% of Guangdong Runneng New Energy Co., Ltd.
(“Runneng”) for a cash consideration of RMB1,440,060,000.
The acquisition has been accounted for as acquisition of
business using the acquisition method and was completed in
March. At the time of the financial statements are authorised
for issue, the Group is undergoing purchase price allocation
for the acquisition of business. Accordingly information about
the allocation of the purchase price to major classes of assets
and liabilities, pro forma information etc., as required by
HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” are not represented.

Details of the acquisition are set out in the Group’s circular
dated 29 December 2022. Runneng has the capacity of
440.3 MW of wind energy and the projects mostly located in
central-eastern China where rich in wind energy resources.
The business combination will improve the renew energy
capacity of Group.

Subsequent to 31 December 2022, the Group entered a
disposal agreement in respect of dispose of two mining
companies to a third party (Note 14) at the consideration
amounting to RMB383,000,000. Out of total consideration,
RMB114,900,000 (equivalent to HK$132,008,000) has been
received as of the date of authorisation of these consolidated
financial statements and the remaining balance will be
satisfied in cash when the disposal is completed.
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BEJ) 100% A #ESE Al H 21 E B A
%ﬁmﬂ%ﬂ&&ﬁ%ﬁé%mﬁ (B
Re® MEREERERESE
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EBEWE TER =BT M
PHRRESESHRE  AEEET
ETZERWENBEEHESR
At EEM B RS EFEIHK
(5 HIMERNERKGIERE
PEAETEEEMAGHENINGE
BBt BRREEEZ RN
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o FREBE R MN440.3MWE EE T8

Ej(jg TR REERESHAF
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EEBERERRAER
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KNG AHERERE=ZHEH
EMBREAR (Mx14) > HE
A AR 383,000,000 B &
R REREEMESE A
W EY A R #5114,900,0007T (BB
132,008,000/ 7t) » Bf M RIBR R
HE e B LR & WER o
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INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS
rREESEEH

SHARE LISTING AND STOCK CODE

The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Our stock code is 836.

FINANCIAL DIARY

Financial year end 31 December 2022
Announcement of final results 22 March 2023
Last day to register for final dividend 14 June 2023
Book close 15 June 2023
Payment of final dividend 21 July 2023

SHAREHOLDER ENQUIRIES

For enquires about share transfer and registration, please contact the
Company’s Share Registrar:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
Telephone: (852) 2862 8628

Facsimile: (852) 2865 0990

For enquires from investors and securities analysts, please contact:

Investor Relations

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Limited

Room 2001-2002, 20th Floor, China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

General Line: (852) 2593 7530

IR hotline: (852) 2593 7550

Facsimile: (852) 2593 7531/2593 7551

E-mail: crp-ir@crc.com.hk

OUR WEBSITE

WWW.Cr-power.com

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. 348
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FEHENZERBRAE

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

Rooms 2001-2002, China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
BEEFEEE265

I R/E2001-2002%E

Telephone &5 : (852) 2593 7530
http://www.cr-power.com
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